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NOT FORGETTING

McCarthy’s evidencew(commucd from last
week's issue).

Witness—We did not get the members of the
Union to go with us all the time.
we got our jaws broken trying to get them together.

Mr. Larkin—Well, I never got my jaws broken.
Your jaw has never been broken, ‘has it ?

Witness—It has. <

Mr. Larkin—I am sure he never got his jaw
broken, not that he may not have deserved it.
To Witness : Well, we alway did keep the members
of the Union together, and did what we could.

Master of. the Rolls—Havé we n()t had enough
of this mow ?

Mr. Larkin—This is a axduh&ht on Dublin life
which you have never seen, my lord. (Laughter.)

Master of the Rolls—I can sée that though there
is this public contest, you are very good friends.

Mr. Larkin to Witness—Well, Mr. McCarthy,
you kpcw that there was a need for these rules to
be revised

Wxtness—-l expect you will ‘say thsre was,

Larkin—Well, this is the 18 rules.
You were a meinber of No. 1 Branch at that time.

. Did you -ever attend a muctmg of the Branch to

: Taised by a prominent member ;

! When was it called ?

discuss' the rules.

Witness—You know @ mel -
could not discuss the Rule %

Mr. Larkin—Did you ever d a meeting of
the Members where these fules were _discussed ?

Witness—No.

Mr. Larkin—What section did you represent ?

Witness—I represented the Carters’ Section that
particular ‘year.

Mr. Larkin—Where did they hold thu meeting’
to revise these rules ?

Witness—In Liberty Hall. There was a meeting
called to consider the question, and other.questions
iricluding an application from -myself for increasc
of wages.

Mr. Larkin—I am asking you a special question.

Witness—I have alfeady answered that.

Mr, Larkin—Did you ever get a meeting to vote-
upon the revision of the rules ?

Witness—No,

Of the Branch

Cross-examined by Serjeant Hanna, K.C. .

Sjt. Hanna—yYou say that there were sectional
meetings® held and that it was because it” was
impossible to hold a meeting of the big branch
because it was*so large ?

Witness—It was impossible to hold a meeting
of the Branch, but it was also impossible that the
rules would ‘be dl:uu::v..d by about 7,000 or 8,000
prople.

Sjt. Hanna to \l-lbt&l' of Rolls—My lord, I wish
1o ¢all your attention to the following entr) dated
ith ‘November, 1918, in the MinutesTof No. 1
Branch. (Reads out entry.)

To \\1tnc::-—Wen, these sectional. meetings
called ?

Witness—I attendu.[ at least two.

Sjt.. Hanna—You speak for two.
sections would” be in-a Branc

Witness—I could not amswer that.

Sjt. Hanna—How sare the Sections arrived at ?

Mr. Larkin—What was the other Section 7

e

Withess=—I .would not be able to give- fﬂe date.

11 yqu like I will give you a Teason 'why-I recall '

the meeting. (Gives as reason. mortality question.
also questions
4s to'thie benefits received from the. ann by single
and marned men respectively.) 2
W-*—Why,dtd you pot say tlml a moment
-Ago X
Sit. Hanna—\What. he said “to-mfe was that bo
could only - igswer. for two.” Mr. Lirkin “asked

bun o T the ockcn, .sud then'He gave theanswer.

Many a time

How many

FORAN,

O’BRIEN,

AND OTHERS.

JUDGE (’CONNOR, MASTER OF THE ROLLS

Mr. Larkin—I asked him before. To Witness :
Did you ever get the members to vote upon those
rules ?

Witness—No. :

Mr. Larkin—That is what I want to'get you
to say. 1

Master of the Rofls to Witness—Did you sec this 7
It contains the deaft Rulés. To your knowledge
were these distributed amongst the members ?

Witness—I got a few copies myself. I took
several copies and handed them out to various
members.

Master of the Rolls—I sce.  Were a considerable
number of these red books drafted and circularised ?

Witness—There were certainly a number to be
seen at No. 1 Office.

Mr. Larkin to Witness—Tell me what was the
procedure laid down for the attendance at the
clection of members of the Union ?

Witness —They were taking anyone who came
along. 1f there was any doubt about them they
were taken upstairs.

- Mr. Larkin—Was not it in the Riles of the Union
that a man came before a Committee to be
appointed.?

. Witness—No, Jim, when I joined anyone was
taken.

Mr. Larkin-—You joined ﬁr:.t you were one of
the apostles.

(Mr. Larkin asks for Minute, Book of No. 1
Branch.) 5
Witness—In the early days when a man came in

he got his card as a matter of course.

Mr. Larkin—In the Rules of 1909-1912 was not
there qualifications’ for membership,. and the
Executive could deny membership to any man ?

Witness—In some cases.

Mt. Larkin—Do you remember John €onnor
sitting as' Executive Officer in 19142

Witness—I' do not.

Mr. Laer—Dg’ you runember any meeting
to clect an Exccutive in 1913 14 ?

Witness—I do not.

- Mr. Larkin—Did you ever come into the room
on the right hand side of the corridor. » We used
to call it No. 77

Witness—Yourself and James Connolly. u>ualh
sat there-—and Foran. :

Mr, Larkin—And Johu Lynch ?

Witness—I never saw John Lynch.

Mr.. Larkin—But we did sit there ?

Witness—I knaw you ‘were there, and Connolly,
and. Foran.

Mr. Larkin—Did you evu’ read any communica-
uon from th¢ Committee of the Executive Branch
of No. 12 i

‘Witness—No, I .did not. .

Master of the Rolls—Any more witnesses ?

Mr. Larkin—My lord; I have told you thefc'is

=

- a difficulty about the Subpoenas.

Sjt. Hanna-—We will give you until the mpmmg
Junior Counsel (Mr. Maguire, B.L) reads out
documents accepted in evidence, viz.,—
Master of the-Rolls—Listén to this, Mr. Larkin,
+ Certificate of Registration dated 6th May, 1909:
Rules of 1916 of the Irish Txanspcrt and General
“Workers Umon .
* Rule: i
Mku{ k ol the Executive centaining 'ﬂmutL
of tHe Meeting of 27t February, 1018
Minute of the drd May, 1918. "
‘Minute' of the 30th August, 1918. g ;
- Minute of the 3rd October, 1918.
° Minute of the 3rd November, 1918.
Minute of the' 10th November, 1918,
~ | Minute of the'22nd December, 1918.
" Mimite of the 8th February, 1922.
Minute of the 24th March: 1023,
Circular letter* dated 3rd April, lJlS :from t‘m
Lxecutive Committee of the ‘ILrish Transport 4ud
Genceral Workers! Laaun as to thc Branches.

Ongmal replies from the Branches, tied together
in a bundle.

Master of the Rolls—There is some dispute as to
this. Is this the bundle with Mr. Bohan's letter ?
Mr. Larkin thought he was getting® a- e of

original documents, and I'was under’ the; ibn
it was put in for the purpose of Mr. Boh _!qtter
Mr. LarRin—My lord, I can help you. I will cail

for those documents to be put in.

Master of the Rolls—Show me the documents.

Letters handed to Master of the Rolls, (Accepted
by Mr. Larkin)

Circular letter dated 11th November, 1918 from
the Executive Committee to the Branches.

A list of the Branches voting for and against the
Rules, and giving the number of votes in each
Branch.

Certificate of Registration of the 1918 Rules.

Letter dated 13th November, 1923, from Daniel
0'Connell Miley, notifying an objection received
and losing eopy of

Resdlutign of the llth June, 1923, suspending
Mr. Larkin, and the Minute of that date.

Whole Minute Book of the Executive of 1918 °
and 1919,

Master of the Rolls—Do you object, Mr. Larkin.?

Mr. Larkin—I have not seen them, my lord.-
I looked over them hastily but I did not peruse
them.

Letter of the 14th June, 1923—Messrs, Wm.
Smyth & Son to Messrs. James O'Ceonnor & Co.,
Solicitors for the Plaintiff—(letter returning key
of Liberty Hall)

* Minute of No.
1018.

Minute of No.
1918.

Master of.the Rolls—Omne important thing has not
been put in—the draft print of the Rules—the red
book.

Mr. Larkin—My lord, it was I who hande:!
up for marking.

Master of the Rolls—For that reason it is impor-
tant that it should be put-in evidence.

Also ‘added to list by Master of the Rolls.

File of Returns from Branches of Members and
Voters.

Mr. .

1 Branch dated 17th November,

1 Branch dated st ‘December,

that

- Larkin—My  lord, thesé. are not originals
at all—only copies by some clerk.
Hearing ad;uurucd. . o

John O’Nelll Sworn.

Larkin—Was there any
nomination ? 2™

O'Neill—I do not recollect.
- Larkin—He was elected in your prouuce ?

O'Neill—According to , the minute

Larkin—Was -President Fdran in’ the. cheir ?

O’Neill—Yés.

Larkin—Was it you.r duty to carry oul you!r duties
~ithin the Rules ?

Q' Neill—Yes.

“Larkin—DId you make any exeopﬂon 2

‘O’'N¢ill—No, F did. not. \E

Larkin—He was -elected to aa omce whlich did
not emt——Vlco-Pnﬂdem?

O’Neill—No. = .-

Master of the Rolls-——We are not concerned with
that hére, we are only concerned whether O'Bricn
was pmpetly appomtcd General Treasurer.

" Larkin—T ohly want to connect up the links.

“Larkin—Did 0’Brién attend any meetings during

.-lhe yen 1817 2 -
Noill—He, may }m<4r been pn.aent at some,
hrkln—md he: tuke any pari

0'\?111—8«. may- have.

Larkin—Lgok at the minutes of the Noyember
‘weetings- and- see-.if-he aitepded. 0'Brien first .
attended a mnmu; on ntk “November, 1917, as

opposition to that
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Vice-President. Had O'Brien any right under the }.ark‘m Did you revise the Rules ?
5 to be at that meeting ? ‘oran
m:‘)"?\'{-iw— He had a |i;:h|g to e at the mecting Larkin gl no Executive was elected in November,

Larkin- No right to be at'a Committee Meeting ?

(rNeill-- Not in an official capacity.

Larkin- Lonk at Kule 22 1915 (Reads Riile),
Was there any election in your Branch of Executive
Officers in 1917 ?

O'Neill- I do _not recollect. 5

Larkin— Any Convention of the Union called ?

(’Neill- 1 do not remember.

Larkin (continng to read Kk
no such Convention in 1917 2

O'Neill- 1 coulil not swen

Larkin- No communication sent to you in
from Executive Oflicers ?

There was

T

O'Neill- No seeodlection
Larkin- None whatever ?
('Neill No

Larkin- No Executive in 1917 ?

O'Neill- T could not say.

Larkin— Any record of Summons of Members
for convention or election of Delegates to E.C. ?

O'Neill—1 do not rememler

Larkin— You were charged as Secretary of the
Branch with certain duties, amongst the duties is
that of Treasurer of the Branch ?

O'Neill- No

Larkin-— Look at  Role I8 (Rewds  -am
There you are charged with control of the money
Did you carry out your duties.?

O'Neill—=To the best of ny ababty

Master of the Raolls This s nin o Conmmties
to enquire into the conduct of the otheers of the
Union, we are here to try certain issues, we hise
nothing whatever to say to the conduct of My
O'Neill. T would ask vou t conine vonrself 1o
relevant matters, you have-not asked o gl
relevant quu.\li(nn since you cameomto Count

Larkin—1 want to ‘know
appointed, and [ reserve my nght to question thas
matter,

Thomas Foran Sworn.

Larkin— You have been General President of this
Union since its formation ?

Foran- Yes.

Larkin-—You are fully acquainted with all the
Rules ? &

Foran— Well, reasonably ves

Larkin- You were elected in 1909 to office ?

Foran—Yes

Larkin—And at the election under the Rules

every second year you were re-elected ?
Foran—Yes, somctimes every Vear.
Larkin—You were elected in 1911-13-16 ?
luran —~1 cannot. - remember  the  vears
Larkin—In 1916 there was an Insurrection ?
Foran—Yes.
Larkin—The acting Secretary, to the great loss
of this country, was then executed ?
Foran—Yes.
Larkin— You, at that time, were a General Officer ?
TForan—Yes.
Larkin—You were arresled by-the then Govern-
ment ?
Foran- - Yes.
Larkin—And - returned aiter
duties ?.
Foran— Yes.
Larkin-— That would be ui 1913 ?
Foran—Yes.

aarkln— You found that some of the members
had gathered together again for the purpose of re-
organising the Union ?

Foran— My lord, I will teil vou what 1 found.
When I returned [ found Liberty Hall in rums and
I found the total funds of the Union to be £80.
.Larkin— Was there a meeiling to nominate a
General Executive in 1916 or was there an election
for a General Executive ?

¢ 'time to your

Foran— cannot  vemember.  What - do !]n
records say ? &
Larkin—You informed me in your affidavit

that all the fecords were destroyed in Liberty Hall
Foran— Well, I.cannot tcll
Larkin- 1 'was asking you were you re-elected lo
your office in 1916 ?
Foran- | was due for election, 1 certainly was
Lalkin— You were charged with certain duties
unider the Rules ?
Foran—Certainly . 5
Larkin—The Rule is, my lord, No. 25. (Mr.
Larkin reads Ruld).  Were you elected-to thé office
of General President in December, 1916, at any
Meeting, by any form of ballot ?
' Foran-1 certainly cannot swear, but if;l was due
for election I certainly was elected and functioned.
Larkin—Were you. elected ini December, 1919 ?
Yoran-—I could hot swear that.
Larkin—Wete Yyou elected to
Executive in 1917 ?
Foran—1I cannot remember, . '
Larkin— Was there an Execumzc sitting in 1917 ?
I'dran—There must have been.
Larkin- Any minutes of 1917 ¢
Foran—I1 'do not kaow; the records should be
Te. *
Larkin—You were also ‘acting Secretary ?
ter of the Rolls—Not concerned with that

the

lmn
Larkin— Was thére any eleenon in 1918 2
Ferun—What du the records

Laxlun—-w:u there any clecuou in ‘Novewber,

1918
lux %uuuul say. 1 aw uot sure as tu dates,
i a:»—- id you 1uncUon dunng ,1918 ?
h.:x;un—-\ca <

B s

Hoan exeoutive Wi,

General

how could these men send out Rules ? If these men
were not elected how could they send out to the
hranches instructions to vote upon amendments to
Rules not yet carried through ?

Larkin Did draft!Rules, or copies of draft Rules,
go to the branches in November, 1918 ?

Foran  Draft Kules certamly went out to the
Mrandhes

Larkin In November, 1918, they went out from
Head Office ?

Foran Wenp ot oan 191s

“Larkin They were to be réturned by the 1st
December ?

Foran Y-

Larkin They were registered as being the

considered opinion of the members of this Union
on the 20th December, 1918 ?

Forane That's right

Larkin Does not the Rule Book say so ?
cToran Yes o

Larkin Did you call a Convention of the Union
in 1918 or at any time %

Foran  Yes, 1 obeheve 1 oattended a0 mecting

Larkin Where was the Congress held ?

Foran Cannot sy

Larkin Was it Sligo ?

Foran 1t may have been

Larkin Did you also hold a Convention in 1917 ?

Foran 1 cannot say «

Larkin Yoy did not carry out Rule 22, by

failing to eleet an E.C. in November, 1818 ?

foran  No, nor we never did it.

Larkin  We never did it.?

Foran  Even m vour time

Larkin Did you do it in 1918 ?

l'oran Not in November.

Larkin The Rules say you must elect an E.C.
in November to take office in January ?

Foran- Yes

Larkin What reason had you for not calling for
nominations and s{ectinn \in 1918 ?

Foran B mni\/n Was ever den

Larkin Why did you not doit? You had charge.
thiy 1 suttered from your

Betause posat

I

Larkin I hope all my pupils do not develop on
the lines you have developed on.

What authority had you to send ou! draft Rules ?

Foran No authority.

Larkin Did you send out those draft Rules to
be amended 2

Poran I was responsible for sending them out.

Larkin They went out to the branches in
November ?

Foran  They were under  contemplation for
conatderible tinn

Larkin This Executive kept sending out sugges-
tions for Rules ?

Foran - We did

Larkin Were there many replies from the
branches ?

Foran -The gecords should show  considerable.

Larkin How many hranches qualified according
to Rule ?

Foran- Not very nuany.
~ Larkin - Would there be 39 ?
Foran —About” that.

Larkin--The E.C. were only elected in 1918, and
immediatgly sent out a demand for revision of
Rules.

Larkin What right had the Executive to aiter
the Rules of this Union or send out these parlicular
amendments ® What legal right ?

Master of the Rolls That 1s a question of faw

Mr. Larkin— Allnght, my lord,

Larkin Do you hold that you amended these
" Rules of 1915 according to Rule- 33 2%

-Foran’, Yes,
Larkin- Had you an _glection in 1919?
Foran--The new Rules created new Hih««w and

there was an cléction to 6l them:

Larkin-— Where . was the meetlng held at which
you were elected General President ? -

Foran At the Mansion House or Liberty Hall,

Larkin — How - was the. election carried out ?

- Foran—In the ‘ordjnary* way, General Mccting
Larkin- Any opposition ? .
Foram—What do the records say #

Larkin—No election of E.C., in Novemher, 1918 2
Foran—1 do not know.

Larkin— Did you make application for registration
of Rules to Mr. O’Connel!. Miley on a sworn a.ﬂldavn
taken by Mr. Seville ?

Foran—Yes.. - :

Larkin—1I observe my nght 1o question tlus man
further.

Mr. J. J. Hughes cllled wd sworn.

(Larkin—Mr. Hughes, were you at ahy time in’
charge of any swretarlnl duties lll the Transyorl

Union ? p
Hugles—Yes.
Lark ou kept the minutes from 1918 unul

you were compelled to leave-the service of the Unlon ?
Hughes—Yes, -
Larkin - What year ?
. Ilub'hu —July, 1921. =
-Larkin —Were you ever a- member of lhe Criminal
Investigation  Department 7
< Huglies—Nu
* s lu ol {he Rolls—=1 vbjugt
Larkin—When agting as Sei xem.y you came inte
close touch with the members>of the Exeeutive ?
lughes—Yco. -

Larkin - On what date did you become an Officer
or employee of the Union ?

Hughes-——1 was emploved as o clerk in charge of
office work about October, 1917,

Larkin- - Who engaged you ?

Hughes— Mr. Foran and_ Mr. O Brien.

Larkin--Any Executive Meeting in 1917 9

Hughes—I beliéve there was an Executive Meeting
towards the end of *17 ; it might have been early in
1918,

Larkin Was Mr. O‘Brien present ?

Hughes  Leannot say posmvely I believe he was

Larkin In the office in Liberty Hall ?

Hughes  Yes.
Larkin, In 1918 yeu were actmg as Secretary ?
Hughes  Yes,
Lar'i(ln Were there many minutes kept during

the year 1918 ?

Hughes  There were.

Larkin You took all notes ?

Hughes — Oh,  yes.

Larkin- Is that your handwriting ?

Hughes —Yes, -

Larkin- -All members set down in the first minute
were present as an Executive ?

Hughes —~Yes.

Larkin—Did you draft out that statement your-
self, or who supplied you with the information ?

Hughes - Statements made by individual mem-
bers in comprehensive minute,

Larkin -During that year were you directed to
send out requests to branches for amendments to
Rules ?

Hughes  During 1918 Yes

Larkin  Was there any communication from the
Executive in reference to the procedure necessury
whenp revising the Rules?

Hughes  Oh, ves.

Larkin We come down to November, 1918.
Were you instructed to summon meetings of the
branches for the purpose of nominating members for
E.C. under Rule 22°? Was your attention ever
called to that- Rule ?

Hughes -1 cannot say ves or no from memory

Larkin Did you send out any eircular notifying
branches that the Elgction of the Executive was due?

Larkin- You were never instructed by the General
President or Acting Secretary to get nominations
for election of E.C. in November ?

Hughes -As far as 1 -«can.remember, no

Larkin  You were instructed to send out a letter
to branches in November notifying them that certain
Rules in Book form were to go before the members
and were to be voted on in globo ¥

Hughes 1 remember that.

Larkin - Who instructed you to send the circular
out ?

Hughes ~The Executive.  The instruction about
voting iin globu was given by Mr. O’Brien.

Larkin-- He was a member of the Executive ?

Hughes  Yes,

Larkin - Took part in the meetmgs?

Hughes - Yes.

Larkin  Were you also told what branches to
send out to ?

Hughes— I believe 1 made up the list of branches
myself and sent them out i accordance with
imstrucuons.

Larkin- - Are these the forms that were returned
to yeu ?

Hughes Ol wes

1\1: Larkin then read out list of forms returned.)

Larkin Do you remember any branches in

ublin sending in any ballot papers ?

Hughes— o do not remember.,
Larkin - Were you a member of No. 1 Branch ?
Hughes— Yes

Larkin - No 1 Branch Office was m Liber:y Hall .
as well as the Executive ?

Hugh(s ~Yes

Larkin ~ Any ballot taker ?

Huglics -~ No ballot taken that I am aware of.
Larkin- What section do you belong to 2
Hughes—E. C. Official.

Larkin - You never had an'hporlumty to vote
on these Rules ?
Hughes~-No.
Larkin—How many members were thers in No. 1
Branch at that period ?
Huglies—10,000 or thefeabouts.
Larkin - How- many members m No. 3 Branch 2
Hughes—5,400. ”
Larkln-Were there” any ballot papers lssued to
‘No. 3 Branch
l{ughebkl could not
issued any instructions
Larkin - How many members were there in the
Union ?
o~ Hughes—I could -not remember thot- -
Larkin—No. 1 did not vote as far as’you know 2
Hughes—There was no General \[cc{mﬁ\

tell _\_-:u that, 1 never

Larkin—You saw no ballot -papers. ballot
Papers were issued ?

Hughes—1, saw nong.

Lnrkln—md you discuss the -suggested revisions
in the Ruyles- with O'Brien ?

Hughes—Oh, yes.

X

Larkin—Was O’Brien one of the genuemen who

dra.ned them ?i
Hhighes—He mstructed me “about the drafting.
> Larfun- Who ‘Wrote the foreword in the Rule
Book ? X
Ty !u.. ~ Wil Aflat iy ould.
- - Larkizn-—-Was'the suggestion lor revision ol K_les
i “sentout in November with. instructions to vote ud
2" Have them back by 1st December ?
Uu*hu—l uuuu(. 1uollu.l the wxdit d.m,..

Ry S

v




" 11th June ?

~they were
- Larkin-

- Hanna—How many storeys up?
think. .’

" Mr. King called and sworn.
. Larkin—You were eniployed by the

‘of the Executive,-
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Mr. Larkin, then reads circular letter
November, 1918 - ]
‘Larkin -Sueh were your instructions .
Hughes—Yes. , . .
Larkin—Did it come under your notice that
these Rules were registered ?
Oh, ves. : s
You were ordered to issue
1Tughes—Yes, /
Michael Connolly called and sworn.
_ Larkin--You are a_member of the Transport
Union ? X C Y e
* Comnolly-—Yes. 5 i
Larkin —Are you a member since its formation ?
Connolly —Since 1911, .

Rule Books 2

Larkin—In 1919, did you atlend a meeting of |

the Union ?
Connolly-—Yes, " .
Larkin -~ Did you take, excentipn to the

nomination. of 0’Brien ?
Connolly —Yes, c
Larkin —Did any other man make exception ¢
Connolly—Two more.
Larkin— Were you expelled from the Union 2
Connolly “es. B ¥

Mr. Larkin puts in Mr. Justice Powell's Finding

in action against I.T, & G.W.[7, by Connolly,

" Mr. Larkin Sworn.

- Master of the Rolls— You heard it sworn that on
the 11th June, 1923, when O'Brien and others
appeared at the entrance to the Offices in Parnel]
Square you foreibly prevented them from entering-?
Larkin-—My lord, I refused to_ allow O’Brien,
Foran, Kennedy and MeCarthy to enter the Offices
of the Irish Transport and General Workers® Union
on the grounds that they had been suspended by
their branches. - There .are three 'doors  fo the
Offices at 35 "Parnell Square, and it ‘would be
impossible for any man to see me coming down
the stairs. I'simply stood in the doorway and fold
them”that they had been suspended until they had
answered the.charges which had been made -against
them. 2
" Master of the Rolls-—One witness swore there was
a crowd: gl . » :
- Larkin—My lord, there was no crowd - two
'members of the Union and myself. There was no

‘force or violence used. ) k
Hanna—T do not wish to cross-examine hin, -

Transport

‘Union ? - .

" King—T was, on the 11th June, 1923, -

. Larkin-— Do, you remember my coming home and

going into the  Office .in May ‘of 1923 9+ - :
King—No, I cannot say I.remember you coming

in then, the'first time Isaw you was in June; 1923, 4

Larkin—Do you remember the morning of the
King=-1'do distinctly. e Eat

- Larkin—You turned up to your duties as usual ?
" King—Yes, about 10 olclock.” . . = _ °
Larkin—Was_there -anhyone _in the ‘hall way. of

-85 Parnell Square ? z .
King—Only. two men standing at the doorway, -

; ‘Larkin—Was anything said to you about coming

n ? : T nh e
King—1 "passed right in and left icycle in

the hall ' U T 5
Larkin—-What did I'say to the Sta 0.3 Room ?

King—You asked for the Staff of‘this department.
and stated.you winted to inform them that & disputc
had arised between ‘yourself and certain members
that this dispate did ot

. interfere with the Staff, that'the Staff were to carry
on their duties in the ordinary way, the question
‘would be settied by the .Union, that the $taff had
no ‘connection with the matters in dispute, and you

then left the room.: We_ then. heard some vo
on the street .and we crowded to tht windows.
Mr. O'Brien. was on the footpath. .
Larkin—Many - people with him 9
Kii bor i

e pointed- out
and called upon® the Staff to leavé the premises.
Archic Heron. was -~ coming: down the stairs and
said & " Come- on’ boys,. Bill-is calling us, nqt."
Larkin—Where is No, 3 room situated ?
King—On .the_third. floor. 525 <

_After you-had spoken to the Staff you left: the
room and went down _the stairs. :

King—Three. -

stairs, from outside ;
King—No, unless the doors were held opgen.
Larkin— When you came down.the- stairs what
'w-ls( 5L dol{:g'? e A
. King—You
(‘omm?ftee: v 3
you told them t6 come in and do their ‘work, that
paid employees of. the Uni e
48T You came back to your k ?
King-—Yes. : .
- - Larkin—You
to_your'work ?
King—Yes. e ey i
Cross-examined by Serjeant Hanna. .
“Hanna-+You

were addressing. -the Executive

-:)5 ..Par:.nell : §qua re, ?

Hanna~HowWlong did-you stand at thi

= L e

o\f 11th

T the Sanday previcg

v back thag far ?

of them I_kr.fc‘w.' i
Secretary'- was acting illegally

2 «}uly elected under’ thé Rules of 1918:

Larkin—How many doors are there?® -~ -~

: S el B T
Larkin—Could you see anybody coming down the
? ¥ e -

the Staff' crowded on the steps and |

were .dls'nﬂéegl later for returning °

s Private ‘.Seore(:;f5‘ 2

window ?

Roughly ahout half a minnte,
Diel vyt ki (here was worny o b

King—
| Hanna
jargument ?

King—XNo. = !
Hanna—Dil v
King—I was

meenime an the' Mansian Hou
A W memiher at N,
Eranch 1 did not vare =
T oalanma-AWhen v came (own e stairs wae,
Mr, Larkin in the allwsqy 2 )
King- In the omt® hallwny,
Hanna™ -Did you sce him shut the deay 2+
King—T cannot <y,
Hanna—Did vou see him shut (he
Ring—1 cannot < ¥
IHanna -~ Oh, surely von can bring vonr memory

docn 2

Wing -If I saw Mr. Larkin closing the .door
I would.tell you so. .
Larkin— Were there sentries at' the door ?

King- Not that | was aware of,

Mr. Larkin Addresses the Judge.

As T stated in the start cverything T have done
I have done because of my membérship in the
Union and because of the duties which had been
placed on me, and ‘duties which I-for the time
transferred to another man. I left this country
and while I was away the Rules have been outraged
in“every particular and all benefits and rights of
the members refused.  When | returned I resigned
and they asked me to carry on my duties until
they had a meeting called, "I stated I wanted to
£0 away to Russia, but in the meantime L would
do cverything possible.  When I Teturned many
things came under my notice, relatives of deceasedl
members were being dénied benefits to which they
were entitled under the Rules. O'Brien was a
member of the Dail and from the Wages Book
I find he had been receiving wages unti] © 1922,
£8 a week. = 3

In many other cases T found that members had

becén deniced cvery right” under the Rules. | This

was a Union of Members, not a* Unjon of ‘Officers. - *

Rules had been so written up without the authority
of the members that evyry right had been taken
from them. :

It came under my nothe? that OM3rien had never
been a member urless when he, with other o flicials
got into office in the Union against the Rules,

O'Brien “joined the Union i 1917 and was
actually working as an officer of the Union in 1917.

The Rules were drawn up to give a certain crow
an. opportunity to take over.m nagement of the
Union in their own interests. Rules
established so that the E.C. themselves would
rranage their "own ‘payment. '

My lord, in the Rules dealing with the membership -

I hold that these Rules are not the legal Rules
of 1918. - ‘
They clected themselves by bogus vote,
* Financial members of -the Union were denied
a Tight to, vote. Py
Branch No. 3 did not get their: right to vote.
Branch No. 1 did not get ‘their right‘tu vote.
The. General, Treasurer was never af any time
entitled to become a member or officer.of the Union,
Rule 35 was not carried out. Rule-36 was not
carried out., # v

They . submit to the members a book of rules

allegéd to be revised rules, they say they are not
“to_be amended, they, must be voted on .in globo,
This Court has. a right to protect the members
of ‘the Unijon. 3 s N S
No billot papers have been produced; they have
never proved that any ballot papers were issued.
£ Any meney my wife received was in return for
my -services, to the Union.,

a great deal.

Mr. .Brown, K.C. -~ ¥ . |

T'intend to confiné myself to the matters 3 issuc.
(Reads Claim’y - We have to show that-the Rules
“under “which “the Plaintiffs were elected are,the
valid Rales, of . th BORREE
. (Réads . Rules. out’ of 1915 and: 8.

I'would ask you to. allow- thit the plaintiffs were

- owi evidenge. Larkin admits ﬂmt}i‘e exclnded them
from thé. psemises in. Rutland Square, and we are
entitled to a declaration... ~ »

The ‘only relief that could be’ claimed by Larkin
‘was'a declaration that Kennedy. and Jic(::arth)‘ :
were not qualified to act as members of the: fzxec_.u-'

tive Committec. ; =i

Master of the Rolls. -~ .° °

The action is brought by the. Plaintiffs claiming ~

a declaration that they - are the leéal‘.UUStm,
officers and Executive of :the LT. & G.W. U
that ‘is the first claim. They also ‘ask for -an
" injunction restraining ‘the Defendant, ete.,”from

* entering and “taking™ possession ~bf . the . premises.

The' first' case is—the Plaintiffs undoiibtedly

ead ‘Office in Parnell Square, and

Lt i
g .they. weresrefused entrance.by. the

on their

" Defendant, James Larkin> He may have ' been
motives he  may .-
hawe - thought' - he. was- acting within h::mlteg]?el 3

actuated by the very  best
right .to go there, but I.am ‘bound to’say
:bgtad‘ m'gst “inprudently, he ‘acted niost rashl

“now anything about the royw @ . -

were

The Union' owes mb .
more than they tan ever repay and I owe ‘the [ nion

ﬁ& .R\lk‘ﬁ',)_

romhig

« ‘that'the Rules required alterations, it was.the duty

were carrying -ofi the business_of the. Unios-and in - .
the course of-their dutiés one motning they pro-

v

has got very high ideals of lis duty to (he workin-g
still it has o i i

e tu me that in this
bad example (o (he working-

10 this example were carried out by the
ing-man it must resnlt in nothing more than
A instead of being o <aciety of civilized
an bemgs we would be o ot ol g
tegrel very el that M, Larkin took (h
The Plaintifis on the other hand . well
Sinorder (o avaid a hireach of the
quietly, determined o ha
determined, and an action
a declaration for the possessidn of these premises
which they are of the opinion’ they are entitled
to enjoy by virtue of their office, and for a
tion that they are the lawfyl trustees, offi
exeentive of the 1T, & G. W, Union,
which Mr. Larkin has raised -to these claims are
set forth in what is-called his Statementtof Defence,
< doédument-prepared for Mr. Larkin by able Counsel
and the document signed: by three able Counsels,
30 that I do not think he.was badly advised when
he came into Court] and, the legal defences settled .
by’ these gentlemen after due consideration are
clearly set forth, and now [ mayv say that: with
regard to thiy legal «defence that if this case hacd
been conglueted by these “gentlemen on. behalf of
Mr, I,arkr'n/the trial of this action would nof have
taken quarter of the time it did.. Mr. Larkin is not
to blame for bringing in irrelevant matters, and it
was-in consideration of his position that I gave him
latitude “which certainly would not * have been
given to Counsel, he accused me-personally of giving
latitude to the Plaintiffs here which L have not
given to him. [ think on reflection he will come to
the conclision that [ bave given him a great deal
‘more latitude than was ever given to any litigant
in this Court."

His main defence is that these people who claim
the' right to carry on the business of this Union
are not properly constituted trustees and_officers
of the Union, and all the
Statement of Defence is this, that they were elected
uider a set of Rules which v enacted inthe year
1918, and that these Rules.are not valid because
they’ do tdt comply with.a certain Rule previously
enacted and under the authority of which only
these Rules could have, been altered.” Now that”
is entirely a question of law. It is Mr. Larkin's
/tase: that previous to the Ynactment of the Rules
of 1918 the Union was governed by the Reles of
1915, -and that those Rules contained a special
rule (No."33). -That Rule is this—The Rules shall
only be aitered by the Gener:il Executive Committec
after.amendments have been asked for and. sent in
by Branches, such amended Rules to be fipally .
voted'on by the members.  Now if, this Rule was
to be closely scanned it might be found not to be
a very satisfactory one, because when you come to
the words * after amendments have been asked
for'' the question arises in what manner these amend-
ments are to. be as

s i shown oy
man.

advised,
peace, went away
* their legal right
brought, firstly for

s and
The defences

ed for, but there is no mode of
asking prescribed, it does not say that-therequest
is to be made in any form or, petition. Common
sensc reading. of that would allow that amendments
might be sent'in by the Branches after suggestions
to-the Branches by the Executive Council; and -
then again it is provided thdt such anmiended Rules
should be finally voted on-by the members, that is
by the members ‘of the several branclies. Now,

“any person working .under that Rule must be

struck with this, that it is necessary to-bring a
little more corhmon sense to bear upon it, in order -
to see how it could be worked out.” If each branch
was to vote for certain amendments, and if these
amepdments, perhaps by each branch,- were to
be insisted on, the utmost confusion would arise,
remembering all the branches in Ircland widely -
separated from one another and not in communica-
tion with one amother, each-branch might have a
very different view as.to-what kind of .-Rules they
wanted, the people jn Cork, very differefit from thi
people in- Armagh, the people in Sligo -different
from the peopla in ‘Waterford, so unless: there was
somie . central authority to_givethem: uggestions
as. to what kind of amendments they ought to put
forward for the purpose. of amending their nles,
it- wonld BE unworkable. e

Now-in the year 1918 it is obvious_fr,ﬁm the opinion
of. mémbers of the U'nion in different parts of Ireland .
that the- Rules required aiiiepdment and how ‘that

is proved clearly- by this minute which I will read. .

“(Reads ' minute -of the 27th, February, 1918.)
Shortly after the 27th" February, on the 3rd
.—\bril.'a circular letter was sent out-fragm the
Executive Committee “to the ‘branches; here it i,
~(reads letter). " It:was merély a“suggestion to them

of the Executive Committee to see. that-the amend-

‘mints proposed by: the several bpanches Were -in’
W Union -~ harmony, and no person c¢éuld deal with amend-

mc::é;coming in from séveral branches except.the'
ceneral body, . o e L

‘A cirgular letter was sent out on- the 3u April
and o the 3rd May, within a month, there was a
meeting of the Executive Committee and the malter,
dealing with:the alteration of the Rulex and prope)ed
amendments, owing to the length and difficulty ‘of

s, Who co d. the amendments sub-
mitted by the brapches and réported the alterations

to a special moetitig of the Executive Committee, -
whoither referred the amendments to the branches

.. when he took upon himsel{ to decide this question
s x’”'a‘w, ‘he-enforced liis view by force. ‘I am sorry
Mr. Larkin teok that coutse. who

or wogk of that kind to be
‘  page 6)

e,

lara-

reason he gives in his

the work, was referred to.a Gommittee of responsible: .
Ciderely oo

{lesCanstietion of the Rules. it was
Sossible,

/
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'JUDGES AND 'JUDGMENT

We ‘have -been making an appearance
agam in Court,”at tho order. of (as the
documents set out) . George the Fifth, by

- the Grace of God of the United-Kingdom of
Great Britain and Ireland and of the British *
Dominions beyond the Seas, King, Defender

_‘of the~Faith.”
legal warfare in this.case of Bennet against
Larkin by a gentleman, a Judge and a scholar,
Chief Justice Maloney.. It 'is a pleasure to
“ be corrected by this ‘Judge who, with a

smile on his face, looks at the combatants

“after .a wordy" wrangle and  quizzically
_ suggests, “ it were well to confine words—
. to ideas and. wiser still to keep to the issue.’
The voice alone ‘would command respect,
*never a note of anger,” Wwell ‘modulated,
brings - remembrance of boyhood ' days “of
one who sang and hushed the turbulent ones
to silence and peace of heart. I have no -
respect_for Courts of Law, I think, nay,
I believe.that the so-called:Courts of Law"
and Justice and the- decisions rendered
therein,. the forms of procedurc the costly

processes, the . red (now : gre tape; . the
mummery; the. dead ha vhich - clutch
- and ‘strangle - truth, i ice, this
tyranny of dead mmds e in ‘words

. quoted from Books and accepted even above
-~ the .word ‘of God and the truth in Man
Himelf is sufficient in itself to condemn the
present system of Seciety..

‘We 'suggest to our readers to- mentally
digest,.if they cannot analysé.the following :

- WA person who does" not elect within the
tinde limited, when a time'is limited, wi't ve
. considered as having elected to take agamst
the instrument putting him’ to: his elegtion.”

- We suggest truth is more important-than ", -
forms, that justice s, more important- than',
form of ]udgment that judges are controlled '
by ‘economic laws ‘just as; other men - who
have to’live and eat—with this difference—
that judges have a better judgment on which
side their bread will be buttered than thg

. avérage layman. _Selah !

If only the Ten- Commamlmgnts Were
accepted by so-called christians ‘and acted
upon -and lived up ‘to as some of . the
fossilised - decisions . of servile, senilevminds
of dead gents, who. were- political place-
hunters-——and Judges—because of + their.

<. willingness .to . -decide according to-instruc- .
tions.  When I'see a lawyer open up a book
and quote Coke-on Brimstgne, see "Law -
Reports (Irish), page umpteen — and these
gents—-I beg pardon~-and ladies, gown and
wig, . flitting" in - and' ‘about the Courts of
-Justice (?) who_have studied all the clogies, .
eaien dinners, and’learnt how, to’ pronounce

Ignohmtla legis neminem excusat —it
gwﬁ one to laugh.

The 'decision in the action of - Bennet
~ Larkin -has not been amvcd at prev:ous to
EOWEWPW ", o

o

We are guided in our *

. Truth  magnates

'beyond doubt—and ‘then ' there ‘shall be a .

~have lent themselves to.the perse
*, Irish men and’ wornen wxll bela
‘ appropriate rest.’ 4

- countries. Thomas and the Astors, COSgrave
cand Johnson——they “ all go-the same way
"home,” and they know nt and they are .

. Thomas—yclcpt

LA RKIN SUSTENTATION FUND

A Miss Mecting undtr the 'msplcn.
of the Dublin Trades® Council, called |
at the urgent request of the citizens, |
will be held at an early date to discuss
tlu judgment delivered: in_the case
.1rkm against Foran, O'Brien and
- Others,” and to open @ fund-to sustain
Tarkin in fighting this vital issue.
A preliminary meeting bas been hel ld
e tentative Committee «formed.
Collecting books and defence stamps
" will” be issued in a few days. Some -
fifty pounds arc-already in the hands of
the Treasurers : Councillor John
Lawlor and James Mitchell. ~ Any
_reader willing to assist 4in this urgent
matter should write the Editor.

PLAYING THE GAME.

No rumours reach the ountside world to
tell why the political prisoners. in LEnglish
and Irish prisons are still’being held.  If the
minds of somie British statesmen and. their
“Irish " colleagues could b¢ read a tale
would be

clothe the nakedness of some of the political
tribe..

A 'year.or so ago the street gamins enter-
tairied themselves and us (perhaps) singing
“ We all go thﬁm home,” and .in
the course of t cal>ehullition - informed
us that as '“the whole collection” was
travelling “in the same direction ™ there

was no need to part at all.” - Prophetic
gamins !

. The retention of over a thousand prisoners
in Irish prisons and a very large number in
English  prisons is nat an accident or an
oversight, but the expression of the wish
and attitude of mind of ‘* if-it-costs-as-much
more - Johnson, = deal - drastically - with-the
Irregulars-O’Brien, and the motley collection
of Broadcasters, Hydro-Electrifiers, Catholic
(Mr. :O'Higgins). and
Ascendancy men. The union of hearts
represented by this gathering has its affilia-
tions on the other side of the Channel where
the ‘reactionaries, holding the strings of

the labour movement; to the movement's

detriment, play the song of hmplre J. H.
¢ Jimmy ”—is " the leader
of the band and you-cap’t hear the rest
when Jlmmy blows the bugle.  But in the

background, . tootling- in ‘a ‘minor key, is

* ‘Asquith, and not. too far away Lloyd George
- —who hanged Kevin Barry—and the murder

gangs of both Liberal and, Conscrvatwc
parties are watch«mg and’ waiting till - the
 Labour”’ government proyes its supineness

funeral, 4nd the ‘‘labour ” leaders who will
cution of
- to thelr

It is‘awful to contemplate, but it has to

be: admitted that ' there is a. spmtual and -~

material affinity between the fake * labour *
leaders on both sides of the Irish Sea and
the forces of capitalist- reaction in both |

playmg the game oI life to meet thexr'-'

“heart’s desire.”
: 1t is, possﬂ:ly, t00 muc}_l to expect that

" whatever there is of lonesty and indepen- -

- denice amongst the labour repreﬁema.tlon at

“that pan

Westminster will have vision enough to see

will ‘ha

. either’ when. 'the government. has. been

deféated in' an honest 'endeavour fo

progressive legislation or when the combined -
‘forces " of Liberal and. Tory  capitalism
_-decxde‘that the Labour Q

Fémment haﬁ

unfolded which might shatter-.",
- whatever remnants of reputation remain to

: suﬁiﬂently deﬁled 1tself in: the mi

g. to_the forces of reacnon.

an inevitable reflex ‘on the. cause-
of the workers in England. The. next -
* General Election in that country will come.

BROADCASTING —HUSH ! HUSH ! HUSH ! -

Departmental Dmles not to be Published

By :lgm-m(-m between th(: Dark Brothers
the trnth is to be again denicd the public

““ The evidence and documents submitted
to the.Special Committee on ‘Wireless Broad-
casting, at any stage .of their proceedings,
will be printed and.circulated, except such
Departmental minutes as in the opinion of
the Committee are not necessary to be
published.”

Except such’ as the
should not be published. Ask Johnson,
Lahour' (?) T.D.—moryah—"“He knows
tother from which.”

2 Lnnm' i

(,onumttcu think

y

Rmt C omrado rest ! Thy long day’s work
is o'er :
Lay down the torch thy hand has borne so
" long.
Close now thine eyes; and let thy spirit soar
Through the wide earth, borne on our
funeral song.

Toward that cold grave beneath the Kremlin’s
© wall ,gl‘\

“The thoughts of millions of the workers turn.
Thy silent tongue still sounds its clarion call ;
And in their souls the answering pulses burn.

Hunted, mahgncd a ‘fugitive on_carth ;

* Fighting the workers” battle to the end;

Through wars, through plots, through -
Famine's’ grisly dearth ;

Faithful to death, thy spirit did ‘not bend.

A hired assdssin dealt ‘the' coward’s blow

That robbed us of thee, Comr’ade—that
removed

Thee from our ranks, and laid thy bodv low;

But left thy memory ten times more belovcd

What fools they be who think that by such
deed

They stent the Revolution’s mlghty flood. .

Let them beware !—for he who runs may read

The answer to thelr holocaust of blood.

. =~

Sleep, ‘Comiade, sleep' Nor fear thc work
was vain :

In which thy life was spent for others’ sake ;

Thé Torch from thy dead hand we raise again;

And carry onward—tlll ‘the full day break.

A MAJOR

“THE DIGNITY . OF OFFIGE
“ What a beautiful little darling you are.
You really don’t know how attractive you
are.” (President Cosgrave, Executive hedd.

" of the Irish Free State, replying to a female

critic during ‘a political” meeting at Rath-
'mmes February 18th.)

-~

“THE “ NATIONAL & DEBT.

In the ng s Bench Division on Monday'.
February 18th, P. Byrné brought an’action
. to force the Mlllta,ry Authorities of the Free
“State Army to pay money due for the hire of
“a motor car by Free State officers.

:We would. urge -our readers to recall the
-advice given to income tax defaulters bv
‘Mr. Blythe and his comrade-m— service,
N{]r’ Kevm OHJggms ‘ Pay your débts,
eh 1"

ds o.f \
~'the workers, thﬁ)ugh association andNcom-
promise with them, and it looks as if* the
“latter alternative will, become the fac.

As for the " Irish”2 Labour. (?) leaders.
In truth: they have dug their own graves.
* Year in, year;out, they have played and
workes ‘with capitalism, selling the national:
“honour: and the: destinies” of the workers.
“Their. day has'come, 4 Perhaps, they will :
:Ecceed by th ‘stiidied. silence in_keeping
“the

ot

o

w5

"

pnsoners i lg.al @ httlg longer but. th¢ ; :
in sight. '
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ZANGWILL AND LARKIN -
Written. specially_for_the * Trish. Worker " _

By ANONYMOUS,

* Comrades and gentlemen,” said—the
humorist of the gang, ** Jim Larkin has
published an article by Zangwill and he
wants our opinions.” " 3

“ 1 think that Zangwill is Tight,” said the
Doctor, ** although I have never read a line
of any of his aitacks. I know he isyright
hecanse every Professional Jew denounces
him. - So L'm convinced 'Zangwill is right, -
Because the Professional Jews won't permit
criticism and house-cleaning this handful
of riff-raff you know who I mean ?
I refer to those who are responsible for the
faginism,  procuring, brothel-keeping,
- sweating, sharp-dealing, receiving stolen
goods, ctc. :

“ This handful of riff-raff is made repres-
entative of our race—of the great population -
. of hard-working, poverty-stricken, law-

abiding, - clean-living, simple Jews .
.So they stifle criticism, these* Professional
Jews who .are "doing - nothing but working
on their lucrative jobs of appealing to the

racial vanity of their people What
if -the- criticism, pierces like the probing,
“-cleansing lancet, and burns and pains like -

antiseptic poured on festering sores ?

The Jews_ . . .." e \

“Tea and cakes are served and we drink”

and eat in silence. ~We watch.the doc‘tor,t

expecting the tank to fill again and spill
cascades’ of ideas. A young Jewish boy,
+ not_knowing the cause of it all, feels the
‘. rising, personal apger within him. It is
- easy -to perceive the struggle that rages-
¢ within ‘him. The eloquence of the
doctor like the far-away boom of
- the surf, crawling, menacing, ominous 3
> “The Jews .. . . only the Jews them-
_selves- . .. 'can solve the Jewish question.
But. it has been"made a closed. subject.
- Its'door has become:a trap.. Hewho ventures
to open it is caught and crushed in the jaws

~ . of the guardian dogs of Jewry,.the Profes-

sional “ Jews. .  They -call themselves the ,’
protectors’ of .their people.” But in reality
they are the jailors of their people, keeping
- them from enlightenment and self-liberation.
Undiscussablée—the unwritten
Professional ' Jews. ~
Jew is non—diséugsab’lé‘

n' subject.
S ‘will take the .
sick ego.out of my people to-the clinic.
I know I will be called the enemy of my
people, hounded, cursed,” spat upon, dis-
owned, ‘even by my own family, ridiculed,
“called a_renegade, turncoat,-the "paid tool-
of the Anti-Semites .- . . excoriated . . .
left without-peace . ... But T have got to

go ahead . . I will take the sick ego out of :
my people to the elinic. - -
*“ There is no question of religion. . . ..

- Worship-as, you please, when and ' where you’

- us hysterical and neurasthenic

- th' job nicely f'r ninety cinfs.’

- please. But get rid of the foul fungus of the , -

Ghietto. “If you do.not become an integral,}.
-euphonipus part of the. American nation -
you will again isolate yourselves and stand
out yellow-badged among the people of the
New World . . again . . alien, wandering,
strange figures again - .. distrust,
dislike; persecition, The - Jéw "must .
take  himself in hand, sée himself as the :
world sees' him. ~ Face historical facts. '
Facé scientific truths. - Face medical and
_pathological findjngs. - Treat himself . .
I know when the outsider criticises the Jew,
the: Jew withdraws behind the ramparts of | -

his Ghetto and hisAreligior;..j throws ‘himself -

blindly into his consoling” faith, ‘a faith
 ‘that has given our jace a paranoiac tendency, .
the faith that he is God’s Chosen People : .
“Géd will deliver His Chosent People from
. the oppressors and smite the oppressors . ..
and His Chosen People will rule. the world .
.some. day . +.- some day. . s o We uare

hysterical, overwrought, high-strung °. .

we ‘ : repose, selfishness / nd-f ¥ :
. :We need the sedative of repose, selfis " anyné raking _gpplication. an d paying -

. We are neurasthenics . . look at the greater
. ratio- of " insanity: and’ feebl¢mindedness-

——

. conducted.

* strikes, no rules," no contracts, no §Fabs,
" harly-iny wages an’ dam feéw mimbers.”’

- copies ki

_arganised- by Jehn
‘Minister for. Health
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We suffer from
believg i owr racial
supremay, assert it, bhoast it : flawnt i
in all our actions There- has heen too
n\uu'h inbreeding in the fastnesses of the
Ghetto, so there are insanity and feeblg-
mindedness, diabetes I know the Jew
has been forced to use his brain-machine
until it is jolted out of gear . > that living
in dread and fear of the oppressor has made
but
here in America . . it is different . . should
bg different . owe can make it different.
Tear down the walls, let out the pent-up
people 1o mingle and mix. End the
isolation.” -

among our people
racial paranoin

Discussion waxed hot.  How the pros-
perous Jews attacked the doctor. He laughed

for they only proved the-truth of his argu-

ment. ' Strange,” he concluded, “ that
this discussion should have been brought
on by a paper publishied by no less a person
than * Jim "’ Larkin. How many times has

he criticised his own people, in exactly the”

same manner that [ have done to-night.
Good old Jim, big-hearted, simple, strong
and loving. [ wonder what his race will .do
to him.  Will they make of him a sccond
Christ and compel him to -walk the road
that leads to-Calvary ?

We walk home, at two in the mnrning,d

and the words ring in our'ears : “““Will they
. compel -him to walk the road that
leads to Calvary 2. : .

MR. DOOLEY" A; - THE SCABS.

" What's all this that’s in the papers about

. the open shop ? "' asked Mr. Hennessey.
said Mr. -

“Why, don’t you- know?"
Dooley. " Really, F'm surprised at yer
ignorance, Hinnissey. What is th’ open shop?

Sure, ‘tis where they keep the doors open to

accommodate the constant stream av' min
comin’ in' t" take jobs cheaper than th’ min
what has th’ jobs. 'Tis like this, Hinnissey :

Suppose wan av’' these frechorn citizensis -

workin' in an open shop f'r th” princely wage
av wan large iron dollar a day av tin hours.
Along comes another son-av-d-gun and he
sez to th’ boss “ Oi think Oi could. handle
' Sure,” sez
th’ boss, and th’ wan dollar man gets out into
th’ crool-woruld t' exercist' his ‘inalienable
roights as a frée-born American citizen .an’
scab on 'some other poor devil. An’ so it
goeson; Hinnissey. An’ who gits th' benefit ?
Thrue, it saves the boss. mency, but he don't
care no more {'r money th;n he does&f'r ‘his
right. eye..” " - " 3

EN

" It’s all principle wid him. * He hatest” sec

men robbed: av,their indipéndence.  They

must have their indidinpence, ‘regardless av:

anything: else.”
“But,” said Mr. Hi
shop mip yé menshun. a
-ivproperly conducted 2.7
“ Shure,” waid‘Mr. Deoley,
An’ there’ we are > ;.
would they- have thim conducted ? "2

"

A RARE HAPPENING !

"SOMETHING. -FOR . NOTHING |

" We h.a~v-e'_ been ia\{ourgd' by
remainder -lot” of = a” pamphlet

a grant of a.

This _pamphlet, o

publihed C
Socialist Society of Glasgow, which was
Wheatley, - presint

in England and, the Editor_'.oi {h‘f ' Irish
Worker.” We. will send this pamphlet to

postage of pamphlet. X

called. |
“ Economic Discontent,” by Frn. Hagerty."

e of ‘whick ~“over 1,000,000 .- -
re been, sold in Scotland, was h_n}t' !

in-the British Isles by the Catholic

in the Labour Cabinet -

DOINGS IN THE STATES

I'rom our Correspondent.,

THE OIL ST!EAL.

The power that a capitalist, like Doheny—
the multi-millionaire. oil king, has in the
making and unmaking of governments in
this- great " Demotracy ™ is being further
revealed, to.the great relish of class-conscions
workers here. d

A paper owned by the late President
Harding was bought” at' a boosted figure,
to-keep on thexdeal, or steal.  Ex-Presiden t
Wilson’s son-in-law, MacAdoo, was also on
Doheny’s pay-roll, and it was arranged before
the present Cabinet took office that Doheny
was to 1
“figure.

Doheny  subscribed heavily to the

get the naval oil reserves at his own

chmpaign funds of both the Democratic and

Republican parties, in a sort of Vicar of
Bray- spirit, no doubt.
2 i ;

To Dope the Workefs._.

At the moment of writing one hundred
of the leading ‘cditors; cditorial writers. and
newspaper owners are the guests of Secretary

_of the' Navy Denby aboard: a swell warship,
‘cruising in the warm Carribean Sea, to witness
the ~naval - manocuvres. ; ]

The taxpaycr of New York, who will foot
part of the bill for the junket, are shivering
m a new zero spell. - { &

In a few 'weeks they will read argy; diits
why they should submit. to heavied taxes
for naval cfficiency, or in other words, a
preparedness that will result in some of the
workers of the world being shot to pieces
by each othicr, so that the oil and the profits
of the Dohenys and Stinnes and the Devon-
shires or Portsmouths may be made safe and
SCCUTe, . ;

The cvidence in the “oil probe shows
that Denby also received Doheny’s cash
and agreed that his Department’s oil supply
fields should be exploitd by the ubiquitious
Doheny.. He made no secret of it when

questioned by the "Senate, but like the °

MacDonald Government and the Tory sea-

lords—the . navy’s efficiency” would be’ im-__

paired if -Denby -was givenr=the boot.

~ Child. Slavery. y

“One child in every twelve, between the
-ages of ‘ten ‘and fifteén, a million in all,
slave on an average ten hours per day in

*, this enlightened * democracy,” that worked

as hard as nails to hand -back Russia to the
+ Czarists. , LS ¢
They slave 'in

“the cotton mills, in, the

cotton fields, the canning factpries and other

textile mills¢ ete. " o
In Nerth Carolina the State laws prohibit
. convicts in- prison being worked more than
nine hours daily,  yet in this “same State
the_maximum time-a child of teri"can be

eleve

- hours.

Starve the- German. Children..

The world-wide ‘drive to relieve. the
hunger - pangs - of 'the.. German’ workers’
children hds suffered a. severe check - fere.

.. The German Consul-General at Washingtorf
did not half-mast- his flag on the-day of
Wilson’s funeral as he considered. it “mierely
the corpse of a private citizen, diplpmatic

- Ai3age ‘a custom only calling for a~satute to

a ‘deagl Presidént; 'a high official ‘or Church’
dignitary. - Some. ex-soldiers of the \ Tan "
. type .compulsorily lowered it, and -in the
dark of night played a child’s trick of nailing

" kept daily at a loom® in;§- cotton: mill Yis = -

N

an American flag on the ‘German Consulate =y

door.
“And
Ton ‘their “incomes  derived from - working-
 children of ‘ten yedirs for_eleven hours daily

'."liav‘é.ribw.decided__tbiboycott the drive fon:»"

» Germati- children:; .

ntinued on’ Colmn 3, page 7) - .

the ihtau:‘geoisig?‘ patriots .who batten -
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“Farried nul oxeept by a small commitice of |.r(,p|‘ |
and- it wassquite proper. that .o Rules Cammittei
should be appointed dnd for that purpose to
consider the amendments snbmitted by the branches,
Now, 1 branch does nol submit an amendment
unless it. wants amendments. —F
1t appears that the Rules Committec.which was
nppomtcd proc«.cdccl ta do its work because several
minutes show. it, viz., 30th Aungnst there was a
meeting of the Executive Committee u_ms par-

" _ ticulars of minutes).

On the 5th October the matter came before the
Exccutive Committee and the draft was approved
of as a draft, the Rules were not approved of, the
draft was approved .of containing the Rules that
they were of opinion the branches-onght to adopt
and 6n the Sth October there was an issuce of 1006
copies of the draft rules ardered to be prm\m] in
small type to be sold at 2d.-each.

Now’it is questioned whether in fact the draft
was submitted to the members of the branches.
Now, the mere fact that the draft was ordered to
be printed and that 1,000 copies were ordered to
be made gocs to show that the draft was intended
for circulation amongst the members of the branches
because I cannot see for what other purpose such a
number would be ordered except for circulation.
The membership of the Union amounted to 100,000,
but of course no person ever thuu;,ht that every
member of this' Union, cnmpnsmg working men
who had to take in the ** Freeman," * Independent,”
and * Irish Worker,” would: buy it,-and the Execil-
tive Committec came to. the C(m(.hhloﬂ that it was
not necessary to have 100,000 copies of the draft
rules and that it would"be sufficient to have 1,000
of these copies. It has been shown that thesc
copies were distributed amongst' the branches and
thie ‘actual number of copies given to each branch.
Now, what conld be done by the various secretarics
whien they got these drafts.  Now, a braidch might

“~consist of a, very Targe number of - pmplr.. sometimes

6,700, sometimes two and three thousand. T do
“rules were considered by a
that could not be done, and

meeting of Say 1 000

-the only thing for the secretary to do was to call

together a rcprwcntamc of the men and get their.
approval .of it.
On the 1st November - thu’c was a mutmg of the

Committee and it was agreed that the draft of the

- new Rules should be sent out for the sanction of the
“qualified branches,
- there was ‘another meeting and it was agreed that
" -all the branches entitled to vote should be asked to
_vote on thcm in globo. by 1st December-and that

and on the 10th November

wtratlon be applied for. Tt must.be remembered

. that before the draft was sent out the Executive

Committee had had -several suggestions 'from: the *
different. brariches who desired amendments; and
these: amiendments must ‘have been. constructeid
Some of them may have
been ‘adopted and others of them rejected, and 1
have no doubt, that-the draft which: was sent out
did not - comply with alt the suggestions for amend-
ments that were mare by the branches that-called
for nmendménts The Executive Committee came *
to the conclus:on that the branches shonld vote on
the draft in globo. If they wished

were entitled to do.so. .If cac

‘back the draft with amendments

‘never, have ended, it"would be i

a_draft to meet the amendments“of each branch.
The braqches were notified that they could either
reject them or accept them in globo ; that is'shown

(Master of the Rolls reads letter.]
- There is nothing whatever in the tonstruv:’uon

. of the Society to prevent the Executive-Committec

from making recommendations to their, branch
and in:fact 1 may say it ought to be the pnnclpa]
duty of the Executive Council. (Conurlues to read
1étter,) - It occurs to me that thisis a most business-
Tlike letter. Instead of taking a vote on ¢ach rule
and. having one half of the rules accepted ‘and:the
other half rejected.  If the rules were rejected as
the branches were'entitled t would be Mecessary |
to proceed against with any set of Rules.
That circular ‘was sent out with the result that -
several secretaries proceeded to call meetings of the .
members of their branches, In some cases‘where.
the branches were very lafge, some of them con-
sisting ‘of 1;000- members, and at meetings that -
would be so largc it would be impossible to discuss
the rules, and consequently these branches were.
divided into. sections and fhcse sections -discussed.)
the Tules. - .
It was stated that these votes should havc beeri
taken by ballot. 'I do not know of any rules/that
compel the members -to, vote by ballot.

So far as-the Executive Council was concgrned
they got from the SeVes I secretaries of. the branches

e returns and it
the: Rules were approved.of with the exception of
one branch-—Sligo, I think,". Accordin ly a meermg s
was held on the 22nd Se; fember lﬁlﬁ ‘and it was.
announced that the rev lscd Rulc\s had heen passed,
_only one dxsscnhng

It occiirs to me. that the com—se which was adopted
for amendmcnt of the Rules ‘of 1915, under the .
pravisions of Rule 33, was in accordance with'. the

les of ¥915. 1 ‘think-it was the only way under
-wluch Rule 33 could have been properly carrigd out.
Now, I ﬂelor: ms:‘ Tule tha:l t’hu:ﬂ]}ules of 1918
‘passed and inasmuch as. e only objec--
whiclr is Taised to the election of th-Encui,:ve

'cmmbythesum:olw thatfu
‘they Mnndnrn:&- pioc

wers. invalid

+ President, within

- taking.

ey to this fact, it has been laid down tha
‘of the Union, are. ‘the Uniol, not ‘the branches, not

_an. Omcer. -

rs from these returns that *

- money Was tuken for ‘political

M -réads minutes,”

* Larl ore  you nnunt
Foran—I cannot swear

T lL;;?ster of the- Rolls—.—Whnt da i
= N

polnl in lavour of the Plaintiffs and :,gninst the
Defendant, Mr. Larkin.

Before | go :-;‘lhn next p:nnl T must say this:
not only s thelease made in ‘the Statement of
Defence that these Rules are invalid, but it is also
alleged that. Mr. Foran falsely and’ fraudulently
ssigned the Sratutory Declaration. 1 must
thig is a very serioug charge ;

i the case to |\lsuf\ this charge. Théreis no excuse
whateyver in preferring a charge of false dedaration,
none whatever,

Io addition to attacking the wvalidity of the
appointment of the Executive Council, Mr. Larkin
in his defence also attacks the appointment of the
officcrsaMr. Foran and Mr, O'Brien,

The great point Mr. Larkin makes against Mr.
O'f3rien is that he did not become a member of the
Union until, 1 think,” the 6th January, 1917, and
that he was appointed to some office- T think Vice-
twelve months from the 6th
Jannary, 1917. 1 am not concerned with that,
the only thing 1'am concerned with in this action is
whether in the year 1923 he was validly appointed
to General Treasurer.  Now, he was certainly a
member of the Union for several years before 1923,
So that point is disposed of. His next point is
that these officers onght to have been elected every
twh years and he complains that was not followed,
and that time was allowed to elapse, and that in
February, 1922, there was an appointment made
‘which should have been madé at an’carlier date,
and if made at an earlier date O'Brien's. term of
office would have expired, whereds by making the
appointment at a_later date, viz., February, 1922,
he secures for himself office until 1924. It would "
be the duty of the Executive Council to fill up the
vacancy as soon as their attention was c11lc(1 to the
fact.

In February, 1922,
the Society were appointed to their Offices.
1t the minute of the 8th l(hmar\. |022

(Reads minute.) .

1 cannot see any objection to that, Aunr(hn;‘
to-the Rules th(rv musty be a clection every two
vears.

It comes to this thﬂ(t/ﬁlg\ﬂwr two Officers
were invalidly elected on that day, Larkin was also
invalidly clected.

Now, there-is anotber point raised against Mr.
Kennedy and Mr. McCarthy and that is that they
were paid officials of the Union... .(Reads Rule 25.)
U ndotbtedly Mr. Kennedy: and Mr. McCarthy
were receiving payment as officials of the Union-
and 1 must decide that they were paid officials.

I do not think that the appointment of Kennedy,
and-McCarthy, who were paid officials of the Union,
was a valid. appointment. The Plaintiffs are
entitled to the relief they claim and I must give a
declaration unless Mr. Larkin gives me-an under-
taking not to interferc with the Plaintiffs in their
management of this Union.

Mr. Larkin—My_ Lord I intend to appeal

Serjeant Hanna--Then do not give the under-
If you did- you cowld not appeal.

Master of the Rolls—Then I will give the declara-
tion. 1 will say nnlhmg for the present -ﬂmm
the costs,

5av

alb the Executive Officers of
I refer

v

LARKIN v. FOBAN AND OTHERS

Monday the 18th day o! Fohruary, 1924.

Mr. Larkin asks the Master of the Rolls to, allow
him to amend his pleadings.
+ Master of the Rols—I. certainly will ot. T will
allow you- to amend the Statement of Claim inofie.
particular ahd that-isso as to enable you to allege
that. monies were applied- to pay two members, of
the Executive Council inasmuch as they were not
entitled to receive payment.

be tiken by » surprise.
(Mr. Larkin then reads fro) om Gmnwood.) Wk
 Larkin—May 1- ‘respeetfully”call y%atteuhon

e Officers, only by membelshxp can a man become :
- (Rule 5,

pqlmcal lev y: through

it they have taken from the members of the Union to

whu:h'.l bclong 6d."per’ quarter, cqua.l ‘to. 2/~ per

- year, which since the year 1915, up to-the date: when

this section was entered has amonnted to not less
than £50,000.

I want to get out of thls Court into, another
Court.

‘1 want to call your attentmn my lord; to docu-
ments which. I have marked 16a. taken- from the

minutés of 'this\ Union -in which these men”haye

paid ‘money  for = political purposes.
* Master of the Rolls—I want to call your attent:en
to “this. I think

not_complied :with the Act of 1013.
Larkin—
There is oplly one fund, a geperal fund, out of which

‘Mr. Foran

on the 22/5/"22 9-
Foran-—-I. canpot remembe:

ed by ‘Mr.

there has been nothing ~

The:Teason I give .
** you'this permission is that these Deiendant}.mnnot g

-yan ought tosaddress. yourself
- to -“thg caacs made by the Statement of “Claim,

your -claim' is that the Executive have;applied .
. money for pohncal purposes ot lawful and have

ve: looked, through their Bool\s.

: Sworn.. -
Did ‘you ltund an Exoe'nﬂu lonlng‘ =

Tarkin—The meeting ‘apparently was held on

the 17th and the minntes were not dated until
. the next meeting.

Larkin—I was asking the witness was he present
at that meeting.

Foran—I cannot’ swear.

(Mr, Larkin readd minute- No. 708 Paiq
McCarthy and Kennedy £6 each f-)r their wage;
Also minute No. 846 and 935.)

Judge—Do yon admit that pay ments were made
for political purposes?

Hanna—We do, out of the General Funds, from
1911, until passing of the 1923 Rules. “o do not
admit we made a political Jevy.

Master of the Rolls—Scrjeant Hnnna admits
that from 1911 to 1923 moneys were applied for
political -purposes, that may or may not have been
Icg1l Once you show me that any moneys whatever
wer¢ illegally applied for political purposes_ that

" will be enough for T your case, once that is established
1 will direct an cnqulq to be held to ascertain what
moneys were applied for pnlmc‘\l purposes, -once
von éstablish that there were ' ilfegal -payments -
then I thlﬂk it will be“open to you to ask for an
cnquiry. asto what was the amoiint of these illegal
payments.

Larkin——I ask for relief, my lord, ¥

Master of the Rolls—I think you are entitled
to ask for an enquiry always assuming that yon
have proved that certain illegal payments. were
made. Serjeant Hanna admits that payments

-have been made for political purposes 1911-23.

Larkin—T am surprised at-Serjeant Hanna as
the Jaw was amended in 1913.

Hanna—Do you remember the Municipal Elec-
tions, of Jan. '12? >

anna—Po you rc‘m(-mber the names of lhe
candidates ?

Foran—Murphy, I.arkm‘ Hopkins and O'Brien.

Hanna—Was Hopkins a delegate of No. 1 Branch -
of the Union ? )

Foran-—Yes.

Hanna— Were these expencns paid out nl' the |
General Fund ?

. Larkin was unseated on. petition
and the' Union put up Mr. Bohan ?
Foran—Yes.
Hanna—In_September, 1912 ?
Foran— Yes. :
Hanna—Were his expenses all paid ? L
Foran—Yes.
Hanna—Did Mr. Tarkin take an active part
in supporting him ?
Foran—Yes, a very active part
Hanna-—In January, 1913, were you and Bohzm
again put up by thc Un:on and all expenses pald ?
Foran—Y,
Hanna—W a~. there
January, 1914 7
Foran-—VYes. - s
Hanna—Were you and Mr. Daly put up ?
Foran—Yes. * .
Hanna—And \mxr expensés paid in the same \wa.) 11
Foran—Yes.
Hanna—Who ‘were the candidates in the Poor
. Law Guardian Elections .in May, 1914 ?
Forah—Myself, Daly, Bohan Haydeén,
and Miss. Delia Larkin, .
H1nna—\\cre your expenses paid in the.same
way ?
‘Foran—VYes. .. f ;
Hanna-—Larkm went to--America in October. .
1914 ? : .
Foran—Yes. * )
Hanna—Do you remember the occasmn of the
Harbour Division Elechon in 1915 ?
Foran—Yes. - ¢ ot
- Hanna—At, that time was.Larkin in Ameérica ?
Foran—He 4vas..

N

a Mumc:pnl Election in

.Bymc

"\ *Hanna—Did you cablc t6” him :lbuut the
r-l,cchon Al 3 i *
- Fo oran\'__,es AT > £
Hanna=——Did you receive a replyf'
Foran—¥es. . :

. (Hanna reads copy of cable) v

Master of the Rolls—What 4s the date on it ?
. Hanna—August 26th, 1915. Signed Larkin,"
' Hanna-—What™ replv was sent to it 7 Have you
a _copy of it 2 3 3

‘Foran—Yes.

‘Hanna—Did any ‘money’ come from ' Américd

~for that election’?’

Foran—No.
‘Hanna—Larkin - was nommated ?
. Foran—No. i 4 y
‘Hanna—Do you rtmember the clechon of 1918—
Par]n entary ? LI
ranw!{:s. : 3 ed ;
g —Were ;he Labour Part repar 'y
put i%ani a candidate 7" i
# Foran—Th . is
Hanna-—ug you cabTe tn Mr. Larkm 2 Z
~"Foran-—Yes, b
(Hanna reads cable) = ' °
wi‘lgl;mabl)xd you teceivé a reply 14th October,
Foran—VYes.

a: reads réply,). . X
anna—In what way; were the expenses ‘of these
mdxdnths dduyed Aor that election ? .

Fnrtn-—-ln the unm.l .,wa}-—trom the Genmi
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Hanna—Somc of the. Umon candidates were
put forward for that elect:on ?
w['gran—Lhey were. ;
tHanna—And how were thexr expenact. p.ud’
Joran—Qut of the General Fund.
Hanna—Were there any candlddtes who were noq_

" branch candidates whose expenses )\ere paid under

sanction of the E.C
Foran—No.
Hanna—When the first Free State Election took
place in 1922 the leon decided to tale part in'it ?
Foran—Yes. °
Hanna—Tlhere
“resolution sed
expenses ?
Foran-—Yes.
Hanna—Who were the caxld:dhtc to be suppor t«.ll
by the Transport Union in 1922
Foran—-O'Shannon, O’Brien, Lanm and Foran.
Hanna——\\ hat "happened as regards Larkin ?
Foran—I received .1 cab]egnm from him dated
5th June, 1922 ’
. (Hanna reads Lablcgmm)
~Hanna—On receipt of that mblv.gmm he was
not nominated ?
Foran—No.

was an “Exccutive Committee
as to the payment of- these

hat was the day before the nomination?
Foran—Yes.
Hanna—“’cre the expenses of the candidates

_as in other c‘asca -paid out of the (1L11Lr.1[ I‘uu(l ?
Yes

Fora

Larki: ——cross examining.

Larkin—Mr. Foran, -you have a very keen
knowledge of what occurred in the Uﬂlon in '1909-

“Foran-I" have.

Larkin—You are familiar with all the Rules ?
- Foran—A good-many of them.

* Larkin—You were General President in control
of the finance, are you charged with the responsi-

. bility of the books and Iunds of the Union in that

- office ?

Foran—Not-sol¢ly.
3 Larkln_D;d you swear here to your Counsel
that money-had been spent out of the General -Funds
of the Union 2’
rqr'\n—bertamly

10-11-12-13-14-15

EA

Foran—Not an L"u.utnt in the’
of the word."

proper - sense

1915 9

Foran--Not ‘an ]’.‘.XLL,thl\'L thL Proper. sense

; cof the word, therc was a ‘coming together-at nlrL

intervals of a cerfain number of people....
- Larkin—Was there an Executive. under Rule 22
in 1915; 1912 -and 190 9-2
Foran—I- have given U my .ms\\cr
Larkin—No such _ Executwe 2
Foran— :
Larkln—'l‘ake um in your hand (b‘mdw him letter
of 20th November, 1915).
-see the name signed. to it, what is"the name ?
Foran— James Connolly:
(Mr. Larkin then read letter.) s
Larkin—Your point is that if moneys were sp
_Quring the time I was Seeretary for i gal.
that you Had a right to spend them ? *
Foran—No, my lord, my point is ﬂmt a l'r;n.
'fiion inust necessarily support Labour Representa-
tion. We did not believe the Osborne Judgment
-applied %6 Ireland. hen. we' realised
that labour representation in the future was going’
“/to bé a serious matter we immediately took steps to
sct ‘ourselves right with that judgment,
(Mr. Larkin then made some remark. to- the
switness about the process of thuught by which he
got into the benatc)
Foran;—1
w;,ranil ement, but becausé-T believed. T ought to
e thete to do something for the-class 1 brl(mgul to.

-Was theré any Executlve of the Umon in-1909--

Larkinﬁ!lo Executwe under these Rules 1912-°

-Look down. at the bottom; -

. ¢ Larkin-Is that an -apology .or a confession ?-

Yoran -It is an answer td vour question.

Larkin- - Did you not kniow-{hat in-1913 the law-

~Union and. their . uses ?

Foran—I was not fully awarce qf this, IvuL \nu )

might have let me know.

Larkin You state you never. agreed with the
Oshorne Judgment, ‘you'“do - not “agree with ‘the
Law of England ?

Foran—I"do not believe in -the Osborne ‘\(Uun"‘

Nno more than'l do in your case. -
Larkin- In 1918 you were an_ admirer- uI mme ?
Foran=-Yes
Larkin—So you' sent me 3 ‘cablegram 2
Foran—Yes.

Larkin—Do. you know ol any man deceased who'

was denied benefits under- the Rules because he did

not pay this levy ? Were any members of the Union,

from 1817 to 1923, who died and passed on and who
were entitled to benefits under the Rules of the Union
and because they were a penny .in arrear the
relatives were denied their "£9 2

Foran—No pérson!

Judge—No” member; of the lnmu s refused.

bLneﬁt for’ a polmml reason.
Foran—No pu'son deprived " of
pullhull

LK. nefit for

o
* Larkin-—Si po;ing 3 ‘man paid 6/6 per qumer‘
aad refused to pay 7/~ per quarter,’ and in'the lapse.

-Of fime -this. man came into arrears because ‘he
" declined -

ﬂ!’%ﬂved of lus beneﬂ

fo “pay this nomlcai lwy would he be

went ini"there not. because 1 I)Lhu\ edin .

.- had been ‘changed in reference | to the funds of the

‘

P AR
Larkin—Is it irue that widows have been denied i v

mortality b?nems because of that Rule ? S -DOlNGS IN THE STATES
Foran—No. | (Couhnuud from Column 3, page 5)

Larkin—Was it ever brought to your attention
that membess of the Union had died and the widows
came to you and asked you and your colleagues for -
benefits and-were told they owed 6d.

Foran—Of Course if you broke a Rule for thent
you would be “paying “all the time.

Larkin—Were the men charged in this Union®
witht other levies ?

Foran—7Yes. .

Larkin—Were the funds of the Union and 1hese
levies used to refurnish Liberty Hall ?

Foran \\n In 1916 wages were Inpmum, to
move upwards and tHe members of No. 1 Branch *,
decided to hand, over “their first we increase
whatever it might be towards the building of
Liberty Hall, which was then in ruins. * The amount
_collected for that purposc was something like
cight or nin¢ hundred. = There was a man intro-
duced” to me by Larkin named James- O'Neill,
who was 2 contractor in a small w: ay, and this man
was engaged by the Branch -Committee to employ
members of the Branch and rebuild Liberty Hall
at an expense of something like six or seven hundred
pounds.

It was a special levy,

On resuming —Mr. Foran in the Witness Box.

Witness to. Master of the Rolls——Please, my lord,
before Mr. Larkin asks any more questions [ would
dike to say that I have taken advantage of the
luncheon hour to look into the points regarding

<o the £1,000 drawn i 1918, and if you will allow me

to make a statement.
Master of the Roils—Very well, %
Witness Wl vou remember, my lord, in 1915
sthere was a Cor i nace hanging over the
country and the sed that owing to
<the posltmu there was a puml)llni of the funds

. of the Union Qeing seized, and in order to make -

i

did and - °

: Braneh

lu “that'?

sure that the funds. of the Union would not be
scized £1,000 was withdrawh from- the funds of
the Union, as directed by the minutes, and ‘ml;ul

with ‘a Revd. géntleman whose namé 1 will give
vou in . confidence.
Master'of the Rolls T do not wanT to know T

name-of. the Revd. gentleman-at all.

Witness - Well, the money was afterwirds got
back:from him and was rélodged. -~

Master of the Rolls- Well, that is quite satis-
factory. And it is right to-say Mr. Larkin never

suggested that-the money was not relodged
Witness examined by Mr. Larkin.
"™ Larkin —According to your .minutes did you,
by resolution of the Executive, allocate a sum' of
. £100 to establish a military force in this country ? -
Mastér of the Rolls—That isoutside the question.
Master of the Rolls to Witness —Now, Mr. Foran,
will you tell me the meaning of this. \Lu:nlxn;,
to an (_\tmLt taken from -the books of the Union,
it is headed * l(uport of Meeting of Dublin Members
" re Insurance’ Ciux 1919 Do you
remiember that m .
Witness—19149, my lmd ? 4
Master of the l{ulla That was the mecting T
ientioned.
Mr. Larkin to Master «I{ the Rolls — Yes, my lord,
ere were many matters discussed at that mecting. -
with -reference to the Insurance quéstion and to’
the question of the funds, - We will reserve that
matter for .Lrgumunt as to the lnsumncc section.
.Mr.. Larkin to- ‘Witness -You'are charged with
saying that you, Thomas Foran, with John O’Néill,
Secretary of the No. 1 Branch, withheld £'l 500"~
of the Union’funds in'1913.
: Master of the’ Rolls to- Mr,
bcttcl read the Minute.
_'Mr. Larkin reads—** That in 1913 Thomas Foran
and - John O'Nel!l Secretary ‘of the No. 1 Branth,
_had saved out of-the funds of the Union £7,500 :
_that they were this: able 10" make a payment and’
secute the Union’s’ interest:in -the -property known
as Liberty Hall.” " To Wimess -Did you mnke that
‘statement ?-. X ;
Witness, Y, yess 3 = _.
—Larkin 3: were' you. charged wi
administration "of the funds of the Unlnﬂ L
© Witness-:Not entirely:
Larkin-You Had ‘controi oI the !unds e( the
_-Union—strike fum[s" : )
Witness~ Yus.
—And John O'Nem as, Secrelary of Nn, 1
hd distributor of these furds, was in:close
“touch wm: you and |assisted you ?.
. Witness— And others.

k'h’ \vu had

. Larkin-

e “Q"’u“;” Lt o“-leF Ku;ubm of people’ - be “* listening in,"” and in this way ove rwnn
1,1:‘,:12“;;,_' dttthbl :;zfc ik people’, the opposition or distortion of the capitalist
Larkin Let .me récall to your mind~*Thatin = press.- Radio or wire less and “Mah Jong,

1913 John O’Neill, Secretary. of the No. 1 Branch,
and yoursell had saved out of the funds of the Unlon
a reserve, unknown 'to- Larkin, of - 5'5590. :
Witness—Will ydu read that  agaim <
Larkin—I prefer you should read it yourseﬂ,
It is your document taken fmm Dlscovery. (Hands
document :to witness to
Mr. Larkin to Mast ol :he " Rolls>-My lord,
" while the Defendant is reading may I ask that the
othef. party to. this statément leaves the Court
until this gentleman goes down —Mr. John O’Neill ?
* Master, of RuUs 1o Loumc! —What do you say

: berjeant Hanna—It1sa.y u«* untistal ayp.hv..\huu %

v 1do not Lnuw Wiko. Mr. Larkin miex: o

“the new verse,

. James” Connolly to go hungry on many

R FEnda’s school. -4 i
Tt ds time we_broke, tha habit of swkmg ;
- Jeaders from: the “ranks of the native
istocracy.”

La stucmcy

" Collins and the present’ agony of Irefand is

* ‘Radio.

a Chin¢se: gam

‘Gas“ h .

Aully - exceuted “or.» kﬂh

ey

A Communist Dally

It is a sign of the times that we can now
boast a Communist daily paper w1th offices
in Chicago.

Recently ' the only New York Socialist
weekly was® handed over tothe ! intel-
lectuals ” who. turned it into a dmly——
(lnngmq the name from the “Call’’ to
the ™ Leader "—but it was a- case of .too
much = “intellecctual ”  and  not cnough
common managerial infusion, and the paper,
went on the rocks in onc month

Another, the - Independent,” a- weckly
critical journal of ~the high-brow order,
ceases publication this month, the subm(ly
which kept it going Ir)r thru years having
lapsed. :

It was financed by~ d dauglmr of one-of
the big Chicago packing=house millionaires—
who scemed to think the revolution would
come’ by way.of the pocts and.artists and
intelligensia, newer critical st(mdards and

If she would commune with some of the
“illiterate  Finnish or  Russian  workers
who slave in Her papa’s packing-housc,
she would get closer to the roots of the.
coming revolution—and be” better able to
help it by helping them to expression.
"The Irish Aspect.

. Doheny, probably believing that he could
sink oil wells in Ircland or distil it from the
peat deposits of the central plain, became
an ardent Irish Republican and friend of
Famonn Dec Valera  during | thL hey-day
of this movement here,

national President of the

He was-¢
Amertcan A tion for the Recognition
of the Irish ‘Republic at the request of
Harry Boland . and Mary MacSwiney, who
addressed the- delegates at the Chicago
Convention. 2

bothered a

Doheny  never to attend
~meeting, and he blessed the " Tredty ™
when, it wiis signed. e

Griffith wrote to thi * slave mind ™ “but

he, too, wanted a John Swectman to head

his organisation, a reactionary who_opposed

“labour and cont¢nded that women had not |

the same intellectual capabilities as men. : ;
Arthur also had Sir Thos. Esmonde as a

figure hmd for his party durmg the ]dtt(,l's

temporary “defection from ** the Party.”
But Sir Thomas scursicd back when John

Redmond and the Bishops ~ scoldéd him.
This same Irish-American *' $lave. mind ”

that “clected a capilatist: adventurer. like

Doheny to its highest gift, allowed a mian like’

occasions during ‘his struggle on this side.
And the saie type struck Padraic Pearse
on his"last wvisit here whori coIchtmg ior

or. ~from the -oil- grahbmi.

.mv “ins turn \H)rshl))])l,d Griffiths dnd-:

due to this s!,u (0 mm(l typ\ uIywnlu])p(r- s

JThe (lumgu Fede ration, of Labour “has
dé cided to ‘a broadcasting outfit-so as
to xvnd correct’ la.bour news to any.who-may

<“are the craas -at- present,
There are about three million Tecciving scts
in ‘operation. now, ‘the -bulk - production
(!hcupenmg the cost. Ther¢ is no government
restriction. - - e :

It nuy‘mtun‘st Bill: o grave or’ Kevin
to kriow that the State- evada success-
malefactor. by
‘with ‘hydrocyanic

’d to ¢hair
ndchine,

the
The convic
«l\ \J%I d

and the ¢
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- Monaghan farm. .

" Fenians. *

. % Irish national movement
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JAMES CONNOLLY

AND HIS EPOCH,
CHAPTER I ~-THE PREPAKRATION.

The only real boyhood that Connolly knew
ended with. the first ten years of his life.
‘Borit on 5th June, 1870, he remained on his
parents’ holding outside Clones, Co.
Monaghan, only until 1880, during which
year his family, no doubt for the same
" - reasons as affected so.many millions of other
Irish families, left its country home in Ulster
Garl travelled to
Edwinsburgh of the Saxon, Edwinsburgh
built by the Northumbrians but occupicd
and held as their capital by the Alban Scots.
There. was an e¢nd to the. companionship of
Nature, and a beginning to that of the
multitude ; in place of the limitless expanse
of the hills by day and-the deserted silence
- of night came the hideous vista of slum
——streets, the ceaseless roar and bustle and the
artificial light by night succceding the smoke-

marred. day: #OE T !
Perforce -commencing - his  wage-slavery
+ immediately, Seumas joined the other little
-old men of ten, twelve, fourteen and sixtecn

ycars whom one can s¢e even to-day travelling

‘to the offices and warehouses “clothed in
cheap-respectability, heavy for the lack of

- the sleep which they should get and do not.
Manhood has begun-for them; they have
put ‘away the-things of the child. ) :
Those ten years in Ulster miist have been
wisely guarded and well used.  During that

period the : good-health ‘of the ‘boy - was. -
7. developed and the foundations of his strong

frame and robust constitution laid. His later
life was ‘spent amongst the very worst type
ofi:surroundings ‘and . conditions—in slums,

.. - under: poverty and long hours of waork.

Struggle, want,’ study—all 'these ‘taxed his
_ physical and mental -resources.”  Amongst
.. the very poor, the weaklings go to the wall.

- . -Yet Connolly was:strong in' body, mind and

soul.. For this we must thank, in Jarge
measure, the wholesomeé upbringmg on the.
“ Three years before his birth-there occurred
the Fenian Rising.  In_the ““fortiés * no
organisation of ‘movement had ‘sprung- up
capable of leading the people, dnd :
years no appreciable resistance wass
against famine, eviction.and ¢migr:

" and the governmental and social
- which produced thie trio.

tion,
system
But ten or-fifteen

years after the Great Hunger a-movement

was launched sceking to-satisfy thie earnings
for national independence, for free expression

of traditional ideals, for a human system of

. saciety. = This. movement took the forin of *
% ;hp_ Irish” Republican’ Brotherhood, a ‘secret
" military force, popularly known as the

tions of oppression of the time brought into
the ranks many- with ‘petty ‘bourgeois " and
bourgeois_outlooks .also: =~ i

The LR.B. éaroled Targe numbers all ovir

the country. It brought with it .a re-

awakening of cvery craving for liberty and -

courage and sclf:respect to a'subjugated and

half-degraded nation. . Even numbers of the

militarizeéd R.1.C. and Irishmeri impelled into®
the British Army by tconomic™ pressure
entered into the conspiracy:in their thousands.*
John-Boyle O’Reilly;-wlo- shortly after his
-arrival \in ‘America founded ‘* The Boston.

Pilot,” was a' successful recruiting/ agent

‘of the Fenians within H. M. Army until his
. detection and sentence.. The main strength
- of ‘the LR.B. was in the. U'SA: . In that
country there was and-still s a large section

ism; all with € natural desire to free the home
-of their: Race,- so that”from the States has
come mighty financial and other ajd 46 every
. “The Fevians.ia
_US.A. possessed: Geneals; Tolonels, State

)
e AR T e

| BENNETT v. LARKIN

1| applied for judgment. We will have a

The  I.R.B. possessed a ‘strong =

“Left . 'Wing ' essentially . proletarian in.~
instinct, opposed to industrial wage-slavery -
as well as to landlordism; although the condi-— -

Overners amongst their sworn ‘membirs, -

| i %,

The Court awarded Benné_ﬂ one
farthing damages against Larkin amd
against Cahill. No costs have been
awarded so far, Bennett has not yet

full report in our next issue.

'So that soon_after the cessation of the
Civil War, Irishmen who had fought for the
Confederacy, Irishmen who had upheld the

. United States, and others who had remained

unattached to cither army, joined forces and
launched an attack on their erstwhile
oppiessor. In Ircland, for reasons which are
not necessary to be stated, the Rising was
aismanaged and failed from its inception.
In the US.A. an army was gathered which
marched into Canada, defeated a British
force and prepared to deprive the Empire
of that province in the name of the Irish
Republic ! However, the young U.S.
Government feared the consequences of ‘war
with Britain at such a critical juncture of its
own ‘internal- affairs. * ‘Pressure from the
U.S,, and the cutting of communications
and supplics by the U.S. Government forces,
which’drew up on.the fréntipd\in rear of the
Irish, caused the Fenisis to, Withdraw.

A military coup by exiles in the North of
England was abortive, .owing to the plans
becoming known through the indiscretion
of some of the conspirators. . -

*The LR.B. members were called Fenians
at the instigation of their remarkable chicf,
Jas. Stephens,.a man well versed in Gaclic
lore.  The name is taken from:that of the
“Fianna,” the national military force of
Ireland “about the third century A.D., « -
body ‘wiich was prebably. authorized by the
mutual congent of the clans as a protection
against the Roman Empire then at the zenith

of power.” A great deal of intcrest inight be -
" said of these heroes, of Ossian, Eire’s Homer,
- of Finn and Oscar, of Cormac MacArt, and

of the tragedy of Gabhra-Aicle, were this the

- correct place. . The story of the Fianna is one
* of ‘the ‘many unique historical heirlooms of

Ireland. .
IEXILE,

*

“AN"-ARMY" MARCHES ON

C 1Ts
' STOMACH.” i

We dre Aelping to-fill the' stomach of the

‘Irish‘_\\'orking class,.so that thoy also may’
‘march forward.. ) B !

-. Wen offcr all, members of the 1 r.i'éhu \’\:)rk«.r
League -the fallowing bargdins :— :

fik "+ PRICE LIST.

/Bardines e

- 3d.per tin
_dreen’v_l’eas' oo 8d. perilb: -
. Split Peas ... s S 3dyper 1b
; Oatmeal (Pinhead), | sau il Al per b’
Flout= -~ . T e 2o perlb. .
Tinned Milk (Sweetened) 10d. per tin
. Tinned Peaches (11b. tins) 8d. per in

Sunlight Soap (3lb. pkts.) -

, , "1/ per pkt.
) Linolcnm,_ 2

; (b.\i/_ific - /- per lineal yd: .
» To_be had any time, any- day, at' 0

descended from-the Irish vietims of Imperial-

~ THE - IRISH - WORKER LEAGUE
17 Gardiner’s Place, Dublin,

™~

JOIN THE IRISH WORKER LEAGUE.

Enirance 'Eee, 1/~ Subscripiions ioiualar.r t

S THE SEC., I.W.L.,.

 GAS MASKS FOR MUGS!

When the next war happens along this
way, it won’t make any difference whether
you are in the army or not, because you'll
get it in the neck anyway. It is gencrally
admitted by the War Lords, including
General Mulcahy, that the:next war will be
fought out with poisonous gas which will be

- dropped from aeroplanes. -In view of this
fact it is of interest to know that the British
Government are taking steps to ensure a
sufficiency of - gas masks for the civilian

. population ‘of these islands.  During the
past few months the workers in Woolwich,

the-great arsenal -town, have been working -

overtime making gas masks for every man, -
woman and child in the British Isles. So'you -
see our foster’ mother has been looking after
us all thé/éne R B e

It is nice to know this because Commander
Burney, an expert on poisonous gas, informs
us quite  proudly that the present gases are
a thousand times as powerful as those used
in..the Great War, A nice future to look
forward -to. ‘ 3

TO SUBSCRIBERS.

Y

If there is an X in this square your sub-
scription has expired.  Pleasc renew.

Do a good day’s work for yourself and your
class. i ' o
Fill up these forms and send them to us.'-

'SUBSCRIPTION  FORM.

Tue MANAGER, ' IRISH WORKER,” -
17" GARDINER'S PLACE, DUBLIN.
‘Enclosed pleasc find 10 /-, 5/, 2/6, being
one year’s, half-year’s, quarterly subscription
to ““Irish Worker.” § s

‘IRISH WORKER LEAGUE. -

5>

'ENTRANCE FORM.

17 GARDINER’S PLACE, DUBLIN.
I desire to join-the Irish: Worker. League
and ericlose One Shilling for Entrance Fee,
1magree to Ayl i .

ST. .BREI.‘{D'AN’._S .GFC.
Second Grand Anaual Dance

7~ Will be held in .

PHE BANBA HALL -
: lN?'pjm' String Bands - i ﬁgmﬁg'm.‘so p.m.‘

Vi

. On Saturday, I5th March, 1924

. and published by hiin ot 17
o Pised Dublin. 0
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TWOPENCE’

LARKIN

FORAN in the Wltness Box.

Larkm—'l‘o Mr. John 0 Neill.

‘. Serjeanpt Hanna—I do not sec what is to be
gained by his leaving the (l)mt while the document’
is being “read.

M. Larkin to Master of Rolls Well my lord,

] ‘ask that Mr. John O’Neill, Secretary of the No. 1
Branch, be -asked .to ‘retire from this Court. -

AMaster of the Rolls—I do not see the nccessity.

.1 refuse. to grant the application.
Larkin—Very well, my lord.:.

Larkin to Wlmess——Wcll What do you say to
that? .

\\Itnc»-'{hh is sll hty. m‘\u_m,m-

Larkin-——Who~ took *down. the Minutes ‘at thaf\
_meeting 2 *

Witness—1 think, it.was Paddy". 0’ I\LH\

Larkin—It was Paddy 0 Kelly who took down:
the Minutes. }

Witness—1 think so.

Master of the- Rolls to Mr. Larkin—\Well, ln, says
o it is substantially correct, but.slightly inaccurate.
Larkin—In 'the. amount or in. the s(atemem.
Witness—In the statement.

A Mr. Larkin to Master- of the Rolls - Well my lord .
we. had better be clear:upon this. X
Master of the Rolls to Witness—You, agreg

vou did make, the statement that yeu had-sa&
500 on réscrve unknown -to J.anlqn ERR

\\mmss to Master of the Rolls I agree § ni
the statement, my lord; up to a certains point,

Master of-the- Rullw to Larkin—Well, go.on. :

Larkin—1 have  asked a. question, my lord.
Did he say it or did -he not? He qualifies that.
Then he says ‘““up to a certain point.” -
" Witness—well, will 1 be allowed to- ma
statement on that now: :
~ - Larkin to wuness ~Yout and ¥ aré in his lordship s

ha ds. :
4 Master of thL 'Ru]l\ to Witness—You are entitlad
ta explain your answer.~ Tell us up. to what point.

W ltnc>w~l will make a statement on the \\llnlL
;% thing,"”my lord. -

Master of the Rolls—Very well, go ot .
~“Witness—My lord, rc.gdmmu this £7,500 |t 18
absoltitely necessary, in the interests. of all con-
cerned,” that. T make a detaited statemeng -with
r«;.ud to the whole thing. . T yas charged ‘during
the yéar 1913 with bringing from the Ccnt:.ll Funds
in the Trades Halltthe Aumuut wé required for
dispute pay—strike pay. *,
(5 Mr. Brown, K.C. —Ih(u
the time. :

Witness—There were \L:t\nu f\md~ subsgnptwu)_
of various kinds; coming in'to Liberty Hall during
that period; and as the lock-out dcn]npu‘l the
ncome was considerably hxhh(.r than the demand

k : for actual strike pay. julul O'Neill and 1 put the
|
|

was. @ luuk-()uL at

surplus by cach week. in the safe ip ‘Liberty HMall
until the end of the \LMAanmLhuu_ in Christmas
week. Atthat time I believe itway ify the neighbour-
hood of £7,500, and 1 have stated that rnptatudl\
to various meetings of the men, That money. ¥
lying "in the safe. -Mr,: Larkin approached *jme

y  duning Christmas week m\(l he asked m¢ how died
.. the: Union stand, and 1 sdid” Johti O'Neill and 1
have agréed tiML we. will - not - tell” ¥ou how  the

id I do not.awi it o Lmi\\
the

Union stands,. He

£ 1 - exactly  the pusmu\ 1. want toikilow is

3 Union s curg;: -1 said ° “qhe Union is absolutely
T secure;” ithoit “breaking any “confidence: with

© .- John eill, 1lc - pxpressed himsclf satisfied.

‘..., Some ddys afterwards there Was a General Meeting -

mid-wéek’

" for securing Liberty

.During that period _ the Lu\\u:s

. I.am.entitled toan

dated
+ «' Recdived from the Irish Transport and-Gene ral

. He said it in 1914-'19.

EXAMINES FORAN ABOUT

(ONELLL, a Breadvan Sérver; and silbmits a few Questions o JUDGE O’CONNOR, who again uses his discretion

had refused to make

supplied came from, any
advance for' Christmas week, it “had to be paid
out of this accumulation of funds, and it ran
somewhere *hetween  £1,800 and £2,000. It was

a payment mad¢ to the me mbers of the Transport”

Union “that no other Union in Dublin was able to
pay. We were brought over thy coala for it by
Mr. Seddon and Ih\ Committge, /YJ\ as  said

that we; as the Transport Unior Tonle 1, pay
than any of the other Trades V\iu|l.~w. 'Hio funds
were” ' diminished to that extent. This was out
of the annual fund of the Union,-this sum of money.
Very large expenditure had to be made as anyone
can easily understand. At the close of the 1

lock-out the reserves were very much dimini
consequently. - Mr. L n had other. various
aceourts, expenditu such as Crovden Park,
and so on, and the Committee of the Branch were

+-at that time relieving distress amongst the members

generally, and medting accounts of various L:ml»

“This so diminished the funds. that cv cntually

Larkin and I sajid unless we take 5&1))
Hall we will have neither
He did net

went to Mr.
now to secure Lierty
Jhome nor habitation for the Union.
quite agree @t the moment.”
with me and we thien imp:
Hall.
and- we took ~t(p\ to sccure. it.
I believe, hut altogether we ‘paid £
Mortgage from the , Natiomal Bank
or the Northern Bunk, 1 mean.  This was: tlu
purchase pricc .of Libert Hall—£3,500 “plus
£2,000 plus agent's comnm:.luu h was pretty:
corisiderable; T thirik 2 You will see, my lord,
that the .£7,500 had 1\\u cnormous: draing on it

" in_-comnection with the mid- weeld payments, of

Christmas and the purchase of Liberty Hall” and
the meetitg .of expenses riglit down to.the end.
Messrs. W,

Sn\th & Sons, reccived, sometimes  from  me

"]\uamull\’ but t]unu"l\ the Union, at un\ r(\Lu,

the sum of £600.
\I.\stu of the Ralls—They Iu.u\ul this Swm ou

As th ‘Transport {nion lnul tG
pay the law cexpenses of their own-dnd gyery other:

‘Cnion . that was .involved “in

£7,500 :
‘\Lnl‘u u.f the Rolls lu \Il LarKis ~I)1ci VO \nmt
to -ask any ‘fyrther. quL:twna about the. £7,500:
Larkin—My lord; I I-think it is admitted now that
Order to ook intp the- Bankmg

accounts of the Union.
Serjeant Hanna:-=This is a Deposit u,u-llnl
23rd April, 1914, from the Hibernian ‘Bank.

Workers' Union the sum of £3,425 145, 3d.’
This is the ‘entire balance and is endorsed oo the
back: ** Pleasc transfer to- Current Accownt of

the Irish Transport und General Workers” Union '

2 number of the members; and -
by Janies Larkin as Sccretary™.
1 am’ golng to put }P“' in

and is signed by
finally met(ralun.d

Larkin—My lord,
evidence. . -

* Larkin--But Mr. Féran said the £7,500 wis- paid
out of the safe in Liberty Hall without my knowledge
and he-did not say.it. whil¢ I was ‘in the country.
Witness > 1 am going to

sk you now—How you-come to control - £7,500-
:( t‘l,xe ‘Union money without my knowlédge.?
AVitness— 1 helpéd. to 1ccumul‘\te it—1 Lhd not

atrol ‘it. - °
U'l.:\rl(il:l——\'nu accumulated -it out of what ?
Witness—Out of the' supplus which ‘came into

-, and m\lmchons were issucd: - that l;l o g iberty Hall. JThere - was this burplu:
patment be m “of S!uh Tray; i there being | 4 atake: applleation: neh wuek

e i o 3 ther gouree Larkin- Did “you B
. ;x:.m. t\l\i;,: 1'“‘.N "; ?u.:m? - ANy _r:..u.:, ke the: * - to the: ‘Dispute Comrhittee telling lhanl‘x: you \vamer?}
“ O AL .1| i ¢ on a'cartain daté, sny&t 000 and *£1,000, and Seon 2

i _' in\mcnh

the ln.ulll
g people 1o

n;hnd W huh s

AViuess—Ves :

-the” 1913 dispute.t
‘That, my. lun.l, is t'lu. (\plan.m'u u-'-ardmv the

< Transport Union conceérned wllh this ouuldo you 3

A SAFE,

Vg

Larkin —And afterwards if you did not want it .

all did you return the surplus ?

Witness —No.  We  accumulated  the surplus.

Larkin- -Surely the Trades Council has not been

guilty of allowing you to accumulate £7, 500 without
accounting for it-?.

Witness—TFhey «didn’t know.

Larkin—I ‘am not putting that to.you at all
1 am asking you did you tell the Secretary of the
Trades Cmuncilynu required a cértair sum to be paid
out eack week ? °

Witness—Yes.

Larkin—Did you
saved this money ?

Witness—No. . 3

agkin--Did you- tell.-him-? ©Onr- your oath?

Witness—1I told lmn the Urdon was abwlutely
sued HIL

Larkin —Was there any surplus in the Bank—
in the Hibernian Bank—at that time ? -

Witness—No. -

Larkin to Master of the Rolls—My lord, this can
only be proved by refefence to the Bank Books and
Accounts.

Serjeant Hanna—Hcre they are,

Mr. Larkin to Master of the Rolls—My lord, I have
been asking for these for three weeks and now I gct
them thrown at'me in a moment. = *

Counsel—You never asked for them.

Mr. Larkin to Master of the Rolls—My .lord,

. 1 asked for these from Mr. Norman. I can prove if,

Mr. Larkin ‘to “Witness—You say you spent in * ~
Christmas- week this money upor extra strike pay.
Did you report-that ? -
- " Witness—There was a lL]AUYL made,

Larkin-—How' was this strike money paid- out ?:

Witness—What do \uu mean ?

Larkin— Was there £100 paid to one man Ior
strike.pay ?  How did you.pay it ? .

Witness—To each man.

Larkin—There are 1,000 men enmlnd—what is
their right to this money ?. To have a right to this
money they. must have a Unlon Card ? d

X .. Witness—Yes.
, * Larkin—Was_their’ number taken ‘dowa whien
_they came up for 52
Witness-—Not in 1913 .
¢ Larkin—Rather “a—peculiar thing there xre not
.- any documents in exisfence.
Larkin to Witness—Was there anybody ln the

tell the Secretary that you

and O'Neill ?
Witness—Thomas Varren. was - Treasurer uud'
W, O'Brierr was Séctetary, of the Disputé Fund.
Larkin —And all the accounts had to go ﬁn‘ou;h’
-, Mr, O'Brien.and Mr. Farren.?
vot - always.
* Larkin—But:
the accounts hal
Witness—VYes. % A
Larkip—Did " Mr. 0'Brien -know ant you kept
ihis. £7,500 without miy knowledge ?

Witness- ‘x'j( arc rather making. too much
dbout that  * without your ~ knowledge.” "Mr.
. O"Brien did not: Know, 1t .was a surplus. It was-
gencrally Kndwn that the expenées of the Transport,
s Union Ior law and so-on weuld be' \cry much gmt:x
than any other Union.
.. Lar kin-~What was the cmclty o! the safe in
Liberty ‘Hall #° The cubic capacity ? - .
‘Witgess—-You ought to. lumw that.
. Larkin—I -am ‘asking you. &
Witniss—1 SUPpose about 3’ 'x 2/, -
Larkin—How - was this monay kop; ? Go]d.
suvn or, copper ? g

r. 0’ Brien‘was 'l'nasurer and all
to be given to him ?

i

\nmess—o.hw _a.u;o wate =5
- Larkin -~ jmmt 6 numbers
\ ALEe;&—-Oh, mvr do: I "koowi




:' makés how much ?
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Larkin— Where did they come from ?

Witness- - They - canme from —the—Bank.

Larkin— What Bank ? =

Witness—-The Hibernian Bank

Larkin— And _you received so many £100 notes
from the Hibefnian Bank in 1913 and kept them
in the safe. What became of them after ?

‘Witness-—[ brought them back to the Bank.

Larkin—Then the Bank will have a record ?

Witness 1 do not know whether they will or not.

Larkin— Do you think the Banks do not take the
numbers of the notes changed ?

‘Witness I do not know what the Banks (o,

Larkin - Well, you brought £100 notes from the
Bank and only you and O’Neill kiew of that. You
kept them in the safe and when you did not want
them you returned them to the Bank ?

Master of the Rolls— Proceed !

Larkin to Master of the Rolls— My lord, I want to
know what became of this money ? To Witness :
You spent £3,500 on buying Liberty Hall. There
must have been.a lodgment. It must-be proved by

. the Bank Account that £3,500 was paid to meet
this amount. .
© (Counsel shows account to Mr. Larkin.)

Larkin to Master of the Rolls—My lord, l am not
going to look at that account now.
for it before this and now it is thrown at me like this.

* Larkin to Witness -~ Who' placed the £3,000 on

Deposit,
Witness—The “Transport Union.
Larkin—When was it paid ?

Witness—Some ‘time previous to that.

Larkin—Was it a year prevlous ?

Witness—I think so,

* Larkin—So the building was secute up to the time
-when the purchase was completed.

Witness—Yes.

- Larkin—Now, you pald £1,800 dlspute pay and
you paid £3;000 to secure the premises, plus com-
mission ?

Witness— No,” there was commission beyond that .

Witness—We got a \lnrtp,dg( from the Northern
Bank.

Larkin—You paid them £3,400 and you paid a
further sum of £600. Now, £3,400 and £600

Witness—Are you serions Jim ?
" Larkin—I will be serious later on, I assure you.
" This £4,000—what did you do ‘with it ?
Witness—The. question of the £7,500 1 have
- “already explained ‘to the Court.
Larkin—Do: you suggest that the G\urt is going
to accept that smemem‘wlthoul gemng a confirma-
“tion by the Bank ?
Larkin--So members. of the Union did not “pay
_any moncys ?
Witne
fcll awa

said a E,ru at nuxnhu u( the members
and well you know it.

<

Witness [ suggest no such lhmf,

Larkin-—Djid yo: say there was £3,000 paid out
in 1913 on Liberty Hall ?

Mr. Brown, K.C.—No, on the st :q»lulllu r, 1914,

Larkin - When I said 1914 before I.was contra-
dicted and told it was 1913.
would not be_ contradicting I 'would have shown
that the money had been paid in: 1914 and that the
annual return could only have been shown in 1915;
Was 1 here in January, 1915, or up to June, 19152

Master of the Rolls—I have the original document
befure me now showing the accounts from the
September, - 1913, Mr.
sigped it

Larkin - Certainly,

and find Larkin  himself

‘My» lord, in that document

- it-says that money was deposited on the purchssn

I have asked - *

r

Larkin—Was there any balance left- in 1914 of -

this money ? .
* Witness—W Imt part uf 14 ”
(Argument as”to, entey q)pe.mng in Hm.ks )
‘Master of the Rolls-- , the Annual Rt:purt
-of 1913, d-copy of \\lm.h is in’ my possession, can
be refetred to. "1 have qot got
Larkin— Well," my lord, there
signed by James ‘Smith and:
The date it was submitted to t ar, according
. to this, was 11th July; 1914, and if that . £3,000 was
. pald by the Transport Union cheque would not the
auditor have had access 1o that ¢
on its Insertion in the Annual R&turn ?
Witness ‘to ‘Mr. Larkin—Who is the

Auditor

cheque and insisted

Larkin—I am- asking you would not the A\ldltor "

Inslst upon seeing that cheque ?

Witness—I do nbt remember ﬂ\-xn was any

" auditor,

55

&

-YLarkin—Do you swear the books were.- put in
without being audited ?
o Master if the Rolls— It is only« ngm to \,;1\ that
these docuinents show' that the accous¥s from

. January to 31st December, 1913; were audited; they,
show.-that there were eleven  guineas ]vnd for

~Auditor’s fees:

“Witness—o the
Jord 2" -

Master -of the Rolls—Ves. - The signature of thx
first Juditor is Joseph Casey.  The signature  of
the sccund Auditor is James Smith. . .

Larkin-—Now, my lord, James Smith is in Court.

Master: of _the Roli\m\ml must _conclude., lhb
examination.

Larkin to" Witness— Do yoit suggest that James
Smith did not audit this account ?

. Witness—I suggest he'is not capable of (lomg it
. Larkln~Wbal posnion does he hold at the

‘.\m_In.oh ccrm‘\ to that, my

pmen! time ?
Witness—Merely %lllOnL.\ clerk. .
Larkin—Who lmﬂoimed him ? - 3
Witness— The Exccutive Committee of the Unidn.
. Larkin—— Who was present- at the meeting ?
Witness—I do not, know.

. Larkin— Rule 37, says - (U.a‘lj' n:
*audit of accounts).
Larkin-—You were Piosmem of the Union in 1913?

. Witness—Yes.

ont rulu

" General Meeting ?

" Witness—-1 -cannot_say.

Larkin—Did y%u nb!cﬂ to these two mien audiﬁng
‘the aceounts in

. Withess—No.

* auditors were qualified ?
'(\o answer.) ‘ O

Larkin—Do you ‘suggest tlnt here were pmm‘

lmn “to hide away | the limds of th@ \Inion 27

- “Larkin— Was there an elecuon of Audltovs by P

0 far as [ can see,

of a house.

Master of the Rollss | cannot-sce !L

Larkin—If you look, you will see on_
the rourth page ‘* Deposit, House Purchase.”’

(Shows ‘paper to the Master of the Rolls.)

Master of the Rolls  Yes, thatisso.  (Reads from
account.)

Larkin - What year is that, my lord ?

Master of the Rolls -That is December, 1913

Serjeant Hg mna, IX.C. 1 do not think Mr. Larkin
suggests that is the purchase of Liberty Hall.

Larkin to ‘Serjeant Hanna —I wish you would not
confuse these matters. This man says there was
no money in the Bank in January, 1914.

Witness—I do not.

Larkin —Well, I am going to ask you now, was
there any money in the Hibernian Bank in 1914 ?
Haven’t you said'there was no  money except what
you -had in the safe with John O’Neill ?

Witness — [ am fiot going to put my mcmnr\ back

< on 10 years,

Larkin-- Against the Bank records. .

Master of the Rolls —You need not charge your
memory with any’sach. things.
the accounts which, according to Mr: Larkin, were
duly audited, and they record that in the Bank

s,

there was £1,746 Gs, 7d

Witness Yes, “M‘“”‘]’l"-‘””‘g the Bank
records do not bearAhat ont™? :

Larkin to Witness —Your Counsel have got th?;
Bank records, and we can go to the Bank.

Serjeant Hanna—There was £260.on Deposit
receipt, and there was no balance i Bank from
end of  October, 1913,
nracde a lodgment.

Master of the Rolls
Account.

Serjeant Hahna
my lord.

Master of, the. Rolls—-There néver was ready
money in the Hibernian Bank from June, 1913,
until the 18th October, amounting to more than
£200; that is the largest sum, then that was reduced,
to nil at the end of the vear.

Larkin to Masler of ‘the Rolls ~-What was the
amount in the Bank, my lord, when this Statement
was made out ?

“Master of the Rnlh

to April- 1914, when they

“That is only the Deposit

Ther¢ 15 a Current Account,

When this audit was.madc

: the date up to which it was made was 31st December,

1913, ..md on that date, so far as I can see, thert was
nothing at all to credit. -

Larkin—My lord, the money was in lwo dlﬂerem
Accounts when thgvaudlt was made, and Smith, who

 is now present in Court, and Casey must have con-

firmed that statement by -going-to the Bank and
getting the Bank’s stafement. - Now, I ask, my lord,
that I be allowed to.go through  the accounts of
the Banks and check up these accounts. We,make
this audited statement and we are bound il Jaw
by it ‘and: the -penalty. . Mr. Foran and Mr.
O'Neill had £7,500 of the Union money and failed

to -disclose it to the, Auditors of the Union. which.
and failed to disclose it :
.'to the'members of the Union, ,who, at

‘they were bound to do;
least, are
entitled to respect..
and _Mr, “0'Neill conspired- together to withhold
£7,500 of the: Union money. . Thi is elnr to
e,verybody «on _their- own - statemel
Witness— | h1\£\ '\ln adi: madc R
to that. .
l.arkln——wnat “did you do. ‘with the. rema'nder?
Larkin —So there" was no income in 1914 2.
Witness—Very ljttle.
Master of the Rolls-
xtnLg at, the time ?

Larkin to Master of the: Rolls~ My lord, we. did :
We had -

not suffer from a strike at the time. -
money on deposit, and our {riends had moneéy. There
were two Union accounts for- that period. - There
was No. 1 A ‘c. and No..2 A ‘c., they brought in
one account. The Sligo Branch had mopey. We

-had branch autonomy. and the Executive could not

- draw mone;- from a_branch except under certain

“now, my lord, goll‘}l -
“Dg you mean to say there wgr: no moneys known 3¢

 there

rules. And. that money was in Bank’

-To Witness :

to the émlelxls and audnofs on’ Jlmm'y m |
Wi “\What do’ you lncAI

Larki

shown they had no money at that time.
Witfiess-—~What busingss w buld a-man hke Sml.th

. have. auditing books ?

"Master of -the: Rolls to \\nm‘sbAl on I\.ul but(_r
look at that.

Witness—But 1 know, my lonl Snnth \\uulxl

i Thave no; bu:rm-r auditing” the—accommts
Larkin—There you must uru mn ‘these (wn- ¥

Wd:hr_uf the Rolls AVelly it is practically quite

Pplain that they are not worthithe paper they are =

\\rm:cn on, - In the first p
the .|gn.m|r¢ of James |
barely able ta-write his o

ks 3 AT il

the account bearg
hide the man.

" lord, while he is here.
o lord, that this gentleman produced an: audlud
. “statement of account.

If Mr. Senator Brown

I have before me

" as to the Executive.

* Larkin sand Others,

So in Jnnuary, 1914 :Mr, Foran -

_Ul)' nl as

You l.m(l‘.s‘mmrcrl fmm the

- purchasé of lecr(\

* ‘premises and throw us eut on the street,

mean in the books of the Union that ;

; hld Dbetter
:uy fire in "lha Han? ;
t, Larkin "to denroy the books ?. .|

Larkin—I am glad you make that remark, my
J am going to show you my

Larkin-—It is peculiar though that a man who has
been aceepted by the Registrar is challenged as to
his compdence

(Some ~ questions asked as to, sceond auditor,
Also reference made to Mr. Casey.)

Larkin—Mr. Casey ?°

Witness— Wait, now, I am not sure.

Larkin-—No,: it seems you are allowed to say
anything you like. Mr Casey must: have been a
competent accountant. "And if he did fail it must
have been in your time when you were.in the Union.

1 challenge you or any- .other ‘man in the Union

to prove that they ever were audited from the date
that I left Ireland, and I am going to ask you, sir,
on another occasion, to prove that you held .£7,500
in the safe without-my knowledge, and that yon paid
thal money out without my knowledge.

~Master of the Rolls to Mr. ‘Irarkin--Go on. .

Lark[n —1I Know “you are impatient, my< lord. -

Elywtcr of the Rolls—I an not impatient at all.

rkin —It seems to me you are impatient when I

put a question to this man who has yet £2,500
to account for, and who is on oath.

- Cross-examined b); Ser]eaht l-lélnna. K.C.

Serjeant Hanna—There arc one or two matters
I want to ask you about. You said something
about the books h'nmg been burned. When was
that ?

Witness— Some time in 1913,

Serjeant Hann.lfllm\ did they come “to be

* lurnéd ?

“Witngss— Well, when I arrived there one morning
the plucc was full of smoke and I was informed
that an order had been issued calling for the
destruction of the books, ete., in Liberty Hall.

Scrjunt Hanna—Who' ordered it ? :
— Mr. Larkin, L understand.

t Harna—And who was burning the books?
-Mr. O'Neill and some others. At any
rate it was well in hand when 1 got there.

Serjeant Hanria—You have been asked a question
You say there was none in

1918 ?

Serjeant Hanna—You have said in answer to
Mr. Larkin that no person was ‘deprived of benefits
because he did not approve.of the levy Dbeing paid.
Of course this levy is really a matter of the rules,

“Was that levy in-any sense a political- levy ?
Witness— Not -at all.
Serjeant Hanna to Ma ster uf the Rull» ~In l}]!,
account for the purchase of Liberty Hall, my lord,
we put in an Assignment of Liberty” Hall,” dated
Ist September, 1914, from Pile and Others to
of the premises known as
Liberty Hall. ) ‘

Master of the Rolls—\What is the date ? -

Serjeant Hanna—1st September, 1914.  We put
in, .of ¢ven date with that, my lord, an Indcntnrt.\
of Mortgage +not even date, my lord, 26th Sept.
Mortgage to the Northern Bank to securc an
advance of £2,000,

Master of the Rolls
bedrs out. -

Serjearit. Hanna It sthe £2,000, my “lord,
portion of the £3,500. 1 W 1nl to give your lordship
the history of Liberty Hall. That \lnrtg.‘gu was
,paid off on, the 24th December, 1018, leaving t!u
“title of Liberty Hall clear to the Union.”

(Mr. Larkin asks to se¢ document.) i

Serjeant Hanna to  Witness—Now, - just one
J.,Lneml question, Mr. -lur'ln Did, one peany of
00 get into’anyenc’s pm‘brt except those

1 do not kngw- how that

Master of the Rolls tu \\Ilﬂ(‘\\ “Now, that will
~do, Mr. Foran: E

Larkln— I want to ask this to be identified -by
Mr. Foran, my lord, and put,in. ol

Witnéss - This i§ a genuifi I‘Eﬁign:\turv. ;i

Larkin—That is all right.” %

Mr. Brown, K.C., to Witnégs—Why ‘did you

and (J Neill wh]ut tt) letting Larkin know of  this

" money ?

Witness- f\\ell we l\u_u\ that l\,v was not.very
keen-on saving, and. we had in mind the ultimate
Hall, because at that timc.
another Orgam;ahun which was bitterly uppe-.ui
to the Transport Union had m mind to s ‘tln

wanted te secure against that by buying. thf Hall?

~Larkin—What Organisation was that-?/
)‘}.um.h;— The Ancient Or(ll.r of thg rnians.
““Larkin to ‘Wi Ton said you camé\ in. one

.morning and found the building on fire ? 3

Witness—:L-did nut w\ ¢ s;m |t on ﬁr:
I saw smoke

1 said

" Larkin-—-Was' than ever any smoke without fire.?
: Therc is a lot of smoke - hcu and no .

Witnes:
hn

\l(‘l w2y i

-Earkin: ‘l‘l\efe may’ be ll:n very shcnly.
get away while the air is clear. Was ther
Didn't you. say Mr. 0’ ldll

'ﬂw E N 2
“weré told’ tluu was an ordcr i

Larkin
given by the book ? ~ What was -

; l y l o
. the sense or lh gurmp of destroying the books ?

ntithed tosit as members of the Union ? - °
No

You— o
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Witness- -Oh, there T leave you. B

Larkin--But there you won’t leave me. I want
to know. You told the Court there was some
obvious. reason ‘why the documents should be
destroyed, and Larkin gave orders to O'Neill to
destroy the documents.

Witness —No, T say these, punph \\.um-rl to evict
ws from home-and Imhlt,{tmn &

Larkin—Was - not there £500 paid on ‘these
premises in - April, 1913.

Witness—Of course there was,

Larkin—And nobody could get it ‘while we had

" the deposit on it ?

> Witnes:

Witness—Oh, ves, they could.

Larkin—You did not make any ‘attempt to put
the fire out and save the documents 2

Witness—No.

" Larkin—No, o! course you wanted to see them
destroyed.

-No, I did not. I always obey orders.
I always obeyed your orders.
. Larkin—You were always a good soldier.
you obey orders on the 29th Aprii, 1916 ?
Witness —1' got no orders. ’
Master. of the Rolls—Now,
vou want next ?

Larkin— Mr. .Iolm 0°Neill.

Did

Mr. ].m'kin, who do

John O’Neill Sworn.

Mr. O’Neill, did you attend a meetmg in the
Mansion® House in 1919 ?

. Witness—DPossibly T was thuc.

' Larkin—I .do not want possibly, I want to know
did you attend it. This is a meating of No. 1.
1 want to know did you slgn thls. The date is
22nd *June, 1919.

Witness——1 don't know.

Larkin—Did you hear Mr, Foran say that after
13th June Mr. O’Neill, Secretary of the No. 1 Branch,
and he saved out-of the funds of the Uniom, unknown
" 4o Larkin, a' sum of  £7,500 out of which they.were

.-able. to make a paymem to secure the premises,

Liberty Hall ®
Witness—1I did.
Larkin—And . you are the o’ Nelil who kept the
£7,500 in the safe ? :
Wltncsa —Yes.
Larldn—Anﬁ the money was in denommations
of £100 9
- Witness—And some i..)ll
Larkin—And no cash ?
Witness—-There may have been.
‘Larkin—Where were you working betore ﬂus,

Mr. ONelll?

it Witness—That was thé Chr

Witress=—I was \mrkmﬂ first ‘on thc docks.
Larkip—Where - were "you previous o got) on

" the ' doeks ?

Witness—I was. in Kennedy's “of Parnell Strect,

. Larkin—Why. did you leave it 2. - Was there any
charge made " against you ?

Noanswer: (Counsel objects).

Larkin—Were you charged with taklng the money
of the customers and not:paying same into Messrs.
Kennedy—in other words, embeznllng the’ money ?

-Witness—Yes. -

“Master of the' Rollx
the matter.

Larkin to WltnessvDid you hear M:.,
he came in ome morning in 1913 and e
" and ‘some documents burning in* Ll

Witness——I did.

l‘hwt has nothing to (_In with

N\
> _——1-—- i

—did-not know of.
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‘“ltl](\w You ordere 1| a sectional pavment o
bel'made in. Christnfis week,

Larkin- Ii is extraordinary.
he gave.this money
.of it. He says, in J

Mr. Foran /says
t and I had no knowledge
e they .had £7,500 Larkin
Now you spent this in. January?

Vitnesse- Christmas  week s not in January,
M L n.

Latkin —Well, in 1913 _vuu paid it out; that left
you a ‘balance for 1914. = There was intense distress
in Dublin in 1914, and you had the balance of £7,500
in the safe’and you kept that until in 1914 fou
bought Liberty ‘Hall ?

Witness--No.

Larkin--Did you keep the money that was given
‘to you to dispense in strike pay to buy Liberty Hall ?

Witness —'tn\ thing we got to dispense-in strike
pay we_dispenised every week, to anyone who was
entitled to it, and’ during the l)crrmmng of 1914 we
were paying people who did’ nat get back to work
or could not get work.

Larkin - But where did you get the £7,500 from ?

~Witness - That has been very-well explained.

Larkin—From the surplus of the strike money,
that should have been disbursed to the strikers but
had been saved. How many weeks did it take to
save the £7,500 ?

Witness—L don't -remember

Larkin-- Was there any other Urion connected
with ihe strike but the Transport Union ?

Withess—I could not sav definitely. | was not
on the Strike Committee.

. Larkin--But you were disbursing "the money,
and you kept this money, this surplus, and -still
asked for more, and the other Unions finally broke
because they had not money. Didn't the Builders’
Union go back because they could not get ‘strike pay?

Witness —No.

-Larkin-—You had a balance of £7,500. You did
take more than your share of the dispme pay-and

“put it in the safe in Liberty 'Hall unknown to the

. orders.

Larkin—And he: asked you what you were doing s

and you-told him you had orders to butn me docu-

.ments from,me ? 5
- Witness—Yes.
- Larkin—How did you ‘get these mlers from me ?
‘Witness—A " note brought' by Mrs. Larkin, ° ~
Larkin—Did you burn that nnte along with the
documents ? ) .
Witn =1 dont rcmcmbu e
Larkin—Will you produce that note ? 9.
Witness—I could mnot.
Larldn—'l'hat is. sumclent

cross-oxamlned

© Mr. “Brown, K.C.=<You :‘hedrd -Mr: Foran's
‘explanation as to tlu: 7,000 2+ S

Witness—Yes.

Mr. Brown—You pald .out tlmt ninm‘)

Witness—There was mor¢ than me paying itont.
I would not-be able to pay out it-all. I “used to
pay three’ dw\\ a “week from 11 in. th-: morning
to T-in the e\cmng :md Foran was p'lymg in another
h\ some’ other’, mémbers

3

of the Commi ttcc .
Mr. Brown—D: 'o'u_knm\' Mr. O'Neill, hr_:w {nl:lch
Of the 5.7,-)00 was p\ud out in relief ?
* Witnéss—I. could ' not say definitely.
were paying relief until the lock-out was called bff
at-the énd of. January. y ’
Mr. Brown—There was d large number of people
whiot did mot get relief-? . iAnid a lot of people. who
did not get back 1o their w)rk ..nd had to gct

. relief ? : g o

Witness—Yes. =

from: other Socicties . " »
Witness+—No, not at ‘that 1lmo
Mr. -Brown—=And you heard N
that the money was pald out-at
Whiat ivas,your opinion of thi

. Foran submit

tmas " donation.

Larkin to ‘Witness—You said you had. 57,500 in

¢ the sale. -You paid £1.800 in Jnuarv?

mtﬁm—v F n&d if I had knwn ol "
oran

~'1 wonld have glves it away.. You knew that money

eoﬂl lm be {ol ,m any- othor vr-y 2

But' we

°t

Mr, Brown—You were not getting Cantributions - -

man who got ali the odium of the strike, and you
spent “£1,800 in chrlstmas week under this man's
orders ? .

Witness- Yes.

Larkin—-Did you get a w men rder ?
Witness—I got a verba r.
Larkin—Well, you did s nd the ey at my

Had you any Committee giving you
instructions as well as Larkin ?

MWitness-— There was a Committee

Larkin— And you kept that money until " you
completed the purchase of Liberty Hall,- while the
men and women and children of the Union were
starving.

Mr. George Leahy Sworn.

Larkin—You.are a member of the Trades Councl]
of Dublin for many years, Mr. Leah y

Witness—For 20 vears.

Larkin—Were you onthe Strlke Committee of
1913 ‘in ‘the: Trades’ Hall ?

Witness—I do not think so.

Larkin—Did you know of -the ‘strike being carried
on underthe auspices of the trade ? 'Would. it be
* true to say that the consequent breakdown of one
-of the séctions was due to lack ol funds ?

Witness—Tnd oubtedly.

Master. of thce Rolls< That has nothing w whitever
tor say to this> I will net take it :!m\n

Larkin—All right, my Iord ) i
James Smith Sworn. :

-'Larkin—You are a member oi the Transport Union
from its Iurmallon Z

Witness—Yes.

Larkin— Were you elected m 1913 to: audit the
accounts with Casey-?-

Witness—I ‘do not- rrme;-nhcr Deing elected.

‘Larkin—Did" you audit the accounts?

Witness—I did not.

Larkin—Is that your signature ?

Master-of the Rolls to AVitmess
your. hand and see if the k!rvnav,ur

1 ]’\mcs Smlth :

-emumned by: Mr. Brown. K.€..
Bm\\n—Hm\ dil voa cunm to nmht fhcsc

*:: Wi xtness—\\.dl Mr. Larkin-camg alon" 1ncf said
“he had to get these accopnts re{umcd

o el —————— P e o .2
Witness .1 think my name is on two return
I was at iny.work and amessage came to me
Master of the Rolls From whom ?
- Witness - Mr. Larkin, to say that Mr. Miley was

lynNnL for he returns and to sign these accounts.
Master “of the Rolls—Take that document.” Do

VOu  see ur own signature there. Do you see
v James kin "’ .lhn\u it 2 Had Mr.  Larkin
put his signature to the accounts when' vou klgne-l
them ?

Wifness - [ u-m!el not really say llhlt

Mr. Brown--Do you see there in a return made

of @ ce
Bank ?

Witness: -Yes. A

Mr. Brown-—Did you ask for any voucher’ to
show the mogey was there ? -

Witness—No. . § -

Mr: Brown--MWhat were Vou at this time ?'

Witness—1 was working ina .grain store.

Mr. Brow n———\ ou are dw:nhc(l asa \\.u’chmlio
man.

Larkm “He was a warehouseman. To the
Master of the Rolls -My lord, the rule says that a
member’ of the Union can a,udi! the ac: unts 50
long as he is competent. - ]

Master of 4 Rolls to Witness —Can vou wrm-
Mr. Smith -2 &

\\ itness—Yes.

Larkin —My lord, you remember making the
observation that this man could hardly read or write >

Master of-the Rolls—I said his sigrature was so.
bad that it did not suggest he was an auditor of
the accounts. I think my observation has heen
justified by. what has happuwd

Master of the Rolls' fo Witness—Mr. Smith,
do not audit anyaccounts again no matter who
tells you.

Larkin, to Master of the Rolls—I would suggest,
my. lord, that that ‘would come much better from
your lordshlp if you confined your remarks
to the auditor of the accounts at the present time:
This man did his best according to-his lights. I was
going to call other witnesses, but I°see now it is
utterly - -impossible to get a. statement made. here
that wiil be. accepted.

“Master of the Rolls
statement, 5

arkin to Master of ‘the Rolls—Yes,- my. lord,
and have accepted everybody's statement who en!ers
mto the hox who libels me.

I would ask. your lordship for an adjournment
until I-get permission to bring to this Court'a verified
account of the dealings of the Irish Transport Union
-01 1913 and-afterwards. 1 think I am fully entitled to
it now that things have got so serious, and I have

ain amount of.monaey heing in the Hibernian

-T have accepted Mr. Smith's

Been placed at. this disadvantage that F have asked

Mr. Brown—Well,-what did he next say-or do ?

W ltncs:-——T 0.5ign th'\t form, and.he pmdnml

,‘ b that.

Mr. Brown—And )un were :o slgn that Iorm v
Witness—Yes.
Mr. Brown—Did he '-.uggcst yow “crc to go
through the accounts ? 5
Witpess—No.’
“Mr.” Brewn—Did' he give, xmn any opportunxt( s
Witness—No.

- My, Brown—So \ou \:gned them, . and th;\t L5
all you know ? PoiES % s 7
Witness—Yes.

Larkin to Wllnﬁs— "
Serjeant H:\n to Mr. I dfkln-Thl5 5 your own

B ltﬂﬁ&.
" Master nf Rollb to Mr., Larkm~[ think. M
Larkin is ‘eiftitled’ to ask hige fucther questions,
" Larkin to Witness—You were asked to sign this

~

i ‘document- as being a-true ‘statement to submit fo .

< _access to-these men who can swear that these ruleq

2.

for the documents, and they have not been shown
to me, but they have now been-thrown at me.
There is an account -brought in here—copy of one
account —but there are {wo accounts of the Transport
Union. I challénge contradiction. I say there is
a- deliberate attempt to mislead this Court. I ask
your lordship to support me. If you rule against
me on that, my lord, I will still persist in asking
for an admummen! umll the morning. .

Master -of the Rolls--You had better proceed
with ‘the case, Mr. Larkin. I will not give any
adjournment at this hour. .

_Larkin—All right ,my lord. Well, my lord,’
1¢all uponou to give me the right to go to the. nank
and get these statements out. There other
accounts. ~We have got to get the returns’'{rom all
the Branches and compile them in a generalstatement

Master- of ‘the Rol Have vou got any more
witnesses, Mr. Larki )

Larkin—No.

Mr. Brown to \hx}vr of the I{OUN‘-‘\\ cll my lord,
there are three issues raised in this which he has’
wot - dealt with at all. First, the Rules of 1923
He talks,in this action of Hn. Rules of 19E8 which .
we have already décidéd. on! * He then goes on to
{ uf 1923 which have been suspended
becapse this a ioff was going div. - )We are entitled
to have these rules.and I ask your lordship to allow
could claim to have the 1cuon
i issue, but it is nmrc sam{acmr\

to, it important that we
~{Reads out rules.)

Mister of the” Rolls.to \Ir Larkin—~Dbo you want
to, establish that the Rules of 1923 were mvahd ?

Larkin—Most certainly, my lord.

\Iastcr of 4lte Rolls—Well, then-it. is m-ce-.ﬂrv
for’ you to CmanL‘tc your case.

{ havin

Larkin—I am ¢ompelled to go on =
were-illegal. I am entitled to ask that they ¢omd Q
here. n Davis and John Bohan, two men wh

“signed this Declaration under the Statutory I Declara~ -

tions- Act, and they have made, Afidavits that they' -
‘\wre ‘misled in signing the- Affidavit and now wish
0 - wit] w their signatures.. May I point .out,
my lofd, that a certified copy of the registr:
has to bwb tted to the Secretary of the nlon

then acting. ' - I happen to be-the Suretny of f
:?o I was in mep: ce and had no' knnvﬂed:g\

sof it until I found: the Rules were registéred on the

1-was told in the office, I had not

2nd June, 1923. -
The diffieulty is what to do In thiy

seen the Rules.

- - gilemmia, to allow a thing which, on the face of it,

the Registrar, and you signed it because M'r Lnkln :
Ctold you ? - .

Witness—Yes. i
- Master of the Rolls tc W n.ness——

. Mr. Latkin told you :to sign these ccounts Ud

mu ever 'nidu. 1ecom-m before ? i

‘aita momcnt; 4

-is absolutely dishonest.and unfair.

And, my lord,

-1 make_an r proposal and ask your uadulum:a
until to- niorning, and I will bring these

“men. I is mibld 1o .get to ahem except by
Subm‘wm< A

(CEIBG ad;ourhed to lio¢
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Sticky Note
Larkin argues that the rules of 1923 were not certified according to the rules


\hrrh S, 1924

Witness- -Oh, there T leave you. B

Larkin--But there you won’t leave me. I want
to know. You told the Court there was some
obvious. reason ‘why the documents should be
destroyed, and Larkin gave orders to O'Neill to
destroy the documents.

Witness —No, T say these, punph \\.um-rl to evict
ws from home-and Imhlt,{tmn &

Larkin—Was - not there £500 paid on ‘these
premises in - April, 1913.

Witness—Of course there was,

Larkin—And nobody could get it ‘while we had

" the deposit on it ?

> Witnes:

Witness—Oh, ves, they could.

Larkin—You did not make any ‘attempt to put
the fire out and save the documents 2

Witness—No.

" Larkin—No, o! course you wanted to see them
destroyed.

-No, I did not. I always obey orders.
I always obeyed your orders.
. Larkin—You were always a good soldier.
you obey orders on the 29th Aprii, 1916 ?
Witness —1' got no orders. ’
Master. of the Rolls—Now,
vou want next ?

Larkin— Mr. .Iolm 0°Neill.

Did

Mr. ].m'kin, who do

John O’Neill Sworn.

Mr. O’Neill, did you attend a meetmg in the
Mansion® House in 1919 ?

. Witness—DPossibly T was thuc.

' Larkin—I .do not want possibly, I want to know
did you attend it. This is a meating of No. 1.
1 want to know did you slgn thls. The date is
22nd *June, 1919.

Witness——1 don't know.

Larkin—Did you hear Mr, Foran say that after
13th June Mr. O’Neill, Secretary of the No. 1 Branch,
and he saved out-of the funds of the Uniom, unknown
" 4o Larkin, a' sum of  £7,500 out of which they.were

.-able. to make a paymem to secure the premises,

Liberty Hall ®
Witness—1I did.
Larkin—And . you are the o’ Nelil who kept the
£7,500 in the safe ? :
Wltncsa —Yes.
Larldn—Anﬁ the money was in denommations
of £100 9
- Witness—And some i..)ll
Larkin—And no cash ?
Witness—-There may have been.
‘Larkin—Where were you working betore ﬂus,

Mr. ONelll?

it Witness—That was thé Chr

Witress=—I was \mrkmﬂ first ‘on thc docks.
Larkip—Where - were "you previous o got) on

" the ' doeks ?

Witness—I was. in Kennedy's “of Parnell Strect,

. Larkin—Why. did you leave it 2. - Was there any
charge made " against you ?

Noanswer: (Counsel objects).

Larkin—Were you charged with taklng the money
of the customers and not:paying same into Messrs.
Kennedy—in other words, embeznllng the’ money ?

-Witness—Yes. -

“Master of the' Rollx
the matter.

Larkin to WltnessvDid you hear M:.,
he came in ome morning in 1913 and e
" and ‘some documents burning in* Ll

Witness——I did.

l‘hwt has nothing to (_In with

—did-not know of.

. orders.

Larkin—And he: asked you what you were doing s

and you-told him you had orders to butn me docu-

.ments from,me ? 5
- Witness—Yes.
- Larkin—How did you ‘get these mlers from me ?
‘Witness—A " note brought' by Mrs. Larkin, ° ~
Larkin—Did you burn that nnte along with the
documents ? ) .
Witn =1 dont rcmcmbu e
Larkin—Will you produce that note ? 9.
Witness—I could mnot.
Larldn—'l'hat is. sumclent

cross-oxamlned

© Mr. “Brown, K.C.=<You :‘hedrd -Mr: Foran's
‘explanation as to tlu: 7,000 2+ S

Witness—Yes.

Mr. Brown—You pald .out tlmt ninm‘)

Witness—There was mor¢ than me paying itont.
I would not-be able to pay out it-all. I “used to
pay three’ dw\\ a “week from 11 in. th-: morning
to T-in the e\cmng :md Foran was p'lymg in another
h\ some’ other’, mémbers

3

of the Commi ttcc“
Mr. Brown—D

rou, knm\' Mr. O'Neill, hr_:w mpch
Of the 5.7,-)00 was p\ud out in relief ? :

* Witnéss—I. could ' not say definitely.
were paying relief until the lock-out was called bff
at-the énd of. January. y ’

Mr. Brown—There was d large number of people
whiot did mot get relief-? . iAnid a lot of people. who
did not get back to their w)rk ..nd had to gct

. relief ? : g o

Witness—Yes. =

from: other Socicties . " »
Witness+—No, not at ‘that 1lmo
Mr. -Brown—=And you heard N
that the money was pald out-at
Whiat ivas,your opinion of thi

. Foran submit

lma-a dm;ahon
Larkin: to ‘Witness—You said you had. 57,500 in

¢ the sale. -You paid £1.800 in Jnuarv?

mtﬁm—v F n&d if I had knwn ol "
oran

~'1 wonld have glves it away.. You knew that money

eoﬂl lm be {ol ,m any- othor vr-y 2

But' we

°t

Mr, Brown—You were not getting Cantributions - -

N\
> _——1-—- i

.. THE IRISH WORKER

‘“ltl](\w You ordere 1| a sectional pavment o
bel'made in. Christnfis week,

Larkin- Ii is extraordinary.
he gave.this money
.of it. He says, in J

Mr. Foran /says
t and I had no knowledge
e they .had £7,500 Larkin
Now you spent this in. January?

Vitnesse- Christmas  week s not in January,
M L n.

Latkin —Well, in 1913 _vuu paid it out; that left
you a ‘balance for 1914. = There was intense distress
in Dublin in 1914, and you had the balance of £7,500
in the safe’and you kept that until in 1914 fou
bought Liberty ‘Hall ?

Witness--No.

Larkin--Did you keep the money that was given
‘to you to dispense in strike pay to buy Liberty Hall ?

Witness —'tn\ thing we got to dispense-in strike
pay we_dispenised every week, to anyone who was
entitled to it, and’ during the l)crrmmng of 1914 we
were paying people who did’ nat get back to work
or could not get work.

Larkin - But where did you get the £7,500 from ?

~Witness - That has been very-well explained.

Larkin—From the surplus of the strike money,
that should have been disbursed to the strikers but
had been saved. How many weeks did it take to
save the £7,500 ?

Witness—L don't -remember

Larkin-- Was there any other Urion connected
with ihe strike but the Transport Union ?

Withess—I could not sav definitely. | was not
on the Strike Committee.

. Larkin--But you were disbursing "the money,
and you kept this money, this surplus, and -still
asked for more, and the other Unions finally broke
because they had not money. Didn't the Builders’
Union go back because they could not get ‘strike pay?

Witness —No.

-Larkin-—You had a balance of £7,500. You did
take more than your share of the dispme pay-and

“put it in the safe in Liberty 'Hall unknown to the

man who got ali the odium of the strike, and you
spent “£1,800 in chrlstmas week under this man's
orders ? .

Witness- Yes.

Larkin—-Did you get a w men rder ?
Witness—I got a verba r.
Larkin—Well, you did s nd the ey at my

Had you any Committee giving you
instructions as well as Larkin ?

MWitness-— There was a Committee

Larkin— And you kept that money until " you
completed the purchase of Liberty Hall,- while the
men and women and children of the Union were
starving.

Mr. George Leahy Sworn.

Larkin—You.are a member of the Trades Councl]
of Dublin for many years, Mr. Leah y

Witness—For 20 vears.

Larkin—Were you onthe Strlke Committee of
1913 ‘in ‘the: Trades’ Hall ?

Witness—I do not think so.

Larkin—Did you know of -the ‘strike being carried
on underthe auspices of the trade ? 'Would. it be
* true to say that the consequent breakdown of one
-of the séctions was due to lack ol funds ?

Witness—Tnd oubtedly.

Master. of thce Rolls< That has nothing w whitever
tor say to this> I will net take it :!m\n

Larkin—All right, my Iord ) i
James Smith Sworn. :

-'Larkin—You are a member oi the Transport Union
from its Iurmallon Z

Witness—Yes.

Larkin— Were you elected m 1913 to: audit the
accounts with Casey-?-

Witness—I ‘do not- rrme;-nhcr Deing elected.

‘Larkin—Did" you audit the accounts?

Witness—I did not.

Larkin—Is that your signature ?

Master-of the Rolls to AVitmess
your. hand and see if the k!rvnav,ur

1 ]’\mcs Smlth :

-emumned by: Mr. Brown. K.€..
Bm\\n—Hm\ dil voa cunm to nmht fhcsc

*:: Wi xtness—\\.dl Mr. Larkin-camg alon" 1ncf said
“he had to get these accopnts re{umcd

o el —————— P e o .2
Witness .1 think my name is on two return
I was at iny.work and amessage came to me
Master of the Rolls From whom ?
- Witness - Mr. Larkin, to say that Mr. Miley was

lynNnL for the returns and to sign these accounts,
Master “of the Rolls—Take that document.” Do

VOu  see ur own signature there. Do you see
v James kin "’ .lhn\u it 2 Had Mr.  Larkin
put his signature to the accounts when' vou klgne-l
them ?

Wifness - [ u-m!el not really say llhlt

Mr. Brown--Do you see there in a return made

of @ ce
Bank ?

Witness: -Yes. A

Mr. Brown-—Did you ask for any voucher’ to
show the mogey was there ? -

Witness—No. . § -

Mr: Brown--MWhat were Vou at this time ?'

Witness—1 was working ina .grain store.

Mr. Brow n———\ ou are dw:nhc(l asa \\.u’chmlio
man.

Larkm “He was a warehouseman. To the
Master of the Rolls -My lord, the rule says that a
member’ of the Union can a,udi! the ac: unts 50
long as he is competent. - ]

Master of 4 Rolls to Witness —Can vou wrm-
Mr. Smith -2 &

\\ itness—Yes.

Larkin —My lord, you remember making the
observation that this man could hardly read or write >

Master of-the Rolls—I said his sigrature was so.
bad that it did not suggest he was an auditor of
the accounts. I think my observation has heen
justified by. what has happuwd

Master of the Rolls' fo Witness—Mr. Smith,
do not audit anyaccounts again no matter who
tells you.

Larkin, to Master of the Rolls—I would suggest,
my. lord, that that ‘would come much better from
your lordshlp if you confined your remarks
to the auditor of the accounts at the present time:
This man did his best according to-his lights. I was
going to call other witnesses, but I°see now it is
utterly - -impossible to get a. statement made. here
that wiil be. accepted.

“Master of the Rolls
statement, 5

arkin to Master of ‘the Rolls—Yes,- my. lord,
and have accepted everybody's statement who en!ers,
mto the hox who libels me.

I would ask. your lordship for an adjournment
until I-get permission to bring to this Court'a verified
account of the dealings of the Irish Transport Union
-01 1913 and-afterwards. 1 think I am fully entitled to
it now that things have got so serious, and I have

ain amount of.monaey heing in the Hibernian

-T have accepted Mr. Smith's

Been placed at. this disadvantage that F have asked

Mr. Brown—Well,-what did he next say-or do ?

W ltncs:-——T 0.5ign th'\t form, and.he pmdnml

,‘ b that.

Mr. Brown—And )un were :o slgn that Iorm v
Witness—Yes.
Mr. Brown—Did he '-.uggcst yow “crc to go
through the accounts ? 5
Witpess—No.’
“Mr.” Brewn—Did' he give, xmn any opportunxt( s
Witness—No.

- My, Brown—So \ou \:gned them, . and th;\t L5
all you know ? PoiES % s 7
Witness—Yes.

Larkin to Wllnﬁs— "
Serjeant H:\n to Mr. I dfkln-Thl5 5 your own

B ltﬂﬁ&.
" Master nf Rollb to Mr., Larkm~[ think. M
Larkin is ‘eiftitled’ to ask hige fucther questions,
" Larkin to Witness—You were asked to sign this

~

i ‘document- as being a-true ‘statement to submit fo .

2.

for the documents, and they have not been shown

to me, but they have now been-thrown at me.

There is an account -brought in here—copy of one

account —but there are {wo accounts of the Transport

Union. I challénge contradiction. I say there is

a- deliberate attempt to mislead this Court. I ask

your lordship to support me. If you rule against

me on that, my lord, I will still persist in asking
for an admummen! umll the morning. .

Master -of the Rolls--You had better proceed
with ‘the case” Mr.  Tarkin. ‘I will not give any
adjournment at this hour. .

_Larkin—All right ,my lord. Well, my lord,’
1¢all uponou to give me the right to go to the. Bank
and get these statements out. There other
accounts. ~We have got to get the returns’'{rom all
the Branches and compile them in a generalstatement

Master- of ‘the Rol Have vou got any more
witnesses, Mr. Larki ”

Larkin—No.

Mr. Brown to \hx}vr of the I{OUN‘-‘\\ cll my lord,
there are three issues raised in.this which he has
wot - dealt with at all. First, the Rules of 1923
He talks, in this- action of the Rules of 1958 which .
we have already décidéd. on! * He then goes on to
{ uf 1923 which have been suspended
becapse this a ioff was going div. - )We are entitled
to have these rules.and I ask your lordship to allow
could claim to have the 1cuon
i issu¢, but it is more sam{acmr\'
to, it is important that we
~{Reads out rules.)
Mister of the” Rolls.to \Ir Larkin—~Dbo you want
to, establish that the Rules of 1923 were mvahd ?

Larkin—Most certainly, my lord.

\Iastcr of 4lte Rolls—Well, then-it. is m-ce-.ﬂrv
for’ you to CmanL‘tc your case.

Larkin—I am ¢ompelled to go on ‘without having

- _ acgess 10 these men who can swear that these rules . *

were-illegal. I am entitled to ask that they come
here. n Davis and John Bohan, two men who

“signed this Declaration under the Statutory I Declara~

tions- Act, and they have made, AfMdavits that they -
‘\wre ‘misled in signing the- Affidavit and now wish
0 - wit] w their signatures.. May I point .out,
my lofd, that a certified copy of the registr: -
has to bwb tted to the Secretary of the Unlon

then acting. ' - I happen to be-the Suretny of {l L
:?o I was in mep: ce and had no knnvﬂed:g\ 3

ol it until T found:the Rules were registéred on the\

2nd June, 1923, .
seen the Rules.

1-was told in the office, I had not
The diffieulty is what to do In thiy

- - gilemmia, to allow a thing which, on the face of it,

the Registrar, and you signed it because M'r Lnkln :
Ctold you ? - .

Witness—Yes. i
- Master of the Rolls tc W n.ness——

. Mr. Latkin told you :to sign these ccounts Ud

mu ever 'nidu. 1ecom-m before ? i

‘aita momcnt; 4

-is absolutely dishonest.and unfair.

And, my lord,

-1 make_an r proposal and ask your uadulum:a
until to- miorning, and I ‘will bring these

“men. I is mibld 1o gt fo them except by
Subm‘wm< A

£Ca5e ad;ourhed to 1o ‘L«;:ck{f uesday morning).
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* themselves from

" admitted
documents, _their excuse being they were

. '_S_tralnge to relate,” these des

<O Neill zmd others have' beer
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weekly—Twopenice—and may be had of
any newsagent.or newsboy. Ask for it,
and see that you get it,

All eommunloaﬂont, whether relating to
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addressed to the Editor, 17 Gardlners
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anonymous contributions.

Tel. No.—Dublin 5439. '

Subsmphons 10s. = per year; bs.
six months, payable in-advance.

for

We are not responsible for views or
i oplmons expressed in Special Artlcles.

' GENTLEMEN OF UNBLEMISHED
CHARACTER; AND OTHERS.

"We feel that our readers will appreciate
the effort to publish full reports of the trials
of Foran, O'Brien and others v.-Larkin,
and Bennett agamst Larkin.  We - will

. compléte. reports - in our next issuc.

These two cases, if studied, w MM
any unbiased mind the foul c Spiracy

. organised todestroy our work in the past

-and . to_prevent, if posmbl« our efforts to
enlighten, organisc and: ‘assist -the Irish
Working Class in their strug%e to' emancipate

‘Wage Slavery in . the
present and’the future. Note the judicial
manner in which Judge O'Connor approaches

. the case of the Injunction. Exccutive against

Larkin, - Follow the examination of witnesses

“closely. Note the interpolations. of Judge
..O’Connor;

The Judge’s discretion. is so
wisely. used in favourof the gentlemen who
admitted- they , committed - arson—they °
théy  destroyed records  and

told to destroy . records and  documerits.
_cd records

m ’p(')ﬁit‘\ﬂlﬂll

- of .the property and ~machinery—books, .

documents, ctc.—since October, 19147 Why,

".|did O’Neill burn records and . documents

~.[which would hax¥= proved how much.money

- | he andForan got from the Strike Fund to dis-

burse, and proved how much they disbursed.
Not an accdunt book;; not a receipy book ;
not a line of writing of all the records of the

.- Union up to 1918, accordmg to these honest

 official - comes before. a Judge and . admits
_he “burned: rccordvf and documents.-+, .
- Senator eomes tofore the ‘same Judge dnd

gentlemén ‘of umblemished” character. - An

swears he ‘saw_the records and documents:’
burning in .an’insured ‘building, and -admits.

" he did not try and prevent.the: degtritction

of the documents.
these two—a
of+ unblemis|

.And the Judge admits
nd one a Senator—are gentlemen:
d character. And when one

. of these two gentlemen admits he failed to

pay monies cntrusted to him to the firm
he was émployed by, we are-told this gentle-

" man is an honest man and- that he :leaves

.- the Couit without a' stain on- hls character.. "~
This O'Neill admits he, did not hand the .J-

monies entrusted” to him to pay Messrs.
Mennedy for  bread - supplied: O'Neill..

" admits he set fire to records and documents
- in an insured building. ..

O)XNeill ‘admits he
withheld. some - £7,500 which he, along with -
Senator ‘Foran; put in a safe \mho‘ut the
knowledge -of the Union ' officials; . Executive

* Committees, auditors’ and members of the.
-Union.
.. are gentlemen -of unblemistied character.

And we are told he and.the Senator ’

One of these gentlemep:of unblemished.
charaeter, along mth a.nother superﬁnc

- comrade Bob Monteith, is out. - We passed- .

.. Saturday last.

.~ We ‘wonder what .

- ‘at “the: Curragh —thmk of their : G
\?n:sndent 4 : mnbral_

Our .sympathy .is extended to our

- eolleague, Alderman John Lynch, of
sligo, on the death of his mother.
Jack has been recently release;l from
internment ‘and is at present in.a very
weak condition of . health. The
"~deceased -came from. the district of.
Maugherow and had reached a ripe old
age and enjoyed the respect of all the

. workers in Sligo. Her father was an-
adherent of Smith-0’Brien and her
Husband was sub-centre for Sligo in
Stephens’. time, She was a fluent
Irish Speaker. :

Solwy ]Sl‘\n‘*gnq' ™,

unblemished  character;” yelept,” O'Brien,
Alderman, admit fHat  he- with others,
has for years past taken and used ‘the
monies of the Union illegally, that two. of
the ereatures who voted and sanctioned the
spending of these thousands of pounds “had
no right to vote or sanction the spending of
such - monics:  But - Judge O'Connor says
they arce all honourable gentlemen with
unblemished characters.

This question. of machine building and
corruptlon in the Union ‘and Labour Move-
ment is the most threatening phase of the
‘new method of the Capitalistic system of
society.

The Capitalist now . realises that his best
method of delaying the coming into power
of the organised working -class .is to assist
the corrupt, /ambitious gentlemen of un-
blemished character who have ‘succeeded in
working their way into the Unions.

THE
AND THE SNAKE

-As told by A, Woods, K.C.

* A mongoosc was put in to provide a meal
for a snake, and when the luncheon hour
had passed there was. no snake but a well-
- satistied mongoose.  Our story*with a moral.
The Shipping Federation . (Mongoose) was
put on the Maritime Board with the Snake
(Have-it-all-Wilson, Union represcntative).
When the feast of reason and flow of soul

came to an cnd, the Mongoose (Shipping
“Federation)  was . perfectly  satisfied.
Mongoose and- sndke were one. :

¥

TAKING THE GAiN

Let gxe Credit be clalmed by who so will, -

Wc are g,lad our mmradt in thc caiise—
I)owlmg«—dnd the clos_(; comrade of our

the meeting tin_College Green assembled ‘to
welcame him and express «appreciation’ of

his services,; and 1nc1dmtally boost a political

STORY OF THE MONGOOSE -

candxdaturc and “above all, to’ claim”credit”

for’ Dowling’s release—fine ‘work.. Now, -
‘how ahout the other lads in British pn<0ns—'

: antch Lnghsh and Irish: ‘prisons 2

SOCIAL NOTES

Sc_nator i‘oran, accom

anud by his guard
“attended Leopa;dstm

“ race -meeiing “on
Thanks "“to -information
;received, he: had a good: day,’ -backing four
‘winners—Steady: 9cotch—no relation. to his
friend Fleming; *'“Most Noble "—of un-
blemished. strain ; Bleach . Lough—not

“breach: lack, the Senator gave.up:all ideas -

of -breachlocks™ in. 1916,7 April’ 29th. “Our

reporter. did riot get the mame of the fourth

winner, ' Maybe Staple-boy but of Betrayah:

1e stable-boys

on . strike

: the
" have
-their shame ;

Dmr '\u’ (or Madani), . "
e n view of the possibility of a str |LL among-

.

March 8, 1924

THE SLAUGHTER OF THE_INNOCENTS -

When will the conscienee of he
awaken 70 Every day and every honi of
the day  the mnfortunate victims of the
moral and  cconomic Ybreakdown® in this
country arc being sacrificed in-death to the
disgrace of “the public press and the self-
appointed moralists w ho (lvhhrrdtvly suppross
the horrible conditions arising out of this
vital question of the unmarricd mother and:
the unwanted child.

Letters appear in the pnﬁs ﬂpi)(‘dhng on
behalf of horses, dogs-amdcats.
Lords, Dikes and other parasites make loud

moaning over the rreatment meted out to.-

catfle and sheep during transit, Not a.
voice is raised about the organised murder
of . ‘innocent  children.. Poor _unfortunate
girl-mothers-=—victims of the lust of a ribald,
licentious - soldicry—are -driven from their
homes at a time when they ought to receive
sympathy and unlimited care;  driven to
shelter of the Poorhouse.  Not alone
they to bear what the world calls
deserted by the cowardly
shameless hound who, in many cascs, used
force dand terror to accomplish the ruin of
these hapless, betrayed ones; driven by
reproaches from a once happy-home, every
door closed against them except the Poor="
housc ; - and in those bastiles of poverty
they hring into the world an innocent chakl,
one of God's creatures. Instead of being
helped, sheltered and tended with care” as.
is the married niother, tlese outcast ones
are scparated from their little ones. The”

. mother may go heneginto the outer darknass

—to any fate. And we know, to.our shame,
the vast majority “of unmarru(l mothers

.- gravitates to the pd\cmont, and the child,

the innocent victim, is bdarded -out at
thirty, shillings per_month, or:put out to
nurse by paying a lump sam down. Sixty-
five ‘out of a-hundred of these unwanted
children die before they reach the age of
one year.. A society or nation. that allows
such™a crime to connnu( must.pay. .

W call our r(advr'; am'ntmn to the form ™~

printed bclow.

Yoursee we have a (m\tmm(m within a *
|

Government. )

Senator Foran's:friend, Mr. J. P. Cufic,
seems to be privileged to- arm hx:. “hired
gunmen, imitating. the Injuncticn Executive.-
May we remind Mr. J. Pl Cuffe that Gurra
Byrne, M. Dgfirielly, Gannon; Brophy, Kelly
are reliable men at a price for a ]oh like Ihh
protection job.

County Dublin Employers' Protecuon

! Association. .

37 Upper Titzwilliam Strect,
: I)ub]m

o ’rth (-brmrv, 1921,

¢ Farm Labourcrs, in. the ( Courity Dublin,

: pl("\so statc on this form the nimber of mien ..
-you will Tequire to do your work until such
‘timés as a settlement is reached, also. state

if you" will, vqum mern frrr pr(mctmn

-purposes::

Please fill in thl. l)dl‘llcuidl‘\ requiréd and

. _rctum t}ns form immediately.

\ ours L.m’fxflﬂly .
JiP..CUEFE,

}/ Pl RE TTLE.
N.B~ ub>cnptlons to .the "value of 6d.

“in the € on your gross Poor Law Valuation, -

1 may) be fyrwarded to- the T rustees, Messrs.
J.-P. €uffe and P ] Kettle, at the above
i address . \

To Messrs. |- B (L"I'FF and l’ J kHTH
Dear Sirs,

In the event Of a strlkl I \\ll] n qmrc lill

following :—

“No. of men’ for Labour
. \o of rnen for Pmtcctmn

nation -

Even our *

-
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The Case of Bennett versus Larkin.

\

AN ACTION FOR LIBEL. ONE FARTHING 'Déjj}mlzs

'SEAMEN’S DISPUTE

N - BEeLFAasT, 23/6/23.
" A Chara,—1 will give you an outline of the
scamen’s dispute ‘in Belfast. As you know, we
have had a hellish time in Belfast from 1920 to 1923.
The seamen’ in 1920 were members of Havelock
Wilson’s union. Many of the members of that
Union were driven away from their ships at the
point- of the revolver, on account of their religion.
We had ‘one membeér shot, but the union never
protested or tried to get protection for their
members. When they asked for a protest meeting
Mr. Bennett, the Secretary of the National Sailors’
and Firemen’s Union, ‘phoned for the Crown forces
and we were cleared away at the point of Lewis
guhs of the R.I.C. and armoured cars. We held
a number of meetings in St. Mary’s Hall, and it was
decided to make application for admission in to the
" We went over 250 strong on Gctober
Ist, 1921, At the end of 1922, we had 750 members
on the books of the seamen’s section. During that
time we held out for our rights and we petained the
ash money for firemen ard oveMther
ratings.. Last August we got tife Head FEine to
discontinue ordering crews aboard at five minutes
after midnight. The Curfew Law in_ the Six
Counties does not permit anyone to be on the,
streets after midnight. So we contended. that the

‘men should be ordered, aboard hefore Curfew or

after it had been lifted the next morning. In the
case of the “ Melmore Head ** the men'were ordered
aboard at five minutes past twelve, so as the
shipowner could save a day’s pay from each man

- and have a full 24 hours” work out of them. The
' men réfused, as they'had a. right to do, as qur Union
" has that rule on the minute book, passed by the

Committee Jast August. Well, Haveloek Wilson's

. Union supplied a‘crew-of scabs for the ™ Melmniore
"Head.” Word was at once sent to Mr. T. Foran

" shipowners and the men.

_conference was reported at

and he got ifito.communication with the Head Line
office in Belfast and arranged a conference of the
We:had two delegates

from the men who were involved in the dispute;
Mr.T. Foran, Mr. McMullen and the branch delegate

were present at the confer . The result of the
ral meeting of .the
branch. - In brief, the ce was a failure.
Mr. T. Foran addressed the yers and gave them
hi§ assurance that if the Héad Line shipped any
more men, other than Transport Union members,
hewould use all the power of the organisation against

the Head Line steamers in every port of -Ireland.

-Well, the" ‘Dunaff-- Head "’. shipped 'a - crew: of

. due ‘here on Monday.

,1921 in" the city of Belfast.

. National Union men a few days later, and that
. Union has beén using ‘propaganda in the Press.

Tenclose you a copy... Mr. Foran has taken no action
with the Head. Line, up to datg, and ouf Strike
Committee has sent letters and wires, and. got no
reply, so

We have two more ships, the ' Fair Head ' and
the.** Bengal-Head,’ ‘ang if something js not done
they will take crews from the scab National Union. -
We have the * Ratlin Head * d
You have the *"Carragian.
Head " in Dublin, and I think the time has come
that action should be taken with' this line of Sh,iPS'

: : : 4 Yours, ...
5 i “Untox Max..

P8I enclose my name and address.

The above leiter was written by a man who_has.
been going to sea for over twenty years.- He briefly
touches upon- the bitter experiences of Catholic
workmen experienced during the ‘years 1920 and
: y Thn--g:’llmemn l::m.'
t is alleged, actively participated in the persecution
of these (;lt’hoilc se‘avmen and firemen is a Mr, J. H

Bennett, who pririted the. foldwing in the evening

- papers of Dublifi, on Wednesday, June 2‘#):,-1_928:—{

DUBLIN SEAMEN'S DISPUTE.

S5 Trades Unionism m;ql‘shevl'sh., An Appeal.

‘" The’ Seamen meémbers of the, National Sailors’
and Firemen's Upipn arc now fighting the -battle
of the sane Trade Union Movement in Ircland.
".If the O.B.U. ivins-this fight other Unions not
loved by the leaders of the O%.U. will be the.next
to have to- fight.” ~ N %

. Take this apppal to your h N
immediately ‘and ' lodge. your. protest .ag
Tyranny of the OB.U: s 5 E -
_ "Mave your protests sent to the different Govera-
ment Departmeénts. = - R

Branch  Mectings
7 t the .

o
)

the men: think they are being ignored. ®
So they sent two délegates to: Dublin to place our
Y whole cdse before the E.C., or whoever s in power.

*iand the'™ Fair Head™

" Transport -
. were }))rog'anised‘ by the Irish ‘Fransport.and” General

: i gva:sercspectiullyﬁufé

Meetings of Unions will be addressed and the
case explained on receipt of invitation.

This fight 'is long qverdue,
Our Fight to-day may be yours to-morrow.

“ACT NOW.
J. H. BENNETT,

District Secretary, National Sailors”
and Firemen’s Union, 70 Lower
Gardiner Street, Dublin. .

This advertisement speaks for itsell. We draw

. our readers’ especial attention to the fourth paragraph
in the advertisement : *‘* Have your protest-sent to
the different Government Departments.’”” This
gentleman, Bennett, knows something of Government
Departments; having worked in conjunetion Wwith
the Six Countles’ Government in the North, during

_that period when an organised pogrom was carried-

out against the Catholic workmen, their wives and
children, in the city of Belfast ;  when about 870
unarmed ‘men, ordinary Union men, 312 women
and something like 200 children, ‘were brutally
murdered ; , when' blocks of houses, nay, whole
streets, in fact, were set on fire, and the occupants,
to the number of 32,000, mostly Catholics, and a few
hundred Protestant sympathisers, were driven out
of that/city. This is one of the fights that Mr.
Bennett took more than a passing interest in, for,
according to & former member of the Union, this
Mr. Bennett, when called upon to hold-a protest
meeting against the murderous attacks on the
members ' of .the Union who were paying him,
telephoned to the Crown forces, and his own men
were cleared away at the point of the Lewis guns,
in the hands of the special constables, and even
armoured cars were brought up against these
unarmed sailors and firemen, whose only crime was
that they were Catholic seamen-and firemen. -

__Mr. Bennett says. this fight is long - overdue.
We think he means to convey that he is paid to
come down here to start a fight in the interests of

the Shipping Federation, which contrels and directs

the so-called Union, of ich he is a very good
specimen of the type of : official. who works so
mischievously against the best interests of the
sailors and firemen in England, Scotland and Wales.
It is understood that we enjoy political freedom:in

this country ; that we have a separate and distinct .

Government—then why not separate and distinct
industrial organisations ? Why should these paid

agents of English organisations be allowed to .

“inject themselves into the affairs of this country ?
" If Irish sailors and firemen desire to manage their
own affairs, why should Mr. Bennett be permitted

tofact as an agent-provocateur and deliberately,

and with malice, lend himself to the purposes of the .

Shipping Federation of London' ?

Mr. Bennett desires to attend at Union meetiggs-

and address thie members ow the issue affecting the
lives and welfare of the-sailors and firemen of this
port. - We are quite certain that the sailors .and
- firemen of No. 1 Branch of the Irish Transport ‘and
General Workers' Union will only be too willing to
afford ‘him  the’ \gg)portuni _of explaining his
ition. 'Qn-Sunday, at 1 lock, he gl be

- heartily welcome to ‘attend the meeting’ to b held
in Beresford Place, aid. there and thep-present-his
views to the Union men who are affected by his
action,  Every. courtesy ‘will be extended t6 ‘him.
The seamen and firemen of Havelogk Wilson’s

{15

Union never fought any battle for Trade Unionism _ .
in Ireland. Their battles were fought for them. °

Their strike pay -was paid to them by the Irish
and General “Workers’ “Union. They

Workers’ Union. Any benefits they ever ‘gained
" or increased ,wages,"werg-‘ gotten through- th?
' streng‘{h of the Irish Transport and ngeral Workers
Union. Bu}/a}l‘Athe reductions 'in wages, the
-Jengthening “of hours, the additional work forced
upon .thém, we% brought about by’ the action of
Mr. Benpett an
Sailors' and Firemen'’s Union, th
is not national, hor 4 Uhion, buta group dligarchy,
appointed and - controlled by Hayelock- Wilson,
‘whose reputation is-well and usfavourably known
. in every port in Great Britain, and too well known
for Mr. Wilson- and”his tool, Mr. J. ‘M. Bennett:
" This Bennett, who is @ sop of 3 formier -boarding-
house master' in eHull,r:;;it _weg: :tofsea m; l;a(:,
ithe low..Or" er . EX asa ~class
LRt bty Piaﬂd'to Ireland.
tito, ¢ 3t is time he
“his_ ticket ‘and got back to
and Irish workmen
their own affairs;

nger erossing -over-front:Ei

used the return half of his t
Hull. - Irish seamen‘and fireinen
have determined they will

and amy " little

i

- other officials of. the National .-
#vhich, by the:way,

¢ differences  they ‘have between
themselyes or their officials will beargued gut and

settled within Ireland. The time has gone. past
when_ they will submit to the direction or control
from the type of adventurer like J. H, Bennett.
We know J. H. Bennett. We feel certain he will
be willing to meet’the sailors’and firemen of this
port and explain his actions, not.only in the present
stoppage, of which he has been the cause, but the
history of his.connection with-the National Sailors’ .
‘and Fisemen’s Union, and his actions since he
first came to Ireland. !

We are glad that he has unmasked himself. He
has been working too long under cover. Ag it has
been well said, this Union that he acts for, the

members pay a-shilling a week to get reductionsin____

wages, and they only exist as a Union because thep
are prepared at all times to do the dirty work of the
shipowners of England, and take directions from the
Shipping Federation of London. Whenever. scabs
are wanted the Shipping Federation alwags knows
where to go to. Whenever thugs or agent-provoca-
teurs are required the Shipping Federation knows
the address to write to, and they are always supplied.

The seamen and firemen of England, Scotland
and Wales are beginnigg to realise what’s’ what.
A few weeks ago one of Mr. Benanctt's colleagues,
in the port of Garston, was taught a lessori by a
Union seaman,, and the hired bullies that were
doing the work of ‘thé shipowners in. Liverpool,
protected by the British Government during the
war, have learned their lesson, and we are somewhat
afraid -they will, requir¢ the magnificent qualities
and sterling work of Mr. J.'H. Bennett, who is such,

. a paladin in the fight. A week ago a boat went into
Dungarvan, manned by members of Mr. J. H.
_Bennett’s always-read§-to-scab Union ; -the boat
was loaded and discharged by seabs, under the.
protection of the bayonet, and,-of course, Mr.
Bennett’s Union men took the .scab-loaded ship
tosea. Oh, yes, Bennett knows about Governments !
We think the British Government could give us 3
lot of Information in that direction, and wé know how
willingly he  worked -with the Craig Government in
the persecution of the workers of Belfast.” If we
might give a word of advice to Irish Unions, we would

. ask them“to extend -the hospitality of their VUnion
room to Mr. J. H. Bennett, officially, and s¢nd us .
a copy of the invitation. We/ know Bennett. ~They
will not be troubled with his presence. But we Want
to call his blufl. Bennett will be very lik ving
in the Shelbourne Hotel, like his master,/J. H.
Wilson, during the 1913 struggle, and difilng with
“the shipowners. They" are- specially gifted,-. the

_ officials of the National Sailors’ and Firemen’s Unlot
in the art of hobnobbing, wining and dining with the
shipowners and other employers.

As we finish this ‘article; we are reminded that
Bennett did go to séa once, otherwise.than as a
passenger ; .he was unconscious at the time. There
was a dispute aboard the.S.5."-Mango,"’ so Benpett

. and Purcell, the delegate, were sent-for. She/was
swinging in the Spencer Dock gates, ‘and of course
Bennett did not know. that ships went to sea, being
Secretary of . the National Sailors” and Firemen's

_Union, and while he was discussing matters with
the firemen, tlfe mate cast mooring ropes. off and
she was heading down the Liffey, outward bound,
for Ayr. Of course, ‘Bennétt thought'they would

“stap this liner, he beiug used to passenger vessels,

- but the captajn of the S.S.." Mungo.' ‘one of the
hard-shelled sort, was not used.to having passengers .
aboard ‘his craft, and.so -they stood on, and when
passing Howth Light, Bennett 'pleaded with ‘the
Captain ® put’ him ashore. The skipper said :

“ No, —— ! “I'll_'have.you arrested -for being a
stowaway when’I get you-to Ayr."” 8o the uncon-

- scious one got: the ““air,” and he was shanghaied

- 'ta the porf g€ Ayr, and upon arrival he bumnt u
the wires appealing for money to pay his far¢ back.
This' wad the first and last trip for the stowaway

it nnett. The .only .craft he goes aboard now

~Ahe Ship Ian, “which is always safely moored.

We: understand ‘that, when his master; Have-all
Vilsonr, again-hoists the Jolly Roger,.]J. H. Beanett

&\ going - to ship.as a- captain’s tiger. i

Report of the Law.Proceedings
e hc-‘«;a.sq came to tyr:arl:e—fvore‘-'ﬂis Honour Lord

Chief’ Jastice Moloney and a.Special Jury in ‘Dublin,

Castle, February 25th,<1024. ' P A

Serjeant Hanna, K.C. addressing the  Juige and .
Jury said :— - . S5

This action i brought to recover damgs {or
.what is considered -by the.Plaintifi to be a very -
‘delibérate, malicious and scandalous libel upon him.
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The Plaintifi, Mr. Bennett, is, and has been for
several years, a considerable number Jf years, the
pistrict Sccretary in Ireland of the National Scamen
nd Firemen's Union. It is a very important Union
. and he holds a very tesponsible and trusted position,
and the importance of his position and the respon-
sible duties which he. has to perform, and the
obligation upon him of complete loyalty to. the
.- members of the Union are very vital-in this case,
becayse it is upon these matters that the Defendant,
Mr. Larkin, has impeached bim in a most scandalous,
vitriollc and maliclous libel. As you will readily
appreciate, the u{np]uymtnt_ of scamen is onc that
_vtakes men from one port to another, not only in
Ireland,. but England, Scotland, the Continent,
and all'over the world, and; accordingly, it would
probably occur to you that the natural Cnion for
Seamien’ of il ports of the country to belong to“is
the National Union. (It would prebably occur
to an intelligent human being, if not to a King’s
Counsellor, that the proper ~Union for Seamen to
belong to would be an International Union of
Seamen. Of course the Seamen of any country
should belong to-a National Union and \} ted
with the Seamen of every other nation.) If an
Trish Seaman, who belongs to the National Union,
is taken ill or meets with a accident at the Port of
London or at any other, port, if he belongseto the
- National Union there are representatives there to
look after him: If he goes to any port in Europe
the same principle applies (Hanna, K.C., means
method), and applies almost to any part of the
world. *~ ‘ . ® .
The first part of the history of this transaction
that I have to deal with is the occurrences in Dublin
_in 1923 arising out of the Seamen’s and Fircien'’s
Strike and the Dockers' Strike, because it is out of
those transactions that arises the motive on the
-part of Mr, Larkin for attacking Mr. Bennett.
. For some time prior te the return of Mr. Larkin
from America on the 28th, or-at the end of April,
3, there had been an effort ‘made by the Irish
P d:General Workers' Union to for

is a contest with which neither you nor I
concernéd.  1f Irish Seamen thought they were
" better.looked. after in the Transport Union that
. was their own business, and accordingly a consider-
able number of them'in the Port of Dublin and in
the Port of Belfast seceded from the National
Seamien’s and Fireme: Union and’ joined the
Seamen’s Section of the I
Workers' . Union. This was before . Mr. Larkin
came batk from America at all. It was a struggle
~ such as often takes place between two sections of
Jabour a$ to which.of thiem can get control of a
. particular class of - workers.  But, “although a
. “considerable numiber joined the Seamen’s Scction
of the Irish Transport and General Workers’ Union
““by far the greater majority of them still adhered
. to the Natienal - Seamens, Union.
_ - several hundreds of them in Dublin here and several
— hundreds in Belfast, 1 do not know exactly  the
‘number, but it is immaterial here. '(Everything
‘that is true is immaterial to 4 lawyer in stating a case.)
Now, inor towards the end, of May the National
aritime Board (National Maritime )
K.C., cannot distinguish between a
International  Board —or Unionj, ha reed
thbire should be what is called a cut in’ the. Wages
“of ‘seamen - and ‘firemen. Now, the "Nationat

‘the'libel that I .will point out later—is a Board
about which I will have to say a word as to-its
constitution. ‘During thé War thete were -formed
5 inistry of ‘Shipping, throughont ‘the
country England, Scotland; Wales and Ireland
~—what were .called District Maritime Boards,
-which were given the control and settlement of #ll

disputes between Shipowners and Seamen that-
And the decision of these *
1l -you the-

were referred to them. i

District Boards-—of ' which ' I will
Tepresentation i a moment—when it was_ )
whether in the Irish Free State (there was no

* *“Irish Free State '’ during, thé War—hoWw is a poor-,

know _such .an

quarters .in londof
constitution of thi
law laid it down, or it was L
" of Shipping under powers, that there should be
three .shipowners, three representatives of the
Seamen;, and one rindependent judge: ' In Ireland
there wete two Maritime Boards (another figment of
Hanna, K.C.'s brain), one -for Ircland and one for
the Irish Free State. (There is no such Board
acting within {he area of the Free State.)

Seamen'’s and Firemen's Union, norhinate-the three
representatives to represent ‘the Seamen. (Why
did not Hanna, K.C., staté-the full facts :—thal the
»Shlppj:f Federation. nominated* the .whole Board.)
And the Board in Dublin t sominated and
they have Mr. Benmett, the Plaintiff, Mr. Carter
who is one of the Jeading mem]
Secretary in Cork for the Seamen #0d Firemen ;
and Mr. ‘McGrath, Secretary in Waterford. -And
these three representatives, with. an ‘independent
Judge; constitute'the Board here, and it is the same
in every other district: .

Well;'in May of last year the

tional  Maritime

of  tie  Seainen - and - Firemen

' better.

h Transport and General

There werc -

“drawn through the people, etc., etc.”

se ) 1 “Worker."
Maritime Board—as a reference is made to it i~

“vho are inclined to believe what they'

“‘men believing what they see in ‘print..
K.C. seems at sea Y :that when the Catholics were. *

id down by the Minister,

The *
employers or shipowners -are: nominated by the’
Shipping Federation, and then the “Union,  the-

- America.

hink the-

‘Board decided there should be a:cut in the wages -~
i _-" the Union it would be a setio
it of @ man who was Secretary of a_U njor

« (Confinues to read).

Union ﬂuad to submit to it, and did submit to it
after a considerable -amount of grumbling, and
feeling that they had a grievance, and, accordingly,
that was used for the purpose of endeavouring to
take more members away from the Seamen’s and
Firemen’s Union and to get them into thc’Sgci';wn
of the Irish Transport and General Workers’ Union.
. “The next thing that happened was the Dockers
Strike in Dublin in the beginning of June, and this
libel was issued. The letter complained of is dated

23rd June and the issue of the paper 30th June.

The Dockers’ Strike took place on the 23rd, the
date this letter was alleged to have been written.

Ande now appears how the Scamen came into it. -

“The ‘Dockers struck for higher wages, but ships

 came into Port and certain discharging could be

done by the Seamen' or Sailors (one wonders what
is the diflerence between a Seaman and a Sailor—
ask Hanna, K.C., he knows) and was done by them.
The Irish Transport Workers' Seamen did not work,
and they brought the matter to a crisis by refusing
to work with the Seamer of the National Unjon,

“and that was in or about the 20th' or 23rd, or the

end of June. The Seamen of/the Irish Transport
and Géneral Workers' Union refused to work with
the men-of Bennett's Union, but the men in
Bennett’s Union stood firm and the difficulty in
the way of the Dockers and of the Transport Union
was Mr. Bennett and his' Seamen’s Union (the
creatures in Bennetf’s Union openly scabbed-—
as usual),.and not being able to beat them by fair
nieans Mr. Larkin had, of course, recourse to foul
means; and this is the subject of the complaint
that we have to make to you. .

Now, I have explained to you that you have
Bennett, the responsible, hgad of an organisation
that was adverse to the interests of the Transport
Union at that time, a man whom Larkin had to
down at any cost. Truth was of no importance
so long as he could get a statement into the paper

“to disparage Mr. Bennett's character, get it into

the paper which was spread among these people,
the seamen would read and say to themselves :
the kind of man who is the Secretary of our
n, the less we have to say to this Union the
And what do,you think was the weapon
Larkin uséd this titne > Religious intolerance.
Mr. Bennett, who is a Protestant, had been the
Secretary of this Union, living - in. Dublin, in
Clontarf, for years, among a Catholic population.

In a Union, I suppose 90 per cent. of whose members

were Catholics, working whole-heartedly in their
interest, Any weapon is good enough for "some

‘- people to use, any mcans are despicable enough

for some people to use to effect their purpose, and
here in 1923, in Dublin, when everything had passed
over of that horrible subject of religious intolerance,
it is left to the refugee from Ameérica to raise this
blazing torch throughout the country so that he
might wade with his sword drawn, through the
people, sweeping them aside, and leaving the

" terrible track that he leaves behind him everywhere. ”
(Listen to this product of a University, Hanna, K.C.

‘. Raise, the blazing torch, wade with his sword
We wonder
if he had his waders or his sea boots on.)

- Here, is the Article:—It is headed " Seamen's
Dispute '’ and it starts with a letter alleged to have

‘been written to Larkin by some of his correspon- .

dents, and' it appears in his paper ** The- Irish
¢ It is wrnitten from Belfast and dated 23rd
June, 1923 (the date of.the Dockers’ Strike).
Suddenly some inspired individual in Belfast thinks

.that it is very neccessary. that Larkin should get

some information,/ and here is a letter signed by a

*“ Union.Man " to Mr. Larkin, and a long comment -

on.it by Larkin.'afterwards. (Reads letter.)
Gentlemen, I ask you, as men who live iy a city.
that certainly has been characterised by no intoler-

ance, Lasky®u, is.there any more damning statement »
could have heen made against .a man like Mr. .-

Bennett, who spends his life among’ illiterate men
rint,
(it must be a'sight for tired eyes fo see the | llltl:rut;
The Learned

in trouble in Belfast Bennett 'phoned for the Crown
Forces and® had- the Lewis guns turned -on them.

“Gentlemen, it is untrue ;.- it.can be proved.untrue ;

l'm_r. it-was a terrible charge’; it was a charge that
might have led to the blood of Bennett ‘being on

; J:arld.n's» head. *(Continues to .read.) :

Now, that was all that was said .in the lettér.
about Mr. Behnett, there were other references..
_we'néed not go'into, wWe are not concerned with.’

*, He ends- this letter,”  Union Man,’". and ‘adds:

B o S_.v—'I_ éqd]ose my name and address.”* Now,
Larkin pioceeds-tq coriment on that:letter, and

here, i5 hjs comment :(—(reads”Comment).

AWl Well, that passed over. and Mr: Bennett™
. wertt about- his” work. ,Lquin"\ua:i not. helpjng ™

Catholic Seamen or anyoné clse in 1921, hé was in
e when _fe camé home’ he b 't
attack Bennett. And. bis ‘object .in
Bennett is not in the public intérest, it
the benefit-of dnybody, it 15 a malicions attack for

* the purpose of injuring Bennett and trying to get

members to his owrd Union. ‘Here he's: b
(Counsél continues' to read). & . . e

- Now, there is a charge ‘agai ;
active . participation .in the. persecution ‘of ‘the
‘Catholic workers. If it was, not: the Secrotary.
s-chiarge, but to-3a

thinle of any ‘charge that wald be mo dam
or pub a.fan’s life. and limb4n more peril than-that

". beaman of means:

The next part we complain of -is this.  Afer
sctting out the advertisement he says:—" W,
draw our readers’ special attention to the fourth
‘paragraph of the advertisement—' Have your
protests sent to the different Gowernment Depart-
inents.” "’ S :

Ageni Provocateur.

+  Now, I presume Mr. Larkin knows the meaning

of the word he used. * Agent Provocateur,'

‘It is a French word, and when-the French wished

to get any man within their toils they sent one of
“their own paid spies to pretend he \was on the '
side of the Government and to stir him up to some
act-of a revolutionary character—and then be in
a position to prove against hiQ, The™Agents who
held sway during the French R ution were most
despicable, creatures, they were people who lent
themselves to deceive those to whom they pretended
they -were friends, and they were the ‘essence of *
everything that .was .disloyal. Does he ‘mean,
referring to Mr. Bennett, that he went up to Belfast
and was opposed to the Catholic Seamen and had -
the guns turned on them, or does he mean that he.
was disloyal to them as members of the Union ?°
It is a matter for you to-decide, but it has a very
libellous meaning. And he goes on to say that the
man_ lent himself- to it for the purposes -of the
Shipping Federation. Now, this is complained of
as one of a series of libels against us.

It means that Bennett,” who was paid by the
Seamen, was guilty of a breach of trust and was
conniving with the Shipping Federation and' trying™~
to get their interests carried out against the interests
of the men who were paying him. This is a very
serious charge to make against any man as a’
Secretarys - .

He then goes on to say :—'* We arc glad he has
unmusked himself.”” . Meaning that He was carrying
on under pretence and instead of being:the Seamen’s
friend he was playing' into the (hands of ‘the

“employers.  (Reads again.)

He suggests that the Shipping Federation. when
they want men to fight the Union go to Bennett,
that Bennett, who was Segrétary of the Union,
provides the scabs ‘who take ‘the men's ships while
they are out on strike and work  them.” Well,
I suppose some of you know the duties of Secretaries
of Trades Unions, and certainly as Secretary of a °
Trades Union, a man who is guilty of any conduet
of that kind, of- providing his .employers, or' the
employers of his men.with scabs to take the place
of the'men on strike waould be the worst imaginable
Secretary, and should. be scouted out.of decent

-workmen's society. b o g

Then, he ‘goes on :—(reads. again). - .

Well, he has a' very ample vocabulary, *has Mr.
Larkin, and when an offensive term “is ‘réquired”
it comes very readily to the point of his pen as also
to his tongue. A *thug’ was an Indian word.
It was applied to a body of assassins in the mountains
of India in the early part of the last century who
frequently assassinated ‘people to whom they had
any objection for a religious Teason, and ' the term
is ‘used -as a description of the most vile of the
Indian race. But that does not stop Mr, Larkin.
He has said-of Bennett in this article the worst that
could be spid of any man, that he will selt his
friends, that he will sell his own class, h¢ will do
worse, he will assist, in getting - people who are
opposed. to, him in re‘ﬁ‘gion nurdered and the Lewis
guns turned on .them,- .(He reads again.) :

Thi§ is repeating in other words the allegation
‘that'he has already made and he makes it plainer
that he charged Bennett with assisting the. Craig

- Government in the - persecution .of the Catholic

" workers® in Belfust i~ Bennett' will. be - very

likely living in the Shelbourne Hotel :

" Well, of course, that is a very cheap sort of sneer,
Bennett does not live in the Shelbourne Hotel and
he does not dine with the Shipowners. (Havelock
Wilson lived in the Shelhourne. Hotel in 1913,

Now, there is the terrible article that we comiplain

.of.  Hr. Benpett is a man who wiil-put. himself-

. before; you as a decent man, a man who has done -
_+his best for'hiis class and for his Union:in his position

a Secretary. . A man who has ‘never truckled’ to
lis employer, who has handled all disputes referred”
6 him. And of this I think you. will be satisfied—
he has a record that will compare favourably with -

. Mi. Larkin’s. T will say that fer' him:

" Now, when an article like this appears what is
,a-man to do 2 A law abiding citizen can -onty
appeal to law. ¢ cannot ¢ the law-into his

-own’hands. ‘But' this ‘is:a charge, and after wé

prove it to you you should make or should- dispel
mn such a way that Mr. Larkin ‘should be on. the
outside of all geoént workmen’s society for all time,
no matter what he claims he has done for the class.”
No man cari-achieve anything for any class by ill-
methods such as ¥ese, and we claim we should get
a verdict -for sullstantial damaget against him.
Do .not be Jed astray by.the.idea that he may not
2 We ask fof substantial damages.
Werask for damages ‘in_connection with. the injury
he tried to do us:and did us,:and they can-be
measured in ne small scale, The worst that mdy

.- be said of 2 man has been said in that article, and

it tay be that there are people in the various places

- to iwhefe this ** Irish Worker "’ goes who think far
ﬁr worse of a. man being. disloyal to”his Union

d his class than of almost uny ‘Other crime.in the
calepdar. (Yea, every reader-of the ** Irishk Worker ™
' : ‘that any worker who is.

we_si hope. beli
Nilioyal e hie. e and bie D,
. unforgivable cr iy e

ible erime.) .
Larkin, has_pleaded

that these statemeats
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are true in substance and in fact; (‘,he has pleaded
he published them in the public interest bona fide.
Well, it -must be bona fide in your opinion, not in
Mr. Larkin’s opinion.  If the facts are as I tell you,
what honest worker, what intercst of the public
can e served by raking allegations of that kind ?
Why, it is a libet for which proceédings could have
been taken in the Criminal Court, but L think civil
liability and damages have more terrors for Mr,
Larkin- than the Criminal side. .

I said in my opening words that it was a horrible
subject for people to have to discuss, in, public,
the intolerance of one religion against another.
That was why Larkin used it. It was the poisoned

" weapon, because it was’what would influences the
class of people wha read the ' Irish Worker "’ more’
than the suggestion that Bennett was mixed up in-
attacks that.'were’ made upon their own co-
religionists. And I say that that was done with
malice. He knew it might not affect Bennett to
say. that he dined or wined with the employers,
because the workmen who worked with Bennett
knew whether it was true or not, but the people
who would read that Bennett was an Orangeman—
that this man who was living in Clontarf, who was
their representative on the Maritime Board, etc.,
etc., that he was an Orangeman—I need only suggest
that to justify. me in 'suggesting that it was a

' poisoned weapon that Larkin was using, and he
knew. it. 'Because, in this country—though it is
two years -since this terrible’ thing “ happened—
in this, country,. even now, there is nothing -so
calculated to rouse the feeling of any decent person,
no matter of what religion, than the thought of
what tdok ‘place in Belfast in 1921. o

I leave the case now in your hands$/so far as my
address is concerned. I will call Mr. Bennett and

“a man who was associatéd with- him in 1921 when
they went on this deputation, and I think I can.

" anticipat¢ with’ confidence that you will believe.

. what Mr, Bennett-tells you, because a man does not
remain a member of the Union, of a Union of that
kind, with every hour spent-among the mt{: without

_knowing . him, and if he was not an upright and
-straightforward official it would be found out by
people here far more interested 'in finding it out

than Mr.. Larkin, . .

e : = i
(Bennett examined, = Connolly examined)

Mr, Wood, K.C. : :
..+ May it please your lordship and gentlemen
- of the Jury, I appear with Mr.. James C. |
Geoghegan for. Mr. Larkin. The case against.
- him is that he has libelled. Mr: Bennett, and-
‘. my ‘defence for Mr. ‘Larkin, and his own
“defence for himself is that what he has stated
_is true, and’ that his .remarks dre a fair
. comment on ‘a matter of public significance.
At the very beginning of the case yesterday
.- when" Junior Counsel,. Mr. Maguire, opened
“-2.the case, when he mentioned Mr. Larkin's

name he- said “:of \whom you have. pres

_~sumably. heatd”’ and Learned Counsel
leading for the: Plaintiff went further and
.told you’ that “4Mr. Larkin with-a. torch in
one hand and a sword: in the other wanted
to ‘wade through the country, leaving a
terrible track -behind him everywhere.”
Gentlemen of the. Jury, these’are not-
- _matters_of evidenee, they only represent the-
attitude of the mind.of those who are con-.
ducting this case for. the Plaintiff, to appeal
to the prejudice which they think already
exists in your mind. You are the roaring..-

Dublin, and:Larkin is carnivora. * -~ -
" Gentlemen of the “Jury, these. things were |
“Tot said without ‘a purpose. - Thelcase has

* _been wopened with a vehemence. of epithet - .
derived from the debris of a’quarter of.a.
century of . forensic advocacy..” I do wnot
purpose to follow that line, because | appear
for” Larkin, and on_ -Ldrkin’s\instructions.

_ Lappear for truth, and when ‘you tear aside
the'veil what do you find on the other side ?

- Alvery simple issue, Gentlemen, and it was
not an issue between Bennett and Ifa,rkrn.“
In a’sense, unfortunately, but in another
sense, fortunately, it was an issue: between
Bennett and the mar who wrote the letter,
Michael - Nolan, atr_xfl those” .who ~ wotld. be
.produced to you fo show that the incident
which is)in the forefront -of that létter
occurred; viz., that on the 6th June, 1921
when ‘the holocaust ‘of woe. was_spreadin
“desolation in. Belfast, the men. formed
thémselves-into a Committee, and a deputa-

_ .tion. went 'to_Queen’s Square. to seé . Mr.

. Bennett, who should protect them through
“the power of their Union. =~ = 7 &% .o

_ ¢ The ‘man, Michael Nolan, who wrote the"

B -and another “who went on the
- deputation and others, would be produced .

. refugee,”.

" other Union, and they sit.down-at a Board
" and they finally decid¢ whatare to be-t

as witnesses ; they/will tell you that when
they went to Bennett's office the treatment
they received was, instead of receiving them
as members, men who had a terrible and
awful experience, who were positively under
the threat, as will be proved to you, of further
ahd terrible desolation amongst them, and.
wanted Mr. Bennett t6 hold a public protest
meeting of their members in Belfast at which
a resolution might be passed, so that they
- might have the protection not only of what
Mr. Bennett could do in Belfast, but what
Havelock Wilson could do as President
through the Fmperial Government in London.
As they proceeded-to talk to him, the common
‘men, if you like, some heat was engendered ;
he told them * if you don’t clear out I will
send for the police " and suiting the action
to the word, he went into the inner office,
rang up the telephone and these men Avill
~tell you that they heard him ringing up
Musgrave Street Police Barracks:— When
_they filed down those steps and went out
into the street a number of the men who
came from the’hall to hear the result of the
deputation were on thé street, they were out
- for.a few minutes when there arrived in or
abotit .25 Police from Musgrave Station and
two armoured cars and their members. were
gradually moved out of Queen’s Square.
That,is what these men will tell you, that®
is the issue ; whether or not you will believe
these men that this incident occurred, and
"if you do, there is an end to this case.

. and when Mr. ‘Larkin read that letter he

Gentlemen of the Jury, if you or some of
you efer_adapted the unfortunate position
of tryifig to.l¢ad men, and you reccived a .

letter from -what yon believed to: be an
honest man, whom you had known for years,
and you received a letter like that, what

would you do # -If you had courage, if you had *

truth, would you do anything less than what
Larkin did, and if you refrained from doing
it ‘'might you not be nominated as cowards
and knaves. }

Gentlemen of the Jury, they knew the
weakness of their case, and therefore Larkin
had to be paraded as “* a man who leaves a
terrible track behind him,” " an American
¢ * a man who knows the criminal .
courts and is not afrdid of them,” and you
are therefore invited to crush Larkin with
a verdict because the suggestion is-that he
fedred the weight of money, he did not fear
e weight of incar¢eration in jails for what
‘he believes to be the, cause of. Liberty.

- Let’me call your attention to what is the
position. on the-30th June when Mr, Larkin
first inserts that letter, makes one comment
upon ‘it, then inserts Bennett's letter and
makes: ‘- series of commefits upor Mr.
‘Benmiétt’s letter. There is a'strike in Dublin
in April ; the m¢n may be right or they may
be wrohg, that is not the question ; = they

- believed Mr. Bennett's Bnion was under the

this reason,~that the Shipping Federation
4s hew/in_ this- pesition; that every member-
of the Shipping:Company is.a member of .
the *Shipping *F'¢deration:- During- the War.
there ‘was a Board set>up on which there
were represeritatives of the men andrepresen-

" tatives of the Shippérs; they controlled the °

wages and conditions of working of the men
during the War.' ‘After the War that Board
was reconstituted and; now youhave' 12
. members of the Shipping Federation and 11
members of Bennett's-Union and 1 of some

he
wages of seafarers,” and that is.BennugtK’ s
own Texpression” i

The seafaring men 0}_' this Port’ 'and"_of r

Belfast- take the yiew-that if 12 representa-
ives of the men sit down beside 12:Shipping

Magnates,» and they decide the ,wages and
conditiens for- the in,_that; s

“.the! men are concerned, it is possibly. the. |

Ustory of the monhgoose and the snake,' your...
. knbw the .story, Gentlemen- of the Jury. .

That is the opinion of the men, they 1

right or they may be wrong:
. The men in_ the¢ Dublin' Port
‘strike in April last. Benn

s

: ay be

submitted to the reduction in wages, and on
the 27th June Bennett gave a punch to the
fight by the letter you heard yesterday,
the one phrase to which I call your attentioy
is ' Have your protests sent to the different
Government Departments.” Mr. - Larkin's
-comment is—(reads comment). .

Send in* your protest to the Government
Departments, everything is right in Govern-
ment Departments.  Governments never do
wrong.  That letter appeared in the press

s
had in his pocket the letter from his frie ~
Michael Nolan. - He—Larkin—organised fhe 5
Seamen’s Section in Belfast, he knew Nolan.”
He had that letter from Nolan and he saw
that letter from Bennett—" Send in your
protests to the Government Departmerits "'—
and hé was appealed to by Nolan for the
Seamen of Belfast and he only did what was
his duty to do. He set-out the letter from
Nolan merely with a comment, and the only
comment he made is this—** the gentleman
who, it is alleged; actively participated in
the persecution of. these Catholic Seamen
and Firemen is a Mr. J. H. Benneétt,” ~Then
he takes up Bennett's letter and he devotes
thre¢ columns to Bennett's letter, you will
sce it yourself. 1 again ask you if you were
leaders of the Seamen and a threat like that
is put in print, published inthe evening
papers, and at the same “time you have in
your pocket an appeal like that of Nolan's
relating to an incident like that, what would
you do? What would you be bound to'do »
Gentlemen, I will not weary you in detail
with Nolan’s lctter, later when I examine
him I will bring Nolan through all the facts
he makes appealing for Larkin to do some-
thing for them, A .
Gentlemen, the issue will be, do you believe
these honest, decent men, so-far as we know
them, who come from Belfast and say -that
incident did oceut, or do yqu believe Bennett?. /
You saw Bennett, you saw his evasive manner:
in the box ; was it the manner of a- man who
thought he was injured, full-of self-satisfac-.
tion, expressing the attitude of mind which-
showed to you the internal working of the
man’s mind. Did you observe how he
answered ?—always. to the **best of his-
recollection.” I put it to you, gentlemen,
that possibly you will find when you réally
consider and reflect on his- manner in the
box, the way in which he-gave his evidence,

. you will com¢ to this conclusion that he

. picked his steps amongst the

-answered with a studied caytion, he stealthily = -
s?!_{'ting sands. ©

of evasion ; he never hezard of the case of

*“ Reynolds 'v. ‘thé Shipping -Federation.”

No minutes of any meetings that he attended,

no document that he can bring before you

_ as to any meetings, and even Michael Nolan. #

is 1ot ‘a member of the organization in his

* recollection, nothing. that matters to the

lions, you . special jurorsof the City of .control of the Shipping Federation, and for. .

Defendants hé' can. remember anything -

- about it.

_ Gentlemen, it is a simple issue, why will
ou not. believe ‘ficse common men from’ .

,};ulfastl rather than Bennett, these-common’.

men from Belfast will swear to you that-ihe

_incident. happened.  Serjeant Hanna “said

this letfer was" inspired, you will“find it is

.not -inspiréd. Michael Nolan- writes the

letter:in_his own hand.to Mr. Larkin; Larkin '
gets that letter from a man known to him,
and he acts upon’it. 3 ) s ¥

Gentlemen, 'my -case is -fruth’ and fair

- comment,-and I ask you to belicve the men

1 will produce-to you, and if you believe them -,
in -respect of that: one.charge and belicve
that happened, - Serjeant Kanna admitted

“.and even the Plaintiff hims\lf, that if you
* believed that incident occurred, and I know -

. omires of this case: - The real ‘issue

workiman, that, so far as_ .nd one only, will you belicve

~ Larkin:
- petform

you will believe it; that is the ab uio:disee
1 15 @ne, "
Bennett.lor
willi you believe these, men from Bolfast ?
:out to perform’ a duty’ and he has -
ed it . he stood by his mun dnd
stood ‘up agginst that threat of the intro-
duction” of ‘the .Government ‘inte: Labour . -
.disputes, -and _i1s° paraded  to you as @d
American refugee,” and because be i not

£y
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~afraid of cnmmai courts you arc invited to -

___crush him with a_ verdict of (]{lm;l[.'(‘s ashe
fears moncy.~

= Will you do it, Gentlemen of the Jury ?
1 suggest you \\111 not, and the way this
case was. introduced from beginning to_end
“only shows they knew the weakness of their
case. If you, when you believe these men
who came from Belfast and who will tell you
their tale, and 1. know that you men, if,
though yéu arc special jurors, you avill take
this view that if Larkin had not stood by the
men who appéaled to him that he should go
‘into outer darkness where dwells the knave
and coward. .

Michael quln called and sworn.
Mr. Wood ~Where do you live, Mr. Nolan ?
Nolan—13, New Arndrew Street, Belfast.
"~ Wood—Did you write that letter ?
Nolan —-Ys, that is my ictter.
Wood-—Is that the letter complained o[ ?
Nalan—Yes, :
Wood—Who
Nolan—Mr. £
Wood—Mr, Nolan, were you in 1921 a membcr of
thc National Union of Seamen ard Firemen ?
Nolan—Ye¢s, a member from 1917 to -1921.
Wood—When did you leave the Union ?
Nolan—We came over Ist October, 1921 to the
Trish Transport and. Gereral Workers’ Union.
Wooed—How many came over ? L
. Nolan—About 250,
Wood—Are you a dccp \vater seaman ?
Nolan—VYes.-
Wood—’c\'lm! time in '1921 (Eld you arrive in
Belfast ?

. Nolan—I arrived back from Augtralida about the
third week in May.. m
. -Wood—What did you find"in Be.

‘Nolan—I" found Belfast in a' terrible state
-1 found my fellow \\arkmg men hounded away from
thelr shlpﬁ at-the point of the gun: The district
in which I live is called “ Sailor Town,” and we
- were attacked repeatedly from ’21 to '22.

Wood— Do you remember in thc month of June—
Saturday, 11th June, 1921 ?

Nolan—I do well,

Woed—Tell what happened.on that day,
larl) what happened to.yourself.

Nolan-—-On Saturday, 11th June, my lord, there
‘was a mass attack made on Sailor Town, there was
bombs and revolyers and rifles and 1 myself was
wounded: onthe 11th day of June. »

Wood-—How many were killed ?

Nolagn—On' the T1th ?
13th gave a report of 8 killed and 40 wounded.
-1-was one of the 40. .

- Wood—-Between the, date you “returned and the
llth ]\me were there a number of meetings held
"“in St."Mary’s Hall ?

Nolan—=There were,

Wood—Of what were these meeting

Nolan—Composed of the Catholu:
; Cx.ty of Belfast. 2

‘Wood—Were you prescnt at the’ meetmg of -
Monday, 6th June ? -

Nolan—I was.

Wood—You tell my-lord and the Jurv what

happencd at’that meeting. .

1

., you write to ?

]iarﬁcu-

The, newspapers of the

Nolan—There was ‘a xasolut:on passed at that .

meeting that a deputation should be. sent to 13
Queen’s Square’ to request ‘the General Secretary
“to call a protest meeting of ¥l the members of the
Branch -and for the General Prestdent Havedick
Wilson, -to bng\g “the. sca.mEH
* Imperial (m\'(rn i

No}an——]()!m
'Brad}. Hugh "M thnn) Owlzn Shéridan, James
““and Chdrles O'R Willian). Gorman and mysel!

Wood-—Were you a' meimber of it ? ..

- Nolan—Ol¢ yes, my name should be- there too.

\\ ard "

. deputation proceed to Queen's Squiare ?
" Nolan—\We did.

Wood—To Mr. Bennett's Office 2- °, 2

Nolan—VYes !

Wood—Did von and the others (ﬂ\c Oiﬁce “a:,
divided) go into’ the, oyter Oﬁice

Nolan—Yes.

Wood—Would" you tell my lord and the ]nry
what class of a ]mmtmn dludes thg. uutcr oﬁice
from ‘the inncr office ?

Nolan—OUn my oath T believe m\self that;thc
--partition only-goes about 8 or: 9=fce:

- Wood-—Wauld you tell my. lord and the
what occurred Vou went. in ?

case  before the_

Wood--Did yéu and the other members. of : thc 3

Jur): :

Notan—Thoy Brady was tHe. spokesman; -
‘Lord Chief —Was there anybody clsein’
“the office 2 - 7
Nolan=-Yes,  Mr: Bell. Bradv told Benn:tt
about tlle Rcsaluhon about cill.mg a General
- Meeting,

Ay Wood—l)ld he mumon anythmg abg}ut 'Havelock
‘Wilson > < . :

B

Government and Mr. Bennett absolutely refused
to ‘tike any notice.

L.C.J:—Tell us what Mr. Bennett said.

Nolan—Bennett told us to get out of the office
or he would send for the Police, then Bennett left
the outer office and went into the inner office, rang
up the tclephonc. The deputation was then
leaving the office and 1 hcard Bennett distinctly
over the plaonc asking was * that Musgrave Street
Barracks "’ and when we went out the men were in
various goups around the Square.

Wood—About how many ? ‘ .
_ Nolan—About 100, standing in groups waiting
the result of the deputation. g

L.C.].—Say 120. ¥

Nolan—When we were spLakmg to them about
25 cnn;tabular; men came out from the direction
of Prince’s Street and 2 armoured cars from the
direction of the Albert- Memorial and we were cleared
off the Square.

Wood—Any guns on the armoured- cars ?

Nolan—Oh, s, two guns in each turret.

\\oodﬁl'iow long were' the dcputatmn in the
office with ‘Mr. Bennett ?

Nolan—About 10 minutes.

Wood—You arc living in Belfast ?

Nolan—Yes, sir.

Wood—Prior to June 30th, 1923 when did you
last see Mr. Larkin ?

Nolan—11 or 12 years ago.

Wood—Did you, prior to 23rd June, 192') hear

from Mr. Larkin dm.-ctl) or indirectly ?
Nolan—No.
Wood—You wrote the letter ?
Nolan—Yes.

Wood—My lord, it has not been fully rea.d and
1 would like to*read it,

L.C.J..—Certainly.

Wood (commcuciug to read letter)—A Chara,
I think that is the way you pronounce it.

Hanna—The witness will tell you.

Wood—Will he ?

L.C.J.—Go on.

(Mr. Woods proceeds to read letter.)

L.C.J.—Down to armoured, car is the only part
co;ﬂplamed of ?

ood—Yes, my lord. - (Continues to read letter.)
\\ ood—Is what you stated in that letter true ?
Nolan—Yes.

Wood—Never seen Mr. Larkin for 11 years ?

Nolan—11 or 12 years.

Wood-—You gave him a history of what happened?

Nolan—A réview, yes.

Wood—And you called on him fm.' help ?

\olan—\ es, Mr. Larkin was Secretary of the
. & G. W. Union ?

‘“ ood~\\ hat was your wage in 1921 asaseaman?

Nolan—£15 a.month.

‘Wood—What is the wage of a seaman at present ?

Nolan—I bche\'L £9 10s.

‘Cross examined by Serjeant Hanna,

Hanna—Wha‘c day- of the week did you write

., this letter on ?

\'olan-Saturday. i

‘Hanna—In Belfast ?

Nolan—Yes.

* Hanna—On 23rd- June ? -

Nolan—I1 believe it was.

Hanna—Had you been reading anything in the
papers about law between Mr. Larkm and the
Transport Union in Dublin ?

. Nolan—I read sketches in the ’local ‘papers the
same 'as any-other ‘man.

Hanna—Did you know Larkm was suspended as
‘Secretary from the Union:?

Nolan—No, I would not take it he was suspeuded
Everything you read in the papers is not gospel.

- Hanna—Did you'read in the ‘paper that Larkin
had been -suspended from Secretary (ram the 11
June ?

Nolan—Yes~

Hanna—Did )ou heln:vc it.2

Nolan—No."

Hanna—ls that "the reason xou Wrote to “Mr.

. Larkin? ", 3

. Nolan:
only ‘that he did not, take action in_ time. i
.-, Hamna-—Is your complamt that Fu§gm was not
dulng ‘what you wanted 2 :
‘Nolan—He did not diurry up.
Hann"-w

: 1t or, did vq;x cbpv xt

; \h;\ olax(vr

-~ Nolan—It ‘is not the reason.

‘Hanna—Your' lettcr is an attack ‘on the Seamen s
Union, on Bennett ?- :

Nolan—My - letter is a review. : .

Hanna-Is"it an attack -on Bennett: and the
Seamen's’ Union ?

‘Nolan—"1 do net see where the truth is in attack.”

* Hanna—Is it a compliment ? .-

Nolan—1t is the truth. Ty ;

Hanna—\;\ as the rcst of )our lett.er an.attack on-

madc no 1ttack on Mr Foran. I assh

)ou

Han.na—& ou" made ‘a geomplaint agamst Mr
I‘nran was; not that playing into Larkin’s hands ? -
an—I made 1o ,complaint against Mr. Foran |

ou’ were giving: lumia stick to- beat

Nolan—-l WS . gn'mg La.rhn the truth.

: nna-—yYou wrm t‘ms 1etter.§
Nolan-—¥es.: W
Huna—“he}c is the  en dope 2
(Nc& furthcoming) 3
Haftna—Do you ‘know. ‘!wm

‘theré is ngt an am-r:mon in lt ? Ihd

Sy

to end
ydu. wme

Nolan—I copied it ffom nothing. It came from
my own brain, it is truth.

Hanna—Is it an invention of your own brain
or the truth?

Nolan—Truth.

Hanna—Do yeou want the Jury to believe you
are a man of reputable character- who would not
do anything ?

Nolan—I do.

Hanna—Were you bound over by the Magist:a.tes
in Belfast for beating your wife ?

Nolan—In what year ?

Hanna—Take any year. ' §
Nolan—I | was atNone time. Tt was only a
domestic q :
Ha,nna—-bgfé yourare stlll under Bail ? TRUECR
‘Nolan—Nw,—thank :

Hanna—Were you ‘in recent tmuble for mter-
fering with -another man’s wife ?
Nolan—No, I swear it. b
. Hanna—Were you beaten by another man ?
Nolan—No.
Hannag—Within the last two months ?
Nolan—No.
Hanna—Do you know what T am refemng to?
Nolan—I do not.
Hanna—What do you think T am referring to ?
Nolan—I would like you to tell me.

month ?

]

Hanna—Any marks on_ your face within la.stg

Nolan—No. ¥ N

Hanna—Within the last two months\_\_)\’

Nolan—No.

Hanna—Were you,| in hospltal ?

Nolan—Yes.

Hanna—What for ?

Nolan—Iaccidently broke my arm’in the month
of August.

. Hanna—Do ydu swear on your oath there was
no transaction between you and another man ?

Nolan—I swear on my oath before God, there
was not. - I hive 8ot a wife of my own and that
i$ enough.

Hanua—“ hen did you leave the Seamens

Union ?

Nolan—“In 1921. }

Hanna—Have you beéen to sea since 1921)
Nolan—No, not since I was shot. -
Hanna—What have you been doing ?
Nolan—Doing nothing.

Hanna—And you logk well on it ?
Nolan—-Oh, yes.

Hanna—Are, /you an agent of ‘Larkin’ .or, t.he

Transport Union ?

Nolan—No.

Hanna—Not domg anythmg .since 1921 ?
Nolan—No. .

Hanna—Are you the man who et the Orange

Lily to show your contempt for the Orangemen ?
Nolan—Not - at all. I would want a doctor’s

Certificate for . that, Mr.. Hanna.

Hanna—What did you eat ?
Notan—It takes me "all’ my ume to get my
bread. = -

Hanna—But did yoh eat ‘an Orange Lxly ?
Nolari—Ah, do youtake me for an ass, Mr.Hanna ? ¥
Hanna—Are you a.character in Sailor Town ?
Nolan—No. y
Hanna—But did ydu e.at an Orange Lx]y 7
Nolan—No. Grange Llllxes den’t ™ grow' in

Sailor Town.
Hanna—This partition you were talkmg abont.

‘are you quite sure that it goes to the top ?
Nolan—No. ' £

Hanna—You hea.rd Mr. Bennett on the phon

saying *‘ is_thag Musgrave Street Banacks :
. Nolan—Yes. 4
Hanna—You went .out into the Square and the

Police were there ? ;
Nolan—Awfew xmnura after.

Hanna:*—Hgw many ‘minutes would it take to
get_from ! Musgrave Street to Queens Square ?

Nolan—4. or- 5 minuteés.

. L.C.J.—How far is it.in yards? - = . '

Nolan Two or three hu_ndred yards.
 Hanna—Queen’s

Memorial: Clock ? °
Nolan—Yes. 4
Hanna-—How long were -you away from Belfast

-when you came back-in 1921 ?

Nolan—TI left' Belfast after Arinistice Day. 1918:
Hanna—When you came-back in 1921 did you
pay”up your dues to the Seamen’s Union ?
Nolan=I paid my dues up in Alexandria in
meDo you say you paid up your

ior three years 2.

Nolan—I {paid my 'arrears. - - 4

Hanna Where did you last pay dues:? -

-Nolap—In Alexandria. there is an, agent tberc
anna—What is his ‘name ?

Nolan—1I could ‘not tell you’ that. -.
Hanna—Have you got ym:r books 2 :
Nolan—When we came over:in a body we threw

our books jnto the ‘waste, paper.,

Hanna—Have you got your d.tacharge book 2
Nolan—No, not with me.: -

-Hanna—1s it a fact. that you~ c:muut get work-

L 4

ears

i wnthout it. i
: N

olan—No, not déep. wata' work. s
Hanna—You can write m “Irish 2 &
Nolan—\'m. 1 can talk ‘Trish. a little. '

a-—You wrote this out from a copy. [
Nolan—No, there was no

o)
» Hanna—Do yoi say to the. ]m;y ‘that’ you wxou _’

‘t:lut out' mthout anybody’s
having a copy ?
Nolln—lmmthatont. .

‘_ Jobeconmudmowunmej

hDﬂ!’l

r
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(Continuerd gluln (ulunm 3. page 3)
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TUFESDAY, 19th FEBRUARY 1924

ms Mary, Murphy- called” and sworn. Examined
< “by’ Mr. Larkin,
‘Larkin - You are the widow of Jares Marphy
who was'a member of the Transport Unlon =

Mrs. Murphy—Yes, sir.

Larkin - You made application (ur mortality
benefit ?

Mrs. \Iurpll)—-—\ ¢s, sir

Larkin You were refused by, the Officers ?

Mrs. \lurph\'——\cq sir,

Larkin- When your husband died he was alleged

“ to have been in arlears in'the Union to the amount
of 10,7, marked in.red ?
Mrs. \Iurph\ —Ycs.
Larkin--Did you go to the office again on my
"instructions and complain to the Officers that you
were entitied to the money, and that your deceased
husband was overpaid in Umon at time of death 2

Mrs. Murphy-—Yes, sir.
Larkin- -1 told you you were entitled to .Death
Benefit ?

Ars. Murphy —Yes, sir.

_Larkin —They refused to pay you ?

Mrs. Murphy —Yes.

Serjeant Hanna—This document is lrrelu.mt

Mr. Larkin— I insist on them going in, I want them
marked as evidence.

Serjeant Hanna—TI uhjcct my lord.

,Larkin-—T ask for the Finance Rulings Book to
he put in and marked. -
= Master of the Rolls-—No Finanee Book except
the one before us.

- ' Larkin—I ask for it to “be put in now for {he
years 1918-23.°

* Master .of the Rolly— H’nc yau any ohjection
:to that' going in B

S(l‘icnnt Hanna—My lord, we have ‘nothing to
conceal,

- Larkin—1I desire to put i

" for 9th l-‘ei;ruary, 1914,

Hanna—My lord, T nbjcct
- Magster of the Rolls~You will net put it in, it is
nor idence.

Larkm—-l must take your refusal, my lord
but I object. 'Thié paper is alleged 16 he the omcnal
orgah of the Union.

Larkin—1 ask for the Annual Réturns to be put .
in of the Umou, 1917 /23, which I believe are in
_your possession..

. Master of the Rol]xﬁl)o you mean the returns
“made: to:the Rc;hf‘ﬁr ? 5

Larkin—Yes, my lord. -

Master. of the Rolls—The returns in this book
commence. with  the 31st: December, 1912, I
suppoge the whole of that bopk niight go in ?

Larkin--Yes, my lord There is further returns,

- my lord.
“Hanna*—There is a gap in. that book, my lord.
Master of the Rolls—Wait a. mament. -
ltcturm for 31st Dec., 2; 3lstiDcc., 1913.
No feturnd for the ; i
Returns for 3l1st 18, 1010,
1620, 1921, 19! (3
- ‘Larkin"I -would' call your attenti ‘the fact
that in'1917, in the Statement-of. Asseis, no mention
of any property of the Union appears, and in the
1918, 1919, 1920, 1921, 1922 there is no statement,
allhough bound by the Treasury to put in a detailed
statement of -all’ expense,r. .in".reference to poHtlcal &
expenditure.

Master of the Rnlls——l think that.is admitted.

Larkin- -1 “would . call your ‘attention to the
** Voice -of Labour.” - %

- Master of the Rol!\»~I c—nmot heu the “ &mce
of Labour:’’ ..«

Larkin-—You wrll listen now to the voice “of”
organized labour. -

Master-of the: Rol
A Lhnkih I think ey

“* Veice of Labour ** -
1

1 rcmse to take it o 3
ybody should re!use to 1 k

Mr. Larkin -calls for” Senator M‘r‘chael Dnﬂy
;Not in . Court.

Mr.. Larkm calls for M. Michael Rynn. Not
m Court,

* Mr. Larkin calls for John Hlll Not in- Court.

Master of the Rolls—Have you served Subpaenas .
Jon ‘these men ?

Larkin—I have seen them iﬂ Court on dlﬂerent
occasions.

Larkin—I am in(ormed Dlmy was in Court a
few mimites- ago, ean I csll Mm when he -comes
into Court again 2 « .

Master of the Rolls—No. *

‘Larkin—T ask to be put in and .called: for- the -
Pannpnhip Deed. between Thomas: Foran and
Jamos 0’Neill, now: in° Mountjoy gaol. ;

* Hdnna-——We ‘have:no such'document. i

Larkin—F will have it here this :!temoon ‘T have
sent for it to the Solicitor.

Master’ of the/Re lls=If it lp here in tlmo you. -
an tender it.

. Larkin—1 "will tender it" wlth your permission
- Master..of ‘the Rolls—Go on.

-1 want two afidavits put in, one sworn by John

BOh;n and the other by John Davis, on 2sm Jnna, =

M of ",Rnl.ls—.Shon"li.mm.:mm;-.t
”-lﬁ’ﬂ —These-are affidav orti on bqhalf of
Mr. Larkin. §ir, Bohan is a ﬁvmg 3
be Prnduccd

—~——._.__‘; R
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Master of the Rolls
evidence,
Larkln

These adidavits are not in

You refuse them, I tender them.

John ‘Bohan, T.C., called and sworn.

Larkin—You are Secretary of No.

Thomas Street 2 ¥ % Thenih.

Bohan--Yes.

* Larkin—Did you sign an application for regis-
tration of .the Rules ? Alleged to be the Rules,
on 2nd June, 1923 ?

Bohan—TI do not follow vour question. .

Larkin—Did you sign a document applying for
registration ?

Bohan—1 signed a form,

Larkin—Would it be on the 1st June, 1923 ?

Bohan—About that date.

Larkin—Where did you sign that document ?

Bohan—TIn Thomas . Street.

Larkin —Were you instructed by the members

of your branch eithér by meeting or by resolution
of ballot vote to sign such ?
Bohan<-No.

Larkin—Any meeting called of No. 3 Branch i 7

1923 to revise the Rules

Bohan-=No.

Larkin— You did not get instructions to sign these
Rules ?

Bohan—No.

Larkin —Were you requesled to slgn them ?

Bohan—VYes.

. Larkin—Who requested you to slgn those Rules ?

Bohan—An Excentive Officer— Thomas
Kenmedy,

Larkin—You helieved he was a member of the
Executive ?

Bohah—Yes.

LarKin—Is this the Minute Book .of No 3 ?

Johan—1 do not know.

Larkin—Look at it down at the bottom ol the

page. Did -he, Kennedy, make. a request that the

*Committee should sign a Book of Rules alleged to

be the Revised Rules of the Union ?
Bnh'm—\o
Larkin—What did he do? Did he take any
Bohan—XNo, he conversed with a man called
Hapratty then in the chair and asked. for a letter
4 be read..
- Larkin—Was the letter read ?
Bohan=1 believe it was.
Master of the Rolls—Read the: minute.

Lark-m—l{ou many present at the meeting 7
Bohan—1I “think there ‘was a full attendance,
Larkin—Were there ten there ?

Bohan—Yes.

Larkin—How many mernbers or financial standing

in June last year ?

Bohan—Approximately about 6;000.

Larkin—Any instructions given to that Committee
by the 6,000 members ?

Bohan—l may state from memory T believe the
previous year there was an Advisory Committee
‘to-be forimed to preparc Kules and have them

re-drafted, and your humble servant was nppmnto(l

by the Branch N

Larkin—There was a meeting called for Sunday, 3rd
June, for the purpose of dealing with the maiter of the
rules and other matters in the Clympia Theatre ?

Bohan—1I would not say which Sunday, “humr
the 3rd or 10th. =

Larkin—There was an intention of holding a
meeting to discuss: Tules and submit revised rules,
here in this.minute, a report of the General Meeting
-of the -Branch members, June 10th, '1923. *

Hanna—The Rules, my lord,
on the.2nd June. -

Larkin—I will show how the Ru‘les were rogistered

Master of the Rolls“«—What is the minute.?

Larkin—Ih the form of a repoﬂ rny lordr

(Minute or repdrt read) *

Hanm—()ut of which ther aru threc slander

®_actions arising.! - : o

_Larkin—Which will be tried by a Jm

“Larkin—Mr. Bohan, on the Friday;
.the 2nd. Juna did Mr, Kennedy gome t
of No. 3 Branch 2

Bohan—Yes.
- Larkin—Who was present on thzt occaxion as hr
as you recollect ?

Bohan—When he.éntered thL ufﬁu there. mlght

svious to
ll_ie office

be others there, but I know I _was there, myself.:

Larkin—Did Kennedy speak “to you ?

Bohat—Kennedy spoke. to- 'me with nfcrcnu. 5

to the signing of a certain document. £
‘Larkin—What was -the document ?

Bohan—Something in connection with the Rules.” 7

" “Larkin—Did he tell you: It wns necessary to slgn

this. document ? :
Bohdn—He. asked for.a mdn named Hnnrn‘F

l.arkin—md he ask you to’ slgn thesa sugusted

Rules 2

Bonand beliove Be aff,

Larkin—Did you' agree to’ sxgn them ?

" Bohan—Well; 1 mentioned a, certain thing.
Larkin—Tell the Court what it was,
*Bohan--—That, it should go beéfore the membcrs

!er approval; and I.was mld it vms only a matur

The witness read the minute of meeting of 31st
May. A

were rcmstertd <. of my nb”m,.

Imh.\n “Yes.

Larkin—DIid you ask him why he “was getting
this document signed ?

Bohan—Well, now, I cnul«l not swear that, but
I know ‘when it was signed 4here was_ another
document hie_had not in his possession and he
phc:ned to theoffice for it ; it was a green document.
Mr. O'Keily brought it. He brought it over at
it quarter past nine on Friday, 1st June.

Larkin—Did O'Kelly say there was exira urgency
about the question of signing these ? -

Bohan—Yes, that he bad to- get same by hook
or by crook. -

Larkin —More by crook.

Larkin—-Did you sign that document ?

Bohan—1[ did. \\

Larkin—D; mbelleva they were instructed by
the membefs to revise’' the Rules for 1923 2 :

Bohan—®n—-my mt\ I believe. for years past

. everything had been done by means of camouflage.

Larkin-—Council elected by" ballot vote to your.
branch ?

Bohan-=XNo.

Larkin Was Kannedy actlng as Secmary m

Buhdn-VHr. was.
Larkin—For a long time ?

Bohan—During the time I was a guest of His

Majesty,

Larkin—Kennedy was acting as an official of
No. 3 Branch ? :

Bohan—Yes. - 5 =

Larkin—Getting paid ?

Bohan—Yes. -

Larkin—He was also on the E.C.?

Bohan—Yes, I understood so.

Larkin—Did you know he was ?

Bohan—Yes, he led me to believe he was,

Larkin—Was Kennedy also getting' paid out of
the National Insurance to your knowledge ?

Bohan--He may have paid himself from them.

Larkin—Did you know he sent in a bill to. the
Branch which was reduced because he was getting
paid from Insurance and Branch'?

Larkin—Do you know ll !hat. is Kennedy s
handwriting ?
© Bohan--It is.

Larklm~5ent 1o you whlle youiwere a guest of
His Majesty ?

Master of the Rul!\"ahrm me that rlncumcnt

Larkin -1 was_ going to put it in, my lord.

Harina—-1 object, this document might e relevant
in the slander action,

Master  of the Rﬂ”\—“l’!le‘
[incumcnt ?

“Larkin— Thaf go! a copy of it in discovery,
my lord. .

Master -of the Rohs —Do you object ?

Hanna—I object to 1t. °

You seen this

\>V

Larkin—Al" right, my,lord, I onJy wanted to shnw ?

that ‘this' man was an E.C. -Official:
Larkin—Kennedy- told you to sign those Hules,
and you agreed ?
Bohan —Yes.

Ser,\ant Hanna cross-axzminln

Hannd—You have heen a mcmbrr ul Hu (‘nmn :

{or many \ears:
Bohin 0 v
Hanna— I(m mam years?
Bohan—Since fnrmatmr \

Hanna—And (m lnng have \nu I)cr'n .Branch
Aecretary of Ni
" Bohan—Wall since
“Hanna—The Branch: relies upon vou ? -
Bohan—T cannot say’ how much they relieg
upon ‘me, but I L'\rnul out my dutlcs to the b«.s

to a

sign - your namc
statement. tlmt was not true ? i

Bohan—I do not know what you niqan

 Hanna—It is a very. simple question; would
you- slgn your name té a statement that was nol
true ?

_ Bohant-W hat is a statement ? 2

, Hanna—Would you VOur name ‘toa dr)cumcnt
that was not true ?
- _Bohan—Aré_you. referring: to° thc documurt for
‘e Registrar 7° 1 f.lgned that. - .

Hanna—Is. that'the only, dotumnnt you signed
that was’'not trie ? " . °

Bohan—1. could not say. -1 may “have snguctl
documents- believing: them to be true.

Hanna—It. depends upon the dm.urnent 2

"Bohan—-I- could not say.~.

Hanna—If .you put your name. to . document

‘_ lhat wassnot true that \\ou]d be, msumg a Hc

—Yes.

Hanna—\ ou would not (io that 2

* Bohan- believe not.

Hanua—Look at that document therc dated thc
'%lst and tell is that your Signature ?

Bohain—THat is my ' sighature.

Hanna —Show it back to me for a moment

‘Master of ‘the Rnl!s~"l'ell me-.the: datc the
document: is. - -

Hannm—Certlﬁcafc 0( Mr. Bohim dated the ‘-llst
May, 1923 which reads as follows - * This is to.
certify that the above .Brnnch No.'3 of the Union -
adopted the draft of proposéd new n.\]e< —Sngned 4
l Bohan, Branch Secretary.”

Hanua-—l will ‘. o ‘thdt. m.irkcd
Bchan——Lct e, read it again, Serjeant Hatna.

i § uant to e,x% in. This'had to.be done, at least
Lwe we .

old

the gentleman who attended thére .
t t.and who

ot ‘the statement on that

',,»scms; n. to. ba,ve fhc tttef wb!ch -nzs seﬂt from

.

the' Branch bccnm.c_,\o. A

I
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in order o pit the tlting i order,

vigned

Head Othice
and it was then |

flanna. Ts s the creufar letter of the 98h Mat -

Bohan- (Reads cicular That = b

Larkin Re2ad it out.

Hanna S will<vead -

Pohan/ Lo think 1 ocan de that mneh Areads
cireular letter .

Hanng- - How  may copies ol ghie Riles \hnl

I cauld not tell vou

H The Branch Committee
these Rules, how is it dritwn 7 Are there represen-
tatives from sections of the DBranches?

Bohaw—=Different sdctions g
CHanna [ suppose there wonkd be ten or dozen
sections ? ;i y . .

Bohan . More.

Hanna—Did you receive a copy of that letter
2nd December, 1021 7 .

© . Bohan-—\What date ?

Hanna——TLook at_that.

Rohan-*No, never got that letter.
~Hanna Where were vou then ?

Bohan b was away then, ¥

Hanna - Who was acting in your place ?
in - Copneillor Thomas Kennedy.
Hanna —When didl you' return to your dutiestas
v of No. 3 Branch ?
After Xmas, 1921, 1T believe.
When vou came Tack after Xmas, 1921,
At become aware <that this document had
veda? ¢
I wonld not swear it.

Hanna — When “did you first become aware that
they were going to change the Rule

Bohan -\When 1 got a cireular letter in 22
asking branches to appoint o’ representafive for
the Advisory Committee  to redraft, the Rules:

Hanna You could not tell ws the date ?

. Bohan - It might have been October, as fat as
I know.:

Master of the Rolls—That- letter asked your
Branch to appeint someone to act on: the \rl\l\Sr\

. Committee ?

Bohan—I am not sure of lho plrlunlur month,
sbut 1 would say. it was October, "2

Hanna -1 wang yon to come 10 a mom lmpurt.\nl

" matter. After October, 1922, and between that
and April, 1923, did you becoie aware of a proposi-
tion to l\()lll K l)ck'g'\u Canference. with refegence
‘to the new Rules ads cireular letter dated 6th-
April,. '23). In Na. 8 Branch: do-vou remember
that prupthlﬁl(:ll coming forwamd ?

Bohan— ! belidve 1 saw the documeént.

' .Hanna—No. 3 entitled to Send delegates to
theConference. - Now at the Coaferénce we find
Cthat the delegates who attended on behalf of your
Bnmch were (reads ‘names)..- 1s- that right ?

Bohan—Yes,

Hanna-—That I!L]Lga(c Conference “was hd(l on
Uu, .date -mentioned 4(11 and 25th \])nl ? .

* Bohan—1 ‘could: not Say about' the 25th, I went® -
lh(‘ first day and émme away after dinner. |

‘Hanna ~-l)ul vou bu_()me aware of lhl\ 7° (Reads
rcsolutmn)

Bohan—<=No, 1 I)ulu\ it- way all wrong, and l

* believe it il v
+ Hanna D\d you hu.nme aware lfmt a resolution *

- M assed . . 1 3 3

iuhdn—\c, 1 was 16t prvs(nt §

+* Master of the Rolls— ¥ ou :hslem e ~pnn~.1hlht\

) for the résolntion’? ..

(Hanna reads minutes.)-

Ifanna— \\hlt)mm on had Brady in your Unjon ?

Bohan-—An nulumr\ 1numhe and - sometimes
chairman. | > g

Hanna—Brady was dmmmn 1

‘Bohans—He. was, E .

Master of the Rolls—Was Bm(l\ at: th.lt Meeting 2

Bohan-—I was with him in the carly part of. t.l'u‘
day but not again. I was nr,t'hn@gm _the second -
day. e V ' :

Hanpa—Now, it was in pursuance ‘of the tésolu-

" tion of the Conférence that you received the
circular letter of the 9th '.\lay ? PRMRTNSE L T )

Bohan-—1 could not . 4

* Hanna—Of course \ou can.

Hanna—I want to ask you about’ .mutlnr ‘matter.
*Did vou ever prtntu~[ agdinst the funds of the U ion
Dbeing’ used for: Labour representation 2 -

Bohan—It would not h.L\L paid me: .

Hanna—You dul not.? Lo I
* Bohan—TI did: . L “

Hanna—When' did you ? A

L‘uoha.n—\\ ithout effect: -

. Hanna—Did you object to th¢ funds of the
Union being* p.n:l for .an .organized .abnllr
representatives?

Bohan—I 'did not -but. 1 warted the funds
segregated: ffom all otliers. R

Hanna—Did. you ever cbjcct tu n ? .

Bohan—1 alyays did.
Master of the J(rvlls—

The Tnembers did at mu.ungs, ‘my lord.
Hanna— Anéwer “his lordship’s question.
“Bohan—I was a; paid official. - -

ii.mna«-\\ould you be offended - |I L \u"gm ul ;

; Bulmn ~=No one ever  domincered me, neilh'er.
_could you, you' trjed ‘one time. 3
‘Hanna=1! do not think so."
‘Bohan—] withdraw that, L
I!qmn——l ‘accept. the mthdm\m:
i*Hanna—You ' knew money’ ,was bcmg :pmt as
belng ‘deposed to by Mr. !‘omﬂw

S \"",' :

that considers

B/:d vou éver mahc any 3
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Fuervane kuew ity
Nonr sole anxiety \(.u to get the money
éul for political purposes from the other ?
S AV sole an<icty was to sée things donc
as theyv nnght been, Tt I was |1r(\~|||u]
from  that
Hanna At
£l \uguevs}‘iun 15 made to
Behan 1 have not g
Brawn, K.C.—\ useful: dele
[anna -~ That is all I"have to ask yvou.
Larkin (Handing circular letter {0 Mr. Bohan)
Is this an official document from Head Office ?
Johan —Yes, .
Larkin - You see where it,sets out about irregular

have

vou aware that in the 1923 Rules

o

. payments according: to Head Omce Kennedy came in When he came in he askeqd
Bohan-—Yes. . the Secretary was the chiairman knocking about
Vaster of the Rolls=Give me the date @ perhaps iHanratty) as there is some rules to be signed,

vou had better show it to-me. He turned rourid to me and said are you notf
Larkin—Yes, my lord (hands up the dotument). Vice-Chairman of the Branch ?. Isaid,no, never *
Master of the IRolls—This seems to be something Vice-Cla‘rman, and he said if .ou even 1éted as ¢

like thie revision of an account of this Branch No. 3 chairman for the Branch Committee MLetmgg you

in which certain irregolorities in the kuping wof - will do to sign those Rales. . And it was on'a °

acconnts were pointed out by the E.C., ete. Pook that we signed our names and during the time °
Larkin® I want you to look at the lourth page. Ave were slgmng ‘he discovered that he had fnrgotten "
Master of the Rolls -Something  about War some document and there was a telephone in the

('hpq-(.\lan-r of the Rolls reads circular).  What Branch Office and -he telephoned to a Mr. Kell

i= the date ? . to bring this document to be “signed also. sl
Bohan  No date, there was a covering letter Mr. Kelly came up on a bicycle with the form and,

witl of course, the form was slgned also,

Larkm-—You spent money for election purposes Larkin—Do you’ recognlse Mr. Kelly ? ¢
and they objected ; this money should have been Davis—Yes:

passed into the General “Fund and spent out of the Larkin —Did you get any instructions from the

General . Fund for eEectlon purposes ? Branch Committee or from the members of the
Bohan— Yes Branch to sign that document ? y
Larkin - Did they also call your attention to the Davis—No, sir.

fact that Thomas Kennedy had been guilty or Larkin—Did Kennedy state it was an urgent °

taking £57 ? matter and wanted dealing with immediately ? .
Master of the Rolls  Is there anvthing about Davis—He made a Statement that -the names

that-in this d_(-cupu-nl > had to be got again morning. ' -

* Larkin -~ There is, my lord. ) Larkin—Did you ask him any question for the
Master-of the Rolls—Show it to me. urgent need for the signing of these documents ?
Larkin On the back page, my lord. Davis—-No. He stated he had to get some more

+ Master ulm that is a tot of several signaturcs. s

weekly sums/ elexen\ weekly  sums Larkin—Did you know was S
Larkin O’Brien—General Treasurer at the Union at that !!lxme P Saten ety 3L

2ln:f;? ' : . Davis—Yes. ¢ %

ohan - [URR H TN f Larkin-—Di a <
Larkin- Was Kennédy ever called on to account Secrstary ? ke he P BiEme. B lhe
im‘E these sums # Was he prosecuted ? Davis—No.
*ghan—No. Larkin'- Did he mentio
Larkin~Had Kennedy any authority to take with any of the Officers ?n A consu](ed
money out of the Branch funds at lhat time ? Davis - He stated he came from the Head Office.”
Hanna—-1 object. Master of the Rolls—Do yvou want to ask any
Larkin'- You told' me you remember the circular uestions, Serjeant Harina ? !
letter of 6th April, 1923, re Delegate "Conference Hanna - .\'0 my lord. %
for the members of the Umon. Do you know of any s =

rules in the Rules of 1918 that gave power to any John O’Neill, Secretary No. 1, called and sworn.

General Officers to call a Delegate - Conference ? Larkin—Did you sign application for registration” -

5% Bohan=~No:* o(; Amended Rules for the Transport Union ?
Larkin—Did you eleet your Delegales by Branch O'Neill—I did.

Committee ? How many ? Larkin—By whom. were you instructed fo slgn

Bohan-—Seven. such application.?
Larkin— How many on Committee ? O'Neill—Message came from Head Office.
Bohan— Ten or twelves- Larkin—Who was the messenger ? N
__ Larkin—So ten men elected seven men, amongst O'Néill—Michacl McCarthy.
uw’ paid officials. Listen to this. (Rcads Larkin—Did he give you any information as '°
a ) Mvgﬁ\ngsll m:t were held ? :
as Thumas Kennady an employee of - "Neill—No,

M o7 ployosnL Larkin—Did McCarthy te t\lHu)u to sign the Rules?
Boha ¢ was O'Neill--He asked’ me to sign thc chmsmon
Larki Were you el,ecled by ballot vote ? for registration of the Rules.

Bohan=No.* Larkin—Did you read the documem What *
Larkin-—Any - opposition ? - did it 'say ? R

..Bohan—Maybe next. time, O'Neill-1 could nottell you. ]
Larkin—Did you leave the Gonferefice for ay .  Larkin—Did it say that instructions had been>

reason ? - given for the registration of New Rules ?

. Bohan—1 (Ii(l I left thc Confereiice “because O'Neill—Something to that effect. :

i’ did not agree With the procedure. L"kin—wﬂ'ﬁ you at ﬂle"DﬂleB‘N Con““n“?
Master of ‘the. Rolls—The ordinary ' conclusion Veilf—Yes.

T would come 1o \muld be thh you kft it fnr 2 kin—How manv are ‘m "‘e B“nch cum--

difiner. . 5 . ttees 2.

,Larkin--You lel;,,beeause? Ly / “O'Nelll— 1 coild not say—between 23 and 30~
Bohan-—Sonrething was done which was 1rugu|‘|r' Did you 'summon .meeting to dllelﬂ(‘
Lurkln~-None of ynur Branch memh&rs elected . —T€ 1 of Rules? -~ + - R

7T R, 3 QN' eill—Yes. § y
Bohan-Nd,: we d’;:cted oursL, es. m—Who attended : “from Held Oﬂlcl?
Larkin—In fact all thie delegates whe were there - "Neill—The: President. -

“alected themselves 2. And also Prosldant of Branch ?
Bohan-—As-far as.1 know, —Yes:

Hanna—I want to ask Mr. -Bohan a. queshon  Larkin—Any’ referénce made to 3 man’ named.
- ta, clear this matter up. You/do not chargc ** Larkin I coming back from Am’"“’
Mr. Kennedy with misappropriation of £57 6s: 6d. ? . O'Neill-None awhatever. ,
‘Bohan—I do not charge anyone. Larkin—How" many- members in No: 1 Branch?
4y Hanna—1Is this the fact, he was paid this money, "O'Neill—12 or .13,000. 5
by the Branch funds for work done for the Branch, Lukln—Wh:l was the -reason for: not clllln the:
and the Head Office objectéd to.him being paid members . together #  » ~/’

. by the Branch as well as being paid by Head Office ? O’Neill—Well; T'do not know what was the réason,
Bohar—Hé was enc ofy the Head- Otﬁce peoplc the. matfer was before the Branch mmittee and

himsgelf. ; o & " - the Branch Committee gave no i ctions for. the

- John Davh uallod hy llf _Larkin and sworn._
.- Larkin- Are you 2 member ,:l No. 3 Brlneh 2.
Davis—Yes, sir,~
. Larkin=Did you slgﬁ a documsm
" to, on 31st-May 2 prmtmd
A:tm—-\ es. » ¥
Larkin--Who requested you fo llgn that dqeumenl?
{‘):;kx;r -Thomas Kenned
n—Can you tell his Iordnlﬂp how it came {0
pass that you slgned thm Rulu. Tell him n° your
. own ‘words. S = e
7 - Davis—What led up to the Slgnln‘; o{ the Rules -
There was a meéting.on .the Thutsday precedmg' i}
\the Friday, a ‘Branch Committee Meetin; ¢
which housé they ‘co get to hold a
“Meeting of the members) of the Branch, = Of

e

- oand

.members to be ¢alled together/ g

] bo,

-March 8, 1924

————

Mr. Kennedy was there that night and he u,\t‘]
lic could procure the ()l\mpla Theatre, and xt‘““
agreced that Mre. Kennedy should go the next dat
ind sce if the Olympia Theatre umll] be haq fa\
this mecting. By arrangement myself and one bt
two u!h(-h were to meet Kennedy on Frida
(:\‘l‘llil!L! in the Transport Union l:LI“ l'hom.1‘g
Street, t9 se¢ if he could procure the lhcntn- for
the meeting on Sanday. [ left work, went homr
went back to the Hall. T went into thg
Scerctary’s room.” The Secretary was at the degk .+
(Mr. Bohan).. When I came into the room Mr.
Bohan said he had got a "phone message that the
Ohmpm heatre was, got for the meeting. I said
that is good, lt will save me from \\amng

or

- Larkin—Did No. 1 Branch send d .’r
.O'Neill-4 : believe. they, did. " : e
Larkin—What ‘were the amend , you are
ecretary

O’ Neill—Amenidments in ref ¢ to 'men “h"'.

got too: old for .work. - -
Ll:.tuhna‘hw“ many in luneh commhm wlaal ;

O'Yedl——Well g‘mppose 20.0r 30. ]
b This s also the Meeting wmn elocb‘;
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.
(')'\'(.i!l-lf:n'c “.‘uu got. the minutes of that
meeting ? ‘
Larkin— Where can they be found ?
('Neill—In—the Hall, possibly.
Larkin—Who elected Spaln ?
(rNeill—The ~Fuarniture Section:
Larkin—There was a meeiing of lhe Firniture
Section ?
('Neill—1 believe so.

. Larkin--'l‘homas Butler:; who elected him ?
('Neill—The Daockers, as far as I know.
Larkin—Do you know -of any election of Patrick
Byrne, Coal Section, at any time from 1909 ?

O \ult—-l’.\u\:d\ Byrne, a membéer of Union
previous to 1009, he was a iffember of the Nationa)
L Union of Dock Labourers, — one of the

! memlmr of the Transport Unl‘on ?

“: the Officers? . -

Officers of the Union ? .

oldest membets.

Larkin—I am not asking you that.

O'Neill-—As far as T know he was clected by
Tedcastle’s men.

Larkil

()’ Neill—Ouite’a number.

Larkin—How many members work in Tedcastle's 2

O'Neill—I could not tell vou. -

Larkin—Would there be a hundred ?

O'Neill—Yes. !

Larkin—Can you praduce a document or minute
were any of those so-called dalegates elected by the
members of the Union ?

. (_)\c|114Thc\' nuht have been.

John Doyle called ‘and sworn.

Larkin—Mr. Doyle, you are a membgr of No. 1
Branch ?

Doyle—Yes. &

Larkin—Have you been a mrmber since the
Iormatlon of the Union ?

* Doyle—Since 1911..

Larkin—What section do you belong to 2.

Doyle—City: of Dublin Dgckers’ Section.

Larkin—Do you evér remember a meeting being
called in 1923 to: revlse rules of the Union ?

Doyle—No.

Larkin—Do you nver remember a meeting bei ‘
called to elect delegates to Delegate Confepence ? -

Doyle—No. '

‘Larkin—Do you know what delegate representative
was elected to represent the Dockers? .

Du\lc—\o. Never hmrtl of anyone representing
the Dock:

Larkin-—l)ld you ever make a protest against the
- enforcement of a levy called the 6d. levy or politica'
Jevy in the Union ? :

Doyle—I1 did. 5

‘Larkin—Did you ever make a protest ahout
memlmrs being- deprived mortality benefit ?

l)ovlc——\ s, but L was_ always hounded down.

Larkin—Mr. Doyle, you worked for' years in
“ Ross and Walpole’s and you found yourself dismissed?

Master. of- the. Rolls ‘objects. -

Larkin=—My lord, I want to show that this man
was ‘vlctimlzed because he. prntested ‘against these
Rules.

Mury Kennedy cnlled an(! sworn.
Larkin—Mrs, Kennedy, was your

Kennedy—Yes.. -* ]
Larkin—You brought  his cards 3

. Mrs: Kennedy Yo © -

Larkin—They refused you - benefit 2- o

Mrs. i\u{ue(l\-- Told me ‘they could do nothmu
. for me,

La,rldn They wrote vou a’letier stalmg you were
not entitied to any money under’ the Rules ?

Mrs. Kennedy-—Yes.

. Larkin —-You came to me at a Iater stage and 1
toid you that you were enmle:l to Mortality :Benem

“Mrs. Kennedy = -Y

\L\ﬂ(rnf the l{u)[l. -

Mrs l\vnm-(l\ 3]

Larkin .- You were refused your mnney by the

W hu) did lr_husi).m«l tlu .'

April, 1!

Mrs; I\(‘t\\lcﬂ\—-\c~ i
Mrs. Catheringe <Christian- called and .swotn<. %

Larkm -Mrs,-Christian, will you try and speak up ? 9
d was a member of the Tmnspon Union 2"

tian —Yes.

Larkin -
denied it ? -

Mrs. Christizn—VYes

Larkin---What amount “did he owe over the 8
weeks 2

Mrs. CHristian = I o not know.

Larkin —Did they tel! you that he owed 1d. and
refused to pay you? ° -

Mrs. Christian—Yes.

- Larkin—Did you instrugt Messrs.’ WI'llam'Smytn
& Son of 29'Lr. Gardiner Street, Dubltn. 1o proeead 22

J\lr> Ll\rlstmn—\e .
Larkin— My lord,

who have been refused l[ortaluy Beneflt but I will"

not trouble the Court.
(\d]oumui until altér ‘lu

Resuming ‘Melpady. called and: sworn.
.Larkin—Any meeting; as far as-you know, of the
Coal Section to elect Delegates to Conierence ?
“Meleady—Na, sir.
- Larkin—As a matter . ut lact, the membe:slup
was ignored ? - :.x
eleady Y s S

y levy 2
emh_—l" il

-How many other coal firms in the city ? |

+ the

T casuai section’?

‘When. he died you went-to slaim the ’
Mortality Benefit undet the. Rules and yml were

T Mitchell—a

T could calla numbor of witnesses

Larkin Did ' you mnke iny pmtes! agniqst i \
> ¢ uoija0s 10104 auy 1

Larkin -Did you ask them to mark it down in a
proper way and did they refuse and say they would
mark it down as they pleased ?

Meleady—Yes, as they pleascd

Larkin-—On every occasion they held a meeting
when you were at liberty to attend, did you attend ?
* Meleady—Yes. .

’ P'zttiuk‘Lannau called and sworn.

Larkin—You worked for years as a carter in the
City of Dublin ? g

Lennon—Yues.

Larkin -Did you know at any time of a meeting
hemg called of the section of carters to eleet delegates?

‘Lennon —No.

Master of the Rolls
1o ?

.Larkin No. 1 Branch, my lord.

Lennon - Yes, sir.

Larkin Did you instrust hy a meeling anybndy
to. sign a Requisition for r»z:strahcn of amended
Rules ? i

Lennon No

Larkin - Did you make any- 'prolest a"alnst the
enforcement of this 6d. political levy ¢

Lenpon - Yes.

Larkin- Did you ever ask what the levy was for ?

Lenmon - Yeso When T went to payv up my card
it was brought forward as arrears, * 1 obected o
pay it and took back my card and on the tollowing
Sundav I elid pay under protest.

Larkin - You were brought into arrears because

What, Branc I| elo von Telony

you refused to pay this political levy *

Lennon - Yes

Larkin ~Have you your card with you ?

Lennon I have a new card

Larkin—-Are you am on.,mal member of the

Union'?
Lennon™ For about 13 vears
‘Larkin Did you drive for the firm of Wallis

for 9 years ?
Lennon [ did
- Larkin - You were puf mto the casual section ¥
Lennon - Yes.
LarKin  How many years were you in the R.I.C. ?
Lennon - 20 vears
Larkin- -You have always tned to work andl earn
your living ? .-
Lenion— Yes.

Larkin -Do you ub]ect or did you object to these,

individuals, such as are on the Executive, using the
funds of the Union for their own advancement ?
Lenmon-—-I made  protest and  went  to the
\ssistant Registrar's ofhe L
Larkin - And drew his attention to the fact that
the Rules were not the Rules of the Union ?
Lennon - Ouite grue, my lord
Larkin  Net my lord yet.

Cross-examined by Serjeant Hanna.
Hanna - What scction do von belong
Lennon No. | Branch
Hanna -~ What scetion #

Tennon —L-am on the

Hall as a cdsual.

Hanna -You were at

Lo ?

card entered in Laberty
one time in

U osergeant
fox

the RLC., “were vou  dhismissed forgery ?
SLennon 1 owasenot dispissed at oall

Hanna  How did vou come from being a sergeant
in ;the R:LC. to a labourer 2
~ Lennon . L owas called upon tosretire

Master of the Rolls -~ Havé veu a pension

ennof - -1 have not, my lord
Hanna =So niuch for the credit.

\hat -sectiopare vou in ?
am in the casial sectfon.

Hanna
Lénnon- 1

Hanna - Did vour scetion clect @ membor for
Branch’ Committee ? -

Lennon -+ could not “tell vou, |1 was idke

CHanga - W ho'represents vour sgetion ?

Lennon. I could not tell yous cxactly. a

Larkin- . You are a'tasual carter ?°
Lennon™ I am,
Larkin You objected to bemg pn

Lerinon 1 did.

Larkin —You were only one nt thousands ‘who

reslgned from the R.I.C. ?-

Hanna-—-H¢ did not -resign
I Larkin -He did his duty .in° nmes that were,
-necessary.

James Ml!ehell sworn S
Larkin-- What are.you by oecupalmn ?
motor, mochanic:
Larkin- Do you belong to tha motor Sec!lon?
“Mitchell -Yes.
Larkin'You ‘also represenled your section” on
" the so-called” Commltt;y. e
- Mitehelt-~Yes,” on

Larkin -How were you"eleeted on. the. Section
‘- Commijttee ?
Mitchell-- By the Seetion. ]’\ GUr oA \ulltll\.
Larkin ~Was' 1} eré a ballal paper issued ?..
Mitchell =No gpen_ vete, show of < hands.
Larkin--You: ‘were on the Section Cnmmmee
. and then on the. Branch Compiittee ¥
A The_first thm" w the '8
met. and-. |
Committee, from the '1_
Larkin - Were you efected “or, :nyon

represent the Motor Section  of ﬂ:e Union nﬂn'
~ meeting of .the memt

J'S ¥ !
Mitchell No, 2
-Larkin- Did: you

.

cetion ( ummntv« ‘,mrlr >
also on-the Branch Commiittee,

,u:-m Com-
el Lu ‘ihe llra’mh'r

Mitchell_ No =

Larkin--Did you at any time go to 3 meeting
summoned to elect delegate of the Mowr Section ?

Mitchell-- No

Larkin Any ballot papers 1s=ued ?

Mitchell - No

Larkin- Ever voted at a mee!m« ?

Mitchell No. -

Larkin- Did you elect or assist Lo elect a-delegate
to an All Ireland Conference in May of 1923 ?
Miteliell - Never heard of it As o matter
ot 1 ridised oy stand asectionad meeting of the
Branch, Committes met about these new rules is
no oae e the Mot Section heard anything abouy,
these tules antil they were handed toNmesin book

fesrm

Larkin Were you at a m@rg;meg_d to have
adopted this revision of Rul

Mitchell =1 w.s

Larkin How ‘many delegates present ?

AMitehell Abput 22

»Larkin Did Foran sit. there ?

\[|l._h« I EYes, T believe he was theré that iy it

Larkin Who was in the chair ?

Mitchell -Mr. Butler jn chair.

Larkin -What did Mr. Foran tell you ?

Mitchedl - As far as I remember the Rules were
just mentioned. When 1 went into the Committee
niceting a4 Book of Rules was 'put-into my hand for
the first time, 1 did not open the book nor look
at.them and there was a proposition put that the
Rules were pi

Pl

Larkin When were you asked to vote on them ?. y

Mitchell - There was @ motion put to pass these
Rulesmnd 1 objected to the passing of the Resolu-
tmon as [ never heard anything about them. 1 went
there to represent the Motor Seetion. | would not
take any part in the pissing of resolution .
I objected and ‘would not vote.

Larkin Did you make any objection to paying
this 6d. quarterly levy ?

Mitchell  No.

Larkin Do you agree that \lhlS particular levy
was a political levy ?

Mitchell \Well, T believe it was. sin 198

Larkin Do you agree that certain individuals are
spending the money of lhe Union on what they call
*‘labour representation '* without the. knowledge
of the members ? .

Mitchell It is commonly I«nn\\'n.

Larkin Do you agree to it ?

Miteheéll <1 du not agree, T have ‘denouneed -t

Larkin Do. you_ agree that these are the Rules
of the Transport ‘Union as amended ?

Mitchell- They mever came:, Hefore

the

our’ section.

Cross-examined by Mr. Brown, K.C. e i
Brown You were at the n ng of the Coni~
mittee that passed ‘these RKules 3
Mitchell  Yes * + s .
Brown - How: many other members present ¢
Mitchell - About 220
Brown  How many others objected-2 -
‘Mitehell | was the only one nl.Jului
S Brown? - One amolj so many
Brown - How long have you been «‘uu‘:!sln‘l ol
this Union.? P
Mitchell  Since lhumlmx, 1922, We went over
in a body [rom' the Motor Drivers Union.
Brown  How awere you qualified to get-on this

Committey ? i)

Mitchell 1w
qualified.and «
. Brown- Dl yon know

o there as \‘ixlf benefit member
Uitlee] niider the Rules of the Enion.
that the Committee of

No, 1 sent in 2 number 6f amendments to” those
Rules ? . ¥ o 2 =%
Mitchell-— T am td Hing you honestly I'never heard

or séen the Rules untik they werg put wito my hand
I know that cour- section ; Committee ity every
Monday night cach’ week and those Rules sére
never: produced at that scetion. committee nor did
ofir- members re ad or see those l(ul: »s until the night
they were put- into. my*hand.

Larkin ~Mr. Mitchell, :did - you come_ over by
greement with ‘the Trafsport Union along with
ther officérs and members !romthe Motor Drlvers
Union? - i

Mitchell 1 wis one of who et ot
h.m‘pnrl Tnion Executive-several-times ane actyd
‘i all Conferences that were held between our Union
and |In Fransport: Lnion’in lhe taking over of the
Union®

thiose

Larkm ‘You were one of lhe aposlles that brough!'

them into the fold.
Larkin - How long are you a union man ?
\ll((‘llcn' I am a Unign man -||lu s

Mt. John Nolan. Sailors’ Section;” called and swoin.
Larkin -

ol Law 2
Nolafi “No -
Larkin- ¥ou are used to- crossmg the sea ?’

¢+ Nolan (L] 2
Larkin ou be.long lo No. 1" Branch-?
Nolan \L
Larkin You' came- across 2 & }:lrge body of

members from-the National Sailors® and Firemed's -

Union because ol» gnevances you -had agzmsl that
Union ? :
\ul«m Nes. t
Larkin ‘You came, into this Umon hellevmg you

would get Justice anid your.interests would be lvokcd.

after by the ;cnuﬂaen who lnke £8 a wcek
Nokin 3 :

e,

u'are not used to cuming into- Courts’

\
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DOINGS IN THE STATES

NEw \‘um\', Fcb. 22nd.
Washiiigton,

To-day “the workers and (lruma are, xdlt-
because ‘of the birth of the * Father of his
(ountr) " who,cut down a cherry tree but
“ could not tell a lic " when his father asked
of his misdecd.

Wishington, however,
the foundations .of “a nice family* fortunce
when acting as surveyor.  Several hundred
acres were missing or lost, when the Govern-
ment maps were made, and these lost acres
became the family demesne and fortune of
Washington, the 1 land surveyor, later the
first President of this * democracy.’

in later life Lyd

An Irish Consul,

Desmond . Fitzgerald  went  through  the
faree of demanding that a Consul and Ambas-
sador for the Twenty: Six County arca be

. received at Washington, but the Washington
official statement points out this is a purcly
domestic affair that must be scttled by the
British Colonial. Office. :

Canada, or Australia, or .South Africa
never had an ambassador or consul here,
The British Consul te is a very up-to-date

-~ organisation and aftends. to "all affairs
connected With the British Empire, which
_ fact Fitzgerald and his Cabinct should realisc.

“During the years of the Reppblic a very
¢fficient Consular office was ()M\
Dail “ Eireann which functiontd. like ™all

foreign, consulates and gave information and
samples to American business men and-built
up a very considerable trade, It also opened
up the -Moore McCormack line of stmmcn
- to Trish _ports.

It was closed down. after a \I)LLtdi.'llldr_

\lL‘gL‘ and fight for its possession Between
.' Lindsay Crawford ~gnd. the late
4 nnclland thel McSweceney.
“Crawford, by Court aid, obtained possmsmn
for the Fre¢ State .and has since closed it

down, opening- a- smaller office in anothu :

. part of the city. .

Joe Connolly the “last Consul of the
RLpubhc has Oplntd up a tL\tl]L import
agency

Application was also ¢ Dy the Free

. State-for a separate quota underthe immigra-

‘tion regulations. Presumably the idea i3

that. the Free State Cabinet will be free of:

its troubles if the million or moré Republicans
.could be forced or -asked to-enmigrate,

A brilliant solution, morwh* Depopulate

.- Iréland and increase the acreage of grass:

‘lands, so that more cattle can

se.raised. for
l:ng.luh consumptlon 3 e ?

~

Fall'of the Franc, i 2%
Workers | view . the wllap“ of . French

curreney: as, fore sh.tduwmg the end of llu

Poincare- ni,JmL and increase of * ltd—s

at .the \prll lhttlonﬁ
' .JIm-ConnoIlys Murderer. o !
.~ General © Maxweéll, - who ordered _]nn

- Connolly proped up on a chair so that he
‘could bélshot, is in this country fraternising
with the one-time Irish leaders. This week

Larry .

=,

he js-staying with Senator John D. Phelan .

of California, member of the Association for
recagnition uf thc Trish Republlc

- 'FOR SALE®

\lt'tllulll size motning coat and \La‘, alvo
striped’ trousers, suitabple: for a. Senator.
Will be sold cheap. XY  this Offite or the

© Offideof the l)ulr!m ][H])l()y(‘h Protection
* Association.

IRISH WORKE R LEAGUE-

'ting ‘on Snnd.n ek

- Usuald \\'A'('H) m
- Eight o'clock,. Trades’
'me u,;nlml :

H’.dl '(mm N

a = . : = »\ o

i

‘ Sardjnes’ .. 3d.pertin
Green Peas ... 3d. perlh.
Split Peas ... . .. 3d. per 1.

© Oatméal (Line Scotch) .0 . 3d, per 1b.
Flour X T per Ib. ;

The only paper in” England that

_'!mned Peaches (11b. tinss
Lingleam, 2 )a.rda wide,

IRISH WORKER LEAGUE

LONDON - READERS PLEASE NOTE.

A London Group of the Irish Worker, League has
been formed. Open meetings, Sunday, March 9th

and 23rd, 7.30, at Central Suuth\\arh Labour

Centre, 124 Walworth—Road, S.E.

*“Irish Worker '’ is On Sale i— ]
NEWSAGENTS

Battersea- \. Toleman, #F Datterscn Kise,

W.C. - Communist  Party, 16 King Strect.

E.C.—Workers' ]-)r‘;‘ltlllna\;gllt, 152 Ileet Street.

Plumstead —O'Sullivan, 154 Plumstead  Road.

East Greenwich—Johannes, 11 Bl;u:k\\'cll Lanc.
Deptford—Latter, Catholic Church.
Lewisham—Catholic Church.

Bermondsey—.A Mallagdain,
Dockhead.

19 Parker -Row,
members.
Leaguc, above

wanted,  Also
Trish Worker

Voluntary  scllers
Write : —Hon. Sec.,
address;

IF YOU BELONG TO THE IRISH WORKING
CLASS IN ENGLAND

* THE WORKERS' DREADNOUGHT."

stands for Irish
and  social,

READ

Freedom, unjnyma ])llhllLd]
Can be had at all Newsagents, or from
’ CUTHE S MANAGER,”

The Workers” Dreadnonght,

15 -_ Fleet Hl fondon, E.C.

ABBEY THEATRE.

First Productlon of
*“ JUNO AND THE PAYCOCK."”
A Tragedy in 3 Acts, by Scan O'Casey.
Hupkif]g‘;lt Theatre. _ Phone 3268,

“ AN ARMY MARCHES ON. ITS
STOMACH
We are lnlpuu, to Ml the stomach of the
Irish. working class, so that they aiso may

- march fur\\ ard.

We offer all members of the lll)ll \\urk(r
ngm the following. bargains :—

PR—ICE LIST.

Tinned Milk (Swec LLllLd) 4 iOd per tin

'5‘/- per lincal vd.

'To be had.any time,-any. day, at— . :_;‘.

“THE- IRISH- WORKER LEAGUE
.; 17 Gardmer s. Plaee, Dub]m. i

S Jom 'rmaz .talsn'wom’(m LEAGUE.

Entrance Fee, 1~/

Pxom. Dum.m 31'1-

GAELIC PRESS

Naﬁonul Priﬁterﬁ and quluhm

) PR]NTERS OF *“THE IRISH WORKIR"

All CIa.sses of Prlnﬂug axecnted
with HBATNFSS & DHPATGB

GIVE usa muu. ormm.

y

2] Upr.' ,lf[ey ‘%t., Dublm

8d: per tin:”

-Subscriptions Voiuntary' ‘

All llnem_ployé,d‘
MEN and WOMEN
IN DUBLIN AND VICINITY

WILL ASSEMBLE IN

BERESFORD LACE

On Sunday next,\at 12 o’clock

AND MARCH™ IN PROCESSION-
" TO COLLEGE GREEN
Promment Speakers will addrcss
“the Meeting

We asked for Work or Bread. They gave usa
Stoney Stare and a Speech from Joe MeGrath,

GOD HELP US'!

BANDS INVITED TO ATTEND. 12 o’clock—_"
X e .

TO SUBSCRIBERS. = ..

If tlnu is an X in 'this square your sui-
scription has expired. Please renew.

\

Do a good day’s work for yoursel[ and your
_class. ;

Fill up these formis and send them to us.

5 S
SUBSCRIPTION FORM.

Tue MANAGER, lmsu “()L{hl R,
17 (,mm\l_n:. 1’1.\(1_, DLBLI\

I mlm.( d 111L<h& hnd 10 /-, 5 /-, 2/6, being
one year's, half-year’s, (IUdl’tLl’l\,‘ kub\cnpmm
to l'rhh Wnrk(r d :

]
T 0 s oo ronesrelnaRE R

Address....os

T

IRISH WORKER LEAGUE

ENTRANCE FORM

lm SEC, WL :
17 GARDINER'S "PLACE, DLKLI\
1 desire to joiri thé Irish Worker Leaguc
and- enclose Omv_"ﬁlullm‘r for Entrance Fee.
I agree to pay:, weekly.

NAWC j2y75 0 oo i = ey

Address. .‘

ST. Bi’tENDAN’s G:F.CV.

Sef/ond Grand Annqal Dance ;

\\'Lu_b(,held o
- )\ THE BANBA HALL
On Sahlra;y, lSth ‘March, l924
Nappers’ String ‘Bapd. ' = Dancu:,g 10 301’"‘
e TICKETS (DOUBLE) 412/6:.l 73
Pnntcd b) THE GAFLIC PIBSS, 21 Upper -
Llﬂey St.,

and’ pubhshed by mm at 17, Gzrdmen :
Pl aoe,. I!ul»hu. ;

“Disblin, - for the Proprietor - -
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GRATITUDE

A woman in County Armagh brought a
‘family into this world.  One son fought for
the Empire and dicd in France.  A-grateful
Empire granted the mother a miserable
pension.  Another son, a refugec from Ulster,
joingd the National Army and is still in the
service, though on the eve of discharge duc
to. injuries sustained Jin the serviee.

The mother, 90 years old, in addition to
Empire pension lias bgen reeeiving the Old
-Age pension. © The father, still living in o
Armagh, also receives Old Age  penston:
The mother,  a daughter, and a  grand-
daughter, suffering from cataract in the cyes,
exist on the Old Age pension plus l“,m}?irr
pension plus allotment for grand-daughter—
making £1 3s. 7d., out of which they pay 15
per week rent.  And now a grateful I'rec
State notifys this woman of Y0 years of age
-that they must take the Old Age pension
from her, and they also intend to stop the

Cseven shillings separation allowed  to - the
_ grand-tlaughter. ;

. FOR. SALE--AN ‘OBSERVATORY.

A ‘woman, four children and a man (a
worker) “are to- be evicted from what the
~eviction © notice  humoeurously ;

premises ' in - Townsend S
swoman .was born in these pri

robms, with ‘entrance top, bottom and:
"When the door 'is closed the roof is open.

It would be a great observatory, aad tht

astronomer could lic in his bed and watch

the stars whesling insspace. - The premises
have been condemned for the past siy months
and the, tenant Ras sought far and near for
an gbiding place.  No rooms, no resting
place,. though any hour imay bring the walls
and. what remains of thé . roof il on them.
At is casy for the Public Health® Authoritics
and’Borough Surveyor to order the placeto be
closed and dismantled, but it scemsimpossible
for any Board or dfficial to provide this
working man, his wife and, four children
with @ room or rooms ‘to abide in. Yet,
strange it is that many houses are lyingidie
and untenanted within o stone’s throw of
these premises so.unfit for human habitation.
We ark -a- gredte country, a great people.
We say so! '

two

(&

T
“THE TOOL' AND THE.CRAFTSMEN.

On’the morning, of Thursday, 13th March,
at 8 o'clock, a man called Gafiney~ was
hanggd as an. offering to Justice and in
punishment of the crime of murder. The
crime, the trial, and the judgment have
“passed, but still remains th '
. This' man "Gatincy was [irdt 3
Governinent. . Gaffney was:sent out to kill
for “a State and he killedw  Gaffney was
the fool. The. tool was used by -tlee State
and then cast aside.  Killing'by the individual:
i murder, but by ‘the State s justice.
When arg we-going-te be ridwf this Capital;

%

4

Punishment. e i

ANOTHER BOGUS TRADE
UNION CONGRESS -

Irish Transport and General Workers’ Union.

Offices © 353 Parnell Square

. tth* March, 1921,
To the Seerctary of the Branch
named in the address.

SPECIAL TRADE UNION CONGRESS.

\

oA Chara, - A Special Trade Union Congress
will be held in the Mansion House, Dublin
on the 14th and 15th inst, commencing at
3 p.m. on the 14th Ihe purpose of the
Congress 18 to consider questions deferred
from -the Annual Congress held in August
last, and suggested alterations in the Con-
stitution of the lrish “Labour Party: and
Trade™¥nion Cengress. ’

Owing to the great demands on the funds
of the Union, arising out of past and pending
industrial disputes, the E.C. does not fecl
justificd in paying the expenses of the Union
delegates to this Special Congress

The Union will be represented there by
the - Exceutive  members, and  Brancheés
wishing to send representatives, must do
so at their own oXpense. Should your
Branch desire representation we would be
glad if
addresses of the delegates selected by, at
latest, the 10th inst.

Yours fraternally,

Exicerive COMMITTEE,
. I. T. G. W. Uxiox,
Resoevicn Trat

We, the Gommittee of No.-3-Branch, having

beeri called - together by the Sceretary to s

deal. with urgent and important matters
contained ‘:'n‘ a- circular letter dated: March
Ath, and received in the office; No: 3 Branch,
iday morning, March Tth-
'\_l'u- circulg
~therein, we now enter our emphatic. protest
-against the manner in which. these inmportant
matters are submitted to our considertaion
It would . be utterly impossible” to, submit
these matters for conisideration and. action
by the members of this Bsanch, we thercfore
cail upon those members charged with exceu-

tivie duties to postpone this special Congress

cuntil such times ds the members of the
Irish Transport Worke ;
facilitics within the Rulesief the Union to

express their opinien o1t matters - which

. affeet evety individual member, and we also
priftest - against any member of ‘this Union.
attending at or taking part at any special
Trades Enion Congress without the authority
of the Union.or approval of thegenciat hody
of the . members, - We further ccull fatten
tion tor the fact that thé drish Trades Uiion

CCongress s oa body cliarged: " awith: and
exercising political activities and any -meémbes
Lof this Union, exeentivie or utherwise trend-
in\_\ (7'un’g‘r¢ 58

acts, ©oand

o would forward us the names and |

- Having read,
letter and the matters contained

hefall the child entrusted to her care.

Union arc given.

is committing -an. flegal’.
any - oXpenditure - aty sych

Congress 1s an illegal expenditure. And, we,
the Committee, will call upon the members
of No, 3 Branch to take such action as will
protect them against such illegal action.
Copies of this resolution to be sent to the
public press, Voice of Labour and Irish
Worker.

Proposcd by Patrick Carroll
by Patrick  Ndrton.

seconded
Ihe Resoludon was passed unanimously

Irish Worket
1Copy)

Fo the Lditor,

Irish Transport and General Workers’ Union.

Head Office 35 Parnell Square,
Dublin

Joth March, 19214

G X

Jobhu Bolin, *-1.C.,
Dublin Xo. 3 Branch

A Chara,

/

RE srecin CONGRESS

We have vour letter of 1oth mst. to-day
re above, R

We are quite aware that the notice given
with reference to the above was very short,
hut we only got short notice of the meeting
oursedves, and the mtter had to wait on
15.C. meeting before we could communicate
with the branches, and. owing to the legal
proceedings the holding of this mecting had,
to be deferred. . The date for sending in
names of delegates is fixed by the National
Executive of thy Labour Party and not
by ns.

o Yours fraternally,
axh

IrisH  TRANSPORT
GexeraL. WorkEks”  UNIox,
i ERB." cper War O'Bries.

SLAUGHTER OF THE INNOCENTS.

We print 7 letter, from a foster-mothier
in Ahis issue. - We have mspoken with the
womar ;,  We believe ey ry- word  Written
by her to be true She, it scems, is sensiblc

“of her responsibilities andfilled with maternal
“ Tove for this foster-child

She was in terrible

serious il would
Yot
we find, according to her statement, the
callous indifterence of thoge who are charged
with the superyision of £ health and welfan
of this unwanted. child. Phe citizens pay
this 1!)\l\'l‘~l.]lu)/llv r thiirty <hillings, per month
to feed, cloTht, and g ¢ the necessary medical
attention: for this-ipfani:, Is not this a cas
of Pilate repidiating his' blood-guilt

for fear

u.wphl:mnu any

Cottages

v 4 -Rutland
S 7 T3 2

Dear Sir, 1 read with mucli int rest your

" article on nuisé children and their mothdrs.

I want to ask yvou,.if you please, 10 publish

the treatment that s méted out to fogter

mothers when those children are.ill, L-hayd
nurse child and it took ill on’ December
wh. I sent for doctor at ¥ p.m., he hadnot
<O felvice of a l\'r}l-nd 4 wenit

1

come at Y opont

S— |
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JOHN NOLAN’S

(Continued from our
Larkin—Did you at any tim

!

R

~

CONNOLLY PROVES O'BRIEN

A DELIBERATE LIAR

Ev:dence.

Jast 1ssue).
e know of a meeting

_of the Sallors’ and - Firemen’s Section to -elect a
delegate to the Branch Committee ?

Nolan—Never.
Larkin—DIid you ever hear

of an election of a

delegate to an-All ITreland Conference ?

Nolan—Never.
Larkin—Did you ever hear

of any Rules being

revised and sent out to be vofed on ?

Nolan—Never seen them,
Larkin—Were you going to

sea any time durmg

the period between May -and August, 1923 ?
Nolan=-Backwards and forwards twice a week.
Larkin—Did. you ever hear any of the men dis-

olan—Never.

Larkin— Did you make
_paying a quarterly levy ?.
Nolan—No, never did.
‘Larkin—Do you. agree that

any pI‘DIESl

ing the new Rules of the Unlun ?

these men' charged

. with the respohsibility of the Union should be '
permitted to take the funds of the Union: for political
purposes: without your pemﬂsslon 9 i

Nolan—No. = -

5

Serjeant Hanna cross-q:ﬁam}ning.

Hn\( you g(if a

secretary  for your

* Nolan: \o lhc m‘m \\hu ,u,t\ as secretary is Mr,

O’Neill.

Hanna—Who. acts us seeret
Section ?

Nolan—None,’

Hanna—And_do you hold
- Sailors” Scction:*

‘\’old.n——-ﬁ\ccall lhv,m oursel
+.‘Hanna—Who Tépresents the

the BrancheCommittee ? -

"Nolan—I do not belicve we
Hanna—\\"hy have you no
Nolan—Because \we - would
Hanna—Did you hear the evi

‘1s your. brarich mnductcd by No.'3.7-

Nolan --We.

are d section
1 Branch. .

Haiina—No rcpnst,ntatnm on lir.nuh Comu
: ot that I Know of.’
. Hanna=—Whexn ‘did you come -isito the

Nolan:

Nolan—About two and & ha

Larkin—How many years have you beena
.and Iiremen’s Union'?

‘of the National Sailor.
Nélan—From. 1911,

ary {m the Sailors’

any mutmga -of t)u

Sailors’ Stction on

have anyone.

ne - .

not. get one,
dl;ncoo Mr. Bohan ?

on our

If years ago.

Larkin—Have you always been: a: Union' man

Nolan—Yes.

- William Fitzgerald Cross-Chx
and_sworn.:

nnel Doekers, ca]le&

zgainst .

ang/Athe other man was Casey. 1
Wedsional accountant  but
two vmembers  could  be clected

ownin No. .

Lnrkln—¥ou are an origlnal member o[ lhis‘

Union'?.
Fn.zgexaldh\ es.

Larkin—Working for years. at the Doeks in

‘Dublin ? .

Lar

‘I‘ltzlserakh—?: years, for fwo, ﬁrma
n—Do you khow of any

--seetion  being called- tu eiect members. of No.

Comimittee? - Sy
Fitzgerald~No.

,)., Bl *

Larkil—Do you know of any. meeting ealled for

the purpose of aleﬁtlng delEg
Gonference ?
Fitzgerald—Never.
Larkin—Did you ask anyon
of Rule Book # -

ates’ l’or ml Treland

¢ to vote on, rewsmn

- Fitzgerald—I protc;tcd\ against it.

.Larkin—-Did you make a protest which caused you

some littie trouble ?

Fitzgerald—I \vas uctum:ed from work for

motths,

.Larkin-—Dia you protest againsl unralr lreatment-?

ntigemhl— Yes. o

‘Mr. Larkin Sworn. A -
My lord, I want. you to !;uu ‘With e nlule l gu

0\ ‘er ‘the vaifious matters.
I Jeft tIii5 country on the

Arom " this country with a -pu
in tweo parts, one to convey.a
as- to the 1mamun of ‘the Irish’
~othet to asSist in the
_from the E ,pfru 7

‘When T 1ot Treland ﬂu:n was an

“-conttol of “the
lam No. I'in-No, 1 Brancl

vras *".AHP(I %

U PO Yy

hbentmn

14th October, 191.3

L left after discussion with ‘my comrades, oné. of-
“them a man now dead—James Connoll /&-em’
d 1

PO G
me: 0 America
' working dnss the
of thh country

i
and 1 g in this

: s a member of the Union_as well a3 Secretary
- of the Union« - Janies Connoll

as Ulster Ol'gamzcrl

* leaving: for \mvnr‘

ecutive iu‘-‘,
Uiiion, - an - elected” ¥ixecutive.

meeting of your. -

7 and in the interestsof

and  givene charge of that porton of the work
including the industrial and literary side ‘of the
movement. P,
managership of the National

Iealth Insurance

“Section.  NMr. Foran worked under Mr. Daly and
got dismissed by Mr. McMahon, one  of ~the
Commissioners  of © the  National  Health, for
inconipetency and was tiken over as a Junior

Official in the Union, although he still held thé
position of General President of the. 'nlcm in
those days the General President wasd Wurking man
and the General Treasurer was a working man,
the General Tréasurer got £20 a year, the General
President got nothing and the General Secretary
was paid. No official ever Teceived any
money than they would have received as workers.

had £2 105 2 week, On many occasions the
members voted sme an ineredse inomy wage, but 1

alwave Insisted o getting the wage 1 first got in
“the, Union.  During the vears 1999-1% we went
through <reat traavail in this coun nd the life
led by a member of the Irish. Fransport Union

was a particalarly trying one. ars

SDwring those y
I did my duty honestly

and with all sincerity
the members. The last time
i 1913 thatd made an annual returm to the Registrar
twe men lected by the members avdited the books
of the Irish Trahsport and Ceneral Workers' Union,
one of the men, James Smith, has been in this box
t is the work of a

under  the  Kules
as auditors
These two men, Smith angd Casev, were clected

under Rule. 1 left the aceounts of the Union, as far
as 1L know, with. every penny accounted for.  The
statement 1 submittcd to Mre. O'Connell Miley in
1914 Fam prepared to stand by i any Court of Law
as-true and correct.

When | went to America many-things happencd.
Duarjng my period of work in America’a Jaw was
passcd by the British Government that James Larkin
was never to be allowed within the King’s Dominions
~-the same thing happened: in Australia and the
same in Canada.
back until things" had changed in this:country.
My wife and children were here and all the interest
of ‘my life lay in Irctand. 1 was not allowed any
communications, and- anyihing that ¢id come
thruugh came in secret.  One of the letters i

m
o, a fetter from James Larkin to his wife
That letter kept from her until it

.nnc out in documenty under discovery in 1924,
I left Foran in charge ‘of my family and | always
believed he was atting as a friend.”
Mr. Brown, K.C. addressing the Court.

1 want to-deal very shortly with the matters
aaised by Mr. Larkin’s action. The first charge
_madeé ¢ st the Defendants in referénce to
moneys of the Unidn which were spent for political
purposcs.

- You got a full historg of the &.\pgndll\u( of the
" Union funds for political purposes from Mr. Foran
‘yesterday ;e conc nothing, hie had nutlung
to_conc . But there is' this good excuse, .that in
¥ Ju n for this political expenditure ‘lllh()ll(h
it-was illegal it wag sanctioned by the Ruiile i
only decided to %‘ ¢ illegal althoygh it ‘was alw
illegal. It -was only- “decided in  the * Osbori

The decision in the Osborne. case was
r1910:. Up 1o then, a.lthoubhurzpm,&m
cal purposes had bccu illegal, every Trade
practicaliy every; n
‘believed: it to . be legal, and most of them were
spending a certamn portiom of their fuu(h for thos¢
purpose::

Here in Ireland legal decisions in Eirg
a long time to ‘filter through, and it wa

J udgment.

in thé ye:

a nd tako
not untid

the: year 1918 that it-began to be established over -

-here " thit' the cf;ycndnun
political purposes was not I
- «Now, my lord; the only L\pux(hhug after 191
was the pr(-ndxturc on the
detdils of wh

ol L~mon funds « on

If your lofdship will Igok at- e dat s you will Imd
: that foughly the history of the experiditure is thi
In ’\:Ia\, 1911 Poor LA v

b
_]"muary' 1912—Klection fof- Dublin Corpor .mon
Liarkin, Foyan and ankn 5 w«pcndnurt.a\nn
= the, three were paiil.
September, 191 .Bt)lmn
L1013 —Exper
1914 —Foran
J‘Jl«lv«—l‘um Law s
. Bohan, etc!, etc, alt cxpeiises m-id

There i=notling until IJZZ No
1918. - Not ancther  penny spenr.
= There \M‘; 0 clection in. 193 ’0
thic expenses were paid :
of."the.-r

T. Daly was given charge of the

more

quite

I was prevented from ever coming

. iment to the- goneml funds of the ‘U mnn‘

“ then
“fitances of the U
_the

week to aveek out k-gu.mnlmtwnﬁ from’ \dnu[u\

- through. the périod which they

o only chance

et l,ﬂncl) Hall,

S oof thdt fund from My, I..M’l.m M’.\Iﬂ they ‘knew that
My,
*. fnemb

" ol lhuu thicy had it but we

entitled. to his Declaration, he has asked \1».; a
DLLI'\mtmn that this expenditure is i Land he
s entitled to it he would be Untltleq)tl::‘?l)\clgrp
tion that certain monies were e xpended-for political -
purposes, that these-were illegal expenditures, Byt
I respectfully submit-to vour ]ordshrp that he i
entitled to no more in . this dctmn than that
Declaration.

He is not dititled fo dn enqmn in’ this “action
hecause the only object for an enquiry would be for *
the purpose of pcrsun(ll lability. If he had asked
for personal rclief against Defendants in this case
he would have been entitled to an enquiry. His
Statement of Claim has been settled by three
eminent Counsel who must have carefull; W ughul
it before 1hc\ put their name to the praver, and in
that Statement of Claim they would haveé claimed
personal relief against the members of the E.C.
if they could have donc so, But they have
deliberatcely omitted to do so because they recognised
that the litigant would not be entitled to an Order
of that kind. If the Union itself had been Plaintiff
there might be sofpthing to be said.  Mr. Larkin
is the sole Plaintiff in this action and surely it cannot
be suggested that he is a Plaintiff who would be in a
position to ask for relief- of this kind. . He kriew
all about it, as Mr, l%uh(m said ** everybody in the
Union knew about at," and I-would therefore ask
vour Jordship, although he is entitled to this
Declaration, he is not “entitled to any other relief
in respect of monies spent for pulltmal PUrpost

Judge—-In the vears 1913 and 1914 he was
cognizant of this expenditure: "

Mr. Brown —And in 1922, my lord, although hL
refused to stand he knew the election was gmng on.

The Master of the Rolls then referred to a cable
sent by Mr. Larkin to Mr. Foran in which he stated
he was forwarding moncy, and from this hé would
take it that Mr. Larkin did ngf wish the Union
money to be spent. But tthil mones/ was not
forwarded ; he was not nomunt(d 50 no c\puhn
were incurred at that time.

Mr. Brown, K.C:>There was a blank of several
vears, 1918-22, when not one penny of: the Lmou
funds “were spcnt on political purposes..

Master of the Rolls —There was an electmn in
1022,

Mr. Brown, K. C.—MF Laskin was put up without -
his an\]tdg.,c and on the very lsat day he declined
to stand.  He never at aniy e pmt-.:.tad against.
the funds of the Union bun;, used for politigal
purposcs..

Although these munu.:. werce undnubtuli\ illegally
spent, there never was a lévy for political purposes.
No one has been dupn\ec_l of any benefit. This
lc\\ of 6d. was not_a political lev y, it wa$ a lL\\
that would have to be paid under’ the Rules,
)o me mber of the nion (’ been- deprived Decause
I u \ political levy.

—I 'understand ‘that the fundy
pruduu:a by the quarterly levy went into’ thie sainc
fund as the weekly payvments, it is mereliy a supple-

1'speak of the Rules of- 1918,
about the 1923 Rales,

Mr, Brm\ vo doubt it may seem hard that
widows wer¢ refused benefit bec pse-their husbands .

were i

1 kn(m nothi

in arrears.

Master: of ‘the ROl
()fﬁccrs u

-I.do. not know what the
the Union® could” do if they had n
e, fuuds of- 1hc Uniomand ifsthe Officers ol
“payments théy “wohuld her
gol p‘.}mm.b and I havé not Thoticed any
rale in any. of the rules ‘giving duthum\ to remite
the arrears. "It is hard wheén.a member comes to
die to find that- h, has fallén into grrears, bt it
is the rule. W T iy i
© Airr Brown, K.C.—— With reference to “this suri
0, the facts 'arc thése which - have - been
-tllv proved Mr. ¥ Towards. .the
the vear 1913 the fnnd the Union were
' critical condition. = The-le Lkwtl:,_(;i 1913had”
lasted for iy thian ‘six months and the
exhausted only
h collécted frant

ins

um of £7,504 Whish I

8, and Mr, I.@mﬂ ndk Mr.:O'Neill who
ry of No. 1 Brduch, had ugxm, La tha
clusion- that if the Union.was to live ‘o to exist
knéw: perfectly well
would come as soon as the lock-out wis over, the
of putting: th¢' Union throigh these-
anxious Aimes was oty res Ve this Sum nf £7.6500.

They h.ul this'sum of £7, 600 in money in thd sade
«d they did conceal the :unuunl

arkin had a habit of s money on. the
ers of the Union in. a nther lavish .way "

was nm gooil at saving. They mide ap their minds
U Mr, Lavkin aboat-this, . When Mr, Larkin -
anie’ o endguire from thei abput) this foud they
aot-going-to tell. Bt
R.urlm Tuew an: I.‘ﬂ:!




\{arch ln
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- i
his Jund “was there. . He must [ have  known
perfectly well it was the sole ﬁmdln[ the Union
vt the end of this trouble, and e was satisfied that
< the Union was safe. cry penny of that £7.500
has been” ctpcnr!ul either on the members of the
Union or for their, Lenefit,
A sum of £l 800w spent in the
of 1813 which .1 think was ecalled,
payihent, payment which was announced. by
Alr. Larkin, and they had to honour his-word and
had to hand out this £1,800. ‘which they would
rather have kept in the safes
Master of the Rolls—:Was this Christmas of |ul 37
Alr, Brown, K.C~=Yes, my lord. s
There was now a sum of £5.700 in the fund now,
_and if your Iordﬁhm will allow mye to look at the
figures ot quite’ in order, T will 'explain-—- &
On the 23rd April; 1034, the whole of the rest

Nmas week
a mid-week

of the fund was put on Deposit Receipt i the -

Hibernian Bank, which amounted to the sum of
£3.425 1450 3d. T will tell vou how the fund
comes to be reduced to that amouwit.
At any rate £3,425 was put inthe Hibernian Bank
on Deposit- Receipt on the 23rd - April, 1014--
_ it refnained there until the 28th August, 1914,
1t was then drawn out together with the sum of
€21 15s. 3d. inteérest. NXow, af that time the
pprdm. of Liberty Hall was being completed-
the Conveyance of Liberty Hall to the Trustees
of the Union is dated ‘the st Septeniber, 1014,
The consideration of Liberty Hall was £5,500.
Onit of that the sum of £2,000 was left out on
nmrtg‘lge to the Northern  Bank (which was paid

off in—1918)-and-the £-¥,42-x which _had been on  would really

dcposit receipt 'was used -in this way. On the28th

August, that is the very date on which the £3,425

was drawn out, ther¢ was lodged to the Current
. ~Account of the Tnion the sum of £3,000 net.
There wis. a cheque given to the Northern Bank
for £3,003 11s. 9d... portion of the consideration
of Liberty Hall. This cheque, “although given
on_the. Ist September, ;lp}.armtlv was not cashed -
* by the Bank until the 28th September. The money
was-paid to the Northern Bank who were the
Mortgagees of the property

The difference between the £3,003 and l]u- W
‘was paid‘in cash. A sum of £600 w paid in respect
of a Bill of Costs'in the case of Long & Larkin.’
Mr. Foram told us vesterday that the sum of €1,600
was distribdted between Christmas time and the

end of April for absolute necessary purposes of the «

{nion, even though the lock-out was over there was
still a great -deal of iinemployment. Every penny
was expended for'the benefit of the Union. All this
teok place in 1913-14. " The books have been
(i dbatmwd and. the only aGeount we have is a copy
of the account from ‘the Bank. There was no othcr.
.- Bank account, there was of course the 2 Nationa] -
Hmlth Insurance which. wa 3 \c‘pm'\tu
“The only. a¢count which the Union had in any
Hank was that account. -This is a correct copy
of the entire account that, was kept at this time
" and shows that when Mr. L. arkin thinks there should
“have £1,600 to. the'credit.of this account *th(»rc
was riothing ta the crcdlt of ‘the accmmt

? RULES 1928 : :
Our case-is th\s t.h re, amended or rather they
are-nopt amended: Rules the) are substituted Rules,
* an entirely new-set of Rules dnd they were pagsed
under’ Rule 33 of} the Ruiles - 6f.1918,
«ifference between® Rule 33 of the.1918 Rales and
Rule 33 of the 1915 Rulés was that the word
' Branches " was inserted. * I do not think thcrc

. The procedure laid.down by Rule 33 of;the Ru

" of 1918 wis carried out on the 2nd Decembor 1921,

.by a circylar letter-sent- ta the branches signed by "
Mr. William' O'Brien ** To, -all Branches twelve
months in existence:"’ ‘(reads’ circular letter).

Master of the Rolls—As you are not starting a
new subject I think. we had befter adjoutn: untl!
‘to-morrow mornmg *

Wednasday, 20th- Febmary. 1924 ‘. ozl
Mr. Brown, K.C. - s

Before I go into the matter nf Hu Ru!cs of 1923
~1 havé ‘to take you back' to- the Sum of £7,500.-

Your lordship may-rememher that “yesterday 1 said

that the. sum of £500  of the purchase meney
of Liberty Hall was paid in cash at the timé of the
conveyance, that is not, correct, it is recited in the
Conveyance-as having béen paid Dut it was p"ud
. as'a deposit-on the datc of the agreement, it was
paid in cash. That reduced the sum to £1, 600.
. Ifwou look at the deposit accoynt you will find that
the very day we drew out the £3,450 14s. 4d.
there \\JS lodged on - deposit receipt the sum of
£447. 1 .thought that the £500 had.been used to
pay thmcash Thig recital in the deed is " in pur-
suance’ of said dgreement and in consideration of
the sum of £500° paid by the, Purchasers- to the

Vendor one. the cxec’ju(m of "said :\gxctmenf

- Rules of 1923, -

The progedure of their being carried put com-
meénced on’ the. 2nd De -mbcr 1921, by a circular
. letter written by the
then ‘12 months 'in e3
for )n\lr lordship yesterday, and will not read -it
again. It asked }’or amendments from all braniches.
Now, my Lord, replies. to that letter were received
“from’ a. nurber’ of - branches, the orlgt;al tt'plle?
afe in Cauxt and we will put'them in, and in view o
great im ce o!; the !ﬁx;::; ofmlgza:ie
ocuﬂv  Commit ermind ore ultimately -
'!lt ﬁle mcho;:em %cé;vt tham to hold & Delé-

e

The. only : ~

THE IRISH WORKER

g e ek

gate Conference, that i~ a Delegate Conference of
Mhe entive Tnion, and (o submit these Rules to the
Delegate Conference, ald accordingly on the Gty

pril, another circular was. sent out to all
branches 12 months in existence, which wis read
i ovonr Lordship by Mr. O'Neill
Master of the Rells—--What is the date of this »
Brown —Gth April, 1923, T think vou have a
copy of it. It leaves a space for the ‘group No.
and the number of votes to which the branch is
entitled.  (Mr. Brown, K ads cireular letter.)
The drafting of these Rules was a big job, It also
included the Rules for the National Health Tisur-
ance Society and also for the political side of it,
On the 23th and 25th \pril, 1 . the Delegate
‘Conference was held in Dublin, it was attended by
practically eyery  délegate, We have claborate
minutes of that meeting and cach onc of  the
draft Rules was discussed in order.  The discussion
took two days and at the end n[ the second day
were unanimously adapted by the Conference and
recommended  to the branches.  Yaour Lordship
+owill appreciate the reason for a procedure of that
kind ;' it was quite_futile to expect these pranches

in the country to go into a copy of the Rules nnlx.

any useful result.

Master of the Rolls - No essential part of the I{nlv
The Exceutive inviterd branches to send delegates
‘to conference in order to get the benefit of tlun
advice.  In the name ot commonsense how could
vou hold a meceting of 12,000 members and disewss
these Rules. A meeting of that kingd could have
no result.  Therefore, in order it these branehes
take part tn the framing of these
Rules and rml[\ know and approve of what was
going to be done the: v hold this Delegate Conferencee,
a thing-they need not have done at all, bt a, \\lw
and prudent and right thing to do.

Your Lordshi \\I” have the nnmms nf that
Conference befdve him, and will sce that cach ones
of these¢ Rules discussed in order, and No. 3
Branch had a representative there notwithstaneding
the cvidence of Mr. Bohan in the box vesterday
tand duly proposed a few usclul amendments,

Having held their. Conference and having their
A recommended to the branches
v circular letter was sent ont
toeach branch then 12 months

in-existence, enclosing a4 copy of thesdraft Rules,

asking cach branch to holdl & mecting of the branch

for the purpose of adopting or rejecting these

draft Rules, and also Lmlmm;, a ballot form or
o return to be filked up with a result of the vote.

5,000 were printed’ and- no doubt 5,000 were
distributed.

182 bmmhu sent inoreturns and the mmml of
these returns are hiere and will he put in in evidence.
105 of the 122 were received in time, and 17 were
received late. Of the 105 that we received in time
98 adopted the Rules, voted for them, and 7 voted
against ;
were for the adoption of the Rules. In fact,
out of 122—114 branches voted for and 8 against
Your Lordship will have the minute of the mLCUllL
of the Executive at which that result was recorded,
and so far as the 1923 Rules are concerned they
then became the valid Rules of this Society, they

did not require registration.

ese Rules, my Lord, are in suspension from

moment this action was started iy the month

And I would ask your lordship tosay

a8 ue has been raised that these Rules bave
been passed and are the valid Rules of this Union.

Master of thé Rells—1I think what you should ask
me-to do is to declare that they were validly passed
in. accordance with Rufe 33 of the Rules of 1918,

What I propose doing as regards allowing Mr.
Larkm ‘t6 amend his Statement of Claim is making
‘an order for the amending of the Statement of
(‘lalm in this respect by adding a-paragraph thereto

‘ that ghe Deferfdants Thomas Kennedy and
Michael McCartliy, "being . paid Officials of the

L0 T. & G.W. Union, wee and are disqualificd
from being members of ‘the ‘Executive.,

Brown—Look at paragraph 19 of the Statément

MWhat he wants_ h

of Claim; Foran v.* Larkin,
‘wfatcmcnt.

“to.amend .the,
Master 6f .
amendment.

for ,ﬂm

Brown—Once \nm‘ lordshlp has come to the

conclusion on-, thé¢ construction of the Rules' that

and of the 17 rcturns received late 16

. these: two" gentlemen are paid officials “Mr. Larkin .

would be entitled-to that Declaration. It 'does not
imyalidate the acts ‘of the Executive Committee.
Alphonsus Conway, Bank: Munager, ‘called and
sworn.
Hanna—You. -are- in thc cmplm ment 0£ the
Hibernian Baik ?
Conway—VYes.
Hanna—1In what employ mem were.you.in 1913 ?
Conway—I was “there.
. ‘Hanna—Are these two accmmLs taken froffl the
Bank-Books of the Irish T. & G. W, Union’ Dcpoext
and Cusrent “Accdunts correct ? :
Conway—TYes, they are correct copies: ’
“ Hanna—Was there: lodgethin your bank at- that
‘time the’ \atmnal’ Health ’Inennmce -Fund=—in
“~913/14 2 -
Com\a.»—al could not sww

Hanna-—Are 'you aware of u.nybother accounts 4

- in the Hibernian Bank belonging to'the Tram;mn
“Union other.than thm two '\tccouﬂﬂ 2

Conway—No, nome. ' . e ez
- Mr. Larkin cross-examining. = - SR
‘Larkin—Do - "you remember -an aecount’ being-
entered there for the Unlon.tfo. pay out watkly for -

. the National Health h Insurance Mon ;
2 Conwav—-\'

» N,

‘circular letter ?

.Conference ?
i oomphmted There were many changes in the
*_structure of the Union and it was décided that the -

_' connruct\on of the Delegate Conference;

-~

Larkin Have you a branch in Thomas-Street ?

Conway—Yes.,

Larkin—Would you know yoursell whether there
is money on deposit and current account in other
branches ? .

Conway - No, except the branch 1 work ‘in.

Larkin-- You say there was no other account t
tl;eu;:redlt of the Union in your Bank in December,
l 2

Conway—Except these two that
and the Insurance Account. .
John O'Neill examined by Mr. Sullivan, K.C.

Sullivan —You were examined on yesterday .lml
the day before ?

O'Neil' —Yes.

Sullivan—In “1913-14 you were a member of

1 Branch ?

O'Neill Y - —_—

Sullivan-—Were you then an official of it?

O'Neill-=Yes. -

Hulhu\n -What position diil. yon hold ¥~

~O'Neill—Brinch  Seerctary.

\ulh\.m —Do you know of any Bank Account
(\wpt the Bank Acgount in the lhhu-man ‘Bank ?

'Neill -1 do not know positively, there might be.

O'sallivan —I am rcf«.mug to the Union.

are in Court

Master of th( Rolls —At what office of tllt Bank
was the account kept ?

O'Neill ~In the Office at the corner of O'Connell
Street and Abbey Strect.

Mr. Larkin  cross-examining.

Larkin - You swore the other day that you
destroyed the documents of the Union in 1813 9

O'Xeill—1 said about 1913,

Larkin —They were destroyed on my insiructions ?

O'Neill - Yes.”

Larkin—Can you produce the order ?

('Neill- I cannot.

Larkin——Did you admit you were
orked in Kennedy's ?

ill - I did not. z
wster of the Rolls—Are you aware of any other
account which the Union I(<|nt with the Hibernian
IBank except that kept at O'Connell Street ? o
I —No, my lord. i

Larkin - What were you dismissed for ?

(’Ncill - For a discrepancy in my books.-

Larkin“-Did you embezzle money belonging to
Messrs. Kennedy & Co. ?

O'Neill—1I did not.

Larkin--Were you dismissed for not returnlng
money paid to you by the poor of Dublin to your
employer ?

O Neill—No.

Larkin— Did you deslroy papers in leerly Hall P

O’ Xeill—Yes.

Larkin—Did, you keep any papers slnce 1913 P

O’ Neill—Well, any dmumcntq we had have been
produced.

Larkin—What documents have
_possession since 1914 2

Master of the Rolls—I must stop this., A very
grave accusation has been raised against this man
and I must give him. liberty to explain what.
happened.  You werc¢ a bread server 2,

- O'Neill—Yes

Master of the Rolls—There is charged up against
vou any bread you took out and ;you had to account
for the monies at the r-nd of the weke ?

O'Neill—Yes.

Master of the Rolls—There wxs a shortage In .

a thief when

you In your

- your books and you were dismissed on aceount of -

the shortage?
. O'Neill—VYes,
\l curity.
Hanna—ls it not n ,common thmg for bread
servers to run "accounts wnh their customers ?
O'Neill—Yes.
Hanna—But they are rcsponsxble for thé bread 4
they get whether the cu~tnmvr pays for it or not ?
O'Neill—Yes.

because 1 would nn(‘lodgc further

"+ 'Hanna—Was any chzﬂ'gc made agmmst you ? E

O Neill—No. :
Ha.nna-—Dld you keep 1d. nl your ump]h)crs

Gl\e:ll———\o S 2 .
“Larkin—Am-" I eﬁiued to eross-enmlne blm ?
Master —of “the- Rolls—Certainly - you are not.

'Wﬂllnm 0’Brien_called—{Groans In_ CQurt)Jndgo

- threatens to clear -Court. -
~Hanna—-—-\\as therc a circular letter. dated 2nd
December, 1921, sent out to all-branches 12 months

O!Brien—Yes, in Decembcr. 1921, :
‘Hanna—How many branches ' at thnt ume ?
O’Brien—About- 350.

Hanna—From how-many brarches did you 5
replies and suggested amendments ? -
O'Brien—1I - think the number ‘was 19. .
Hanna—Did you then in Apn send-out 'mothﬂ:

. existence ?

px\ e

—~
O'Bfien—VYes. : £ ‘

H'anna-—Had there been any dlscussxon A E(
nn these amendments sent in \‘) :the -branches ?
“‘O'Brien—Very 'particularly, -\ . - s

. Hanna—During. the year 1922 ? oLyl
- O'Brien—Yes.. .-~ i
- Hanna—This circular letter of the Bth Apn‘l
w3s for the g_h of convening”a Delegate *
¢ new:. draft Rules were Very

only way to haye thet discussed was by a represen-

3 ahve bod: ga Delegate Confefence,
‘

t was thie procedure adopted ‘for the
ow called? -

&Co‘ tin: ed on co!umn 3 pd;‘ 5
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EDITED BY, JIM LARKIN.

IF PADRAIG RETURNED TO IRELAND.

We are constrained to ask ourselves the
question 1 What would Padriig think of this
Land of Saints dnd Scholars " if he returned
dgain to carth after sixteen centuries
-Our pagan forcfathers had land, houses,
plentyof food, clothing, cvervthing for
their needs.  Love and ptace with
them,
centuries ?

Hived

Cathedrals and churches by the
hundred, Christians  numbering _l?ll“lllll?
We wonder would Padraig recognise his
fellow-Christians.  In a nation of four
millions, -an army of  hired Christians
are manlm]lLd drilled, clothed and armed to
keep in control the other Christians.  And
for fear the organized jrmy may not carry
out the orders of the superfine Cliristians,
we have an armiy within an army—a secret
army-—an army of the night.  We have an
L xecutive Government w! ithin an lixe c\mu

“ Government, and directing both of “these
Lixecutives -a small “group of Christians:
at least they say so, and therefore it must

. be trug (.|l||<l I'reemasons, who  own,
_control ame direet . the life activities of the
“great unthinking mass of Christians.  These

Christians arc so imbucd with the~love of
cach other that not only have they an army,
but thousands of young men who should b

producing  wealth. are  specially drillec
clothed; fed and  reserved to make the
% Christians live like (Christians. And so

that work may ‘be found for the Wweaponless
army and the.army: with lethal .weapons, a
I.lrgu number of ( “hristians are paid to miove
m and out among the mass of Christians who
+don’t- thin®) to create hatréd, ill-feeling and
_disorder, thus.giving excuse, if not a reason,
- for the blu -and “green armics, dand  to
" tegulate, co-ordinate and legalise the action
of the bhic.and green armics we have another
group of Chris ians specially trained to write
~ decreds, -ordances, writs,” statutes, . motions
u,nd orders. And’ behind these armics - of
mischicf-makers, breeders of-disaffection, we
have another bu(l\ ‘of Christian some lmu
~mamed them “ Sons of Ananjas '
“paid: o awrite: incitements to
assagsifiat¢ truth, to pen appeals
lowest and most selfish instincts of manl\md

These seve ml groups of Christians believe .

‘they-have a special mission and are set apart
.to control the mind and body activitiex of
the grc'.n mass of unt‘unl\mq Christians.
And if any one.or any number of the ordm.lr‘\
Christians: makes a  protest against the

travesty .and hlg«plumv of the b of*
Christianity, the " Sons -af .Ananias " libel
and divide them: - The decrée writers. isstic

the writs to conﬁm tlie: bodies of the.-pro-
testing Christians - in- strrm(. ‘places, T
blue army is ordered- tolexccute the decrees
of the decree writers, antl if protest is madc’
against these ,umhrhu(m, decrees the army

-of green-clothed Christians’ are: otdered out -

by the Executives, seen and uﬁsyc—n, toshoot, .
bayonet and coerce the Christians who would
live as Chrhnam Man built in the image of
God kills man.  The
order ‘the killer to-be killed to prove that
killing is no murder. Violence 1s legalised
if done by the State.  Stealing-is legalised
if done by the State. Whether the stealing *
be of- property or life, ‘thousands of. little.
_innocent children and thousands of young.
men and;women are ofiered up as a sacrifice
“on the E{tar of this fearful Moloch—Capital- -

Christianity. * Young men aré¢ taKen' from
" the ‘refining ‘influences of home-and parents .

“as a furthér sacrifice’ to this. fearfy
munster—rents, interest ~ ‘and: profits.
Padraig ‘came to preach thv Iathv.rhood of

God—the Brotherhood of Man’~Community -

of mtemts—-Comfnumty ‘of Gobds—Service
, “Christianity. Is it not {ime wé got back
1o, Padrmg p’\d ].wed b\ his’ message z

AR

To-day what have we after sixteen .

State or Executives |

selfish

THE - IRISH "WORKER

“TROOPS OUT IN BOMBAY”

British Capitalism at Work in the East.

Why Home Rule for India is Opposed.
- London, \\"-L_ln(-c(laﬂ\:
The newspaper posters the other

announced with plenty of red ink :

INDIAN DISTURBANCES.

ouT

day

© o TROOPS

A bricf message from Bombay conveyed
to the British workers and other readers
that native strikers in” the cotton mills had
been concerned in disturbances.  Troops had
been called out and there were a number of
caswalties.  There were no m:lnlnu 1mrmg
the troops, ho\\c\cr

Of course, casualties among the natives
do not matter when it is a question of
upholding the British Raj. That is an
axiom of Imperialism.

It also the belief of some Socialists.
A writer in the Glasgow ™ Forward " recently
decliared that he had lived 33 years in-the
Fast and had been a foreman, bossing
Chinese, Indians, Burmese, and other coolics,
He said they were as happy asclarks on a

IN BOMBAY.

18

small wage aiid a dish of vice a day.  They
didn’t want cducation,

< Mr. Saklatvala, who is well known to
Londpn  Communists, strongly denounces

» hght in India, says Mr.
is essentially and undoubtedly
Workers  and  Peasants
Capitalists.. )

Unfortunately many English foremen and
tradesmen (some of them alleged Socialists)
have not only failed to.give their share
to the workers of India in such’ a fight, bui
are rendering daily assistance to their Capital-
ist paymasters who pay them at a much
higher rate in the East than here at home,

There is not much of a fight between
British Capitalists and Indian Capitalists.
The Indian Capitalist is a protegé and hench-
man of the British Capitalist. He is the
favoured child of the British. Raj, titled and
honoured and  pampered and qqmrdll\
belongs to the non-political or the moderate
political scetion in India.  The Indian Capital-
ist is the mere cats-paw of the larger British
Imperialist’ - Capitalism. The . Indian
Capitalist is no.better and no worsce than the
British Capitalist, but hy 'is entirely the
product of the British Capitalist, who, by
creating such an Andian interest in - India
manages - to preserve his own position.

Saklatvala,

against  DPritish

is

Between the Indian and Brm\h,_ur for -.

that “matter, Capitalist masters ,of ‘any
J)'ltl()ﬂﬂlthes“‘thcrf is little differenée from
the Socialist viewpoint, biit it is contrary to

trdth to describe. Indian masters mlndla‘
- as-more sinful 43 a class than~the B;fmsh

1. arge schemes. of  Welfare for - Workers
have/been ingngurated and worked by Indian
masters as extensively and efficiently as any
European masters*have done.

d . committee  of. advisors - including « Mr.
Sydney Webb, Mr. Tawney ‘and othefs to
devise' the most. generous type of Welfare

: +dn fact one:
anhghlemd Indian firm actually constituted

a fight of ther

Work, -and their work in. this direction has .
not been equalled by all European employers .

_and has been’ imitatéd by several. - other.
Indian. cmployers vl ,/

Gang of Tenorisu

i am not ‘so’ muehi - concerned with the
conduét of the British’ Ca_mtahst or the Indian . .

“,Capitalist as’ both- of themare carrying -on

ds they ought to. carry on believing in their -

own greed and loyalty to thei principles;

The most disgraceful part eaﬂy pldyed
by those British, Managers,  fofernen zneL :
“technical® experts: who go put-to- the Enst 5

and become slave-dnvem over human | being
\v:tho{t\ ever-standing up for thosé who arc'
put ton work ™ uhder’ thcm

#

, '\rIarch lo ]924

They are not only a gang of terrorists over
the poor dumb Indian worke rs, but they are

the blacklegswho go out to the East ang

ereate a situation-which makes the ceonomic
position of British workers in Britain i impos-
sible, and day after day the British . mincr
and worker has got to beware of the formid-
able competition in the Last where labour i
trained and daily ordered “and controlled by
British foremen,

The writer in " Forward”' declares -
““Indian labour is dumb, ignorant, a 'nhm(
“in no way concerned  with poll\'ucx
What a picturc!  Who te—them <o ?
Who holds all the channels_of pubtic cn-
lightenment -

The bolsheviks came into power in Russia

and infive years time have made the Russian

peasantry- as well -as “the Russian. warkers
vogiferous, enlightened, keen  on. their
political-rights and in every way concerned
in the exercise of their political (lmu\(md
privileges.

For'more than a hundred years the British
have been in-India, and for the last seventy-
five years large masses of Indian workers
have been living their daily life directly under
British foremen and superiors, and are.still
left in the condition described by your
correspondent. The assertion is rhade that
Indian workers  would  rather work  for
Luropean firms than for Indian.

There is not the-slightest proof whatever
of it, whereas there is adundant proof of as

many cruel and unreasonable  [Luropean
bosses being found, as Inrlmn bosses, i
India.

The white man when he q()l\ al)r()drl in
other people’s countries is always accustomed
to give to himself a very ‘grand certificate
for his own virtues. -As  sweated and
oppressed labour, in other p;;ﬂs of the world,
out of fear, keeps singing the praises of the
oppressing master, so-also a few/individuals
in dominated countries may be found to

sing the praises of the Oppressors in conquerc od

countries.

Can any Socialist funddm(ntally htlitn
that one nation is cntitled, because of its
nationality, to go and dominate over another
nation and to control it completely.

There have been framerous- strikes in
India which have been spontaneous) and
which have been carried -on under circum-
stances of great hardship by the Indian
workers.  In not one of these strikes the so-

“called British Trade Unionists and *Socialists

who are out in the Jzast have sided with the
men, and’ in “almost. all the strikes these
Eurépean foremen have been: chiefly instru-
mental in calling out the armed police or
even the soldiers with the sole purposc ¢ of
terrorising ‘over -the- ignorant: workers:

. So. far there was only oné man, Mr. Miller
‘of - the Indian Railways, who 51de with
the strikers 4nd he was scntenced to six

months imprisonment and he was abandoned -

by al

the Europeans; —including many
_claimin|

to be Socialists, because they arc

: a.ll subuct to. the : great obsession of preserving

the white man's prestige.  “95%, of the Tea
Plantation Industry ‘is ~under Lluopum
control and -the labour condition is abom-
inable and scandalous on these Tea .estates.

Indian politicians who have attempted t0]
- 8o over and fight for the rights of the men
have been bullied ‘and prévented by - the
Whtte Government , Officials for so doing.

Out of about 140 Coal companies-in India

" more than 1211‘ e:under European control,

"-Inuh

and the miners wages on the -average are
ot above 8d. day, -and - fifty thousand

women are - mel ed in a manner in which .

-any human being ought to. 1)( .mhr\mv(i of
h|mse1f

. Trish Wori:ei 'Lugu-kl.ondon Braneh,_.‘. :

Pmsur MEETING * 7 .

toﬁexplam purposes, of Leéagué.  Qpen dis-
"cussion. Yomust be there.. SRQnda,)', ;

23rd, 7.30.-p.m., Lahour :Centre,
ﬂ th\nrth M s.!., near ** llepmt-

NG
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PLENENT T0 THE IRISH WORKER

A Character Worth

~

a FARTHING

BENNETT Viﬂdicates His ‘C.haracter?

Gets One Farthing Dzimage.s .

Nolan, cross-examined by Sjt. Hanna

Hanna—What age did you go to sea at ?

Nolan—I.was at sea in 1888.

Hanna—What were you doing before )ou went
to sea ?

~Nolan—I was a boy at home working dhnut the
rope works.

Hanna—You left school ‘about 8 or 9 ?

Nolan— I Jeft schonl about 8 or § 2 No, I did not
lcave- until T was about 10.

- Hanna-—This is certainly .a
production- ?

Nolan—A man can educate himself.

Hann: rawas  written
educated man ?

Nolan— That letter was v\rﬂtcn by me and :mbod\

very creditable

by a \‘\:Ei]'

clse
llanna-ﬁ‘Bo \Ou buggcﬁ: you composed f:1n~

Nolan—VYes. Mr. Bennett -will tell

contribute o the papers m Belfast,

you 1

fo correct vour -pdlmg

Mawhenny—VYes,

Wood—Any employment since 1921 ¢

\Iawllennxw’\onc
Cross-examined by Lardner, K.C. 4

You. have no doubt whatever-the direction the
armoured cars came from ?

Mawhenny—Skipper  Street  direction. No;
Victoria Street, Prince’s Strect i is the proper name.
What Nolan said is right.

Lardner- How many of you went to Queen’s
\qumc ?

Mawhennv - (Gives names of deputation.)

Lardner- Where did you come from to go to

Bennett 7
Mawhenny -From St \lar\ = Hall.
Lardner- Were there any “.groups in (ueen's
Square when you arrived ate Bennetts Office 2
Mawhenny: No.
Lardner—-Did they come with yon ?
Mawhenny- -No.
. Lardner- Therefore the groups of 120 men must
have collected between the time yomswent into
Bennett's Office and the time you came out:

Hanna—Did you submit: them to Mr. BE""WLthn} They followed us up from St. Mary's
¥

Nolan—No.
.~ Mr. Wood—You have ot been working since
1921. How many Catholic Seamen have been out
of employment since 1921 7 ¢

Nolan—Over 5 idle, both ’\3txonal Union aml
rt. Union.

C J—Had you ever prev:ously auy conversa-

tion 'with Mr. Bennctt, and it so, where ?

Nolan—No.

; thhﬁawhmuy called and sworn.

* "Bennett’ went ti

-Mr. Wood—Where do you live ?
*‘Mawhenny—49 Ship, Street.
. Wood—Were “you in 1921 a.:member °

National Union of Seamen and Firemen ?

¢ Mawhenny-—I was. .

" Wood—How ‘long had \ou bLen a munbcr ?
+— Mawhenny—From* 1907.

" Wood=—Were you'in St. Mmj s Hall on \Ionda\
- 6th June?. - . R
. Mawhenny—I was. w
Wood—Were you appeinted a, nie
“ deputation ? ;

Mawhenny-—I "was.

+ Wood—Who was . chdlrm.m K

Matvhenny-—John Ward.

Woeod—Did you and.the other members ‘of the”
dqxutahon proceed to Mr. Benneétt's Oﬁﬁcc3

\(a“hennv—“u did, sig.
id you see Mr.

Mawhenny—Yes, - sir. . - .
. Wood—Will vou tell in your own wiy. what
occurred between _the deputatlon ‘and anett
while in ‘the office ?

Mawhenny—Well, Mf. Brady: led 'the deputatxon
ind ‘asked” Bennett for prutectluu and -to -get
Havelock Wilsors, to do mmethmg in the House of
Lommous There was a4 heated discussion, -Mr.
hc tcluplwne and called tm

of the

the

‘Bennett' t.hcre ?' e

Police up.
Wood—efore hie v\cn.l to_the telephone to, scnd
for the Police did he sayv anything ?

Mawhenny —~He ordered us.out: 01 the office, ':.md -

he would charge us.

Weood—Did you hv.u\r lm.. m\ the tdephonc 2
.

What did you hear 7
"Mawhenny--1 heard lum milmg the Police out
of . Musgrave Police. Barracks.
Wood=—Did you then leave the Office ?
Mawhenny--We - then left the Officc.
Wood-—How Jong were you in the Office ? :
Mawhenny --- lmnt ten mmu es, ¢
Wood---When you left the Office and went outside
were-there a mimber of mienin Queen’s ‘Square ¥ 7

Mawhenny- were' in - groups, some
groups larger thah othees.' = .. o Al

Wood—Whin, you went “outside did you see
anythi arriving

Mawhenny- I dlh'«lhltd cm: and polu:e
al'l'lVC
Wood—How many armouréd car:
:Mawhenny - TFhere were two,
* Wood—What id -they do with. the, crowd 2
Mawhenny-— They m(wuj through theni. and
chspersed them..
Wood—What were yvour wages in- 192[j
'\ﬁawhenn) 13 5108, per nmnth .
Wood-—~What' class of

\‘Vood——An \un 4 Catholic 7 - s

\lawhem:y An able . e A
Wood--Whiat is the rating of umr uages now..
. Mawhenny—£10 10, 2 “month. -

© up themselv

’ Fdner-- - Why could they not wait in the, Hall
for you to come back wish the answer from Bennett ? B
.Mawhenny— We could give them the news in

the Square.
Lardner—-Did it ocenr to you that you were going
t¢ make trouble ?
Mawhenny-—We were not out for trouble, there
was enough trouble in the City

Lardner—Were you thinking of leaving {the
Seamen’s Union ? /-

Mawhenny-—No, not if we could get justice
trom it.

Lardner—Why did you bring the mob up to
the Square ? .

Mawhenny- —We did not bring them they came

Lardner—What was the heated  discussion ?
Mawhenny—We¢ were demanding protection for

* sur men to go aboard the ships.

Lardner—Tell 1is what Bennett said.

Mawhenny-—He told us to get out.

Lardner—Did vou think of telegraphing
Havelock Wilson ?

Mawhenny—XNo.

Lardner— Why did you not sit down'there and
then and write to your own headquarters'in London
and, tell them their Secretary had callcd out the

to

Police on, theif members ?

Mawhénny—Do you think we are Lxchequcrs ?
Lardner—Was tlgs letter discussed before writing
to Larkin-? B
Maw henny—It was.
Nolan' was there and then dm.ctcd to
write the letter ?
. Mawhenny—No. .
Lardner—Did_he mluntucl to write ®
\'.la.\vhcnu}—ﬂn id.” .

~ Lardner—How soon’ after you s\cnt to the Hall ? )

Mawhenny- 10ther

Hall,
o

We got ourscl\ es toggther i

hat Hall ?

a‘wh’envn In the Lower Hall of tlle l'r.msport

(.
Lardncr-lio“ sobn after you ha.d seen Bennett ?

» Mawhenny—\Ye had a’ discussion, and thcn went |

into the Hall.
Lardner—[t was there Nolan statu} hu Would

" \write to Larkin dnd you g.'uc Lim .unthfmtw to |

write ?
Maw! hcnnya\ s
- Lardner-—-Letter nuL W nttm untll 1923,

" :uggest you are telling the ‘truth ? :
Ma.whcnn} —1I do.
Lardnc:~‘[ou dite cted thd/lcttl.r to. be wntten
Jin, 1921 2
\ig\\hcnn)w_\n\ man mlght‘
Lardner—In Bennett's- Office”.
'dnd vou wer, ordu*cd out of the place Jioe
“Majpvhenny—Yes.
Lardner—Any muh oumdv W hcn you \\ent m
Mawhenny—No:

. Lardner—Gathered - ‘while you were in ?
Mawhenny—Came down' to’ hear .the ‘report.
Lar(ner—Did e lift-the receiver ¢ the tcléphnue

and put it to his head 7.

jake a nustaka

Ma“hennyﬂwhat otuer pan of his budv wquld .>
he put it to ? - (Loud laughtcr) -

Latdner—-wljxd you see him ? .
Mn.whennyA—I heard him. = e
g Did you  hear him’ give & i

y—-OF coursé 'h gave a- ‘number.
Lardmr——\ oit have net hei':n workx

since’ 19

Do .you

he- heat ~got (‘J‘lp‘

- Mawhcnny —No. *

Lardner-—Wlten  did _ yvou leave the Scamen’s
Union ? .
Mawhenny—Oetober’ ®

Mawhenny—When ‘did' you last, pay your duss
to the Seamen's Union ? 2
Mawhenny—In August.

Lardner—Did you make up vour mind when you
paid your last dues they were going to be your last ?
Mawhenny-—No. If got any conecession.

Lardner—Did you intend to go over to the
Transport Workers” Union ?

Mawhenny--We wanted justice.

Lardner—Had you been in the Transport Union
before that day ?

Mawhenny—No.

Lardner—How did you walk out of, Bennett's
room into the Transport Union Hall ?

Mawhenny-—Because the door was open.

Lardner—Was Nolan the man who wrote that
letter ?

Mawnenny—VYes.

Francis Ward called and sworn.

Wood -Were vou, in 1921, a member of- the
National Union of Scamen and Ficemen #

Ward: -1 wi, in the Belfasf Section.
Wood-- How loma had vou been i mcml)m 3
Ward- ~From 1913,

Wood-—Do you remember in 1921 on Monday,
tth June, being in St Mary's Hall ?

Ward—I do.

Wood-Do  youd remember” a - meeting being
held in it ? ) :

Ward--1 do, il

Wood—~Who presided -at that meeting, ?

Ward—My father, Jobn Ward, was.chairnui:

Wood ou-went on the «lqmm(nm ?

Ward

0.

Wood —After the deputation. hlt the HdH'_dul -

you go up to Queen's Squ(xr(‘?
Ward —Yes, we went to 'Queen’s 'squ.:rv

Wood-—How many  were standing in Queen's
Square ? %
‘Ward- -About 150.° ™

Wood—Do you remember waiting in () 1ecn’s
Square for the dcputatlon to come out. . How ?«m‘ 2
Ward--About ten minutes:
Wood —After the deputation came out of Bennett's -
Office did_anything happen
W, dl'deTW(J armoured cars and abgut twd dozen
police came” up.
Wood-—What diregfinn did t hey come fromi ¥

" Ward—I  was® coming out of a public house
after getting a package of cigarettes and the polu €,
were clearing the people away.

Wood—Do you “know Mr.

Ward =1 .do. _ -

Wood-=-Would M.
see the crowd ?
Vard-—I saw Mr. Bennett lunL outof the window

l,_] —That ‘was before the Police came ?

Ward—Yes, before the Police came. |

"Wood—Do you reme mber b~.(quunt to tlmt
date’ going down to thg $.S. 154 tu get a ]oh H

- WV ali‘]—~ Afterwards. .

Wood-—-Were--you

Ward—I" was.

“Wood- Did . .m}thm" lmppm fo you ?

Ser;mnt Hanna -1 qobject.

Bennéttls oIh:
.4

‘Bennett from his office window

o {mar\l “the” ' Baltie !

_ Bennett ' Galled

\\oodﬂh is alllgul tlmt the,
from Belfast on 21st June.
* Bennett-—2ls
: \\ood -Did thi:

. Baltic
Is !hut the

sailed
date?:

Oy _juhndxfml sec you un th.«t g
s-day ? i
Bennett—I was in Unghlnn atté: nrhng a.meéting.
Wood-—W hcre‘}ruu you on the 20th -2 5
Bennett—I /wis in Bnghmn also.. &) ‘
. A Juror-—Can .you. give ‘the Jui any provl
that vom were in Brlghﬁm on that d %
('\11’. “‘Bemnett: lﬁnds up his diary).
_]urorf“berc wére you on the bth jum A
ett-~I wag in- Dublin.. *
Serjeant Hanna—Mr, Berinett, until \uwrddy
“has your ‘attention ever. been called to what you:
were doing on' the ®th', june or--other davs? -
Bennett--nNo Tt 'was. not.

\Wud re-called. - S wl
\Vood—Do you rémember in U\L mmlt‘h of }une

éomg to "Mr." Bennett ?

Ser(;eant Hanna—I ob; ct. i

~—Mr. Wond, vou will have to show me.

that ;t is material. & do rtnt thmk thm is a matter

an IBSKKG oo ;) I

'




. yom want to ask but do notlet the witness answer.
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Wood-—1f )':'l\ur lordship thinks so 1 will not
pursue it.

Cross-examined by Serjeant Hanmna.

Hanna--You were a member in 19217

Ward—Yes. .

Hanna—-There «were mutmgs from February
down to May ?

Ward- -1 only attended from \[ay.

Hanna—When did the movement start to take
men away from the Seamen’s Union and get them
into the Transport Umiun ?

Ward-—It started in May,

Hanna——\\as your father
movement ?

Ward—None of us were in favour of it.

Hanna—Was not Nolan ?

Ward—No.

Hanna—Brady ?

Ward- No.

1921.
in ‘favour of that

Hanna—Were you in the Square that day you

told Mr. Wood that Bénnett knew there was a
cmnd that he looked out of the window ?
Ward—He came to the window and looked out.

Hanna—You remember chmg Bennett look out
of the window ?

Ward—Yes,

Hanna—Could yeu sce the nthcr people ?

Ward—No.

Hanna-Is the office on the gr‘mmd floor ?

WQrd—Tvm storeys up.

Hanna—How did you fix the 6th June in your
mind ?

Ward-—The date we got money. out of the
Expelled Workers” Fund, and an incident happened
to myself which fixed it in my mind.

Hanna-—Quite sure it was on a \Inndm ?

“Ward— ”mtc sure.

John‘ﬂolln Called and Sworn.

Were you a: member of the \atmu.d ‘»mnun.
and Firemen's Union ?
Nolan—I was, of ‘the Dublin Section.

Wood-—You ‘joined’ the Irish Trinspopt I\,mm the sacs,
General Workers’ Union ? Humm I b

Nolan—Yes. -
- ‘Wood—What date did you join the 1.7
Union, about 22nd September, 19217
Nolan—That is right ? hA 2
- Wood—At. the time you
Seamen’s Union did a number of-other members
lcave as m,ll aml join the Transport Union ?

& GW.

\\'uod-—Tcll my Lord and the, Jury. the reason
. You left the ! \.monal ann and went into the
Jransport Union,

Hanpa:=My Ford, 1 ob]cct

+Mr.* “ood—l was tendering evidence from the
Dublin . Section to show that these men left Mr,
Bennctt's Union when they found out that the
mterest.s were being bctraved I want to prove
this as g fact and justify Mr. Larkin’s comment,
“but if yourlordship thinks it is not in- evidence

L:C.J—1 think there may be. Ask the question

Wood-—N olan, you arenot to answ,
fet: - Why did vou, in September, .
\ahonak ‘Union of *Seamen. and
" ‘Hanna-—T' _object, my lord,
L.C.J—1 do not think it is in
(\djourned for -lunch.)

question
leave the
?

Renumlng——ur. Larkin Called and Sworn.
“'Wood—What is_your name 2,

.arkm—jdmcs Tarkin. o8 e
] ood—’kour age ? - y = g 4
Larkin . ' 2 .
Wood. T bu-n in a witness box hl:lun- ?
Larkin—Yes :

Wood-—Were you at a u-rtam iod in your °
¥ Pc"

life: organiser in” Belfast ?
Larkin—Ygs, in 190713, dlﬁen,nt tum\s
Wood -—~Priorto that'\\ ere you a working seaman ?

Larkin-—Yes
of Scamen.and Firenige
. Woad- - Did umnrgf
Union of Sc:

Larkin
- Woad-« \uu know a man

ze 2 ~cctlon of thoe National

men. and Firemen, in. Belfast ?

called Michael Nofan ?

Larkin +I knew-him well“in, the old days,
Wood - Pid you enroll* him.? .
Larkm I ur’,xm/ul all sections of mien dll(l

womén -and put “them. into their several Unions.
“Wood-<Do you know Mawhenny ? ’

Larkin-—I Know him well,

Wood-— Dfd” vou return -to Duhhn in \pul of
Jast. year ? \ -

Larkin—- Yes, in \prll uf 1923.

Wood - Afe yvou -an * \mcnun Rviu;,tc"’

* Larkin I might -be claimed as ‘a’ ** Bellast
Refugee '’ like Mr. Hapna. 'No, ‘I returnéd. to’

Ireland to where 1 belong .m(l o whu’(‘ all my -
people’ Wong.
Wood—After, you ruurnu:l was there a dlsputu
at the Docks?

Larkin—There had been 4 tigp&}, no dlspule
when 1 “arrived, the. Sailors and Firemen of - th,

* British- and Irish - Stcamers came out owing to a

reduction being forced op “them. They. returned

", to work pending an investigation of their claim,
and ‘one of my first official duties was tu go over

to the ‘Ministry’ of- Industry—

ng: of. )om ofﬁcla.! dutu,s
what is- )our official: position ? P

© “Larkin\-Secretary of the Irish Transport’ and
ﬂenml (“orkers nion “hzch T, foundcd i

left the National

a member of the. National lmun 3

*No, I_reor, E,.mwcd themy'in Belfast in- 1907 .,

,' WL T T

Wood—Mr. Joseph McGrath was amongst those
present ?

Hanna—]I- object.

Wood-—Subsequent
dispute on the quays ?
~ Larkin—The men came out again.

to your letter there was a

\\ood—Dnd they. come out or werc thcy locked -

t ?

Larkin—The Sailors 1ndf Firemen came out on
ne ship on the question of wages.

& \\no&l’-Waq t‘}lxc dispute between the Unions #
Larkin - The National Sailors' and Fircmen’s
['nion in London had arranged for a reduction’in
Wages - )

, Hanna—I object.

‘ Wood—Tell as shortly as you can—

Larkin—A remnant of the Sailors’ and Firemen's
Union had agreed to take a reduced wage and our
men refused to work with them.

Wood—Was there a lock out or stnke at the
beginning of June ?

Larkin—It commenced about 16th June.
‘pot in Dublin when the strike occurred.

Wood—In the month of June d!d you sée what
is now called an * advertisément” in the daily

apers ?

Larkin—I got it in a letter form from a Union
official and subsequently saw it in the Evcning
papers.

Wood-—That is the letter of the '7"th June
(reads same).

Wood —Had vou prior to that received this

= letter from Michael Nolan ?

Larkin—A few days before going to_press.

Wood—Had you any previous communication
from Michael Nolan, directly or indirectly ?

Larkin—1 dic not kngw he'was living I had not
seen him for close on 12 vears., I'knew a Michael
Nolan had been shot, but did not know it was
the same Michacl Nolan.

Wood--It has been sugl.,cstul you inspired the
w ntmg of that-letter, is that so ?

Larkin —No. When 1 got that letter T went
down to the Head Line boats; [ made enquiries

I was

L.

Anvway, vou made enquirics.

L.xrkm-— es, n{y lord.

Wood—Did you ascertain, amongst other things,
that two more ships——

- Hanna—1I object.

Wood—Did you make enquiries in Belfast ?

Larkin—Yes, [ sent a man to Belfast.

Wood—And "then did you put in the létter and
the circular letter ?

Larkin—I printed the letter and the circul:r.

letter and I made a comment.

- Wood— Do you believe, did you believe then
and do you still believe that the statements in that
letter are true in substance and 'in fact ?

Larkin —Lctter ~ sent by Michael Nolan #
Certainly.
L.C.J.—Were they published by vou in good

faith for the benefit of the public ?
-Larkin—Certainly, my lord. -
1

Hanna— .ul)]vct that is for the jnr\
L.C.J. 11'it can be put as a gencral question,
Wood ‘on say; commentmg on the first letter,

Nolan's letter, "' the above letter was written by a
man_going to sea for over 20 Years, he briefly
touches on the bitter ‘experiences of* Catholic
workmen experienced during the years 1920 and
1921 in the City of Belfast™ ? ..
Larkin—Bennett * stood as an
Unionist Candjidate. =
Hanna -1 ¢bjéct, my lord.

Independent

Weod-—1s it “true that ! the gentleman who,.

it is alleged, ctiv d\ participated in the pcrse(.utwn’

Of ‘thesc Catholic seamen and ﬁrunvn{ is a” Mr,

.} H. - Bennett ' 2
Larki®®-1 believe hc dld as a hhmn .m&l an
Orangeman,
\\oott- After setting, out thc circular letter vou
say ' the advertisenent speaks .for ‘itself (down
h) the word ‘Belfast) ™' - is 1t true 2 =

1, Jocked out.’ 3
7 Hanna—I object to these thing: Ui mp,' lvmught i
Wood™ Continuing -to read, comment—" When
- abont 870 unarmed: men, 300, oddl women; 213
.childrén < were murdered.”” Is this true?  Were
00 - Cathoiics and  their families Lln\cn from,
their homes “in " Belfast ?
Larkin—That is uu\h 8
amongst, them.
Wood-—In " this

My own |~'Imi\'cs wcro

arm]n \ir
an dagont-provocatenr” and deliberately, “and -with
malice, lend himself to tlu. ITpOses of the .\‘hippin-v
Federation of L.ondon ?

o Larkin—He ‘was urkumunb\xdl» i L l\:l.l'lxu-l

A6 také our men's’

-, Hapna—1. object. 7 ? i
Wood-+Mr.  Larkin-— answer - th\\\. questions

* sbortly—" Why ‘should-Mr. Bennett be permitted

»

to' act as an agent-provocateur and: Llehberatcly, ;

and with malice, lgnd himself to the’
.the Shipping . Federation of Jnndun
pkd of, Jushﬁcahon As it tmc?
Larkin--It ‘is . trige.
Wiobd—" We are glad he Jiad i
- He has beep: workmg 1060 Yung unider ¢og
“has' been ‘well 'said, this Union that .
the members pay. a shilling a Week to get
‘i wages, and they only exist as a Union’ beca
. Imy are prepared at all times to- do- ure""dm) nmk
- o\ghe shipowners of Eh,g!dnd “and takiyidi
[rom “the Shipping I‘cdératmn f

Larkin-—Hc \upphcd scabs. 'Whik‘ “Ourmen \verc_‘

Larkin urmplzum J
\\h\, should Mr. Bennett be perniitted ‘to act as -

ever scabs are wanted the Shipping I‘edcratlon
always knows where to go to. Whenever thugs or
agent-provocateurs are required . the Shipping
Federation knows the .address to write to, ~and
they are always supplied.

»
Thursday, 28th February, 1924,

May it please your Lordship and Gentlemen
of the Jury, I have again to address you on behalf
of Mr. Larkin.

As'I told you yesterday at the outset, his Defénces
were two, firstly justification, that is he pleads the
truth of the matters alleged to be complained of,
and secondly fair comment on a matter of pullic
interest, viz., that he honastlyﬂbeheved what
‘he wrote to be true, and that he-fairly and honestly
believed what he wrote, mid I ask yaii tofind these -
two issues in favour -of Larkin.

First of all, what I would hke to draw your atten-
tion to is this, that when the Plaintiff comes. here
and claims heavy damages from you, almost

" windictive damages, the first thing he boasts of

%

is that so far as. his. membership of that Unjon.
is concerned he ‘has sufféred no loss, in fact it
increased from week' to week, and therefore,

I would suggest so far as his occupation is concerned
he is not imperilled: You saw his ‘manner and
attitude ‘in the box and I would suggést to you
that it was not the manner of a man who came .
before you as an m)urcd man, and again, Gentlemen
of the Jury, he tells you that the ** Irish Worker*- -
is nmot a paper which is much read within his
province, in fact scarcely read at all.,

I will go further than that, as you listened to
the cross-cxamination of Mr. Larkin's witnesses
yesterday and of Mr. Larkin himself, was it not an
inference from that cross-examination, was it not
a fact that this action is bclongmg to and part
of the chain by which it is sdught ‘to bind Mr.
Larkin, it is not a bona fide action, but that on
the other hand it is what I would describe part of
the barbed wire entanglement'of Jaw in which they
seek to crush and destroy Mr. Larkin, and if you
take that view. of it, and I say you are bound 1o
from Mr. Bennett's own ¢vidence and attitude in,
the box and his instructions to ‘Counsel for cross-
examination, if yvou take that view, then keep that
in your minds when you are (Inlmfy with the issue
of justlﬁutmn

On the issuc of Juatmuxlwn Gentlemen of the
Jury, was I-not right yesterday when I said it
was a simple ‘issue, do you believe Mr. Bennctt
as to that incident. of the 6th. éf June, or do you
‘believe thi: three witnesses or any of them produce:d
from Belfast ? That is for you, they are common
men, they arce -tupld men if you like, at least Some
of them_ they are ignorant men if you like, are -
each .and every one of them . tellifig you. what' ix
unitrue, or are they telling you the truth ?

What surprises me, and possibly what surprises
you is that Mr. Larkin in the situation in which
he 'stood in Court here should have-any. witnesses
from Belfdst who stood by him in ‘Dublin -and who
will have to return to Belfast.  Mr. Larkin was
assailed on Tuesday as.an ' American Refugee ™
on \’\"e(lncﬁ(lay as a ‘* Deportee,” on TFuesday as i
* criminal,”” on Wednesday as a ‘ ticket of leave
man.” - (Lord Chief Justicc: Oh, na, Lardner:
“as a man with an undetermined . sentence.’
\Ir Wood: 1T nk ypu.) Well .as a man with

* an’ undetermined: senfence ”* he has been assailed,

_he.has been’ traduced and sought to be despised.

He was challenged as a man_who, dare not visit
Belfast, that'is the man who had- to bring witnesses .
from Belfast, he brought them and you have secn
them you have seen and heard Nolan, Mawhenny
and \‘Vanl and’it 15 for you to say whether you

_believe’ thém, and haviiig - being brought from

Belfast, common men and: ignorant mer, do you
Dbelieve them ?

What .\bg.ut Nolan, “hat do you think Of the
treatment of Nolan? Assailed as a m'xl bf.‘dllr
the instructions.of Mr. Bengett: --assailed
$.a seducer 6f another man’s wife on tlu instric-
tions of Mr. Benrett, without one pdrtmlc ot -
evidence to support it, not even the name of the
man given; he is assailed as a brawler with marks
on his face, and Gentlémen of the Jury, not even
in"a banttring way, he is a avife-beater, a seducer

“of anpther mian’s wife, and the ‘greatest grievance

. of all was that'he had eaten an ‘Orange Lily; that

. for protccr.wn

“believe Mawhenny-

was on the instructions of Mr. Bennett. Ail. this
was said in vehement l‘mgl ge by \er]u..mt Hannaz,
Serjea Hanna ¢ acted oninstractions,
lie never ;:uu\ uut\me thc CItis.an index to the
attitude of mau. who |~\l‘ tiff here to-day

th
~and asks ﬁlﬂamaou from - Mr. Farkin, and these

‘three men’ tiey ‘are assailéd because they have nol
been in employment since 1921: I suggest that the
inference is they were seamen in Belfast, they were
.Catholic seamely,"and were not members of Be‘nnall s
Union.

Gentlemen of the Jury; ghg
fhis- incident occurred, thé-visit to the Office in
Queen’s Square, as ‘\flcmday the 6th of June, and
Nolan has reason to remember that date because

m the daté on \\_huh

- -on the Saturday of that week he himself, and the '

-workmeéh of his arca, recelved a visit which brought
death and desolation into their street, 8 were killed

-and 40 wounded.  He tells you that on the prévious

Monday he had gone as & member of the deuptation.
for, a’ protést meeting. . Do you
Do, you believée Ward ? Do. you
Mr: ‘Lardner: very, skilfully .
Ahd cery effectively. on bis 1rm:—cxamlm Uf»
vhe uy eonfnwd him zis m the streets, but yoi

believe him 7
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Wood-—1f )':'l\ur lordship thinks so 1 will not
pursue it.

Cross-examined by Serjeant Hanmna.

Hanna--You were a member in 19217

Ward—Yes. .

Hanna—-There «were mutmgs from February
down to May ?

Ward- -1 only attended from \[ay.

Hanna—When did the movement start to take
men away from the Seamen’s Union and get them
into the Transport Umiun ?

Ward-—It started in May,

Hanna——\\as your father
movement ?

Ward—None of us were in favour of it.

Hanna—Was not Nolan ?

Ward—No.

Hanna—Brady ?

Ward- No.

1921.
in ‘favour of that

Hanna—Were you in the Square that day you

told Mr. Wood that Bénnett knew there was a
cmnd that he looked out of the window ?
Ward—He came to the window and looked out.

Hanna—You remember chmg Bennett look out
of the window ?

Ward—Yes,

Hanna—Could yeu sce the nthcr people ?

Ward—No.

Hanna-Is the office on the gr‘mmd floor ?

WQrd—Tvm storeys up.

Hanna—How did you fix the 6th June in your
mind ?

Ward-—The date we got money. out of the
Expelled Workers” Fund, and an incident happened
to myself which fixed it in my mind.

Hanna-—Quite sure it was on a \Inndm ?

“Ward— ”mtc sure.

John‘ﬂolln Called and Sworn.

Were you a: member of the \atmu.d ‘»mnun.
and Firemen's Union ?
Nolan—I was, of ‘the Dublin Section.

Wood-—You ‘joined’ the Irish Trinspopt I\,mm the sacs,
General Workers’ Union ? Humm I b

Nolan—Yes. -
- ‘Wood—What date did you join the 1.7
Union, about 22nd September, 19217
Nolan—That is right ? hA 2
- Wood—At. the time you
Seamen’s Union did a number of-other members
lcave as m,ll aml join the Transport Union ?

& GW.

\\'uod-—Tcll my Lord and the, Jury. the reason
. You left the ! \.monal ann and went into the
Jransport Union,

Hanpa:=My Ford, 1 ob]cct

+Mr.* “ood—l was tendering evidence from the
Dublin . Section to show that these men left Mr,
Bennctt's Union when they found out that the
mterest.s were being bctraved I want to prove
this as g fact and justify Mr. Larkin’s comment,
“but if yourlordship thinks it is not in- evidence

L:C.J—1 think there may be. Ask the question

Wood-—N olan, you arenot to answ,
fet: - Why did vou, in September, .
\ahonak ‘Union of *Seamen. and
" ‘Hanna-—T' _object, my lord,
L.C.J—1 do not think it is in
(\djourned for -lunch.)

question
leave the
?

Renumlng——ur. Larkin Called and Sworn.
“'Wood—What is_your name 2,

.arkm—jdmcs Tarkin. o8 e
] ood—’kour age ? - y = g 4
Larkin . ' 2 .
Wood. T bu-n in a witness box hl:lun- ?
Larkin—Yes :

Wood-—Were you at a u-rtam iod in your °
¥ Pc"

life: organiser in” Belfast ?
Larkin—Ygs, in 190713, dlﬁen,nt tum\s
Wood -—~Priorto that'\\ ere you a working seaman ?

Larkin-—Yes
of Scamen.and Firenige
. Woad- - Did umnrgf
Union of Sc:

Larkin
- Woad-« \uu know a man

ze 2 ~cctlon of thoe National

men. and Firemen, in. Belfast ?

called Michael Nofan ?

Larkin +I knew-him well“in, the old days,
Wood - Pid you enroll* him.? .
Larkm I ur’,xm/ul all sections of mien dll(l

womén -and put “them. into their several Unions.
“Wood-<Do you know Mawhenny ? ’

Larkin-—I Know him well,

Wood-— Dfd” vou return -to Duhhn in \pul of
Jast. year ? \ -

Larkin—- Yes, in \prll uf 1923.

Wood - Afe yvou -an * \mcnun Rviu;,tc"’

* Larkin I might -be claimed as ‘a’ ** Bellast
Refugee '’ like Mr. Hapna. 'No, ‘I returnéd. to’

Ireland to where 1 belong .m(l o whu’(‘ all my -
people’ Wong.
Wood—After, you ruurnu:l was there a dlsputu
at the Docks?

Larkin—There had been 4 tigp&}, no dlspule
when 1 “arrived, the. Sailors and Firemen of - th,

* British- and Irish - Stcamers came out owing to a

reduction being forced op “them. They. returned

", to work pending an investigation of their claim,
and ‘one of my first official duties was tu go over

to the ‘Ministry’ of- Industry—

ng: of. )om ofﬁcla.! dutu,s
what is- )our official: position ? P

© “Larkin\-Secretary of the Irish Transport’ and
ﬂenml (“orkers nion “hzch T, foundcd i

left the National

a member of the. National lmun 3

*No, I_reor, E,.mwcd themy'in Belfast in- 1907 .,

,' WL T T

Wood—Mr. Joseph McGrath was amongst those
present ?

Hanna—]I- object.

Wood-—Subsequent
dispute on the quays ?
~ Larkin—The men came out again.

to your letter there was a

\\ood—Dnd they. come out or werc thcy locked -

t ?

Larkin—The Sailors 1ndf Firemen came out on
ne ship on the question of wages.

& \\no&l’-Waq t‘}lxc dispute between the Unions #
Larkin - The National Sailors' and Fircmen’s
['nion in London had arranged for a reduction’in
Wages - )

, Hanna—I object.

‘ Wood—Tell as shortly as you can—

Larkin—A remnant of the Sailors’ and Firemen's
Union had agreed to take a reduced wage and our
men refused to work with them.

Wood—Was there a lock out or stnke at the
beginning of June ?

Larkin—It commenced about 16th June.
‘pot in Dublin when the strike occurred.

Wood—In the month of June d!d you sée what
is now called an * advertisément” in the daily

apers ?

Larkin—I got it in a letter form from a Union
official and subsequently saw it in the Evcning
papers.

Wood-—That is the letter of the '7"th June
(reads same).

Wood —Had vou prior to that received this

= letter from Michael Nolan ?

Larkin—A few days before going to_press.

Wood—Had you any previous communication
from Michael Nolan, directly or indirectly ?

Larkin—1 dic not kngw he'was living I had not
seen him for close on 12 vears., I'knew a Michael
Nolan had been shot, but did not know it was
the same Michacl Nolan.

Wood--It has been sugl.,cstul you inspired the
w ntmg of that-letter, is that so ?

Larkin —No. When 1 got that letter T went
down to the Head Line boats; [ made enquiries

I was

L.

Anvway, vou made enquirics.

L.xrkm-— es, n{y lord.

Wood—Did you ascertain, amongst other things,
that two more ships——

- Hanna—1I object.

Wood—Did you make enquiries in Belfast ?

Larkin—Yes, [ sent a man to Belfast.

Wood—And "then did you put in the létter and
the circular letter ?

Larkin—I printed the letter and the circul:r.

letter and I made a comment.

- Wood— Do you believe, did you believe then
and do you still believe that the statements in that
letter are true in substance and 'in fact ?

Larkin —Lctter ~ sent by Michael Nolan #
Certainly.
L.C.J.—Were they published by vou in good

faith for the benefit of the public ?
-Larkin—Certainly, my lord. -
1

Hanna— .ul)]vct that is for the jnr\
L.C.J. 11'it can be put as a gencral question,
Wood ‘on say; commentmg on the first letter,

Nolan's letter, "' the above letter was written by a
man_going to sea for over 20 Years, he briefly
touches on the bitter ‘experiences of* Catholic
workmen experienced during the years 1920 and
1921 in the City of Belfast™ ? ..
Larkin—Bennett * stood as an
Unionist Candjidate. =
Hanna -1 ¢bjéct, my lord.

Independent

Weod-—1s it “true that ! the gentleman who,.

it is alleged, ctiv d\ participated in the pcrse(.utwn’

Of ‘thesc Catholic seamen and ﬁrunvn{ is a” Mr,

.} H. - Bennett ' 2
Larki®®-1 believe hc dld as a hhmn .m&l an
Orangeman,
\\oott- After setting, out thc circular letter vou
say ' the advertisenent speaks .for ‘itself (down
h) the word ‘Belfast) ™' - is 1t true 2 =

1, Jocked out.’ 3
7 Hanna—I object to these thing: Ui mp,' lvmught i
Wood™ Continuing -to read, comment—" When
- abont 870 unarmed: men, 300, oddl women; 213
.childrén < were murdered.”” Is this true?  Were
00 - Cathoiics and  their families Lln\cn from,
their homes “in " Belfast ?
Larkin—That is uu\h 8
amongst, them.
Wood-—In " this

My own |~'Imi\'cs wcro

arm]n \ir
an dagont-provocatenr” and deliberately, “and -with
malice, lend himself to tlu. ITpOses of the .\‘hippin-v
Federation of L.ondon ?

o Larkin—He ‘was urkumunb\xdl» i L l\:l.l'lxu-l

A6 také our men's’

-, Hapna—1. object. 7 ? i
Wood-+Mr.  Larkin-— answer - th\\\. questions

* sbortly—" Why ‘should-Mr. Bennett be permitted

»

to' act as an agent-provocateur and: Llehberatcly, ;

and with malice, lgnd himself to the’
.the Shipping . Federation of Jnndun
pkd of, Jushﬁcahon As it tmc?
Larkin--It ‘is . trige.
Wiobd—" We are glad he Jiad i
- He has beep: workmg 1060 Yung unider ¢og
“has' been ‘well 'said, this Union that .
the members pay. a shilling a Week to get
‘i wages, and they only exist as a Union’ beca
. Imy are prepared at all times to- do- ure""dm) nmk
- o\ghe shipowners of Eh,g!dnd “and takiyidi
[rom “the Shipping I‘cdératmn f

Larkin-—Hc \upphcd scabs. 'Whik‘ “Ourmen \verc_‘

Larkin urmplzum J
\\h\, should Mr. Bennett be perniitted ‘to act as -

ever scabs are wanted the Shipping I‘edcratlon
always knows where to go to. Whenever thugs or
agent-provocateurs are required . the Shipping
Federation knows the .address to write to, ~and
they are always supplied.

»
Thursday, 28th February, 1924,

May it please your Lordship and Gentlemen
of the Jury, I have again to address you on behalf
of Mr. Larkin.

As'I told you yesterday at the outset, his Defénces
were two, firstly justification, that is he pleads the
truth of the matters alleged to be complained of,
and secondly fair comment on a matter of pullic
interest, viz., that he honastlyﬂbeheved what
‘he wrote to be true, and that he-fairly and honestly
believed what he wrote, mid I ask yaii tofind these -
two issues in favour -of Larkin.

First of all, what I would hke to draw your atten-
tion to is this, that when the Plaintiff comes. here
and claims heavy damages from you, almost

" windictive damages, the first thing he boasts of

%

is that so far as. his. membership of that Unjon.
is concerned he ‘has sufféred no loss, in fact it
increased from week' to week, and therefore,

I would suggest so far as his occupation is concerned
he is not imperilled: You saw his ‘manner and
attitude ‘in the box and I would suggést to you
that it was not the manner of a man who came .
before you as an m)urcd man, and again, Gentlemen
of the Jury, he tells you that the ** Irish Worker*- -
is nmot a paper which is much read within his
province, in fact scarcely read at all.,

I will go further than that, as you listened to
the cross-cxamination of Mr. Larkin's witnesses
yesterday and of Mr. Larkin himself, was it not an
inference from that cross-examination, was it not
a fact that this action is bclongmg to and part
of the chain by which it is sdught ‘to bind Mr.
Larkin, it is not a bona fide action, but that on
the other hand it is what I would describe part of
the barbed wire entanglement'of Jaw in which they
seek to crush and destroy Mr. Larkin, and if you
take that view. of it, and I say you are bound 1o
from Mr. Bennett's own ¢vidence and attitude in,
the box and his instructions to ‘Counsel for cross-
examination, if yvou take that view, then keep that
in your minds when you are (Inlmfy with the issue
of justlﬁutmn

On the issuc of Juatmuxlwn Gentlemen of the
Jury, was I-not right yesterday when I said it
was a simple ‘issue, do you believe Mr. Bennctt
as to that incident. of the 6th. éf June, or do you
‘believe thi: three witnesses or any of them produce:d
from Belfast ? That is for you, they are common
men, they arce -tupld men if you like, at least Some
of them_ they are ignorant men if you like, are -
each .and every one of them . tellifig you. what' ix
unitrue, or are they telling you the truth ?

What surprises me, and possibly what surprises
you is that Mr. Larkin in the situation in which
he 'stood in Court here should have-any. witnesses
from Belfdst who stood by him in ‘Dublin -and who
will have to return to Belfast.  Mr. Larkin was
assailed on Tuesday as.an ' American Refugee ™
on \’\"e(lncﬁ(lay as a ‘* Deportee,” on TFuesday as i
* criminal,”” on Wednesday as a ‘ ticket of leave
man.” - (Lord Chief Justicc: Oh, na, Lardner:
“as a man with an undetermined . sentence.’
\Ir Wood: 1T nk ypu.) Well .as a man with

* an’ undetermined: senfence ”* he has been assailed,

_he.has been’ traduced and sought to be despised.

He was challenged as a man_who, dare not visit
Belfast, that'is the man who had- to bring witnesses .
from Belfast, he brought them and you have secn
them you have seen and heard Nolan, Mawhenny
and \‘Vanl and’it 15 for you to say whether you

_believe’ thém, and haviiig - being brought from

Belfast, common men and: ignorant mer, do you
Dbelieve them ?

What .\bg.ut Nolan, “hat do you think Of the
treatment of Nolan? Assailed as a m'xl bf.‘dllr
the instructions.of Mr. Bengett: --assailed
$.a seducer 6f another man’s wife on tlu instric-
tions of Mr. Benrett, without one pdrtmlc ot -
evidence to support it, not even the name of the
man given; he is assailed as a brawler with marks
on his face, and Gentlémen of the Jury, not even
in"a banttring way, he is a avife-beater, a seducer

“of anpther mian’s wife, and the ‘greatest grievance

. of all was that'he had eaten an ‘Orange Lily; that

. for protccr.wn

“believe Mawhenny-

was on the instructions of Mr. Bennett. Ail. this
was said in vehement l‘mgl ge by \er]u..mt Hannaz,
Serjea Hanna ¢ acted oninstractions,
lie never ;:uu\ uut\me thc CItis.an index to the
attitude of mau. who |~\l‘ tiff here to-day

th
~and asks ﬁlﬂamaou from - Mr. Farkin, and these

‘three men’ tiey ‘are assailéd because they have nol
been in employment since 1921: I suggest that the
inference is they were seamen in Belfast, they were
.Catholic seamely,"and were not members of Be‘nnall s
Union.

Gentlemen of the Jury; ghg
fhis- incident occurred, thé-visit to the Office in
Queen’s Square, as ‘\flcmday the 6th of June, and
Nolan has reason to remember that date because

m the daté on \\_huh

- -on the Saturday of that week he himself, and the '

-workmeéh of his arca, recelved a visit which brought
death and desolation into their street, 8 were killed

-and 40 wounded.  He tells you that on the prévious

Monday he had gone as & member of the deuptation.
for, a’ protést meeting. . Do you
Do, you believée Ward ? Do. you
Mr: ‘Lardner: very, skilfully .
Ahd cery effectively. on bis 1rm:—cxamlm Uf»
vhe uy eonfnwd him zis m the streets, but yoi

believe him 7
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have. to ctgnsidcr'this, whetlier or not in fact that
wvisit occurred, and how did Mr. Bennett meet it,
It is suggested to you he {id not know until it
was mentioned the date, we ided from the first
that -theregwas no doubt i s mind as to the
articular ‘date on which that visit took place;
if there~was any doubt in his mind as to whether
or not it ever took place he could have asked .the
date,.but he refrained. He comes to you with an
alibi for- June and half of July, and Mr. Bennett,
who has refrained from getting the particulars,
has brought before you his alibi for Junc and July,
and the man who is District Secretary and who
has the interests of the Catholic. and Protestant
workmeén at heart his own cvidence is that he
attended during all"those years of strifc, struggle
and desolation, be attended one protest meeting
of Catholic Seamen and two committee meetings,
all before the 9th of May, and we have in cvidenec
that after the 9th of May, in June, there was travail
in Belfast and he never went to another meeting.
" He avoided asking the date. If there was any
doubt in his mind abhout ‘the incident, he could have
got_the date and the hour. He never applied.
Gentlemen of the Jury, this alibi speaks for itself,
" the District Sécretary was out of Belfast whilst
~——desolation was raging amongst the Catholic
inhabitants. _ -
Gentlemen, - on his own. statement he never
attended any meeting, committec or mass meeting
. after the 9th of May, and any efforts he made,
according to his own ¢vidénce, were prior to the
1st of May, when: the sum total of his efforts for
the Catholic Scamen of Belfast’ was 'that he was
_ able, through his interview with Sir James Craig,
%o arrange that some of the men should sign on
at the Custom House instead of going through the
" Island, and for'doing that he is a suspect. with the
other workers in Belfast. His duty’is to carc for
a1l members.  Heis a suspect with the Protestants
‘of Belfast because he.does his duty. Which side
was he serving ? ) =
- Gentlemen, let

me :‘;ay this, when you look at the

. full facts'and then about this Diary, s Diary was
not made evidence until yesterday, Hut, Gentlemen,
the real test of the truth of Nolan is etter Ttself.

- If you look at that letter you will see this, first

look at what. you are asked to believe. [ When
Serjeant Harina was . cross-cxamining Nolan
yesterday one of the matters was this—hc suggested
‘that letter was not signed, that it was not a genuine
Jetter, he said-it was an inspired’ document, and in
*order. to impress you with the fulness of that
“Tmeasure
. ““ Look 2
. pétfect in_composition,
. which you copied. will ask | 1
' Jetter and what you will find is. this, there are
" twenty-four words in the four pages mis-spelt.
Nolan could riot evenspell the name of the President
of -the a il C !
/" the name of Mr."Bennett, the Sccrctary, and coming
| from Belfast he co‘ulg not welllt 'spetl}] "I l:-tetllglon ”
.20 1y.. Other words mis-spelt in- the er were
v ‘correctly e
‘! propaganda,”’
and ‘' address.”

at . that -letter—turning over the pages
‘pérfect cvery way, a letter

“ com-

The

* the letter was word for W Ad you will find on

of .iniquity he put it to the witness:.

Union'—Havelock Wilson—correctly, nor -

** shipped ",

¢ print, otherwise:

!

I°will ask vou to take that

every line of the letter that he-always uscd capitals, -
' :that'is'the educated man who copiéd the document,

mind you, that was the test which was applied to
him in the witness box.
test, it is a genuine letter. . S )
" You then come to ‘the ne.\‘t_n_mttc:r, it s th_ls,
“witen you look at the letter-you wﬂi firid it contains
"a number of matters, it starls.a_:, an outline of the
* _position of Catholic Seamen in*Belfast from l;DQl[
10 1923, The first thing on the face ofghe document
you will see he mentioned about the terr_xblg:_ct_m(lx-'
Yions in Belfast. - He then mmentions this inciden-
tally:aboit Bennett, how they nged over as a
resulof their: treatment-in Belfast 1n, thissUnion
to the Transport Union, ‘He theri deals with the
specific, incident. of the.' Melmore Head >’ ,scalppe;é_

on by Bennett’s men and thic appeal to the Transpo
 that nothing done, 8 :
ore ships, the *“ Fair
and if something

Union, that thére was
comes to’this ' ave have two more
Head ' and the ‘‘ Bengal Head

is. not doné they will take crews from the scab

Union, .We have thé ' Rathlin Head Rg
“Fair Head " ‘dué here on Monday. You
. have. the ¥ Carrigan Head ** in Dublin, and I think
‘the time las come that action should be taken- with
this line- of ships.”” What the man ‘was writing
is 'this, a letter of appeal to t}lc man who had
fornferly re-organized the Scamen's ‘
4 letter from the Seamien of Belfast who had no
emptoyment from 1921 He. showed what was
happening, he asks. Mr. 1 e actio
15 that the'king of a letter thait Mr, Larlan, had he
wanted to use it i his action, that he \Vindin'sp Te.?
1 suggest to you it is noty.and when you bave ‘had
it proved- that cveryggnatter in that. 1ctfﬁ{>&l\il;llf
challenged and wuncha Nolan was tellifig

what was ‘happening ificjde 3
‘that,in(\;ident. p}i)n S'gu ﬁ it is truer 2 If you
believe  that letter is’ true -as rcpreseming.wl']%t
. happened -that is .an ‘end of the case. . Do you
‘believe: Nolan? ‘Do’ you bélieve
that he ordered them away from
you believe this alibi 2 = | e
" “What'was.the pqsition of Mr. Larkin as {;)ebl' :
i, Secretary to the Transport Union here in Dubin &
" The ships were arriving, he went dows, hé tells you,
4o the ships, Ie also sent to,Belfast,'and' of ©
- (Mr. Larkin had receiv
© “- @ 'seaman whom he knew, 2 seaman w

National
and the

Union in’Belfast, .

f.arkin to take action: .

that ‘it is true .
the office, or do .,

neral -

Take him by their Own
: .

nd he findlly

¥
o this letter from @ seamas, .
e, Hus, e ‘hom he_hpd» :

“on the Maritime Board.

- Siggest that

the things Mr. Larkin is.cha ged w
used the words ** a Bolshevist.”

 majority . rule,”

- if any, that it was understood by the sed
dockers at, the ‘Port. -

“word that he hon

- interests of the Ship:
really served \ghen

- the circumstances are

- shipping” magnates. The’

‘Press

of - the' 8¢

carolled when he re-organized the Seamen’s Scetion
in Belfast. He was called upon, he acted, and he
wrote. © Mr, Larkin may be imperfect, he is im-
perfect, but he_is human. Mr. Larkin is a man
who, on the evidence before you, has tiered for
his honest convictions whether they are right or
wrong ; to him it was the agonized cry from the
helpless, the neglected and persecuted in, Belfast.
May the earth never be without men who will answer
such a cry even to the death penalty ifsnegessary.
Larkin acted, Larkin wrote, Larkin acted .courage-
ously, fearlessly, vchemently if you will, but you
who belicve in the principles of justice and of
right, vou will do him justice, if not honourn The
letter was the true letter of a man whois telling
and relating true facts. If is a truc letter coming
from Nolan. You have seen him and I ask vou to
belicve that the plea of justification is true. 1f you
do it it is an end of the Plaintiff's case. .
Every citizen is cntitled to pass fair comment
upon matters of public interest, and so long as it
is fairly and honestly donc and believed, the Jaw
says a man is entitled to exercise the right of f¥ir
comment, and particulakly persons svho have even

a paper under their cofitrol like the ** Irish Worker.,”

As to the fair comment which T suggest to you

- that Mr. Larkin has made, it is the duty of the
_ Plaintiff to prove that it is dishonest and untrue.

The men came to Bennett as their protector
to hold a protest mecting ; they were turned out
of the office with a threat of the police, and when
they came. outside the police arrived. This is
stated in the letter, a genuine letter, from a former
member of the Union. Larkin_honestly believed
it was true and does honestly believe it is truc.
There is no proof, or no suggested proof, that at
any time undér any’ circumstances a move was
‘made by the ‘Presiilent in the Imperial Parliament
or. elsewhere to protect these Catholic seamen
in  Belfast.

The other matter which I am sure ‘has been
rivetted ‘upon your attention is the alleged use
Mr. Larkin makes of the word ** agent-provocateur.”
Mr. Larkin was.asked for a defirition and he gave it
—an emissary of the Shipping Federation, a stool-
pidgeon of the Shipping Federation- -and he bases
it upon what he tells you, what is admitted. The
facts weré stated and introduced by Serjeant
Hanna. Bennett's Union represents the Scamen
His Union has an agrec-
ment with the Board, the object of which is ‘to
establish one source of supply of seamen.  Such
an agreement may be right in law, but the scamen
who are not members of the Union have a right to
protest -against it; and if the seamen of Dublin
find that the man who' is their representative ix
also the representative of the Free State Govérnment
on that Board, my comment is ‘that it is left to.
Mr. Bennett o be one of those miraculous persons
who can faithfully serve two masters.

You will do justice as between Larkin sand
Bennett. lLarkin seeks to serve the seamen, not

- masters  or governments.

et us understand the meaning of the libellous
word* agent-provocateur.”’  Before you'came into
this box, if you had been going home in the tram
or in the train or in a motor car, and you bought
and were reading a copy of the ' Irish Worker,”
and read in it th¢ word * agent-provocatéur,’

< ‘what would" you think it meant, what, would ‘it

convey to any of vour minds *  Of course Serjeant
Hanna quite rightly dug out the mcaning of the
word. as used in the French Revolution and savs
that mnst be the meaning and the only-.meaning
there gan be for it.” Is the meaning he rescued
the micaning it conveyed toyou in the way Mr.
Larkin used it > Of course not.  Again, gentlemen
get to another stage. What mea
Scamen. down at the Port of Dublin- put on the
%(press'\nn‘ ' agent-provocatenr ' ? 1 would rather
3

Badge . Mr. Bennett . had received through the
infldence of Mr. Wilson,
.My friend cannot have it both w,

One-of.

the meaning rand Mr: -Larkin says. it. means
2 but to ordinary. people it docs
not>mean that, it means the eléments of brutality.
which have been attributed’ td the Soviet Govern-
ment of Rus: Bennett dogs not want vou to
‘take -this word in:.its original meaning. H
véu to:deal with-the word in its applied sensc.
On- Larkin's “behalf I therefore ask vou to d
ivith-the word:'* agent-provocateur’’ in-its sens
men zv_,ﬁl

~ Do.you think thatin the.usc of the Latin-French
th ly ved that in respect of
ith the Maritimé Beard, the
Federation are thé interests
Bennett sits down-with the
e cannof get away. from it
such” thit. the ‘body ‘which
really setfles ‘the .wages ax}ll*cnnchhu.ns -n‘l service
i ~“which is represcnted by the twelve
s shat hody < 1 are’ 'the “people whe
en from ‘the National

Bennett’s relatio

Shipping Federation,

really control, not the el
Seamen’s Union. -
That i3, the whole -cas

to say that the plea -of just]
to your satisfactioi. And’ I-ask you
that. when - Mr.) Larkin- -fecéived 'Nol,

publi

and when he saw Bennett’s letu
ress, ‘then he avas: oply doing

courageousty, Ie

AnieT e

ing would the -

they thought «it was some: Imperial -

thing for these men, he is assailed. in Court with
every discreditable epithet.  You have been asked
to judge him because of his alleged. criminal past,
as i man who leaves a terrible track after hi
wherever he goes.  The only track he has left so
far-proof given in thes case—is that in Belfast,
Liverpool and Dublin he has lifted up the working
man. That may be.to some a terrible track,
L do not know whether it is so to the minds of a
Special Jury of the City of Dublin. © I do not belicve
it is.  Someone must be on the side of the people,
someone must take up the cause of the persecuted,
the cause of those who are down under in’ the social

* scale, and it is only a mir:u;{ithat the man who

- that this is not a cas

takes up their cause becomds a Prime Minister. ©
Those who espouse the _cause of the poor and
outeast, who believe Aficir cimge, to be more sacred
than life itself, go 1@\ life-isolated, despised
and hunted by men;: with all his humanity,
‘with all*his imperfections, $ays that he commented -
fairly and honestly and in truc belief and with.all’
3i ity upon the matter before him, and he asks
itlemen of the- Jury, to say on his behalf
where the Plaintiff has been
wronged. May T say, there are many in Dublin,
many throughott the world :ind possibly some,
if not all of you who believe that cverywhere the
wage carner is hetter because Larkin has lived.
.C.J .~ For the purpose of pleading the Plaintitt
did not claim that the whole article was a libel
against him, he took out a certain portion of it
which I have enclosed in red squares and numberced
1 to 7; but of course in considering whether these

o

seven matters complained of are or are not libels——
tied to read the &

on the Plaintitf vou are quite ¢n
whole article and from your views as regards these
seven matters.. Some of tHese questions are ques-
tions which will give vou no ditficulty at alland are

Tin fact admitted in this case,

Questions : - ; = :

1. Did the Defendants publish of an:l conecrning
the Plaintift the words Jfollowing : —

() N Chara | willigive yvou an outtine of the
Scamen’s dispute in Belfast, s you know we have
had «a hellish time in Belfast from 4920 to 19237
The scarmen in 1920 were mentbers of Havelock
Wilson's Union. . Many of the members, of that
Union were driven away ‘from their' ships at the
paint of the revolver on acconnt of their religion,
We had one member shot but ‘the Tnion never
protestedor tried to get proteéction for theirmembers:
When they asked for' a protest meeting Mr. Bennett,
the Sécretary of the National Sailors”and Firemen s
Union, phored for thie Crosvn Forees and we were
cleared awiy at the poiit of Lewis guns of thé
R.LC. andarmoured cars. |

(b) © The above letter was written by a man who
has been going to.sea for over twenty 'yeirs.  He
briefly touches on the. bitter experiences of the
Catholic workmen - experienied” during- the years
1920 and 1921 in the City of Belfast.  The gentleman

* who, it is alleged, actively participated in the.

perseeution of these Catholic seamen and Firemen,
is a Mr. J. H. Bennett. 5

This gentldman Bennett ‘knows something of
Government Departments having worked in con-
junction with the Six Countics Government in the
North during that period whenan organized pogrom,

- was carried out against the Catholic- worlemen,

_members were clearéd awayv at the

“crime was that. the

their wives and children in the City of Belfast.
when about ©870 unarmeds meh, ordinary ~Uniomn
inen, 312 women and sométhing like 200 children

were brufally murdered,” when' blocks of houses;, |
nay, swhole streets in fact were set on fire and the

occupants to the number of 32,000, mostly Catholics

and . a- few  hundred  Protestant - sympathisers

were drivens out of the City.  This 15 one of the

fights that Mr. Bennett tpok more tham o passiny

‘interéss in, for according to aforniet niember of the,
.Union this Mr. Bennett, when called (upon te’
hold a protest meeting against the murderons attacks’

én the members of the Union who-were paying him,

telephoned to tha ('n:rw’n lForces, and his own

point of the

B

Lewis guns in. the Rands of the Special Cons
and even armoured, cars Wwore brought np against
these unarmed sailorsuaiid - firemen whos
were Catholi¢

firenren. . . . ¢ -
Why should Mr. Bennett be permitted to act
as an ageént-provocateur and  deliberately and with

. malice lend himself to the purposes of the Shipping

“aiwa
“'or. age
‘Federition knows

- employers.

Federation of London. .

We arc glad that ‘he. has unmasked: himself.
He has been working too long nnder As it
has ~been ~well saidin this Union that'lie acts for
the tiembers payv@shilling & week ta get redictions
in-wages and they only.exist as a,Union becanse
rh(g\j‘, prepared at gll times to do the dirty work

of the/shipowners of -England and take directions
o~

Arpm
ever.

the Shipping: Federation of Tondon. Whéi-
scabs are wanteéd the Shipping  Federktion

knows _where to go-to. -Whenever -thugs”

t-provocateurs - are . required. the: Shi
“the "addréss .t
they are always sapplicd.. . t

Oh, ves, Bendett knows -the Goverir
We think the British Government conld give @
Iot of information in that direction and we know how
willingly he.worked with the Crdig ‘Goverhment

: o
write ‘to and -

‘in. the persecution of the workers in ilelfast. .

Bennett will be very likely living in the Shelbourne
Hotel like his Master J. H. Wilson duving the 1014
struggle ‘and’ dining with “the shipawners.:
specially gifted, - the Officials. of the Na
ors and. Firemens Lnion, in'the art of hobnobbing'
g and:dining with the shipownérs. and” othes

' >
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*.. betraying, -t}

+ in‘ Question 1 (a). " -

+ and.not-a mere ¢

" statements of

~_will not arise.
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2. Were the words defamatory lo[ the Plantati ?
3. Did the words mean- K

a) Fhat the Plaintiff had telphoned-for Crown
Forces (as alieged) and that as a result thereof
members of thetsaid Union wereforcibly prevented
by Lewis guns and armoured cars from holding a
“migeting fo protest against membiry of the said
Union being driven from their ships at the point
of the revolver on account of their religion, that
the Plaintift_had  thus betrayed the members
of the said Trade's Union’and that the Plaintiff,
as an Official of the said Trades Union, should have
protested and did not protest or try to get protec-
tion for the members of the said Trades Union.

(b) That the Plaintitt actively ]mrlicl)mtg(l in
the persecution of Catholic Scamen and Firemen

_in the City of Belfast during the years 1920 and,

121, .

(¢)  That. the Plaintift worked i conjunction
with the €« nment. of Northern Ireland in an
organized pogrom or massacre of Catholic workmen

and ther wives and children in Belfast, when 870 ¢

unarmed men, ordinary Trades Union men, 312
wamen, 200 children” were  brutally  murdered
and when blocks of houses and whole  streets
vere set- on fire and ‘the occupants numbering
muostly  Catholiecs and a few hundred
testant svmpathisers were driven _ont of the
said City i that the Plaintift was an accessory
to and responsible for said crimes. i

T (@) Thiut the Plaintiff had acted and was acting

nt-provocatenr and deliberately  and

cnding himself to the purposes of the

Shipping Federation of ‘London and betraying the

members of his Union and the emplovecs of the

said Shipping Federation and was unmyorthy of any
stoor confidence, -

(¢) - That thic Plaintifi was prepared at, all times
to betray the members of the said Trades Union
and the cmployees of the shipowners of England’
_{nd that the  Plaintiff prepared Jto supply’
on’ request and” did suppl Scabs,” *‘ Thugs,”
and ** Agent-Provocateurs '’ to v.saidl Shipping
Federation. RS L ,

() That_the Plaintiff had acted as a’spy and

- informer and sceret service agent for the British
Government giving them false information and that
the British Government could give.a lot of informa-

-

tion to that eftcet, that it was well known that the -

Plaintiff had willingly worked with the Government
of Northern Ircland in.the persecution of workers

_in_Belfast.

(g) That the Plajntiff as an Official of the National
‘Sailors” and. Firemen's Union was specially gifted
in the art of hobnobbing wining and ' dining with
“the shipowners and other employers and “thereby:. .
ing. - 4 nterests |of the members of the-
said "Trades Union and the members who reposed

. -their trust in him, and that he was wholly untrust-

“worthy and_unfit for his business and cGecupation

as' Trades Union Official.

4. Were  the we
facp zo) oo Siis g
(6~ (a) Were the words men'tioned in Question 1
(b).a fair and bona fide comment on the facts stated
.in the letter of 23rd June and ‘advertisement ‘of
27th- Junc 7 ° (b). . Were' they published by “the
Defendant without imy malice towards the Plaintiff »>
6. If the Plaintiff is. entitled. to recover, asses
the damages which the Plaintiff 1s entitled to recover. .
(1) - Against efendapts. jointly ? -
(II} Alternidtively against : .
(a) The Defendant Larkin ; :
“(b) The Defendants Cahill' & Co.,
respect  of . the

ds true in substapce: and

i
Ltd.
In* words - complained of
. 7. 'If the Plaintiff is entitled to recover, assess”

- the damages which -the” Plaintiff is cntitled to

Tecover— v TR

() Against-the Defendants
Alternatively ) L -
(I1)  Against (a) . The Defendant Larkinmi. = .

© (b)  The Defendants Cahill & Co.

jointly ;

-in respect of the words complained of i Qucstion
1. (b )

VA8 regardy the l)qfcful:u‘l_t:,~v_;_\lg:|§rs, _'Caﬁill & Co.
——they withdraw and apologise and ¢
be is'in a different position from that of My. Larkin.

" . Wetnow come to another defencé, which, is the

defence -of dair comment. | ; A

“When you come to consider what is fair comment,
vou will find" that the law in reference to these
matters is cssentially: common sense. In order
to establish. this plea you must be’sdtisfied of three
things, first that' the comment mist be comment
sertion of fact, that the comment
must. be @ matter of public intérest and thirdly

- that the comment must be fair. The two things

vou Lave to consider in dealing with this is, first,
is the alleged comment commgnt and ot a. mere
dssertion ‘of fact, and secondly, is it fair comment.
The dimlits of fair’ comment are not' altogether
casy to confine, but a definition of its limits are Jaid
down by ah eminent Chief Justice.. . - ¥

. You must be.sa d, looking at-the matter as”
men .of comnion se, that the comment was fair,
that none uf the facts were untruly- stated, and
further that ‘thére. w ¢
of this kind m

are

iy Wrong or.improper moti

isfied that there ‘Were  no mis-
f fa i i, ‘that the commeént Js fair
within the mcaning L have given you, that the

. Defendant was not deiling with it in a wrong or
then: the plea of fair comment - .

improper motive,

. In copsidering the question of fair coriment,

- '-‘Qd the absence of malice yay have to ‘copsider the

. personal element iil the cpse, which has been the
s BT oY) y LR CE S A

| This closes our report
of this trial. = At the|

question of truth or falschood. (Judge then goes

over Mr. Larkin's e¢vidence.)

As regards damages, the law is'such that you arc
not at liberty to differentiate between Czhill & Co.
and Larkin, you.have to find damages against
both. The authority for considering questions of
this kind was laid down in the Court of Appeal in
England. ' o b
(Judge reads from:law Reports.) -

So far as Messrs. Cahill & Co. are concerned
the position is - simple, they do not appear in
the trial, but they have apoligised and expressed
regret for the publication and withdraw all imputa-

. tions on the Plaintiff’s character. .

The Jury retired gnd after an absence of one hour

and fifty minutes they returned and asked if the

date of the letter was material to the action as the
Jury could not agree as to the date.

[..C.].~The witnesses swear it was on the 6th
June, and that is the date they have given you,
and on the other hand the Plaintiff swears he was
not in Belfast on that day. (Jury again retires.)
Jury's Findings : - = .

The Jury found for the Plaintiff as against thé
Defendant James Larkin for ld. damages, and as
against the Defendants Cahill & Co., Limited, for
4d. damages.

L.C.]—Mr. Lardner, will you take judgment now?
_ Lardner--1 would ask you to leave it over until
to-morrow, my lord.

Friday, 29th February, 1924.

Hanna—1 woyld ask,” my lord, for judgment
_against Larkin, and I would ask your lordship that
the' £250 lodged in Court by Messrs: Cahill ‘& Co.
with their admission of liability should be paid out
to ug, It is our moncy, subject to costs:

C.J.—As regards Larkin, I give vou jadgment
for 4d. and ld. costs, and in Messrs. Cahill's case
I give Vvou judgment for }d. and id. costs. As
the £250 in Court— —

Hanna—It was lodged with an admission of
i and becomes our money,
—-1t became: your money if you liad taken

L will dircct the money to”be paid out

Cahill & Co. less the 1d.

My lord, the whole amount can be paid

out, we reserve our right to set aside the damages

as not being substantial, but we may be satisfied

with the windication of our character.
L.C.J.—" Now let’s all go into Bankruptcy.”

urgent request of many!
|of our readers we intend'
| 8@ publish .the verbatim
report of this trial in
pamphlet form.

sequently

' saving—or " Safe -ing--disposition:

o malice. “Malice in a cas the money’ to. the members,

s . 2

AT THA'.I‘. £7,500.
~Senator Foran.and John O'Neill put away
ina ' safe " placé-—in 1913—the little matter

of £7,500 so that they gguld rebuild Liberty .
.- Hall three years later; after its destruction o s a1 g
by the Britigh forces, and for this example of ~ Political Robinson Crusoe. - We will attend,
- foresight” reccived: the encomiums of the - 5 ) g

Master of-the Rolls. - With"all due respect .

o his lordship, we do-riot think he went far,

enotgh. " A'mian who could foresee the
destruction of. Liberty Hall three years before
_ithappened deserve: g
Yés, sir; he is a fitting man to abide in the
bosom of S¢nator Brownge and. in the cfful-
gence that is Yeats. st A

_ HA ! - HA! :
“ I think it shows the anyiety “~—or words
to that cfféct-—" of Mr. Foran to do rjght
by the “members - of - the- Union, thdt he

~concealed from Mr. Larkin the existencesof -
this money, Mr, Larkin not being of a

Master of the Rols said that. = Qui
0. No doubt Mr. L. would hay

" The

- would have no money.

‘members. were never: short. of funds.. . Of >

course, if ‘Senator Foran had given' away |

the beodle “to the members, ‘the
= would havé had no funds at all
isn'tit ¥ Givenie 16V
keep ‘my money &nd I've plinty, 77 2

Funay,

L.
itout. ou N not do that, therefore it is'not your
‘money| % :

Hanma—Reads Report Gray v. Bartholomew, -

more than a compliment:

, and “then 'they
. But the Senator
-kept the money and that explains why the:.

1y money and T ¢ none-;

According to Mr. Chas. O’Connor, Master
of the Rolls, there is nothing wrong iny4

trustee  withholding knowledge of fungs.

entrusted to him when his fellow trustee is

. of a “spending” turn of mind. [t opens
up possibilities.

Any day now we expect to see defences

like the following set up in the police courts :

Magistrate : 'Why did you pick this man’s

pocket ? -

Prisoner: 1 b’elie\}ed he would have

nt
the money taking his family to the picﬁguiﬁ

if T hadn’t taken it. .

Magistrate :  Give this good man’ ten
shillings out of the Court Poor Box. Dis
missed. ¥ g

Or ) )

Magistrate :  Prisoner, why did you beat
your wife ? . .

Prisoner :  She wanted my wages.

Mngistrate : Shocking! Does she really
think she is entitled to your earnings? ~

Prisoner : Yes, sir; she wanted to know
if she could feed her family on air.

Magistrate : A most improper remark.
This woman is clearly of a spending disposi-
tion, I dismiss the summons.

WHEN THE DEVIL WAS SICK.
Mr. Thomas Johnson, T.D., is on the
verge of realisation.  He is not so sure as
heretofore that all is well with the cause of
Johnson.  Hence you will have noticed the

tremendous fight (!!) put up by him to’

maintain Old Age Pensions. A man-must
live—we think this is the standard excuse
for backsliding—and Mr. Thos. J. is ‘con-
vinced that he is entitled to number himself
among the survivals. )

Speaking on - the question of reducing/

Old Age Pensions, he said :* * That is what
the Old Age pensioners are to pay for
frecedom.”  Certainly, “a Chara.” =~ But
if the late civil war has “ cost as much
more,” a possibility Mr. Johnson expressed
himself prepared to face cheerfully, the bil}
to pay for the attempt to destroy .the
Republican idea would have been exactly

twice as much as it is, and the cut in Old -

Age Pensions, according to the Blythe system
of effecting economiés, would have been
-"*as much meore.” ’

Mr.. Johnson is trying "hard [xo get away .

from his Free -Statc - Governfnent friends,
insofar -as- the connection injures his

* prospects.””. .
€éven a poor rat. To be sure he would go
over to- capitalism—imistake, he is-it—but

- there is-not a capitalist, even of the Fish-

.-and-Chip persuasion, who would betray the

He is ratting, but he makes .

'S

“traditions of his craft by association with this .

the funeral.

" TAKES ‘THE BISCUIT. &

. It having been ‘elicited, in evidence,’from
Ald. Wm; O’Brien, that a number of Branch
Secretaries had made away with Union funds

during his tenure of office—how many he
could not say—his lordship, ' the Maste‘r»‘of -
the - Rolls; expréssed himself satisfied with. -

the Alderman’s business ' capacity. L
His lordship did not say so, but.we opine

“he wonld have been still nfore satisfied if

all LT.G.W.U. secretari¢s.

manner. Sl

FY _‘ o - 7 : = 5 v
"AWAITING ‘A REPLY. . .
" Mr. Cosgrave and his fellow-patriots have

fad done in like

. ascribed the. necessity of cutting” Old Age

“Pensions, teachers’ salaries,” the cost..of

féeding hecessitous school children, etc., etc.,

“to the activities ‘of the * Irregilars” and
¢ cost'to the nation of suppressing thelr
" wondering what size civil war
necessary to justify a.* cut " ‘in
tive  Minister’s -

salary. Pass us



)'Iilfch 15, -:-1924‘

LAW PRPCEEDIT\IGQ

‘Continued from Column 3, page 1})

& prien— It was—based on 1 member for ecach
1,00 finane ial mcmhm\ and in addition m(’mbrh
of the Executive.

Hanna- —Was thc lnmn divided intn groups

() Brien-— Into .23 groups.

Hanna- Was ‘h( Delegate Conference held on
the 24th 2 th April ?

O'Brien-—Yes,

kind of &

Hanna-—\What discussion a full
Jiscussion ? F
JO'Brien Yes, a \detailed disgussion, .
" Hanna- - You know the contents of the report
of that Conference ? ”
O'Brien- | do.
Hanna- s it true ?
nlirncn -\ very accurate summary’
rjcant Hanna reads report.
na— The resolution put and  carried

was
© unanimously .

O'Brien - -Y

Hanna —. \m-x that on the I4th May there was
an ul]nnrnu[ Delegate Conference ?

O'Brien  There was.

(Serjeant Flanna reads minutes of same.)

Hanna -And on the 9th May did you send out
& circular letter to the Svcrctdr\ of éach branch
enclosing kruptm(l new: Rules requesting them to
fill. in form if they dwprmod of the Rules 7

O'Brien. Yes,

H'lnnn‘ You gave them umll the 15t Jane to
hold their Branch Committec Mceeting and 61 .up
the' form 2
Q' Brién- Yes. ]

Hanna-Could . vou give us the: number of
branches that rejected the Rules that ywere delivered
in time ? ~ ’

O'Brich 1 (hmk s

H.mnd——Uf the 17 that were received late there
were 16 in favour and onc 1gam~.t ?

O'Brien—Yces.

appear to have been altered.
rcfn'»!uu-«l on the M ter of the Rolls =Show it ta me
t woks)  Certaiply 1t does appear

~THE IRISH WORKER

O Brien 1 supopse 1 did

Lnrkin; In what year ?

O'Brien I domot remenmiber
times. s -

Larkin-—In 1915, 1918, 1917 ?

O'Brien—Cannot say e Hinitely,

Larkin— Can you answer any question definitely ?
Did you discuss it prevlousto getting Rules amended ?

' Brien--Yes.

Larkin—Never
mentioned ?

O'Brien - Yes

Larkin —-Did you know that Trade Union Congress
in England had come to a decision in 1914 2

O'Brien - - No

Larkin —You are not in touch with Trades Unions.

O Brien—Yes, still in it,

Larkin—You are not half deep- enough:

Larkin— Had you any legal right to call a Congress
under the Rules of 1918 ?

O Bricn—Yes. -

Larkin -- What Rule ?
CO'Brien—1 don't  remember

Larkin—-You always lived by 1he Rule Book ?

O)'Brien—1 tried 10,

Larkin  You are very definité in deciding under
Rule 12.

O'Brien ” We have to be

Larkin- And when a woman owed a penny you
declined to pay her Mortality Benefit ?

O'Brien— Yos

Larkin' Did the Finance Committee
on application by Mrs: Christian ?

D' Brien - I cannot say

Larkin--May I refer you to this letter ?

' Brien - Show 1t o me

Larkin - Hand it to the Prisoner

-Prisoner before long. ’

O'Brien- That s an ofcial document

Master of the Rolls - Reads letter to the Court

Larkin - Take these two books formerly belonging
to Mr. Joseph Christian and tell us where the altera-
“tion in the payment took place.

O'Brién- The figures for 21t

divsussed 1t mian

he_ard Osborne " Judgment

ever rule

I mean witness

January, 1922

Hanna-- The Rulcs were (HExaiisiaes
June ? | to suggest
~ Brien They were, tiiat there was alteration.  Is there any book kep't

I|1nu a—TF ion was st.\nc(] on the lllh Jum’ by which the accurady of these cards could T

R checked 7 |
H'\mla-——\rc ﬂlmx Rul(‘\-stl” in ~nsp(n.~.|unf O'Brien - The Branch Book. my lerd
_ Not acted on ? - Master of the Rolls — ' am aliowing this question
.O’Brien—In so far as we could .nmd it.- to be put inasmuch as serious ¢h sodre made
~ Mr.” Larkin cross-examining. against these men which really do not came \\nlnn
 Larkin—-Did you swear an aflidavit on the the casc:
] ln]uncuon ‘Motion in this Court un 3ist” July ? Larkin—I would. draw your auemmn to the

|
|
\
i
I - ()'Brien--1 -swore_so many.
i Master of the' Roll§=—What is the date of filing ?’
-~ Larkin- Sworn 30th July and filed 31st July.
l' Mr. ‘Larkin then reads affidavit to Mr. O’Brien.
Larkin—ITs it true that this particular Trade Union
| at any time ‘spgnt no momay ‘on polmcal action or
| representation ?
. O'Brien—Every wl,\temcnt in’ tlmL .Imdn\n is
“Ttrue; Ithave'sworn it.-
Larki verything you ‘swore in that amdavit——
()’ Brien—It is true ; come on,ask me any quéstion

© ('Brien-—Before’ you went away-—
{Master of the Rolls mtcr{crcrl]

| Larkin Why did you wait such a long “time
between the December, 1921, and 6ih Aprll 2 .
~-O'Brien--W¢ _were not wamng

Larkin—You were- working all’ the time 2

()'Brieq-— Working hard, doing your portion.

Larkin—1 wiil mot’ plead- gumy to anything you
did in my name.. :

= Master of !hu»l{ulls—l{;n o1n.

Larkin—You ‘send out-a circular and then wait

1 “you want:to, I will face “you as I always di

-(Loud huglmr in Court.. At this stage th
I of pu Rolls threatened. to clear” the Cou
| Larkin - You arranged everything ?

0O'Brie = did. e
f Larkin A!wayd did ?° . . ar
i
|

action ?
OfBrien -

carefully,
Larkin - Who with?
' Brien-- -Witli the I).ecutnc and many other

* people. .

_Larkin Who were the Executive 9-
O'Briecn—The \«hnth Book will tell you. -
Larkin ~-Anybody " else outside the Executive ?

o Bncnw! vervope we thuugh’ could give. us
useful opinion.
Larkin—Any Counsel bruught in ?
O'Brien—XNo.
Larkin-Did Mr. Porter, B.L., of Belfastadviee ?
('Brien— Never discussed these Rules.
[ -Larkin—-Did he give you advice on ponycal
Questions ? z
\ ‘| (Jli",'}n ~Yes, Rulvx not umﬁrrm‘\hl( \mh the
AWy
[ Larkin—Did you know it was not
l» With the Law previous to getting Coun

conlormable

O'Brien-—Not exactly. -
 Larkin—Never -discussed . the &mﬁndm"“' of thie
_Aﬂ in-1914 with anybody? -~ -

. O'Brign—In what way 2 -

Larkin—At Trade. Union Congress 2.

O'Brien—1 do not remember,

Larkin—Do’ you' remember i, 18159
ki O'Brien-~Yes,
- mﬁmémmlm' diaounins 'i” matter wl!h
: 'nrhoav?

uniil 6th. April, 1922, until you lake any. further ;s

We llucns%cd ‘Lhe pﬂ)pl)\l‘d Rnk‘?nvr_\- &

5 opinjnn o
* Meeting- of the Urion 7 TR A

Rules. These men are charged according to the
Rules with deciding whether the relatives of a dead
member are entitled to Mortality Benefit. This man
Joseph Christian was a member of No. 2 Branch
and the Rules of 1912-1918 state that'a man having
paid 52 -weeks at 6d. per week, in case of death
his legal representative is entitled to. £9 Mortality
Benefit.
- the Union in this case ?

O Brien— 80 we did.

Larkin- Give me the 1915 Rules.

O’Brien - They are not the Rales of the U nion

Larkin - J hold-that the Rules of the Union are
the 1915 Rules.

O’ Brien ~That decs not make it o faet,

Larkiri— Agreed ; nor does your statement.make
the.Rules of 1923 a fact. = Did you, since the passing
of these alleged Rules, did ybu sell them to. members
of the Urion ?

. O'Brien—We digl.
Larkin--Have you acted upon them ? * -
O'Brieh—Possibly  to some extent. -
Larkin—Spent ‘money {or political purposes
undér them ? R =

Lo }‘FILH‘* 0.
Larkin -Are you conscious that the’*Transpnn

Union is affiliaged with- the Irish. Trade Union

‘Gongress g
Master of thee Kolls—I ubject. - ;
< Larkin—Have you the shorthand notes that wé
rakep of. this' Delegate Report ? -
“O'Brien==I' do not know. = °
Larkin—Did" you burn them ? -
* ('Brien -1 burnt Tio books ; I left that fo you.

- Larkini~I left thém, in 1914, to you and others .

and you took special care fo burn them..® .
Larkln—-YQu say .this is an accurate report ?
‘0O Brien—A “fair’ summary, . - i
Larkin—Who- transeribed . if ?

O'Biien—What date-?
Larkin--The . Delegate ~Corference . 14th . and

24th-25th _ April, 1923.

-5 0’ Brien—Joseph O'Kelly. :
Larkln»c':n you produce Myh o' Kellv . ra

-0)' Brien— Whete'
Larkin—Here—Where can he&c tound < ?
O'Brien—At the. Hes i ()ﬂm« of® ?.lu

He is in Court.
Latkin——Are these notes ‘correct ?
O'Brien—They ‘arc’a’[air summary.

- Larkin— Did they - eome be!ore the: Execunvo

O'Brien—I 'hardly think so..
Larkin=You arranged that the
.O'Brieti—I mxepte(l them &% o

* Larkin—Did the members of tl_u Ef cnllve gﬂ‘

S opportunity te pass them ?
‘“Q l“meu-—\m called  for.~ :
—Did- every - memw get' a ow o! them :

a

Why did you not keep to the Rules of °

1uuﬂ| e

Larkin Did you issue a report of the adjourned
Delegate Conference held on 14th May, 1923 ?

O'Brien— To whom ?

Larkin--To those-entitled to it ?

O'Prien—There was a report prepared

Larkin For whom ? N

O'Brien—For the Records, :

Larkin—Did It come he!ore the Executive Meellng
at any time ?

O'Brien—1I do not think so.
“ Larkin—Who was Secretary in May, 1923 ?
()'Brien--0f what ? 5
Larkin -Of the Union ?
. O'Brien--James Larkin.
Larkin  Why was he not supplied vN{h these
minutes ? ° 7
O'Frien —lHe was, S
Larkin - Who supplied them to@im 9 ol
O'Prien — [ did.
Larkin This you.brought to me ?

O'Brien—-1 sent it to you.

Larkin- Any Executive Meeling that the documenl g

came, before ? s

O'Brien - T do not Ulllll\ 50,

‘Larkin - What date did you give me that Report ?

O'Briem [ do not remember.

Larkin = Somewhere about the 3rd of June ?

O'Brien- - Before you went on Tour,

Larkin --How many days elapsed between the
writing of the report and sending it to the Secretary?

O'Brien -1 could not say

Larkin You were doing my work, you say,
and you for years, as’ General Treasurer, allowed
monies of the Union to be taken away by de!aulllng
secretaries, shnp stewards and others ?

O'Brien Not true.

LarRin Did you submit a copy of these Rules
11923) to me as Secretary ?

O Brien . No. B

Larkin Why not ? x
O'Brien You were not discharging vour duties,
Larkin  Was I in the Office on the 2nd June,

1923 ? %

CO'Brien 1 cannet sy [odid mdt see von,
Larkin Was I there any day in May ? 4
O’Brien  Yeon returned from (uur the h-l week

m May,

Larkin These Rules were brought by Thomas
Kennedy to No. 3 Branch, do you believe lhai ‘to- be
true ?

. O 'Brien
be true.

Larkin--Was Mr. Kennedy also acting =em’elary ?

O'Brien  Duing some of the work.

Larkin  You were a member of the Dail, who was
doing the General Treasurer's work.?

O Brien -1 was doing portion of it

Larkin Do -you swear you. were doing portlon
of it, who was doing the other portion ?

Anything Kennedy would say wnuld

O'Brien - Mr. Kennedy. L2 -

Larkin What date did 1 en(er into office on my
return ?

O'Brien '\ull never took up office.

Larkin What do-the minutes say ?

O'Brien - [ stand by theeminutes.

Larkin That is not lhe same - book | saw on
discovery.

O'Brien - 1L is the same In.ul\‘,

(Minute -Book produced.)

Mr. Larkin reads minutes of #th May, 1923,
“Larkin Did I attend 'the Mee!lng as General
Secretary ?
O!Brien.  Yes.
- Larkin  On that date dld you act as Secrttary
"~ or Thomas Kennedy?

LO'Briew—1 think -1 acted.

Larkin -Did -the Secretary am:nd any o!her

meetings_as far as you know:? v
O'Brich - 1 thing he” attendod: mectings af
wards, Contmittees, at which -1I" way not present
» - Larkin- Did Thomas Kennedy:go to the Registrar
to' your knowledge on Satirday, 2nd "June, at the
hour of 4 to 5 to get these Rules registered ?

O)' Brie n No,
Lar, --Who went -to the Registrar?
O :n—vl did.-.

_Larkin-~Did you tell Mi. 0’ 'Connell Mlley ar _his
Assistant that you were instructed to get these
Rules ' registered ? e

. O'Brien— No, not necessary.

Larkin— What" time dld Buller sign the Rules,
on ‘what dny " i

0)'Brien’~I' do ot kmm

“Larkin—Did you send 2uyone to Thomas But!gr
to sign those Rules on aturday afternonn P 2

()'Brien—No. -. .
, . Larkin—-What time 7

O'Brien—Saturday .mdrning.  —

Larkin — What dgy did you sign'that. documem ?
- O’Brien—1 i not sign it at all ¥

Lnk(n ~Did that ‘document- say "that- these ‘men
“ were instructed b a meatlng o submit Rulu (or
ugistullon ?
€)' Brien—Show it to me. = -

l,u-unvAt tha menung nn,- the 24:-5th Apnl
i

- .of this all Hickey -
of-Cork say that tho rmllmon passed by the Delega.te
Conference would: be rulnrrad back with full power
“to amend ? . \

O'Brien- 1 ‘it on thé gecnni~ 2. .

. Larkin—It Is on the records.

'O’ Brien—I ‘donof think' so,
‘\(Vlr Larkin then read ot -report nf D-»chau-
Conference.)

kin—Did you vote upon this’ ruoludon?

rien: Ihﬂrdly lhmk »o) e




: W

6

THE IRISH WORKER

“March 15, 1994

T % 5 = =

Larkin- - But did you not say they voted unani-
mously ? N
* (Bricn- 1 think so. ¢ !
Larkin Did Thomas Foran vofe ?
O'Brien— I canpot say.
~Larkin—Thomas Kennedy ? ¥
)'Bricn -~ He might, 1 cannot say he voted.
Larkin--Did your Private Secretary type you
that record ? :
O’ Brien>—No Private Svesetary, never had<one. _
Larkin —Did Mr. 0'Kelly at any time do any work .

_* except attending on you and your private business ?

AR

1912 to date of action.

“of“the, Union® -

O'Brien—I den't’ know

Larkin —Was employment given to him for a
period of three years ? N

OfBrien-—Given to him 'by the Execcutive:

Larkin-—Who %ere .the Executive ? | !

O'Brien—You will find their names in the Books,

Larkin-—Did No. 1 Branch, of which you are a
member, vote upon these Rules ? . .

O'Brien—1 was not present at any Branch
meeting. .

* Larkin —Any. report {rom No. 1 -Brapch that
they had voted ? s 4

O’Brien—Yes.

Larkin- Did you hear a Mr. Mitchell say that the
Committee had received a number of these draft
copies and without any discussion adopted them ?

O’ Brien—] do not think he said that.

Larkin-~What did he say ?

O'Brien—He¢ said  he came
discussed when he came in. L

Larkin—Mr. Mitchell did say he was handed a
copy of these Rules and was called upon to.vote ?

O'Brien “-Yes. X .

Larkin- There was present at that meeting. some
11 to 20 members-? - .

O'Brien- -1 would not accept
statement  without corroboration ?

in Jate amd were

Mr. Mitchell’s

Larkin— If' corroborated by other members ?
“()'Brien —11 to 20 is a big radfus.
Larkin—Did No. 1 Branch vote on these Rules ?
O'Brien -1 believe they did. -
‘Larkin- No. 3 Branch ?
O'Brien—1 believe they did. “
‘Larkin—Did any Branches of fhe ion vote
on them ?
O'Brien—0Oh, yes. LN
Larkin—What  Branches ?
" O’'Brien-—Oh, now, I cannot tell vou that: out
of: 105 received 98 voted in favour.
Larkin--There were over 350 branches of the
Union on that date ? ¥
O'Brien—Yes, fully qualificd to vote.
Larkin—You ‘admit that the Secretary had no
knowledge of the application being made for
registration ?
= Q'Brien—I do.

" “Larkin—Could you not have told him that the

E.C. -were going to apply for registration ?
O'Brien—You were busy -preparing to go to
Russia, you said men’s: lives depended on you-
getting there. " . . N .
Larkin—Any. Executive in 1915-1916 and 1917
O'Brien—First election in 1915 after you had left.
Larkin—Did you say there was no Executive in
1915, 1918, 19172 . .
'Brien-——That is cerrec
Larkin—Then the word
whijeh live in his writing are n
to read that, sir,’ ahd it will prove.
“deliberate liar. +

i (Copy.) : ’
Irish Transport and General- Workers’
James Larkin, General Secretary, .
3 "Head Office, * Libierty Hall, .
Beresford Place,. Dublin.
: 'y 29th- Noyember, I915.
Secretary, High St.  Branch. . sl

Union.

Dear Sir,—You. nré.-htfeby- _uutiﬁed‘ that there ~

wil! be a meeting of ‘the seneral Executiyg of this
Unién on the First. Sunday of- January, 1916, .in
Liberty 'Hall, Dublin. It is_
that your delegates e notificd \and be instricted

upon-any-pfatters your -membgrs desire. tp bring -
before' the National Executive. 25
<"An auditor's feport of the statc” of the. branch
will be called. for at the meeting, " g .

Fratérnally yours,
. JamEs ConyoLLy, 2 0,
gy Acting General Secretary,

Master of the Rolls—You have no right whatever
to say that. - y b ot
™Mr. Larkin—Mr. O’Brien and I will meet in

another place. . - .. " e
Mr. O'Brien—My lord, might I be ‘permitted to

make a statement about the charges that are being

made against me ? A s Nk
Master of the Rolis—It is not necessary to make

a statement, there has ‘been nothing proved against

you. .- i
Master of the Rolls—No
put in any documents o

Mr. Larkin puts in pm e .

Registrar's. Returns, Statement of Auo'ﬁm“é( the
L.T. & G. W. Union for-the various years from

_VFi!iap,cc Rulings Book.
Payments Book. -~

. Executive Mifinte Bor;lga?‘fb Transport _I;fniont!mm %
© 1018 t0 1024, . o SRR 15

¢3S, theréfore. necessary.

“hearts, and bodies to'

- appeal for help to thPe_ Colonies

Letter from  James Connolly on™ behalf of the
Irish Tratisport and General Workers” Union t
High St, Branch of Union, 1915
Mr. Larkin- I desire to put in these Mortality

Claims - Murphy, Kennedy, Ryan and many others.
Mister of the Rolls -\ few of them will do to

be marked.

Rules for [D00-12-15-18-23.

Heard nothing of 1909 Rules

1912-15-18-23 will do. ;

Affidavit of O'Brien on Injunction Motion of
July, 1023,

The Reports of the Irish Trade Congress.

Master of the Rolls—1 will not accept them.
Larkin- -I submit copy of the ‘* Voice of Labour **

9th Fehruary, 1923. o
Master of the Rolls—I Will not accept it.

Letter o Noo 8 Branch re irregularities.

-
Letter Thomas Kennedy to Jolin Bohan :—
-

Irish Transport and) General Workers™ Union.
Iead  Office—
Liberty Hall, Dublin.
No. 3 Branch.
Dated  April. 24th, 1921, .
Address 74 Thomas Street.
Mr. John Bohan, o
Hut 10, I, Coy., No. 2 Camp,
Ballvkinlar, Co. Down.
Dear Bohan—1I duly received your letter which
I placed before the Committec.  They quite realise
the difficulty of stating the exact amount of cash
m hands.. “Hagwever the annual balance sheet has

" not been passed, not on account of the £42 175, 2d. .

debited to von, but for other reasons which vou are
in no way accountable for.  From your letter the
Committee-have taken it for granted that the £33
1« branch funds and they would be glad if you would
give your consent for that amount to be teansferred
to thar account.  As there is a good deal of money
m the Assistant Secretary’s hand belonging to yvour
wages account vou could pay the Committee the
£33 and allow the money in Bank to'remain to vour
a ¢ You will be surprised to hear that OC. may be
suspended at any moment by the E.C. The trouble
is in connection with strike pay. I think its a
certainty he will go. This will leave me in a very
had position as I had intended to give up the work
at thesend of this month providing they could get
someone to keep things going. ~To make matters
worse 1 owe O'Connor a good deal of money, in fact
he would have been gone before this if I could pay
him. For this purpose I would be ever so thankful
it you would lend me say £15 from your wages a ¢.
T realise that this is asking something but I can
assure you that I will repay you. If vou. do this
for me write Tim and tcil him to make the order
for me to get it, Many of the members have been
enquiring after you and hope that at least you are
in good health. -Best regards. »

Tuomas KENNEDY (Acting Secy.)

Master of the Rolls—I rule that out.
Cables allcged to have been sent to Larkin (already

in). . p %
Minute Book Dublin No. 3 Branch.
I2.C. Minute Book for various yearsof I. T. & G. W,
. Union, L, ¥ i : :
Bank Books antl Statement of Account (already in).
Letter from . Larkin to T. Foran:— .
This ts written 'in haste. Bearer- waits. Reliable.
My Dear Tom-—Greetings” and congratulations
on the result of your loyalty and work. May F

extend to you and the boys'my heartfelt sympathy. -

w01 your magnificent work for the Irish Prole-.
tarians and my regret that' 1 cannot share in your
labours directly.. I need not say that.I am with -
you in spirit and when Freedom of the Seas is a fact
and the power of despotism shattered for éver,
.may-1 hope-to réjoin-you and your comrades}in
“the truly great work vou:have set
accomplish. "Don’t be led
~astray by the cphémeral political movements: of
a moment.  Our work is fundamental. Not only-
do we want ‘dn Independent Ireland, “but we
demand a Free Nation of Frée Men and ‘Women.
.1 realise the tortuous paths yon and yourco!léagues g
must walk. - Certain “forces in_Eire seem to have
- exploited tlie struggle for their own ends. . Don't
“ be in any-way déterred, hew straight to’ the line,
let the chips fall where they .may. Be-assured
we arc on the side that ‘must, nltimately prevail.

- Leaders !""Moryah, and parties rise up and pass

- away ‘in a night-but men live on:for ever and
principles ‘are. germanent. - I see. that ‘Sinn Fein

wants a Repubiic indréland now. What is become -

of Arthurs, King, Lords.and-Compaions. Does. he
ot want the foreign capitalists to. come and ‘start
up industries in Ireland because land is .cheap
and labgur, echeap and unorganised.. May I. again
- ask you to send me books, papers, reports of Trade
Union Congress, both 1rish, Scotch and British,
also’a capy of Wilson's play'of 1913 strike,” and
Connolly's ‘plav.-, Send me any; propaganda. ' Let
me lgnow‘. how _ the. :0]d ship,.sails. ~Are Nolan,
- O'Neill, Redniond;; Daly the other boys doing
their.share.” Tell: O'Brien, -McPartland to ‘lét me
know how' Friepd saw. Cihal: Shanno ‘ixg-.L" 1
I trust to you 1o not let my 'wor

. go short. " I 'will ‘repay.  Why

=¥

ot ‘sead -out an
.v ) -

your minds, -

-1

respond. Peter at last writing is well.
send you American papers in my
Comrade, JiM. A il
Master of the Rolls—I have nothing to
them. .
The Rules of the National Healthe Insurance
Master of the Rolls—I have not got anvthing‘k‘
say to them. e ; )
Minutes of No. 1 Branch, 1914 /15. ’
Correspondence de¢aling with alleged revision of
Rules, 1918,/23 (already in).
Written  protest against proposed adoption o
Rules (in minutes). >

Continued next week
_—\t—,u— s
AN H EST\EOURGEOIS.

T wil
-Next—Yoy

say aboyt

Mr. W. J. Perry, of the. University of
London, has just published a book dealing
with ' The Growth of Civilisation.” Oy
the subject of *“ The Origin and Development
of War™ he says: " organised: Violent
behaviour between communities is not an
essential of human society
apt to think that * civilisation’ has tamed the
‘savage,’ that it has imposed restraint on
his violent tendencies . I am con-
vineed that this is one of the most profound
mistakes that can be made.”

v For
educated itself in force, and the gravest
problem with which weare faced is that of

We are

. - T
arious  reasons . mankind  hag

climinating this frame of mind, of vanquishing

the  sentiments

relationships. ™
" Two great tendencies are at work in

civilisation.  On-'the one hand there is the

that <o poison human

constructive tendency, whieh has caused-

men to discover once thing after another,
to claborate the arts and crafts, tolopen up

and to strive to maintain communications-

between all, parts of the ‘carth, to colonise
fresh countries. where desirable things are

to-be found, to write. books, ‘poems, plays,”

10 paint- pictures . ..
At the same time, certain faults inherent

in the refationships that have arisen between -

‘n in the course of the development of
isation have set up secial disharmonies.
The great task of -the futufe is to eradicate
these disharmonies, so far as it is possible.”

Irish Self-Determination Leazue (Gt, Britain)

182, Shaftesbu;y Avenue, ;
" London; W.C.2.
« 6th March, 1924,

" The .\'y.vs Editor, ““ Irish Worker.”

bir,
RE REL

IN EXNGLAND. .
At a special meetigig of the Committeé of

thé irish’Self-Determination League, Central |

Branch ‘(Londonj, the following  resolution
was passcd, and the Secretary was directed
to send a copy to the Prime Minister, the
Home Secretary and the Press. I frust,
therefore, you will seé your. way to e:\:vtcndm:?'

to us the courtesy-of vour 5]_1lmma, n

"Rtsou"rm.\' %
THAT ' the Central Branch (London) of
the - Irish  Self-Determination

Secretary to the continued imprisonment
“of Irish Poligical ‘Prisoners in Wormwood
Serubbs aid Holloway prisons: The men
at Wormwood Scrubs are victims sacrificed

- to/the illegal actionof the previous Govern-:

[fhent—a: Government. that cleared, ifself

laXion. . )

Eits actior by special protective legis

SE OF [RISH POLITICAL PRISONERS

~ League -
desifes to call the. atténtion of .the Home

THIS Branch calis on the Home Secretary "

to release Mrs.: Eady (from Holloway),and

Art O'Brien, Sean McGrath; A. Mullarkey,

D. Fleming, T. Flynn .and’M, Galvin

(from Wormwood - Scrubs), and  this,

justify the claim ‘that Labour has made

upon the Irish electors of Great Britain.:
** Yours faithfully,

S SR

; “' . C.J. LoPMARK, .
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Larkin- - But did you not say they voted unani-
mously ? N
* (Bricn- 1 think so. ¢ !
Larkin Did Thomas Foran vofe ?
O'Brien— I canpot say.
~Larkin—Thomas Kennedy ? ¥
)'Bricn -~ He might, 1 cannot say he voted.
Larkin--Did your Private Secretary type you
that record ? :
O’ Brien>—No Private Svesetary, never had<one. _
Larkin —Did Mr. 0'Kelly at any time do any work .

_* except attending on you and your private business ?

AR

1912 to date of action.

“of“the, Union® -

O'Brien—I den't’ know

Larkin —Was employment given to him for a
period of three years ? N

OfBrien-—Given to him 'by the Execcutive:

Larkin-—Who %ere .the Executive ? | !

O'Brien—You will find their names in the Books,

Larkin-—Did No. 1 Branch, of which you are a
member, vote upon these Rules ? . .

O'Brien—1 was not present at any Branch
meeting. .

* Larkin —Any. report {rom No. 1 -Brapch that
they had voted ? s 4

O’Brien—Yes.

Larkin- Did you hear a Mr. Mitchell say that the
Committee had received a number of these draft
copies and without any discussion adopted them ?

O’ Brien—] do not think he said that.

Larkin-~What did he say ?

O'Brien—He¢ said  he came
discussed when he came in. L

Larkin—Mr. Mitchell did say he was handed a
copy of these Rules and was called upon to.vote ?

O'Brien “-Yes. X .

Larkin- There was present at that meeting. some
11 to 20 members-? - .

O'Brien- -1 would not accept
statement  without corroboration ?

in Jate amd were

Mr. Mitchell’s

Larkin— If' corroborated by other members ?
“()'Brien —11 to 20 is a big radfus.
Larkin—Did No. 1 Branch vote on these Rules ?
O'Brien -1 believe they did. -
‘Larkin- No. 3 Branch ?
O'Brien—1 believe they did. “
‘Larkin—Did any Branches of fhe ion vote
on them ?
O'Brien—0Oh, yes. LN
Larkin—What  Branches ?
" O’'Brien-—Oh, now, I cannot tell vou that: out
of: 105 received 98 voted in favour.
Larkin--There were over 350 branches of the
Union on that date ? ¥
O'Brien—Yes, fully qualificd to vote.
Larkin—You ‘admit that the Secretary had no
knowledge of the application being made for
registration ?
= Q'Brien—I do.

" “Larkin—Could you not have told him that the

E.C. -were going to apply for registration ?
O'Brien—You were busy -preparing to go to
Russia, you said men’s: lives depended on you-
getting there. " . . N .
Larkin—Any. Executive in 1915-1916 and 1917
O'Brien—First election in 1915 after you had left.
Larkin—Did you say there was no Executive in
1915, 1918, 19172 . .
'Brien-——That is cerrec
Larkin—Then the word
whijeh live in his writing are n
to read that, sir,’ ahd it will prove.
“deliberate liar. +

i (Copy.) : ’
Irish Transport and General- Workers’
James Larkin, General Secretary, .
3 "Head Office, * Libierty Hall, .
Beresford Place,. Dublin.
: 'y 29th- Noyember, I915.
Secretary, High St.  Branch. . sl

Union.

Dear Sir,—You. nré.-htfeby- _uutiﬁed‘ that there ~

wil! be a meeting of ‘the seneral Executiyg of this
Unién on the First. Sunday of- January, 1916, .in
Liberty 'Hall, Dublin. It is_
that your delegates e notificd \and be instricted

upon-any-pfatters your -membgrs desire. tp bring -
before' the National Executive. 25
<"An auditor's feport of the statc” of the. branch
will be called. for at the meeting, " g .

Fratérnally yours,
. JamEs ConyoLLy, 2 0,
gy Acting General Secretary,

Master of the Rolls—You have no right whatever
to say that. - y b ot
™Mr. Larkin—Mr. O’Brien and I will meet in

another place. . - .. " e
Mr. O'Brien—My lord, might I be ‘permitted to

make a statement about the charges that are being

made against me ? A s Nk
Master of the Rolis—It is not necessary to make

a statement, there has ‘been nothing proved against

you. .- i
Master of the Rolls—No
put in any documents o

Mr. Larkin puts in pm e .

Registrar's. Returns, Statement of Auo'ﬁm“é( the
L.T. & G. W. Union for-the various years from

_VFi!iap,cc Rulings Book.
Payments Book. -~

. Executive Mifinte Bor;lga?‘fb Transport _I;fniont!mm %
© 1018 t0 1024, . o SRR 15

¢3S, theréfore. necessary.

“hearts, and bodies to'

- appeal for help to thPe_ Colonies

Letter from  James Connolly on™ behalf of the
Irish Tratisport and General Workers” Union t
High St, Branch of Union, 1915
Mr. Larkin- I desire to put in these Mortality

Claims - Murphy, Kennedy, Ryan and many others.
Mister of the Rolls -\ few of them will do to

be marked.

Rules for [D00-12-15-18-23.

Heard nothing of 1909 Rules

1912-15-18-23 will do. ;

Affidavit of O'Brien on Injunction Motion of
July, 1023,

The Reports of the Irish Trade Congress.

Master of the Rolls—1 will not accept them.
Larkin- -I submit copy of the ‘* Voice of Labour **

9th Fehruary, 1923. o
Master of the Rolls—I Will not accept it.

Letter o Noo 8 Branch re irregularities.

-
Letter Thomas Kennedy to Jolin Bohan :—
-

Irish Transport and) General Workers™ Union.
Iead  Office—
Liberty Hall, Dublin.
No. 3 Branch.
Dated  April. 24th, 1921, .
Address 74 Thomas Street.
Mr. John Bohan, o
Hut 10, I, Coy., No. 2 Camp,
Ballvkinlar, Co. Down.
Dear Bohan—1I duly received your letter which
I placed before the Committec.  They quite realise
the difficulty of stating the exact amount of cash
m hands.. “Hagwever the annual balance sheet has

" not been passed, not on account of the £42 175, 2d. .

debited to von, but for other reasons which vou are
in no way accountable for.  From your letter the
Committee-have taken it for granted that the £33
1« branch funds and they would be glad if you would
give your consent for that amount to be teansferred
to thar account.  As there is a good deal of money
m the Assistant Secretary’s hand belonging to yvour
wages account vou could pay the Committee the
£33 and allow the money in Bank to'remain to vour
a ¢ You will be surprised to hear that OC. may be
suspended at any moment by the E.C. The trouble
is in connection with strike pay. I think its a
certainty he will go. This will leave me in a very
had position as I had intended to give up the work
at thesend of this month providing they could get
someone to keep things going. ~To make matters
worse 1 owe O'Connor a good deal of money, in fact
he would have been gone before this if I could pay
him. For this purpose I would be ever so thankful
it you would lend me say £15 from your wages a ¢.
T realise that this is asking something but I can
assure you that I will repay you. If vou. do this
for me write Tim and tcil him to make the order
for me to get it, Many of the members have been
enquiring after you and hope that at least you are
in good health. -Best regards. »

Tuomas KENNEDY (Acting Secy.)

Master of the Rolls—I rule that out.
Cables allcged to have been sent to Larkin (already

in). . p %
Minute Book Dublin No. 3 Branch.
I2.C. Minute Book for various yearsof I. T. & G. W,
. Union, L, ¥ i : :
Bank Books antl Statement of Account (already in).
Letter from . Larkin to T. Foran:— .
This ts written 'in haste. Bearer- waits. Reliable.
My Dear Tom-—Greetings” and congratulations
on the result of your loyalty and work. May F

extend to you and the boys'my heartfelt sympathy. -

w01 your magnificent work for the Irish Prole-.
tarians and my regret that' 1 cannot share in your
labours directly.. I need not say that.I am with -
you in spirit and when Freedom of the Seas is a fact
and the power of despotism shattered for éver,
.may-1 hope-to réjoin-you and your comrades}in
“the truly great work vou:have set
accomplish. "Don’t be led
~astray by the cphémeral political movements: of
a moment.  Our work is fundamental. Not only-
do we want ‘dn Independent Ireland, “but we
demand a Free Nation of Frée Men and ‘Women.
.1 realise the tortuous paths yon and yourco!léagues g
must walk. - Certain “forces in_Eire seem to have
- exploited tlie struggle for their own ends. . Don't
“ be in any-way déterred, hew straight to’ the line,
let the chips fall where they .may. Be-assured
we arc on the side that ‘must, nltimately prevail.

- Leaders !""Moryah, and parties rise up and pass

- away ‘in a night-but men live on:for ever and
principles ‘are. germanent. - I see. that ‘Sinn Fein

wants a Repubiic indréland now. What is become -

of Arthurs, King, Lords.and-Compaions. Does. he
ot want the foreign capitalists to. come and ‘start
up industries in Ireland because land is .cheap
and labgur, echeap and unorganised.. May I. again
- ask you to send me books, papers, reports of Trade
Union Congress, both 1rish, Scotch and British,
also’a capy of Wilson's play'of 1913 strike,” and
Connolly's ‘plav.-, Send me any; propaganda. ' Let
me lgnow‘. how _ the. :0]d ship,.sails. ~Are Nolan,
- O'Neill, Redniond;; Daly the other boys doing
their.share.” Tell: O'Brien, -McPartland to ‘lét me
know how' Friepd saw. Cihal: Shanno ‘ixg-.L" 1
I trust to you 1o not let my 'wor

. go short. " I 'will ‘repay.  Why

=¥

ot ‘sead -out an
.v ) -

your minds, -

-1

respond. Peter at last writing is well.
send you American papers in my
Comrade, JiM. A il
Master of the Rolls—I have nothing to
them. .
The Rules of the National Healthe Insurance
Master of the Rolls—I have not got anvthing‘k‘
say to them. e ; )
Minutes of No. 1 Branch, 1914 /15. ’
Correspondence de¢aling with alleged revision of
Rules, 1918,/23 (already in).
Written  protest against proposed adoption o
Rules (in minutes). >

Continued next week
_—\t—,u— s
AN H EST\EOURGEOIS.

T wil
-Next—Yoy

say aboyt

Mr. W. J. Perry, of the. University of
London, has just published a book dealing
with ' The Growth of Civilisation.” Oy
the subject of *“ The Origin and Development
of War™ he says: " organised: Violent
behaviour between communities is not an
essential of human society
apt to think that * civilisation’ has tamed the
‘savage,’ that it has imposed restraint on
his violent tendencies . I am con-
vineed that this is one of the most profound
mistakes that can be made.”

v For
educated itself in force, and the gravest
problem with which weare faced is that of

We are

. - T
arious  reasons . mankind  hag

climinating this frame of mind, of vanquishing

the  sentiments

relationships. ™
" Two great tendencies are at work in

civilisation.  On-'the one hand there is the

that <o poison human

constructive tendency, whieh has caused-

men to discover once thing after another,
to claborate the arts and crafts, tolopen up

and to strive to maintain communications-

between all, parts of the ‘carth, to colonise
fresh countries. where desirable things are

to-be found, to write. books, ‘poems, plays,”

10 paint- pictures . ..
At the same time, certain faults inherent

in the refationships that have arisen between -

‘n in the course of the development of
isation have set up secial disharmonies.
The great task of -the futufe is to eradicate
these disharmonies, so far as it is possible.”

Irish Self-Determination Leazue (Gt, Britain)

182, Shaftesbu;y Avenue, ;
" London; W.C.2.
« 6th March, 1924,

" The .\'y.vs Editor, ““ Irish Worker.”

bir,
RE REL

IN EXNGLAND. .
At a special meetigig of the Committeé of

thé irish’Self-Determination League, Central |

Branch ‘(Londonj, the following  resolution
was passcd, and the Secretary was directed
to send a copy to the Prime Minister, the
Home Secretary and the Press. I frust,
therefore, you will seé your. way to e:\:vtcndm:?'

to us the courtesy-of vour 5]_1lmma, n

"Rtsou"rm.\' %
THAT ' the Central Branch (London) of
the - Irish  Self-Determination

Secretary to the continued imprisonment
“of Irish Poligical ‘Prisoners in Wormwood
Serubbs aid Holloway prisons: The men
at Wormwood Scrubs are victims sacrificed

- to/the illegal actionof the previous Govern-:

[fhent—a: Government. that cleared, ifself

laXion. . )

Eits actior by special protective legis

SE OF [RISH POLITICAL PRISONERS

~ League -
desifes to call the. atténtion of .the Home

THIS Branch calis on the Home Secretary "

to release Mrs.: Eady (from Holloway),and

Art O'Brien, Sean McGrath; A. Mullarkey,

D. Fleming, T. Flynn .and’M, Galvin

(from Wormwood - Scrubs), and  this,

justify the claim ‘that Labour has made

upon the Irish electors of Great Britain.:
** Yours faithfully,

S SR

; “' . C.J. LoPMARK, .
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- THE - IBISH AWORKER

JAMES CONNOL\LY

AKD HIS EPOCH. -

\/ CHAPTER 1L -
& lm. PRI-_P\RA.TIQ\'

“Thus whm the exiled child ‘in Edinburgh, ;
laving learnt to read, began to. study antl
rapple with the. pmb]cms of life, he Tound

- gwaying Ireland in” two ways. - Firstly, by
the. virile pdrlmmentdnamsm of Parnell; its’
‘tactits; - obstruction and the judicious and
“deliberate.use of the balance of voting power,
“its ob]ecme, ‘legislative “independence for
Ireland ;
passions - aroused by the Land League and

~all thatwent -with-it—shooting - of agents

.and landlords, resistance to eviction; and,
most deadly weapon of all, the * Boycot.t
. The Land ' League desired -a Ptzlbdl'lt
l’mpr:etoxbhlp on ‘easy financial terms, a
* demand uniting all classes of farmers.
movement ‘professed “also -its intention of
“securing rcgular and improved conditions of
life for the ‘wrétched labourer, though herc.
. the less impoverished . or more  soulless
farmers became mierely lip-servants. - Some,
like Davitt, cherished”the idedl of the Jand
nationalized with every fafmer and labourer
“a partner in its- workmg, ,sup(.rmtnndcd by .
an Irish- State.
~Latér on; our young SLudLﬂt of affairs

y the two movéments coalesce, the. Home

 Ruler concentrating pro -tem.: on ‘the: land

2 demand. Ong¢ opinion amongst the. National -

++ Leaguers was that national freedom should

not be subordinated to the economic demand

" but Parnell “récognized ‘that -a’ nation-

indling in_population and. with 999 of *

‘pLopl lackmg ‘the lcast*conomxc ska

4 less likely ‘to succeed

3 o concede - the

s ,ntlals of laglsiatw indepénderice, than

"a_nation growmg in numbers and hopeful

| -Thé reault was. t.hk vo:t‘ powurful aml
fu ‘a time, the most successful Irish. effort
the days of Grattan a'nd ’{ono of

to conduct several

bnhmd a packing-Casciin a pnntmg Lstal)hsh
; ment in Edinburgh. . He was-now a printer’s .
(lc\-xL and was_ madé to occupy such a chlt
“in erder. to- conceal the fact of his extreme
\auth from the inspector. } By this device
- his masters managed to prevent-the autlmrl—
tics from _noticing . that’ ‘they “employed
child too young for the:dutiés m\.ol\md,
but at length the ruse *was C\])Osnd ‘the
_printers: rcprunandgcl andl Jim wiis dismissed.”
_ Yet, at twelve years we find himi (mplovc
“under the unl'n ienic -conditions’ of-"th
baking trade.
in the lmn@tuml dtmoqph(ru of “the.
huu\c soon -undermined’ the ‘heals
“child. * Fle became ill and again was out 0{ as
job. .-
But throtigh . the lmru “of (xoel\ dl‘ld for
great “gain of - his Chass, " Jim did not’
succumb to the cevil cffects
cap‘xtal\m exploi L4twn on his young phy: slquu
“as'du_so many, young workers even to-di
but he ralligd; and after a°dismal spell oof
unemployment he found: a' mosaic: tiling.

bako

factory whose ‘owners condescended to use

him a5 a'profit-making fool. * For two ya.an.
. he svorked in”the factory until, arrived at
adoiwcumu ‘R left the job.  He wids now

nt:. forth
[ur Ihc

nrany * another waguslan he w
* fall of confidénce to win: his meed:

~ Dublin, he Jearnt: thL accomphslunmts and.
{ vy ‘.md tlu

(concluded).” e

=y
that"a ;’lCTI.ldL‘sCLI‘LLk‘ of social activity was =

and secondly, through th¢ fieree |

Fhe—

'_m,nmd aloof from public fife

boy': “of mm ymr“'

psaEl o

Thg night dnty: pir (m\me(L
- man’s- Joun -

of. l‘ulh:lkss :

> of cighteen, and hl\( i

~In- Glasgow, and over o '.:

of much hdppxm,ss, and the young «tposlh
of e
Aluended by that great and subtle mystery
the” entire” depths of “which no mqtvrmlm
can probe.

But in the midst of it all camé thé tinex-
pected<und sorrowful tidings. that his father,
yet @ comparatively young man, had’ dicd.
Jim' hurried back to-Edinburgh, buricd his
fathcer, consoled: the family, and sought his
father's vacant posti s Corporation dustmani.
This he Mn.mugi‘ and - fecling himscit

. (st(lblhhn d and® sccure, hé -married  and
settled  down ™ in Edinburgh, a hnsband
- at twenty-one,  prepared . to  support his
mother and the young Connollys as well as
as , the probable Connollys “of the furtue
gvnoratmn His "voy:
under “way. [t behoves.us to- examine
vawhile: the: miind of 'the¢ mariner, already
remarkable. in the broadness of its (lt velop-
ment and the greatness of ifs ideals. “ When
I was a child I spoke as achild, T undersgood
“as-a_child, 1- thoughl as a child ; but when
I-became a mdn L put away the thm;.\ of
““a child. * Paul.

Irom his .\\rltmgs and recorded specctie s"
we can proceed to estimate:the nature of

the thoughts of the man Connolly.

(End of Chapter: 1y R
S ONotE ox Isasc BUTT,
In our last. mstalment, we trdeed | the

“development of Parliamentary Nationalism - -

‘and we promised a’ note on , it first -
protagonisl ut came' of an Ascendency. -

Butt, _its first

family-and was onle of the imported govorning
“class. . Very gifted in s hol(\tslnp and: an

“orator of the first rank, he hu.lmx Hamsur--_

at-Law, and. W hateley, Professor of: Polit;
Economy at  Dublin : University—Trinity
College, the. preserve of ‘the \scendeney
classes—and wag in’ those days an orthodox:
~Lory and antizRepealer. Yet,
€..G. Duffy-when on trial for treason in
connutmn with the Y oung: Ireland movement
of the “‘fortics.” He scemis: to have
until  the
Fenian outbreak, when he aceepted bricfs
for the ])Olltl(,.ll prisoners. . And whereas the
; rgactmnarv .and insincere
essed” him_ markedly, the abscure .and

- proletarian Fenidans so- moved him

hmmmn and
e sLum-d

])) launching, undu‘ Butts lm( hlp ﬂu
Hoxm Government fAssociation, - Having
d its 10yalt' Empire, * ﬂn-
i wh IC - \\ bigs
ot

oppoau} by the orthodu\
by the:  Trec
hmch but as
; they grew in power (uzd became the xdmh/d—
* tion: of the inte “ofthe native

capitalists rmers; - the

'i‘r((mdh o it Most, R«\\-rcmf\
()pp()rtumsts, . Bisho gra«lual% “fell
“into dine, -In- 1374 }1&3- 3

gmmd and, iuur me
all” of -whom were: daly -
" LR.B o mkmg thefoath,  In 75 a vi
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v clected as a Rey
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nomic determinism felt: hll’ﬂS(‘lf n-.
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consi lvnv.v :md f{)rtltll(l( thdt lu ;

as th Amnc st\ i

all - dlt’d with the. Insh (xtf i1

cribed

AWhen' e 1

- He thinks he will get sunutlung out of -the
English by rubhmg them down.  Nonsense

lub them up, sir, that's the thing to do

rub. them up. - Make lhum uncomfortable,
that's the right policy ! "

Suiting - the actions to the words, he bq.,.m
by speaking for four hours irreley antly in

m(ltr to obsirict «the conduct of business, -

\ - divergence “began between Butt and

the former \'\hm and Tory M.P.s of the
-_1»hm‘1- Rolers, sund the new. men and ex-
enians, led -ntualiy by Paroell The

et lr:um_;;h«-:l Butt swas de posed, - Parnell
‘took ‘the reins and the most extriordinary

Parliame ntary movement in history occur rod. -
ions. the Irish-speakers held -

-On sexveral oc

up. the House, sitting day and night, for
severdl - days, - preventing - business, and
greating scenes  of - the - wildest disorder.

'n A most interesting style
])\ R. B ‘)B [CIET

LParnell”
sutt died, lone and rejected. As fai
his “environment - and © Conservative
A“U\\Ld him to be; he was an honest man,
; assisted -evoluiton - in

is movement helped to delay
the r<\u!uu:)nar\ ‘outburst for a generation.,
CLtis not thmugh Parli tmentary leaders, but
by their own parposeful organization that
the lowest classes cin obtain _their rightful

fru(lnm

as

Jjjxu.l-'..

_ VERSES. ‘
(Suitable fur a (ﬁll(lldclth i’ the L]l(til)ll\
in County Dublin ) :

Ole- Bill stood on the bmmng deck .

When d" about was rout, ;
And says, Il think, hl“ \lnmu ur Cotic;

" Life of Charles Stewart

ideals

F\‘(T

The lin is going out.” - = S

“There's.nix like simple trist,'” says he;
. When things btgin to’ burn, =

And pe I‘h.l])\ a little of the same
Will putin Archic - Heron”!
i * A

._Rirh acock Ford - ;
IFrom Dean'’s Grange to .\\»uuh &

And sce Archie H. ;

©As he's taking the boards, ™

With an car towards the ity

. That so he may hear,

"I the * Sufferin® Ducks

Areadvanieing in redr.

~

: . B e %

L come” from -haunts of Cdm[‘ A
I.nmk« d voeal: sally; 7 -

And jabber -t -and to“the mugs -
Angd call the biz a raily.

And all the time it's Q.B.U. -
Eh! don’t you think - I'm. (‘1

For - mm may come. and. men nm) 50
Bnt Bxll gmd ‘me-=for ¢ver

¥
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; "'.\'1"C'@nghaill &
J.(mdonnf.tWo, rears..
Lbuur for p@ss sing - explosives,
L Very upn[,ht dﬂd (h'vutcd voluntdr)
()adlc cause,
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and er bruthcr £

her say
released - thi
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Hd“‘ on: lndr{'v March 215t

Tias made hcl finish
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wi hom'».lu_ wor!\ui and g \\]imn hie
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A ‘Ld"Kll'L\‘ hnhu.
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- THE - IBISH AWORKER

JAMES CONNOL\LY

AKD HIS EPOCH. -

\/ CHAPTER 1L -
& lm. PRI-_P\RA.TIQ\'

“Thus whm the exiled child ‘in Edinburgh, ;
laving learnt to read, began to. study antl
rapple with the. pmb]cms of life, he Tound

- gwaying Ireland in” two ways. - Firstly, by
the. virile pdrlmmentdnamsm of Parnell; its’
‘tactits; - obstruction and the judicious and
“deliberate.use of the balance of voting power,
“its ob]ecme, ‘legislative “independence for
Ireland ;
passions - aroused by the Land League and

~all thatwent -with-it—shooting - of agents

.and landlords, resistance to eviction; and,
most deadly weapon of all, the * Boycot.t
. The Land ' League desired -a Ptzlbdl'lt
l’mpr:etoxbhlp on ‘easy financial terms, a
* demand uniting all classes of farmers.
movement ‘professed “also -its intention of
“securing rcgular and improved conditions of
life for the ‘wrétched labourer, though herc.
. the less impoverished . or more  soulless
farmers became mierely lip-servants. - Some,
like Davitt, cherished”the idedl of the Jand
nationalized with every fafmer and labourer
“a partner in its- workmg, ,sup(.rmtnndcd by .
an Irish- State.
~Latér on; our young SLudLﬂt of affairs

y the two movéments coalesce, the. Home

 Ruler concentrating pro -tem.: on ‘the: land

2 demand. Ong¢ opinion amongst the. National -

++ Leaguers was that national freedom should

not be subordinated to the economic demand

" but Parnell “récognized ‘that -a’ nation-

indling in_population and. with 999 of *

‘pLopl lackmg ‘the lcast*conomxc ska

4 less likely ‘to succeed

3 o concede - the

s ,ntlals of laglsiatw indepénderice, than

"a_nation growmg in numbers and hopeful

| -Thé reault was. t.hk vo:t‘ powurful aml
fu ‘a time, the most successful Irish. effort
the days of Grattan a'nd ’{ono of

to conduct several

bnhmd a packing-Casciin a pnntmg Lstal)hsh
; ment in Edinburgh. . He was-now a printer’s .
(lc\-xL and was_ madé to occupy such a chlt
“in erder. to- conceal the fact of his extreme
\auth from the inspector. } By this device
- his masters managed to prevent-the autlmrl—
tics from _noticing . that’ ‘they “employed
child too young for the:dutiés m\.ol\md,
but at length the ruse *was C\])Osnd ‘the
_printers: rcprunandgcl andl Jim wiis dismissed.”
_ Yet, at twelve years we find himi (mplovc
“under the unl'n ienic -conditions’ of-"th
baking trade.
in the lmn@tuml dtmoqph(ru of “the.
huu\c soon -undermined’ the ‘heals
“child. * Fle became ill and again was out 0{ as
job. .-
But throtigh . the lmru “of (xoel\ dl‘ld for
great “gain of - his Chass, " Jim did not’
succumb to the cevil cffects
cap‘xtal\m exploi L4twn on his young phy: slquu
“as'du_so many, young workers even to-di
but he ralligd; and after a°dismal spell oof
unemployment he found: a' mosaic: tiling.

bako

factory whose ‘owners condescended to use

him a5 a'profit-making fool. * For two ya.an.
. he svorked in”the factory until, arrived at
adoiwcumu ‘R left the job.  He wids now

nt:. forth
[ur Ihc

nrany * another waguslan he w
* fall of confidénce to win: his meed:

~ Dublin, he Jearnt: thL accomphslunmts and.
{ vy ‘.md tlu

(concluded).” e

=y
that"a ;’lCTI.ldL‘sCLI‘LLk‘ of social activity was =

and secondly, through th¢ fieree |

Fhe—

'_m,nmd aloof from public fife

boy': “of mm ymr“'

psaEl o

Thg night dnty: pir (m\me(L
- man’s- Joun -

of. l‘ulh:lkss :

> of cighteen, and hl\( i

~In- Glasgow, and over o '.:

of much hdppxm,ss, and the young «tposlh
of e
Aluended by that great and subtle mystery
the” entire” depths of “which no mqtvrmlm
can probe.

But in the midst of it all camé thé tinex-
pected<und sorrowful tidings. that his father,
yet @ comparatively young man, had’ dicd.
Jim' hurried back to-Edinburgh, buricd his
fathcer, consoled: the family, and sought his
father's vacant posti s Corporation dustmani.
This he Mn.mugi‘ and - fecling himscit

. (st(lblhhn d and® sccure, hé -married  and
settled  down ™ in Edinburgh, a hnsband
- at twenty-one,  prepared . to  support his
mother and the young Connollys as well as
as , the probable Connollys “of the furtue
gvnoratmn His "voy:
under “way. [t behoves.us to- examine
vawhile: the: miind of 'the¢ mariner, already
remarkable. in the broadness of its (lt velop-
ment and the greatness of ifs ideals. “ When
I was a child I spoke as achild, T undersgood
“as-a_child, 1- thoughl as a child ; but when
I-became a mdn L put away the thm;.\ of
““a child. * Paul.

Irom his .\\rltmgs and recorded specctie s"
we can proceed to estimate:the nature of

the thoughts of the man Connolly.

(End of Chapter: 1y R
S ONotE ox Isasc BUTT,
In our last. mstalment, we trdeed | the

“development of Parliamentary Nationalism - -

‘and we promised a’ note on , it first -
protagonisl ut came' of an Ascendency. -

Butt, _its first

family-and was onle of the imported govorning
“class. . Very gifted in s hol(\tslnp and: an

“orator of the first rank, he hu.lmx Hamsur--_

at-Law, and. W hateley, Professor of: Polit;
Economy at  Dublin : University—Trinity
College, the. preserve of ‘the \scendeney
classes—and wag in’ those days an orthodox:
~Lory and antizRepealer. Yet,
€..G. Duffy-when on trial for treason in
connutmn with the Y oung: Ireland movement
of the “‘fortics.” He scemis: to have
until  the
Fenian outbreak, when he aceepted bricfs
for the ])Olltl(,.ll prisoners. . And whereas the
; rgactmnarv .and insincere
essed” him_ markedly, the abscure .and

- proletarian Fenidans so- moved him

hmmmn and
e sLum-d

])) launching, undu‘ Butts lm( hlp ﬂu
Hoxm Government fAssociation, - Having
d its 10yalt' Empire, * ﬂn-
i wh IC - \\ bigs
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by the:  Trec
hmch but as
; they grew in power (uzd became the xdmh/d—
* tion: of the inte “ofthe native
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()pp()rtumsts, . Bisho gra«lual% “fell
“into dine, -In- 1374 }1&3- 3
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he defended”
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as th Amnc st\ i

all - dlt’d with the. Insh (xtf i1

cribed

AWhen' e 1

- He thinks he will get sunutlung out of -the
English by rubhmg them down.  Nonsense

lub them up, sir, that's the thing to do

rub. them up. - Make lhum uncomfortable,
that's the right policy ! "

Suiting - the actions to the words, he bq.,.m
by speaking for four hours irreley antly in

m(ltr to obsirict «the conduct of business, -

\ - divergence “began between Butt and

the former \'\hm and Tory M.P.s of the
-_1»hm‘1- Rolers, sund the new. men and ex-
enians, led -ntualiy by Paroell The

et lr:um_;;h«-:l Butt swas de posed, - Parnell
‘took ‘the reins and the most extriordinary

Parliame ntary movement in history occur rod. -
ions. the Irish-speakers held -

-On sexveral oc

up. the House, sitting day and night, for
severdl - days, - preventing - business, and
greating scenes  of - the - wildest disorder.

'n A most interesting style
])\ R. B ‘)B [CIET

LParnell”
sutt died, lone and rejected. As fai
his “environment - and © Conservative
A“U\\Ld him to be; he was an honest man,
; assisted -evoluiton - in

is movement helped to delay
the r<\u!uu:)nar\ ‘outburst for a generation.,
CLtis not thmugh Parli tmentary leaders, but
by their own parposeful organization that
the lowest classes cin obtain _their rightful

fru(lnm

as

Jjjxu.l-'..
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(Suitable fur a (ﬁll(lldclth i’ the L]l(til)ll\
in County Dublin ) :

Ole- Bill stood on the bmmng deck .

When d" about was rout, ;
And says, Il think, hl“ \lnmu ur Cotic;
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SLAUGHTER OF THE INNOCENTS

[Continued from column L. pdge 1,

" to Relieving Officer for red tickei. "1 was

refused on ground that I couldpay a doctor.
I went to doctor and he asked ‘me if the
Guardians kne wwethat 1 ohad fodrehildren of
my own and that I was looking : for eat=docs
relief for nurse child. In I]u “nd T had 10
pay 7 6 for doctor and.% 5 for medicine,
not including flanncl and ~h|u\ wine,, and
for ¢very bottle of medicine I had to pay | 6.
Also, fora fortnight 1-had to keep fire and
- light burning day and night. The same bal%y:
took ill on Hth March.- [ went for doctor ;
was refused ticket by Relieving Officer.
I asked doctor to come in nurse's hour;
he refused. I went further for advice and
found out that 1 could compel doctor” to
come.c I got letters for both doctor amd
officer. . I had doctor dm\'n at 9 pm. on
- Thursday. '

I may mention that I got baby when he
was unl\ 7 days old. Hc is now 12 months,

_and I can honcstly say for three months [ did

not know what slecp was. .

1 write this for_other foster oghicrs o
take cexample from me and don't et the
Officials  boss them.—

Fostir MoTheg,

We were advising, @ mother the other day

" to buy natural milk for her child, three

nm:uh~ old, which she; a poor aniemis girl,
was unable to nursc.
believe in giving a child cow’s milk. * She
“had been “told _cow’s milk’ was unhedlthy
for babies. Rather -interesting, we said,
5 \\hdt do. you feed . the child on? ™
l’(rfnmtulu )mllk she said. 7 Oh,”" we
said, * you call it per forated because of the
“two holes.yon punch in the can, is thai it ¥
She did not sce the point.. We asked her to

-bring @ ‘can of this'milk for our information

and- we foungd. she had Breen supplying her
baby. wit_h a  skimmed milk especially

. branded. 't Not for Babies. " €an we wonder

“at the high death rate among younge hildren

—an ignorant mother; u_n»mmhh food;nay, .
poison, not a food. ~ Will ne enc tuke up this

;lsk of :protyctinﬂ child Ii{u 2 .o

W dre told pun mlll\ is an tws\l!lldl food

“for_infants and young children. = We find
! dairykci»ptrs'- charging - two. shillings and

cightpenee a “galton for this: éssential food
-which, Aumrdmg., o «contracts. entered into”,
with the Dablin Poor Law Union, “ca +be
supplicd at from’1 13d. to:1 53d. per galion.,
In other words the. retailer is charging over
one: hundred per cenit. for (hstnlnmnﬂ the
life-sustaining food fm |nf.mt~

iy ARE WE AT ‘PE'ACE ?
To ‘the Editor, * Irish. W orker.”

A Chara,— Conditions. inour. country ll.l\l
been \\mugln to-such a piteh that We find

~ this ~question _to-day fmmuu, the-sibject

of & controversy il[ the Irish: Press.”
We arc t\\u years and lhru months tnder
a form of * government " that hus- so far

Wfailed to n‘mlr rialisc. \mu 6ith ‘December,

1021, that ** government,!’ 4o-carry outiits
operations, has presented  to the Irish
people” (whiich- it claims-is” the Wil of the

Irislt people) @ scheme for the eollection of .«

doubleIncome Tax, d Landlord and Tenants'
Bill favouring the landlord, an: Irish Land

" Bill harrassing all Land Commission Annuijty

payers
hl)l(ll rs.
a ~l|«lmh scale reducing the Old Age Pension

of the aged, lhx mlumJn\I the r)luul a let
of sreduction "of Schodl Teachers's salar
ctel, ete, \u(l while these matte

ingluding Fee Farme and- Lease:

Were in
inery 1o
Jealise  thén setup,ca démand for a

CLO000;000  loan was miade on the Irish
~apeople Switl Al -intingivionthat o furthir .

loan ‘woukl-he required nest -May or June’
<r Ho anake s this
ol A 26 countics. m Irchind. the ’unl-h will’ ln bl
e mm Selled to .u.m to this: modus Gperandi.
h; lI S cnmplllwtult ol one ?}d«‘ V\l“ I)! mn ks

ove Hmh nt’}

* East Greenwich—Johannes, 11 Blackwell Lanc. -

i Z % Can be had at all \&\\sdncub, or from
We offer all members of the Irish Worker Te MANAGER,”
League the following: bargains " The Workers' Dreadnought,”

Oh, no, she did not .

Sardines L/(/\ 3d.pirtin pg g good day’s work for yourself and yor,

Green Pe i 3d. per b, class. ,

Split Peas ... s 3d. per Ib. Fill up these forms and send them to us

Oatmeal-(Fine Scotch) . 3d. perdb.
. Flour 2d. per 1b. SUBSCRIPB?’L FQRM'

’l‘mned Milk (\\\1 ctene Ll) 10d. I)L‘l\_[ill T MANAGER, 11“5”‘ \\'Qm\'-]gn,”

Tinned Peaches. (11b. tins) © 8d, per tin I7 GARDINER'S PLACE, DUBLIS.
—_»Linolenm, 2 yards wide 5/- por lincal yd. Is ndusul pleasc hnd 10/~,'8}-, _’_'(3 being
“Soap (31b. bars) - ... 1s. per bar  oneycar ‘s, half-year’s, qLartuly subscription

THE IRISH WORKER LEAGUE B O i
"7 Gardiner’s Place, Dublin. : T
JOIN 'I;HE IRISH WORKER LEAGUE. : a%
7\_¥Ee Fee,1,-. Subscriptions Voluntary ' IRISH WORKER LEAGUE.
; Piigis Dissies S ENTRANCE FORM.-

| 'PRINTERSOF “ THE 'IRISH 'WORKER *’ ‘ L QEree . 10 DAY el \\co.Ll)
All Classes ar" Printipg ~executed '.. ‘\umc_,; ;
with ;mmss & DESPATCH. o+ Adiiegs
GEE US A TRIAL ORDER. . = — WANTED——A_,:;'VO'LUNTEER".- .
l =i NOTE ADDRILSS— 1 & \\ ltl any Lt dglu_:l;l;l;;(l' who undé [\L.imi-

- 21 Upr L]ﬁey St., DUthl “.yo cit ouf and-design a [(ﬁ;ml)tr of small

“some in America. . How:lohg this’ 7imm Second Grand Annu}l Dallce j

A Blogging Bill (subject to rencwall,

+ or cone  mome nten im\\ the!

Aelectivie -

fRISH 'WOR%‘ER LEAGUE NITEK E T I N G

4 LONDON READERS PLEASE NOTE.

G { the Irish Worker Leaguc has
hu.\n sz’r):ﬂli rflsl;Jrz)anuLm; Sunday, March 9th Of &ll memhers of the Irish Transport
and 23rd, 7.30, at Central St)ulh\\drk Labour and General Workers’ Union angd
Centre, 124 Walworth Road, S.E. members ot Irish Worker League will
’ be held

“Irish Worker ”* is"On Sale :—

NEWSAGENTS : ]N THE MANSION HOUSE

Battersea- A. Toleman, &4 Battersci Kise
W.C.- Communist Party, 16 King Street. DUBL'N,
E.C.—Workers” Dreadpought, 152 Fleet (.:itrccl

Plumstead--O'Sullivan, = 154 Plumstead Road. SUNDAY, MARCH 16th, ’21<

Deptiord—Latter, Catholic Church. At 8 o’clock.
Lewisham—Catholic Church. “Urgent and 1mportant matters will be
Bermondsey—A . Mallandain, 19 Parker  Row, dlSGllSSed

Dockhead.

' JIM LARKIN WILL SPEAK

Officials of other Unions are invited to attend

Voluntary sellers wanted.  Also  members.
Write :—Hon, Sec., Irish Worker League, above
address. :

* AN ARM;ITOII&%ES'{FS ON ITS IF YOU BELONG TO. THE IRISH WORKING
. CLASS IN ENGLAND
READ ‘* THE WORKERS' DREADNOUGHT.”
The only paper in England that stands for Irish
Freedom, economic, political and  social,

Weare helping o 6ill 1]1( stonach of the
Irish working class, so h(ll they llm may
march forward.

152 Fleet St., London, E.C.

PRICE LIST.

To be had any time, any day, at— to " rish Worker.”

GAELIC PRESS : mll’f\(I.(\mn[\\;\ul;,m\u Du»u\/‘

‘National Printers a.ud Publishers . I desire to join the krish Worker League’
o ‘ : and “enclose One blnllmq for Entrance Fee.

cuttmg out of ehildren’s frocks “voluntetr

frocks for Dependents’ childrén Will such
wlunmr call -at. 17 (.drdnur: Place.

u[ furu “on the ntlur visions. uf homes' that
were built up at.much expense and.on the

carning of the “people’s, children, somé of 2 ST BRENDAN'S GFC Gl

whom toiled in’England, some in Scotland,

will stand the test.is very. ob\;uus :
at the daily newspipers. and read. of tlu @, - . qubche!dm

drift. “thes anxicty, - the | barbarism,-, the \l l-
muinnm the \nnu\m,‘, ote., and then n.ﬂect THE BANBA HA

: " On Satuﬂlny. ‘15th' March, 1924'
"\appers Stnng Band. = Dancmg 10.3q p.m 5

al ry[ _our: Patron Suint th

two  Irish -execntions -in.” British Jails in

Ireland: by CEngland's public” cxecutionet. . : '[YGKETS (DOUBLE) oo 13]:5

Are et pesice 7 1 not, \\lml is” the

Creason” sk -t elegtorate! : : __{_____________,___,... :
Rl \ulu\ fraternally,” - ! l’nnted tiy. Tue” GAELIC® PRESS, 21 Upper:
2 < Jonx P BOwLER, + Liftey St.,. Dublin, for * the Pxopﬂét”:

¥ Vicar - Street, Dukdin : -t e and publishied: By him at 17 Gardmen
“ Aot Maich, 1921; S S G K ﬂnhhu, . Do
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A HETEROGENEOUS CONGLOMERATION
| CALLED AN ARMY., |

. ) . 24 v
“ [t was clear that an immense. abscess

President -Cosgrave was dining with George

- reacting. o the  general health and the Windsor in London on the 17th March..
general morale” and the gencerdl death rate :
of the nation “ existed.” “There existed in LWCK TO CONNOLLY AND PEARSE

army,” sdys Kevin, “factions, organisations,
+ societies—call ‘them what you will "—don’t
tempt us;” Kevin'! ) o '
The faction, that Kevin forgets to name
“that caused all the trouble is the faetion
outside the army which controls the army
tand the Government—the- faction formerly
. - located: in Kildare Street, now..located . in
- Molesworth -Stréetz- Cut adrift from that
" faction. _Get back to Pearse’ and Connolly.
Johnson -still belicves England is. right
in" breeding . dissension among - Irishmen.
The audagity” of this.cuckoo.  He-would
* be tempted to’say something he.'would be
‘sorry for. - . y ) '

Comrade John$on was not so tempcrate

_afewmonths ago. What about.the last man
(Itishman). and the last shilling: ) to
be sacrificed to maintain the so8i8) fabric
and’-Comrade Johnson's: £360 a year.. ©

- Whiy not give Johnson's £360 a year to”
some. wounded lad of 1916 and let Jolinson™’

. £0-back and sell Bibby’s Oil Cake or the
Horse™ Medicine ?
the bull “téo long.

- Comrade Mulcahy insists upon the *t Will

of the People -being respected.” Comradg
Mulcahy regretted to.have ‘to tender his
. resignation:  Sp did Comirades- Tobin _and
Dalton.  Comrades

Hé has been throwing

Tobin and Dalton did-
_not find out the Republic had beeii betraged-

until'théy lost a job. It is never,tog late to

findiout the truth.- . . : e
Let us get, back:to 1916-=back: to Pearse
and -Connolly. s A .

Comrade “Johnson did. 1ot want 10 be™

tempted to.say things one would dfterwards

be sorry for. ~ Wise young judge.. - Johnson .

wis .as wise, cuining, and & courageous
“in 1914 when he deserted his comrades
because he, gohnson, was an Imperialist
and - believed in the waf,
Lngland was -right. : o
When _some of - these lads who are now
quarrelling with cach ‘other’ ‘were fighting
togethdr -dgaiiist thi Empire, Juhnspn “wats
- helfing the Empire, and Johnson s suct

Master Mortished, was workin grin

Suppuse Johnson gave one

Mortished's job to b going on with, Johnsou

-« would be saying somethinig “then we would

tot be!sorry for. :

We understar ent: Cos A
-~ stoo il to attend 1o hig mhlilarions, dutic
i _“i&dcpu{vy_‘ i i
- Club—therSe

But s ,dL true that

anad.
ot

st Lild:;'

inasorited bime the Freemason . € mst % 22,
sproseiited 1 4 mu\kmsgm “make }’Ulkt,f.t'd
iy Pl B

and bvlicvud i

1 Presidents Cosgrave was—

-forward, and the time is opportunc.

‘sentenced | to long ~ terms - of

‘mutiiiy) whymot throw open the gaol gates

hour: -
i

. THE HANDWRITING ON THE. WALL.

" of 'J. H. Tliomas (Jimmic

Labeur Party.” . 35

* Would it not. bt wise to consider getting,
back to.first principles.

Someone, somewhere, at some time must
make an effort to submit a rcasoncd sugges-

~tion to the factions, societics, groups and
* parties who arc for ever loudly proclaiming

their loyalty to ™ Caithlin Ni Houlihan *—
their loyalty to  Republican  principles.
Some say they believed tié“so-called Lree
State was a step towards the Republic,
others differ and say it was a, retrograde

_step.

We darc to suggest, step to or step from,
now is the time to step together and step
But
all sections who believe in this nation,. this
race and its destiny, must be given an
opportunity.to step.4 full and free step.
Now that the “ Mutineers ” have won out
let thern  show their sincerity and give
carnest of the' conviction. Let them ‘join
publicly in making a*demand that all
Irishmeri now confined in prisons within
the Free State ahd- the prisons in Epgland,
Scotland, Wales and the Six Counties be
reledsed at once, and that a Race Convention:
be called to meet within the ruins of the:
Post.Office, ) Connell Street, Easter Sunday.
That the Call"he signed.by the elected or
selected Teprestntatives of each’group. We
are told-over 900 men are incaréerated in
Free” Staté - prisons—over 300 have ‘been
imprisonment
by-secret military courts. 1f it were wisc .
and politic to’ petmit thosé who have been
charged- with . insubordination « (some’ say -

within the krée State_and force them -to
open. the gaol gates in’, Great Britain and
the- Six- Counties, ~Let. s get back ' to -
Connolly ‘and Pearst.” - Let the groups comg;

. together -and ,find -a-common denominator |

and Easter Sunday is ,tl)c _psychological.

=

Balham Labour Party Dclegates moyed :—
_* That this miceting calls for the expulsion
“Thomas ol .the
¢ of 'the Britisl:

N.U.R.) .from ‘the Executiv

Mr. Hewat, T:D., says that-dn
circumstaiices, Parties appusiig, :
capilal " ouk

o
of

‘

- has got

~ Cars;..

- " masquerade for -a time as

. SAYS KEVIN O'HIGGINS.® -SO SAY WE ALL !

the bursting of the abscess, political and
military,” vide Kevin O’Higgins. But
continued Mr. Hewat, to do any such thing
to-day would be a crime. But who are the
parties to criticise the Government when
all of the groups, factions and’ societies

(sccret and otherwise) sitting in -the Dail.

What a

are part of the Government.

heterogencous  conglomeratich—Hibernians,

Freemasons, and I.R.B. (séctions one .and
two). but all agreed on one thing, exploiting
the Common People. .- E

" Another brilliant thought. l\.‘lajof»erl'yan'

Cooper,” T.D., FEreemason, “delivers. himself
thusly :— Do, TR
“ It was not a question what the form
of Government in this country would be
ten years hence, but whether there would
be any Ireland at ail unless- they were
prepared to sink  their “differences jand
work together for the, common good.”

Is it not a terrible thing to contemplate :

- % Whether there will be any Ireland at-all.”
What does the bould Major meam at -all ?

Is he going te take the Old Land under his
“arm- and walk “off. with it 2 Yes, Major,

there is ‘going to be a different form of

Government, -with a - different type of
fepresentative. - You bet your. spurs !, .

Yes, Major,you and your type are going

. to work. . The days ‘are bringing a new

~ infelligence and. a new: determination.
Eoin MacNeil,- the adaptable ‘one,” master

of compromise-and bétrayal, says: ““his
_idew hs that as short-a term as two years
was -quite sufficiént’ " to. continue. army

“officers.-in important administrative. posts.”

. €orrect, Owing ! . Why not apply that
~decision. £0 X ofessors  and Ministers  of

~ Education who' profess principles they fail

to Tive up to ?  Easy, Owing, Master. Hugo

‘fo quote your: protegee 'Johmnison.

The Red Heron who turied yellow got

" “cooked in - the. County - Dublin’ - Election,
losing his

‘nof\ination . déposit. Now- to

“find out who fodted ‘the bill for the motor:
the frec drinks and the’ papers dis- -

Ctributed frec.

. The iu}trigujn_g, “lying *grafters who!

the Executive of.
_the "Irish Transport and General Workers*

one of.’ these “simecures. < Don’t bé
saying things'that -you will be sorry -for—

cinion have had their. little .joke this week! e

hey have expelled the Founder of " the
- Union.  The cuckooy will wike up shortly. -

3
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R Ju’ilg‘e rﬁl\'es"tlliat'. the Q&Se must close, disallowing Larkin’s objection,

/

proceed. I repeat my exception.

s e

an addregs. 1 pausge to take exception to
the ruling of .the -Court, refusing, me an
adjournment for the purpose of examining
the Bank records brought into the case—.
without notice —amd furtBer denyingme the
opportunity . to relate the facts sworn ‘to,
in order. of time, to refute the perjured
statements of the Defendants, and generally
to arrangeé my casc. You haye ruled T must -
‘I have
no-seniors nor juniors to remind and correct
e, no solicitors to instruct and arrange my
papers. - Your Lordship rules that I, a
layman, unacquainted with your rules, your
procedure, must be bound by a ‘c()dcf—:t'
privileged code-—ivhich has been built by a
privileged . caste giving them. special “privi
leges, ‘thus denying the people: access to the
Temple of Justice.” The doors of the Citadel
of Truth-are hidden by this accumulation .

_of mental garbage, the dead minds and

writings of . "centurics will ‘not hold the
peoples in awe and subjection much longer.
These rules,. these procedures, these fossilized
mental perturbatiogs of-dead minds must be

oblitcrated. The: common people re

, becoming sensible of these privileges of a-

caste. They have, 'in dther, countries,
applied a summary remedy.. They-attempted
to'apply a remedy here ; “they are beginning
to realise in this country. that their méthods
were ngt as successful as they hoped. Take
note-~the” next - attempt. will be used in a
more direct, therefore a more intelligent
manner. )

: ~+ T also desire to pdint' out I 'was conﬁpellcgl
“to-travel” over: certain country (as your
- lawyers - have 'it) and by direction of the

" from thes
: I

Court.".'Your Lordship ruled you would take
this consolidated cas¢ in parts. Your

*Lordship; with.-that judicial poisc whicli

so well bécomes ‘you,. on morc. than one
occasion  ruled in a most arbitrary fashion,

- and not without heat; ‘when 1 dared to"take
-exeeption™ to your . conduct of. this case.

* prejudicing nly case. | I respectfully suggest

“that the Rules of 1918 were ‘vafid and th:

- ‘objection in a.more trict and legal mannct,

On the Plaintiffs’ casc (the Defendants in
this action) yeu- riled, over my ‘chjection,

the Defendants. wore validly . clected,” the

it was your duty to deliver judgment on
the several points in the case at the close of
the consolidated case. . I have made this
halting objection. I ‘intend té make “dn

Thé Defendants come into this Court after
many. months delay” and  they plead guilty
to having taken the monies of-the members
and expended. the . said monies without '
authority and without-jthe knowledge' of
the members. of the -Union. *They- ack-"

“nowledge: they., have, -since 1914, tos ddte,

- existence a new social order,’

* Executive offices; the property
_ of ‘the. Union, ‘and organized. ;. corrapt-.
“. machine of paid officials,
© -spewer,

* been-doing illegal actions under the Trades

Unjon Acts as amended ‘in 1913, : They
make an apology in the Court for doing these
illegal acts, because they say James Larkin -

" had done ‘them previous to 1914,  That is.

“their defence.  We have com{nittvd a fault,

- they say, and are*now repentant.  Their |
mean apology is worthy of them.  Their :

grime, 2 mean crime, to take money illegally

¢ men and womén (mostly illiterate)
ir' own political and social advince-

~ A ‘mean. crime, a mean apology,
wotthy of these Labour parasites, -

" The men who cstablished the Irish Trans;.
port Union set out to remedy the gricvances
of -the working class, to help - the down- . -
trodden *and oppressed. and  to bring into,
The membe
of the Union now find themselves oppressed * -
and betrayed by these Defeéndants whohave, -
by intrigue and illegal ‘methods, Seized the

usurped and ‘abusgd
moncy of the members

ave taken the

T % ~lostiegemem

*the'members of the Union of the

~-stateme

and money

who asked for an adjournment

T will not weary the Court with too lengthy = under Rules drafted and registerced by them- |

sclves for a purpose which was niever approved
of by the memb and usced that money,
not in the interests of the members, but to
their own political and social aggrandisement.
This morning you heard that 105 branches
out of 350 had the opportunity of voting
upon these Rules of 1923, 98 voted - for,
Tagainst. That is their own sworn statement.
No branch in Dublin was allowed to vote,
Yet, there are more members in the smallest
branch in Dublin than is cmbraced by the
total number who are alleged to have voted.
FForan, O'Brien and their paid hirelings-have
built up a machine to get control of the
Executive machinery, property and money
of the Union for a mischievous purpose and
with criminal intent.  They have robbed the
widows of the men who founded this Union,
men who in life gave their labour and
liberty for “the. purpose of building this
" Union.  Here let me cite some fow cases.
Mgs. Mary Christian, widow of. the .late
Joseph Christian, who; in the boxfon oath,
stated she made claim for nine pounds
mortality benefit.  She is refused, and Joseph
Christian, a member at ~death in good
standing, can be buricd like a pauper.
“Yon owe us a penny,” they say; . we

- refude to-Censider your claim.” When, as a

mate€r of fadt-Joseph Christian was overpaid
at death; and his widow is/defrauded of
her legal duc.  Thomas Ryan, a member,
was shot in Croke Park, November 21st, 1920,
by the Military:  There were no doubts
about this man's death.  Yet O'Brien, by
deputy, writes to Thos. Ryan (then ten days
dead) that “we will not pay you because
you are in arregxs,” and the widow's claim
Is not” cven acknowledged, And  thus
another widow is defrauded. )
Edward Kennedy, a- member for many
years, dies.  He 1s overpaid according to
“their own. bogus rules, yet, when his poor
old widow applies for her Iegal claim, she
is refused. You have.seen the widaw
Kennedy in the box. You have seen the
- widow Murphy in the box. - You have seen
foran, O'Bricn 'and ‘O'Neill in the ~box.
hich do: you: believe—the: widows who'
produced documentary cvidence  of their
claims,, or these ‘gentlémen, who admit that ’
two of them burned the documents which
would have proved—whag ? [ say their
actiens-prove that they conspired to defraud
ir property,
torob the widow
unforgivable crime. .

rhonics and legal ights ;
and fhe orphan- is the
Were ‘they
the Union to submit' Rujés: for certification”
in 19187 ¥ say no. _They have proved my !
- nt true on their ofvn sworn evidence, .
- They siy they werd- instructed to Tegister
Rules’in Juhe;: 1923 ; - they now admit that" .
Was.a lic.  No mectings had been held, no
instructions given by the members..  Mr.
.O'Brien‘says that tie
passed by the ‘members.

Rules of 1918 were
I challenge that

statement. " “Neither the Rules of 1918 nor. -

of 1923 were submitted ; the member$never
hadan opportunity to vote, .and _O'Brien,
Foran, O’Neill and other offi
‘to deny _the members “their Tégal i hts, -
-and I-‘v)]Jxopc you will give ‘thesg ,wﬁﬁﬁon
‘people an oppdrtunity to " exercise thetr
intetligence. - 1 would ‘ask your tordship to..
say with me and witly the members of the
. Union- that* these: Rules of 1918 and 1993

are not the Rules of the Irish Transport and

'‘General Workers” Union.. s

I-am not whmindful that you. have rul
that the Rules of 1918 are ‘valid Rul
I challenge your rufing. "1 have enitéred
-appeal against your finding.. If the Ap,
Court sustains your .ruling: I will go.
Privy Council of England, even I, Rep
*|théugh T=am; aqne \vhn-'m-vbr-r'n‘ngﬁ
-{British: Gover %a-n,'t and mever willo

)

listruct® by the members: of *

cials conspired

I will go'there and will use every method ang
cvery form of procedure under your laws=
to protect the interests of these ignorant,
himble; working men and women of this
Union, who have been so ruthlessly exploited
by thesé unconscionable creatures who have
abnsed  the confidence,
willingness of these humble men
to sustain their organisation.

~ These hypocrites and social elimbers shal]
answer— i : :

(Judge intervenes—takes exception to the
line” of argument). ’

I have no intention of giving offerice,
I' feel things deeply and express . mysclf,
I hope, with sincerity and with that sincerity
which this case deserves, and I hope” your
lordship- will ‘take that explanation “into
consideration.

Upon the question of the Political Levy,
what answer do the Defendants make?
" Because a man spent money in 1912, 1913,
and 19147 ; " does that absolve them ?
These men continued taking money from
thé members (illiterate men) with a knowledge
admitted by Mr. O'Brien, that the law had
been amended in 1913, !

It is untrue to say that I ever got money
for political or other purposes out of the Union
at any time, except my wages, from the day
[-founded this.Union until this hous. Yet
these  Defendants. have taken fifty-nine
thousand pounds of the Union ~ Funds
without autherity and have given . no
accounting. .
in a corrupt way and for their own political .
and social aggrandisement. 1 repeat that. at
no time has a true annual reéturn of the
Union position been made to the Assistant
Reégistrar, as required by.law, except-from
the years 1909 to 1913, ~ Take up the 1917 -
Annual Return, there is no statement therein
of the assets of the Union, neither Liberty
Hall, Inchicore, or the property in.Cork
appears in that’ statement, and: when - 1.
“challenge the atcuracy of the Return I am

» told by the Court *“You widl have to take it be-
causc it has been submitted to. the Registrar
and, from the Registrar thereisno appeal.”

O’'Brien says there was no Executive ine
thie years previous to nor in 1946, and a man, .

.. whose Tife work O’Brien is eXploiting and in
whose ghostly shade he  shelters—-James
.Connolly—rises” from the dead and gives -+
him: -the Tic ; there was an Executive iQ,
1915—James  Comnolly’s . letter  prove

- YBrien a liar. 3

and Women

e .. (Copy.)
Irish Transport and Géneral Work'ers_’.Unipn.
- James Larkin, . General Secretary. )
= _ . Heady Office, Liberty. Hall,
. . Beresford  Place, I)ul)lxil;.
o Fe Lo Ny 1916,
.- 'Secretary, High-St. Branch. _
.2 Dear ‘Sir—You are hereby notified that
there will be' a meeting of the *Generdl
Ixceutive of this Union on the First Sunday
of January, 1916, in Liberty Hall, Dublin:
It is therefore necessary” that your defegates
be' notified and be instructed -upon any .

" the National Exccutive e
~An_auditor’s ‘feport of -the staté of ‘the -
brangh will be called for aX the meeting.
Bk Ffa’tema.lly VYOUI'S", T s
“ - JamEes' ConnNoOLLY, iy
“ . ‘Acting General Secretary,

AT Executive was éI_L-ct'dd and functioned -
“until after the “death. of Jamies Connolly;
'n this o :

] usurped, power and’ place and
their. hirelings ; - and ‘théy have-
by the judicious distributiofi of-
1 by - e have - héld Con Ao,
Executive poswcs R e

.
the loyalt 7 TThe

~

They have used that moncy . '

matters your members 'de'ii/ie to bring.before. -

credture O'Brien and his fellow -~ -




i tell your lordship, I never ran for any public

. of the Union, under your direction I hope,

" these men, Foran, O'Brien and others, took
 out, of the Union funds, amounting to some

" throw this. Free-State”if 1 had fifty-ninc
“thousand pounds.

. ‘opportunity- of going through the books of

" "We cannot -do_anything. to bring them to

.against thesé Defendants ;' iy, ‘expression

¥

. writing. during’ the yeatrs I was exiled. I

-~ any-one of these Defendants; -out of
" own mouths they stand condemned

- One admits that on such an_ occasion onc.

_and he has not up to this hour.taken a
. piece of rope. )

"~ 'O’Brien, ‘Foran and the -other Defendants .

"o pénalty to be attached ‘to their misappro-
" priation ?* ~ The Court objects ?

Evidence, I am not bound by your

- -not. "bound by your orms
.. Procedure. ‘It;,-youvsq bind. m(-_-her?

. according' to ‘Rules ;
and have neévet been qualified to sit on the

“misappropriation of the funds of the Insur-
.- ance Section.
. thousand pounds of the ‘money of these

“cldim ;

_for twelve months, because -this ignorant.

March 22, 1924 .
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I s method and o Connt o wlich to 2
jnstice for thy mombers of this Union,
Let us turn to the charge against Kennedy
and McCarthyv— two of thi paid hirelings.
I claim and [ know the. Court” will sustain
my contention that thesé tdvo, Kennedy and
McCarthy,. were never clected legally and
have ndver-been qualified “to sit and act on
the Executive of the Union;  yet Kennedy
and McCarthy have voted to. deny widows
and orphans of the deceased members of the
Union their legal and just claims, but they,
with O'Briep, their boss, never hesitated to
vote *themselves - and O'Brien’s nomiriees
thousands of pounds of the monics. of the
Union for illegal purposes. [ demand from
this Court an accounting of the monics
illegally voted by these two and others of the
Exccutive. I demand an injunction against
their continuing in officc.  I'demand that
they and their associates be held ageonntable
for all the monies illegally voted and spent,
and that such ‘monies be returned to the
account of the Union. I demand that
O’'Bricn, Kennedy and McCarthy and the
other Defendants be restrained from further
illegalitigs ;  that all monics be returned.
I_demand protection for those who, through
. ignorance; cannot  protect themselves.
O’Brien took this matter to the Courts.
He wanted the Law Courts ,to decide a
matter that should have been decided by
the members.  Ht appealed to Caesar, to
Caesar shall he answer. O'Brien lives
rigidly by the rules when widows and
orphans make a legal claim, -and. by those,

@E\L&ii he perish.
Mr. Yaran and Mr: O'Neill were on the

Povan says Bavkm spen] woneyon pedity ,.I-

5 . EE s : s
action in 191314 and vour lordslip accepted
that statement without proof, and ¢vénjif
that statement of Foran-werd true, llmtg

is
no excuse for their illegal action. C

et nie

office in 13, "14.  In T912 | was debarred
by the Courts from approaching the question
of election for 7 years to any public office.
And may I remind your lerdship the Laws
woverning Trades Unions were, amended in
1913 by legislation. }
n 1914 it was decided by the Jixeentive
of the Union to alter the Rules govérning
political representation, but the Trade Union
Congress of that’ year “decided te wait a
while and in the meantime.I Ieft the country.
FFrom the hour, James Connolly passed to
his- rest - these usurpers started to -spend
money recklessly and illegally. The members

are going to get the protection of the Conurt
and we demand the return to us of the moncy

fifty-nine thousand pounds. I could over-
These Defendants have ,
been working to the detriment of the working
class.. If you do not decide to make these
men return the money they have illegally
spent other measures will have to be taken.
Kennedy and MeCarthy. I say acted illegally.
They were néver clected to' the Executive
they are not qualified

«

Executive. I dsk you to so rule. I ask for
relief in‘this case. I ask you to-give me an

by the. Lock-out of the nioney entrusted to
-~ them to disburse to these men, their women
and children.  They, Foran and O’Neill,
were engaged, not in the blessed work of
distributing the money, but in the unholy
task .of cooking thejaccounts, making false
requisitions on the Centrdl’ Strike Fund and
changing the silver thty had misappro-
priated into one hundred pound notes and
placing these £100 notes in **a safe.”” There
was.a safe in Liberty Hall; many 4 time
during that period of travail have I gone
to that safe (not Foran's and O'Neill's safe),
to see if there was but a shilling left to give
some ‘poor hungry woman to buy a loaf of
bread, and at that time Foran and O'Neill
had stowed away in ‘' a safe™ £7,500.
Did they keep this money without the
" knowledge of Mr. O’Brien, Sccrétary,” and

_the*Union, and the Insurance Section of the
Union. There has becn gross and fraudulent

- One Johnston  toek three-

people and was® convicted’; how many of
his fellow conspirators are not convicted ?

justice until we get the books, and the books
we will get. " el
I have no-feéling. of hatred ‘or: revenge

of feeling towards them was set down in

have never said an untruthful word about

; O‘Brie‘rﬁ, dares: to quote some words. of -~
mine - delivered” at the close of the Irish I v Sena .
Tradeés Union Congress' in Cork, 1912 6f the Central Fund ? I say, with a deep
t sense of responsibility, that cither O'Brien
and Farren were.incapable of keeping account
or, which nowseems to be clear, O’Brien had
.a guilty knowledge of Foran’s and O'Neill's
avrongdoing, and because of: that knowledge,
he-compelled thgse two to acquicsce 10, his,
O'Brien’s, entrance-into ‘membership of sthe-
‘Uniogrand -his consequent ‘seizure of- power.

may make a few rather thetorical flotirishes: .
We are told "that *‘ the Man"of Sorrows™ -
and  ““acquainted - with grief” had one
favourite apostle ‘who took -occasion to
betray Him’ for thirty -picces of silyer, and
later realising his World Shame “took gTope.
and went out and hanged himself ; but there 1
sitsO'Bricn- who, with Foran and O'Neill,” - Let us turn to the-mattet of the £7,500
‘took the silver belonging té the womep and - unlawfully withheld ‘by. Foran ranﬁ*@@%“ﬁll
children of the members of this Union : who.. * from the.women and childr.n of the: strikers
denied the widows and orphans their legal 3119135 'flt')l]§ere was a mecting in the Mansion
©’Bricn betrdyed his’ trust but he - House Dublin, on June, 1919,
lacked the courage of %is prototype, Judas, ' guns had been drawn by the hired gunmen
. of O'Brien and Foran, loy
*and paid out of, the funds of the. Union,
gunmen employed-to overawe the members.

vy \
O'Brien had the audacity .to send a local
secretary in Mayo, with a wife and twelve

eieeoh ; e himself, in a
young children ‘depending on him, to gaol quietened, and Foran, to save himseli, 1n. 2

astful outburst to try .and win support,’
'l::grhit-ted -he had ‘withrﬁel'd' £7,500 of thL
Union Funds in 1913 without th€knowledge
‘of the jmembers and without :authority.
Gaved £7,500- are .the words  he. admitted .

inan had failed to dccount for a few pounds.

come intoL(Jhis Court and plead” guilty to =

hadving taken illegally uncounted thousands e A Farkn o save himself, claimed
of pounds of Union finds, and is_there no zzmi - 4 go0d man, -a_farisceing i

" “] saved money in 1913 ;1 saved £7,500:"
‘How :do Foran and O'Neill u:'cpla_fuiv the'
liquidation of this H,5905:;Thesg_b1g3heartgd,e :-
generous’ men who would not let! Larkin |
Enow of this:£7,500: because théy say thaf
Larkii is too generous, has no saying Sense
and’ would  have given this thoney 1o “thes
<tiikers \dnd “their women ~and: children ;-

it so.
If I ‘have brought.‘dny. -trelevant matters
before the- Court according to the’ Rules of
rales.
I 'intend to get-a full investigation.into thé
illegal conduct 6f these Defendants. - Lam ',
yund T rforms and -rules -of
i 2 T shall

spot, engaged in depriving the people affeeted -

Mr. Farren. (now Senator Farren), Treasurer

92nd June, 1919, at which

“gunmen employed

Their “hired gunmen. on that oceasion were. .

Vel ey explain that they, Foran and
O'Neill, distributed  £1,800 of this £7,500
as an extra payment in NXmas week, 1913,
at Larkin's orders. Big-hearted, kindly'
chicls, they save (7) £7,500, yet give £1,800 °
away at the orders of the man they would

not permit to have a knowledge of> the -

‘JT,D(M)A they, had saved (?) They' want
protection of the Court.  O'Brien wants
protection. A ring of bayonets would not

have protected them in 1913 had that fact
been made public.  Then they saved (?)
to buy Liberty Hall. They knew beforehan
that they had to buy Liberty Hall so_they
commenced to save (?) intime, and themoney .
they saved did not belong to them df-to the
Union, but was given to.them to distribute,
Honest, far-sceing men.  No wondeér Foran
is a Senator, He is a fit and proper person
to grace that august chamber. They paid
£3,500 for Liberty Hall. They lie and they
know they lie.  They never ‘paid for onc
brick ‘of Liberty Hall out of that £7,500.
Then they naid £600 to lawyers for Larkin's -
costs. . )

That only explains £5,900. How did
they get rid of the balance—close-on £2,000 ?
Mr. Brown, Senator, K.C., comes into Court

- this morning and explains that they paid
£500 deposit on Liberty Hall. ~ Strange to
relate that £500 deposit was paid before the -
Lock-out and Strike of 1913. Another
anticipation ; and the Court permits such
an abuse, such a travesty of justice, such -
rank pérjury; but the Court has accepted
every unsupported statement made by thesce
men. ~ The Court has wisely “exercised» its
«discretion throughout this trial, but always
on the side-of the Defendants in. this action. -
May 1 now, even at this late hour 'in’the .
life of this case, suggest that the Court's
discretion . be  directed *in  favour of “the
Plaintiff and the members of the Uniomn.
Permit me an opportunity for a” few hours |

* to have access to the Bank records and I
will prove’ their explanation of the digburse-
ment of this £7,500 is a lie out of whole
cloth.  They.never paid one penny into any
of the accounts into which they claim they °
have paid. I demand relief and an accounting ™
in Chamber of- this money. * ; ’

Instead of the Court looking with suspicion .
on any cvidence or statement given by men
who have admittéd that they burnt ‘the -
books and records of the Union in 1913, J
pleading guilty to arson in" an insured
building’;  the ‘man . O'Neill admitted to-
misappropriating the money . belonging to,
his. employer, monies paid him on behalf
of the poor, -the CourtProceeds to: indict
the Plaintiff, and on the (-yid»;gg)nf a Bank
statement . which 1 saw for' the” first. time
to-day. I say the annual return for 1913°
was and is correct.  You have denigd me-
the Tight to hive access t the Bank records.
We had two Bdnk accounts in 1913,-No. 1

ands the, Insurance Account—that has been
admitted by the bank clerk.” [ .say we had
monies’ in. moré than one bank.:~ On that
annual-“rétgrn for 1913 I stand- and am
prepared: th_prove its correctness.  But-
the Court seems more concerned as pleader
for the” Defendants -than to ‘deal -with the
testimony  adduced. Even “after the ex-
perience i have endured, denied opportinity

. to further - discovery: of -documents, denied
legal assistancé, dénied dccess to .documents
which would help to strengthen an already
admitted and proved.case. I hope the Court
will, give protection to-the members; to the
widows and ~members’ of the (deccased
‘menibers, will gixe /us that. relief- sought

" and an’ enquiry In” Chambers,. the: rémoval.

5 of the unqualified nsyrpers-on the Executive,

~that the: Court’ will declare the Rules pur-
porting to-be the Rules which ‘we call the
Rulds of 1918 and 1923 are.invalid and not
the Rules of the Union. 'That theonly Rules.

" governing ‘the ‘Union are.the Rules passed

" by the members—the Rules of 1915. I hope,

in‘the interests of justice, the Court will ‘do .

~ this tighteous action ; . the Court’has. more

.stike than:th€ Plaintifi,” If the comsion
 [Contiaued.on Column 8, Page 6] - -
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and see that- you get it.

' Al eommupleailons, whether relating to-
. literary . or business ) matters, fo he
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We “do" not publish or waste time on
. anonymous contributions. °
Tel. No.—Dublin -5439. _
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- -six _months, payable- in - advance.

“‘We are not responsible for views or

-opinions expressed in Special Articles.

"WHO .IS THE OWNER.
" ROBINS OR' THE MEMBERS ?_

There is a shopat 35 Eden Quay supposcd
to be owned and ‘controlled by 'the Irish
Transport and General Workers’ Union. .
This shop is run-in the interests of a few

“individuals who, have by . intrigue, ‘bogus *

‘balloting, injunctiens ‘from Law Courts

" and doing the stool-pidgéon work of the em-

" : - ployers, " secretly  and " openly, got the
- ‘machinery of the Union under their control.

They advertise in the “ Vice of Labour,”
a sheet. run in .the interest of the Junta

and. for the benefit of the Bank Account of ,

. -Sealy, ‘Bryers, and. Walkers. Some ten
thousand copies per: week are printed, less
o5 {

arc.given. or thrown away. The
amonthtysubsidy for this rag-runs to some-
.. thing like. two hundred pounds a month,
."'which loss' does not appear in the- Balance
Sheet of the Union. .In this rdg there is a

+  lying statement.with reference to an-incident
- -that occurred-in’ this shop, -supposed to be - -

owned by~the Union, * The advertisement
", says: . “Cigarettes and tobacco at réduced
-ptices to membefs.”” . Stephen Hastings,
a mémber of No.' 1 Branch since the formatio
of the Union, went into this shop and ask
for six packetshof . cigarettes, - When he was
"tebacconist,. he deémurred, and- the lassie,
.Miss. Cunhingham, daughter of Paddy

. ‘Cunningham, instead of explaining that she
. Wwas bound. to chargd what was arranged’
" by Capt. (?) Robiis,. the so-called Manager,
gave Hastings. some impudence and -told
this- member of the’ Union, who' proyides a

job for ‘this. lassie and helps to feed -her; ,
*“ that nobody  asked you to come_into the -’

an  two- thousand -cepies arepaid for, the-.

"Rising,

" asked to pay more than charged by another -

: e vy
THE SLAUHGTER OF A PERFECT
INNOCENT.
I .

“But when James :Connally actually
marched out to battle on Easter Monday,
1916, he had no Hlugins as to what he was
doing or the fate Before him, ‘We are
marching out to be slaughtered ™ he calmly

*informed his friend, Wm. O'Brich, on the

steps of Liberty Hall.,"—Ixtract from Life
of James Connolly, by Desmond Ryan.

On reading thewgxgract given in the pre-
ceding pzlmgraph we at once got into com-
munication ~with ounr  Intelligence Dept.
with a view to dctermining its acciiracy.
Our chief .O. (Mr. M‘Clew) placed his services
tinrescrvedly at our disposal and expressed
his willingness to follow up any clues in our
possession as well’#s any independent ones
which might “develop as a result of his
investigations.  We suggested the following
queries as a possible basis of enquiry and he
agreed they would probably cover all likely
avenues of investigation,

(a) Did Wm. O'Brien march out of
Liberty Hall todbe slaughtered on hearing
the fatefu] declaration?

(b) Was he slaughtered, and if so,
where and on what date ? )

- (¢) If slaughtered, who is the .person
arrested in 1916 and subsequently releastd
asna result’ of representations to the

Iitis
took no part T the Rising 7

(d) If slaughtered, who is the individual
at /present acting as an Exceutive Officer
ofuetie I. T™& G. W, U. 7

- After an aﬁsen&) of five day$ we received

“a visit from Mr. M'Clew and he has now laid
before us the result of his investigations. -

We can best summarise them by giving, in
brief, " the statements made o him Dy
different persons whgm e interviewed:
o (B) sMr Feifjothsdn 1 do- not know
if a Wm. O'Brfen was slaughtered in the
i I know onlv onc Wm. O'Brien,
and if he were to testify to that eficet I would
accept the statement. ~ As the old tag has it,
he added with. a smile, ** If you see it in
“John Bull, it is so.” .

(2) Semator Boran:—As I attended
Fairyhouse Races on Easter Monday, 1916, I
annot say if my friend Wm. O'Brien stood
he steps of Liberty Hall on that day.

you ha\jc shown me dees not say .what
happened after the declara.ion on the steps
was made.  Anyhow, I am ,Em‘tzv.in that iny
friend Wm. O'Brien was not/sliughtercd, nor

.even-injured during that week,- nor was he

within.the area of hostilities! Wm. O'Brien’s
motto js akin to'my own—" " Safe’-ty first,”
(3)  Mr, Watershed 21, cannot pretend to

know' all the facts, but T.can quite believe -
the statemerft alleged fo have becn made,

- reflex action, so to speak,

overtiment to the effect that fic

" us to distraction.

haps the Wm. O'Brien referred to s -
“the'géntlemian from: Mallow. The quotation

—

doubts in the matter were misr‘rl‘l)y the cope .
sideration  that = Mr.  O’Brien’s favourite,
literary work is ‘ Mr, 'Dnofeyf’“‘aﬁd'-if'ﬁig‘»:
this colebrity, who, on a famous occasion
marched his men *“up the ‘hill ” and then
“marched them down again.””. In vidy of
this circumstance would it not seem the
natural -thing in Mr. O'Brien, having first
marched his troops out, promptly’ to march
them “in” again—a  case of literary ang
physical coincidence;  a sort of hatural
This, of course,
is pure.surmise and we do not regard’ our- \

selves as being content with it as cvide ~
biit, from our enquirics we have no 1“'m\
in saying that. - T PE

(a) Mr. O'Brien did not march out to be

slaughtcered. ‘

(b) Mr. O’Brien did not march*out at ajl .

(¢)  The Mr. O'Brien referred to. is the -

person purporting to act as ‘General
Treasurer of the 1. T. & G. W. U,

We are now up against a problem. . The
statement in the published book is “ We
are going out-to be slaughtered.” If this
is a fact, then, as Mr. O'Brien did not
“march out” he must have aliercd his
plans—or as it has been more popularly
stated, ‘‘ changed his mind.”

If, however, Mr. O'Brien neither ** marched’
out "' mor * changed his. mind”’ the con-
clusion alrcady put forward in explanation
will not meet the case, and the solution i
still to discover. At this point 1.O. M'Clew:
disappears, ; \

N 2 *od s 5 %

In the hope of getting at the facts we have
now re-read the book, and in the,Iight of
a'furthier accession of evidence beg to tender
a possible solution. The final chapter;
devoted to “ Bibliography. and 'Sources,” -
contains theé following : ** I must acknowledge
the kindness of Ald. Wm: O’Brien;. Dublin, *
an,intimate friend of " James Connolly angd
veteran in the'lrish Labour Movement, who
hias furnished me with many faets and muech . .
of the material used in this book.” We own
the " italics, The division of the subjcet -
matter into "' facts "and ' material " pleases-
At is a stroke'of genius
and a fount of limitless possibilitics.  We

-must confess' it has almost caused. the -

shattering of our cerebral verterbre with
honest laughter. . Allow us to thank the
originator of the brilliancy; we kneel
humbly at the shrine’of his understanding.
If no one has any particular objectioni .
we.intend, in future, in “all cases where we "
shall’ find -oursclves. playing faCts on"a short

ssuit, to make good the deficiency with a

generous helping of “ material.”” Pass us
the water carafe. 5w :
. FE i

.. 'LAW PROCEEDINGS'

(Continued from Column 3, page 3) ¢

"shop and we ‘don’t ‘want your ’ custom.’”
- Hastings, quick tempered, spoke hastily to |
the girl'and-went out. Then Robihs got on
thejob. The gitl swore on oath that she did.

- not know_Hastings, though, as a mafter of*
fact,  she is related in. some Mmeasyure” to

: - people of this couptry have reason to believe -

.on t_he"stcps; of ‘Liberty Hall, was ‘actually . ‘fg:t justice anﬁt‘rgth‘ -cannot live -within
made.. I heard; myself, on the. Tuesday of — “these Courts, “thefr ‘they il set Up Courts
Easter 'Week; that Mr. O'Brien had fallen - and Tribunals that will - dispense justice,
on_the preceding day’ Later enquiries sor that it can be:said Truth has come to
evinced that he Was coming down ‘the steps * "live in our fnidst again, that honesty and-

- of ‘Liberty” Hall ‘when' the event happened, - . integrity are -the lines upon 'which the
but it was duc- to. some - careless - person  economic, political and social life of the people
throm}ng a piete of orange peel on the steps. - must run. I know the Court will not:hold -
Mr. O’Brien is still alive. i & me in prejudice ‘because -of the inadequate
-~ (4) " Jem. “Horkans, (docker) :—1 . was - Way I may havé presented my case, but, .
standing on’ the stéps.of  Liberty Hall on . harassed and interféred within my presenta- _ -
Easter Moriday, 1916,’ and" [ heard)&mA “tion by’ rules 1 am nof—'/eé{we_rsam’ with, -

: o 1 > .~ O’Brien "of the Transport - Union’ saying. to.  rules - formulated - hy' 4 privileged'-

Manufacturers. . - Hastings was ~summoned. somebody. I'm gt surt of, somo thing abgut -~ Within the body polific.” I 1ve ‘spoken the

Hastings was bound .over not'to enter the. - drageie action.” “Thenéxt time I sqw him . touth, "I have lived by frath 2yd I have doné

shop .and ,.pr.ermsc:?b owned rby the. Un_rox}. * was in Frongoch and hé-was leading a life - MY best'to place’ the Court 1in. possession of ~ -
Let all'Union men-be bound by Magistrate’s -and death fight td get more peas put inthe = the truth. "I confidently awhait judgment on
order. The cuckoos, O'Brien and Robins, - up .and'to get the bread'baked better, . Dehalf of the members of the Union I am :
such -are %he Union parasites who control # He is a gréat fighter, 50 he'is. - honoured in serving. o e

. the properties of the members of the Union. The evidei e o e (s e s T :

” Wait-and see'}t . : g 3 he evidence of Nos. 5, 6, 8,18, 24,26} & e e
T RS i g S ﬁ) a85184'2 bears out the conterition” thiaf - IRISH WORKER LEAGUE

Mr..O'Brien was arrested.afier the Risin | week ine of the above il

: J liners “and, therefdre; it does. not’ seem’ to be m!fé d ?:“l lﬁ%?dmeg]?lg 0“;31 : ZPOYL el

'+ | Mmore. wages than in 1914 and the cost of - thaf he went out. to be - slaughtered. 'The et B 0 ’“‘g%“, :

- Hiving 15789 above 1914, " " L question is; did he march out at all > - -0 sl -members eamestly

Hastings, through his wife. - She did not .
knoew. Hastings name ‘and. address. Who
told her the name ? ~“The womian néxt door ?

.+ Who told" her the address ?. No .answer.
Robins, we 'suggest. This, Robins, who had
1to be forced to join the Uhion when T was -
Working“for the hirm of Barrington, .Soap

class

. South Wales  Miners are . getting 20%

s
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.juvenile wage-slaves.,
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JAMES CONNOLLY

§AND HIS EPOCH.

Cusrrer IVe—=Tne MiNp or ConxoLLy,
=the Catholic Church is . . a
sommunity in which the c]trg\' are but the
qeers serving the laity - im o a common

‘}'»,'u]'whi]) and service of God, and that, should

the clergy at any time profess or teach
dectrines not in conformity with the true
teachings of Catholicity, it is mot only the
right, "but it .is the absolute duty of the
laity to refuse sueh. doctrines Indecd
it is this saving clause in Catholic doctrine
which las again and again opcrated to
protcct the Church from the result
mistaken attempts of the clergy to control
riu secular’ activities of the laity

* If the pioncers of the Socialist movement
were indéed Freethinkers, so much the more
shame to_the Church that, by neglecting its
obvious“duaty, left Freethinkers to do the
work in which (,h‘lrchmen ought to h'l‘\L
Deenn their !m(lexs T

* * *

Connolly must have been very young .
when he first became a thinker, because when-

onlv a boy in his teens he was already a
member-of the Social Democratic Federation,
the . earlicst  Socialist. organisation to. L

formed in° England, where its membcrship

included, amongst other well-known men,
Hyndman and Williata Morris, the poet of
the social revoldtion., Fhe youth studied

- history, economics, languages and literature,

even when “amongst the lowest ranks -of
He seéms to have
reccived, encouragement from his uncle,
john Leslie, ‘an old 'Fenian, who, like many
‘of his fellows of the L.R.B. in England, was
‘a Socialist. ©= Sensing his vocation alrcady,
-Jameg” found hlmself baffled as a propa-
gandist bya serious impediment in his speech,

but determinedly overcame the defect and.

pwfccfed his elocution. g

So _that before he had reachcd the age
-at_which ‘& male youth is eligible for the
inheritance of property, if fortunate enough,
- or to suffer the extreme penalty of the law,
- or so, unlucky as to be sentenced thereto,
he had begun to seek"to. m ‘men's
_minds in :public, life. '

Just “when k¢ was’ ‘* settli - as
du.cnbed in " the Jast chaptcr at the age

‘of 21" years,"he went forward, a corporation .

dustman, in the elections: to Edinburgh

\[umcmalltv “a’ “Socialist ca.ndldag:
Hc obmmed 300 votes—and the ‘sack !
Thus was hé privileged to learn the fate

“of -thé victimized worker who has trans-
gressed the edicls or ch.ﬂ]engcd the power .

A+ dowand out,

of the rulmg classes.
‘branded.-as a

a- *“character,”

"Socia!im agitator; 4in tife days when even the
. working. classes iwere in martal fear of. the

- Socialist’ mare’s nest.
D(‘spondenfl'y he acquamted h1s undlé”of
his régelve to emigrate. to Chili. ©~ But Leslie

of .

oY

- scholar- he

~any more than a religion tan.

sary to change, and he seems to have com-
pleded even that aspeet of his outlook within
a very few years of beginning his work in

"~ Dublin in 1896.

We must remember that he lived in the
period of pioncer Socialism, when, to a far
greater extent-than to-day, cach man and
woman thought with initiative. We of the
younger generations can begin where these,
our mentors, have taken us, and can progress
still further. In criticizing and improving
their thought let us not forget the enormons
advantage which we possess, and that we
owe the advantage to théir mental travail
and the lessons derived from their experiene

Now, Connolly was a Catholic all his life
Néver at any time did he renounce his beliefs,
never did he act inconsistently with them.

When I say that he was a Catholic, ] mean
that he accepted the deelared and essential
doctrines of the oldest Christian re ligion.
He was not an Atheist or an Agnostic.
He bowed to no man, but worshipped an
Infinite Power of Perfeet: Attributes that
Christians name God, Creator and Builder
of the Material Universe.

Probably he shared the view of Pearse,
a man who died with him in Easter Week @+

“No education can start with a nego,
Everything
that even pretends to be true begins with
its Credo. It is obvious that the savage
who says, ‘I believe in Mumbo  Jumpbo,’
is nearer to true religion than the philosopher
who says, * I deny God and the spiritual in
man.” " .

Connolly was not a Catholic because he
was born in that religion and had never
troubled to drop it or change it. He
thought of and felt the existence of the
spiritual, of immortality, and of a controlling
Power, inscrutable but of nccessity good.
He did not understand the evil in the world
or why a goed. Ged should permit it, but
neither did h(, regard our carthly dream,
that we call * life, 3 as the ultimate.

And he accepted Christ and His teaching.
But let it not be imagined that he was a
Catholic of the commonplace variety. On

the contrary, he resolutely condemned the .

organizational ideology of the Church, a
thing apart altogether from its doctrines
and | the .reactionary influence “of most
ecclesiastics in- mundane affairs, both in
feudal times and latterly. As a profound
versed himself, inter alia, in
Churcly .history, in the writings of the
Fathers, as well as in all branches of the
history ‘of the human race. .,

As ‘a tesult of his rescarches, he db15
refuited the attacks of réactionary Christen-

"dom on the proletarian revolutionary move-

" tion of this'economy to socmty "He exposed’

prevailed upon himto postpone consideration -,

- of such a step, and together they arranged.

“for him to sail to Dublin and there obtain.
employment,
ambition than anything he had.yet visual-
ized, viz.
Movement.

And-this he did-in the year 18‘56 R

" Yet before unwinding the warp and woof

‘ of the stirring -and wonderful years between -
< 1896 and 1916 twenty of the most pregnant. .t
yéars of all the three thousand in the history -

of “our people, "we  shoutd, “as proposed, -
thmat the princtples that. propelled
Conn, -forward ’ always ~ in ‘" the = same

dxrccnon and ever faster.. -
For the. main substance of his 1deals h,xd

alrmcly set ﬁrm in his mmd, ‘and his views. -

stered to have been formed . whilst- he: was’
but. a’youth: ':Only-in some lesser respects

pamcu}arly s to the means to be adopted.-~

et 1t neces

to reach his dgstxmauon d@ h

fired with 4 mew and higher™

:—the creation of an Jrlsh Socialist

_Afom Socialism. * The position-of t

. sidered. :
‘upheld wage-slavery and opposed the progress -

. the
1 bxa.s of ehc }ecture

_throughout mediaeval and 'nodeA

: pulpxt 1o
: Wroté: an.answer:
and Réhgmn P
iful ignorance of economics and ‘blind
il e f.urther a(tacked thc

ment, and he went further. He showed the

utter mcompatlbmtv of Capitalisny - and |

Chmtmmty the immora] basis’ of ca.pxtahst
economys arid the vicious concrete. applica-

the disgraceful abuse of their power practised

many" of . the clergy from™he P
curate; part).cularly ‘in~ Irish’ -histery. - He

bade his co-religionists’ join. with (O‘Connell ¢

in declaring that whilst they would accept
their religion from Rome, their- politics

should be made at home-and by, Ih(mif‘]‘/t‘y oy
“in freland.,

. But let it not bc mmgmcd that he dlel’(.d‘
to eradicate. rellglous beliefs from: the minds
of his followers. * The quéstion of rdnglous
belief he rcgdrded as external and

;;.m/atlons in relation to cap
%camrary, was the question “to. Re con-
. Where _the religiotis organi2utions’

of ‘the workers, ‘he fought -them as: relent-

“lessly and somewhat .more eﬁcctwely tham -

most «Socialists.
Wheérn. Faﬁher Kane - mlsused a ‘Dublin
“éxpose "'

a a.ffnphlet which revealed

It

imes by .
to the

separatc’
T 1g10us
l al 1&7 v

7 desirable - .with ~any, foreign' - “workers.
. confiict with’a master class’or (zov:rnment

Soéialism, Comnolly -
“Labour, Nationality -

attitude of the clerics towards w.1g¢,-sl.u ery

and the past cvils of feudal times in an
answerable - manner, and  quoted  Saints
Ambrose, Clement, Basil the Great, Gregory
Nicoglemus, Gregory the Great, and Chrysos-
tom toshow-that Communism and the absence

of property monopoly was the ideal of the f

Christian pioneers. = Accepting the precepts
of Christianity he sought to - purge the
administration of “his religion  from the
corrupting influence of capitalism, and denied
the master classes the right to mmmpnlm .
and exploft Catholicity.

I-hope that the non-Christians ar‘d anti-
(‘f\rixtmn\ St the working-class movement
will not conclude from.-the above that
Connolly ~was  subscquently insincere . or
incomplete’ in his’ revolutionary socialism.

" On the contrary, we shall sce that he was

an_ uncompromising . Communist  Infer-

. nationalist ‘with a decfinite. plan for the

realization. of his ideal, prepared finally to
face certain-and hard death in an endeavour
to rally the waverers and recall the truant.
When I describe Connolly as a Sgeialist,
or Communist, I mean that he deembdd the
root of all the Soual evils of the p sggnt time
to lie partly or wholly in the w:quhlch we
organize the production and ®listribution ,of
the fruits of labour. He saw that a small
class had effectual contral of this production
and distribution, and that this state of
affairs -evolved from the fact that all rpm-
duction takes. place for private -profit,
virtye of their ownership of tht, means ()f~
production, the employing and investing
classes draw a fax from the industry of the
crest of the-community in varying degrec.
‘Ultimately all real power lics in the hands
of a tiny few of the greater capltahsts ‘who
use that power for their, own ‘material
advantage and manipalate the lives. of
sections of each nation, of the whole nation,
'or of the peoples of the world, more or less
indirettly but none the less really. IFrom
this * economic . system comes’ the slums,
unemployment, . want, ' the
tenth,” the Juxury of-a few, tremendous-
waste, unnéeessary and. unproductive work,
strikes, lock-outs and the
war, the bulk of crime, nuch lunacy, inter-
ndtional and civil wars, bad working condi-
tions; much "of our modern diseasés and
maladies, eg.,

standards.
The, basis of thL change nccessnat{d by
the desite ta eradicate the evils of capitalism

. is that production must be-for public.usc

and not for private profit, i.e.; that all should
work to supply the needs of all in pufposeful -
L0~Dpera.tlon It is extremely easy fo prove
that the co-ordinated ‘labeur of the- whole
of - thé« comrunity could Sppply an - over-
flojving abunddnce ‘of what' we require. -
I have not-attempted to enunciate in a

‘nasnncd manner or fully the central phil-
- @sophy of Socialism.

In former issues.of. thit
]ournal we have studied certain aspects of it
and. certain of its main argumerits.

than indicate and outline the Toot principl .s,
although I hope to * point the moral and
adern the tale ™ as we progress.

1In our’ next sarticle we shall review

"Connollvs practical. “proposals formiilated

views. . To
at, li‘l\c akl

in connection with "the ahove
nclude this week, let us note

real social revolutionarics of this age, he was’”

mtﬂnatlonal in-his coriception of things.
“That ‘means, that he did - not “dislike or

. despise forelgm s as foreigners, that he was

voncerned about the conditions and’ activities
of all foreign peoples and that he co-operated .
when -and how “it: was mutdally deeme d
in’

Now this. 'was .because of  his. Socialist
views. .He considered that in évery country’
of the-world the workers were: txplmtt:d and -
oppressed by th-m - He ‘knew

. that the Empire that ‘had angul.shed Ireland
“ha$ also’ anguished its: own wage-slaves .

ankmd and that the szmgg!o was’ nat

submerged ,

industrial ﬁldss .

consumption,” anamia, .and
. debasement of mtollc.ctual and ; spmtual .

It 1s nut ‘
—within-the-scope-of .this work to do x

i
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' THE EVE OF WATERLOO.  °
“if IT COST AS MUCH MORE . %

C“ One did not want to be tempted to say
“things onc would afterwards be sorry f(?r,"---
Deputy Johnson in the Dail, 2073 /724
"A straw shows hvow the wind blows. A
reader of the daily press can not but be
impressed by what appears to be a state of
“chassis -—as the  Paycock " terms it in
“ Juno and the Paycock,” in the Ffee State
Government. ~How it impresses depends on
one’s attitude towards established institu-
tions.  If you should be an ** Irregular ™!
jt ~will strike you that thic barometer is

* rising and that the wind is now in-a favour-

cable quarter. If your predilections point
Free Statewards your allegiance is, possibly,
in the balance. "If you arc a frequenter of
the Kildare Street or Constitutional Clubs
or a finger-twiddler in the Molesworth Strect
Institution, you will" open :your- ' Irish
“Times’ with a far-away look in your cyces
and, pulling yourself together, glue your
optics to the “financial ’ column, with I.ht'
purpose of ascertaining the current price
of National Loan. If you are a Senator you

- will not hesitate, but will fling vour ‘ Inde-

pendent ' a-wide ‘open and precisely fall to

- work on the sporting column. That is all as

it should be; it takes all sorfs to make a
world. N i ' o R
- The historic battle which is the title of

this brief article was-decided, the while some .
~ care-free yokel in some English shire picked

. his teeth witha wood chip.” And the domestic

it is thé subject of our-co

quargel, as Mr.. J. H.. Thomas, M.P., would

call it, which is.raging at present in thc
Free State is. pursuing its tortuous coursce
‘while many an Irish lad, mayhap, is singing
‘““ Brave Robert Emmet, hc gied' for his
Country.". . o
Individually and collectively the Editofial
- staff of this paper are not concernied whether
-ar not the personnel.of the present Govern-

ment retire into- suitable obscurity or alter-

natively procurea length of rope; and separ-

ately or.' in globo,” as somebn¢ we know
- would say, hail themselves into the.eternal -

ether. —But as-a matter of. public concern
the situation which: has arisén within the
‘Government  is_our business, and; therefore,

“* - There :may be Ministers inghe Fr
Government: who believe that Providence
has. destined them to ‘save the country ;

.in the: opening- days of the recent ** civil "

_ war there ' certainly was one who made

regular public appeals to the: Almighty to

give him credit for virtues which, however .
they might be evident to an Ommniscient -

. Being, never obtuded-themselves overmuch

" intto his public actions. * The present situation

in the country is directly the result of the

actions of individuals;:and the individuals -
who are responsible 'must ‘be called’ to -
-~ ~account by the -people who. clected. them.

‘to. power. - . : il AT

Recent debates in the-Dail make it clear
that the present disorders’in the Free State
‘Afmy are not of to-day. - - Late Minister

McGrath, according to his .own ‘statement, - -

- ‘has. been-using his- best efforts for the past

fifteen ‘or sixteen months ‘to heal the sore:

* . Mr. Cosgrave denies that he ever had any

or confefences: with  the
It is Irardly creditable.to his

conversations
“ mutineers.”

intelligenice ‘or' to his * standing " ini the.
Cabinet if he were left out in the cold while;
“even. Mr...O'Higgins, who holds leséer rank -

than he, could- know, that “*‘the "army

-situation had been -unsound for a consider-
_able time back.” ~And if Mr. McGrath is

correet in saying that he tried to put

I 1 things
right, it cannot be the fact that Mr. Cosgx’.ﬁ: .

was otherwise than well'informed as to the

" trend and development of events.. .

A ‘further ‘proof that Mr. Cosgrive cannot

.- évade responsibility * is.-that- he “has not’
charged  General' Mulcahy E
Minister with econcealment of ‘facts. .-

~-+— Now, if Mr,-McGrath and -Mr. O'Higgins_

ek S

* the” Ministry of Defence.

 Free State-

_ cause of the Républic in:the fafe’

“or. any other '

are specking the tath and - the present
unrest has beel a matter of uncasiness to
the Cabinet for any period np to fifteen or
sixteen minths, why is it that not till to-day
has it Deen -found necessary “to  dispense
with the services of the Army Council. We
are not intercsted in the suryival of Mulcahy
or O'Sullivan as public men or as officers:;
rather we: would wish to see them betake
themselves to some distant clime where they
might have an opportunity of burying their
“nonc too savoury reputations.  They, no
loss ‘than Cosgrave, O'Higgins, McNeill and

the rest, must bear the odium of the murder

of Mcllows, O'Connor, Barrett and McKelvey
as well as the hideous outrages of the murder
gangs, for they are all spiritually akin.—~

In suggesting, therefore, that the **resigna-
tions
do not seem to be'a natural developmeft of
the crisis, we are not doing so out-of any
regard for Mulcahy and. his colleagues in
distress, but simply out of regard to the facts.

The ultimatum presented to the Govern-
ment by the “ mutineers ” demanded the
dismissal of the Army Council.  Mr. McGrath
at the same time laid charges at the door of
General Mulcahy
and the Army Council have gone. . What is
the explanation 7 Were Mr.. McGrath and
the ** mutineers " ‘right ? MY, “Cosgrave
has made it plain that General Mulcahy and
the Army Council were forced to resign, not
as a result of the raid in Parnell Street,
but as a result of other matters. Out with it !
is any ground for the suggestion
" mutincers 7 were right and the
Cabinet 'wrong, then it is the Cabinet that
should have gone, not the/ Army Council:
Let it be remembered that the Cabinct,
as a body, must accept fesponsibility for

. the officidl acts of each individual minister

and for the conduct of his department,
unless, as in the present instance, - they
repudiate him.  General-Mulcahy has only
been repudiated now.  If he has allowed
things to" drift for the past year or morc
and the other members of the Cabinet were
well informed, as appears to be the case, then,
the major portion of responsibility is on
the shoulders of the Ministers remaining in
office. . The reason given by the Cabinet
for the forced resignations of General Muleahy -

. and the Army Council was that they did not .
- grapple with the ‘“mutineer "’ problem and

‘that they were incapable of handling the
~ctisis. The honours are divided. On the
only-occasion in' the crisis on which Mulcahy
and -the Army Council acted on their own
responsibility they ‘are repudiated by the

"~ Cabinet.. . 2 "
A word about mutineers and mutinéering.
. It is not our intention.‘to damn any man

or'body of meni with a phrase or a catch-ery.

' Henq: the ‘term ‘“mutineer ” does not-affect
. the issue, in’ our xninds, except inasmuch a$ .

the term has a real.Significance? Recent
- Irish history stinks of epithet and name-

) ::allin'g-:‘, ‘ Sinn’ Feiner,” ' Rainbow-chaser,”
.. *Irregular,” now.if- is “ mutineer,” I ‘the_

““ mutinedrs”’ are “mutineers in real -fact,

let them. be dealt ‘with as, in. justice, they- -
. desérve. ."lIf they have merely disregarded -
constitutional forms in order-to call attention .’
- to an impending national disaster or a danger
‘- national hatreds, for they have o -basis.

to the well-being of ‘the peoplé; lét' the fact
be acknowledged -and. let -their “traducers

stand aside. A survey of the facts, as they -

have appeared in ‘the daily press, lies before
- us. - It-will be remembered that the first move.
in the present crisis was the ultifatum by.
the disaffecfed officers, purporting to.speak

- onbehalf of the [.LR.A., and in this docunient *-
Mr. Cosgrave and his associated Ministers are *

charged witly being false to the late General -
Collins “and with having ' ‘betrayed ‘the
- Republic. . While we have o use for death-.
bed Republicanism 'and cannot see what-
help the ** mutineers ** have givén: to the’

il

waaj——qqije the contrary; ‘we examiine their-

of Mulcahy and the Atmy Council

. interested ruling classes or would-be Tuling|
: &Rthq outlook of the

. wér designed -to aggrandize or ‘protect tbe

of very many of the officers and men wh,
according to their lights, believe, or say they
believe themselves to be Ropuhlic;ms,v The
question that rises to the mind, at once,
why had they to wait till their serviceg wer,
dispensed.-with before discovering their soyls ;
Why, after their ultimatum to the Cabing
did they retract and say that, once agaiﬁ
everything was right ? Reviewing th
matters involved, we feel ourselves on sur.
ground in saying that thc present quar
is duc to a conflict of interests”within the
Free State-body. On the one hand is the
present Cabihet with alliances in the Lodgs
of Orangeism and Freemasonry.  Hand iy
glove with them is the Press and Hierarchy
and existing commercial interests, such as
the Guinness's, etc., and the general body
of ultra-conServatism' amongst “the farmer
and landowner classes. On-the other hand} !
stand the ** Mutinecers "—LR.A. they style
themselves—neither  acceptable  to  thei
present leaders of Free Statéism nor—we
hazard -a guess—to the ‘leaders ‘of the
Republicanism. They stand alone, but,
despite that fact, they seem to have shaken|:
the fabric of Cosgrave-O'Higginism, withi
-its affiliations.  Are they as well organised
and as powerful as, at times, the availabh»[,
evidence would suggest 7 We do not know!
This, we can say, that it looks like someone'y
Waterloo. Who holds the Nap hand ? |
- i

= )

JAMES CONNOLLY" | |

[Continued from column 1, page 1] ‘

between the Irish people and the English, but
against the actual enemies of the Englis
masses, i.c., the English governing elass
He further knew that the obstacle'to Socialisn]
anywhere was the master class, not only of
Ireland or of the Empire, but of the whole
world.  Sceialists.declare that it would be
difficult to establish the: co-operative society,
in any country of the world if cdpitalism
flourished elsewhere, and that for -deep
economic reasons. When the -Russians
attempted to build Communism they found
themselves immediately isolated economically
Besides that,- and more important,  the
govérning classes everywhere Used force o
“one kind or another to overthrow the
Soviets. They feared the force of example
on their own wage-slaves: Besides, the!
French, English and other capitalists owned
holdings in- Russian: concerns, ie., Were
economically on.the backs® of the Russian
workers, " and, the revolution upset them.
In ‘“‘Socialism Made Easy”* he shows
how capitalism is.an international systeni|
not merely national. = Russian railways,arc
partly owned by’ Irish-capitalists. - * The
Russian_reyolution of 1905 wis crushed with
- the help of American financiets ; stocks and
" shares in undeértakings everywhere ‘are held
by capitalists of all mationalities. : Thus in
the repressiop of the workers the  master
classes of 't}’f'égwqud, whatever their inteinal
differences, ‘combine, whether it be to crush
armed revolts or to manipulate a fall in'wages
Consequently’ the progress of the fight
.anywhere in the world is of first-hand. interestf
to Irishmen. He bade Irishmes beware of

T s 8 raline i

’

- He showed in his history what a part sections
. of the Irish pation ha\/c-played,iﬂﬁppressmg
+ their 6wn people. ~ All genuine socialists.of

communists are awarg of ~the fact that
. nationial hatreds are-fuerely stimulated ‘by

' classes, 50 as to preven :
masses, prevent -thier ~httacking -the class
system, and usually so. as-to:prepare for @

- ‘masters’ - economic positiori. National
~hatreds are the exploftation of the patriotisi
* or- natiiral. afféction for home and kindred
by« the bourgeoisie, nobility or royalty.

boéié.li}t,Labodr‘ Press, 50 Rerifr"e‘w"itr?ﬁ

Rl y}jlx_l’w
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From Our—€orrespondent—March - 7th.

MORE . OIL.

.\uiorney General Dougherty and his side-
kick William J. Burns, Chief of the Depart-
ment of Justice, are tainted with the stolen
oil and the rich Doheny’s moncy.  Both
are fair specimens of the type produced by.
the system here and both are merciless focs

lof labour, of free speech, and cven _free
| thought.
1 that, couldn't plead a -case intelligently in

Dougherty is a small town lawyer

a DPetty Sessions Courts, but a skilful’
politician of the late Stephen Hand type.

| He has been in the employ of the big trusts
land money interests for years and the late
| President Harding had to give him officc.

He is responsibie for the continued deten-
tion of wartime and free speech offenders
and for many injunctions against strikers.

capitalist classes and' has at times used the
whole legal machine of the United States
against ' strikers when' his’ masters cracked
the whip. : )

. 'W. J. Burns.—The private government
code.of the U. S. secret service was used in
telegrams to and from the Doheny con-
The Chief of the Department of

of - Justice—Burns—wired one of the Tic
his department
Iinvgstigate him owing to the row
Senate, etc.
in .the ‘higher as among the' lower grade of
malefactor. ) N
Burns, too, is.a tool of the interests.
His ®investigations of the " Wall Strect.
Bomib Case '’ showed conclusively that , a
-consignment .of powerful. blasting powder
was' deliveréd by the rmich Du Pont de
Nemiours Company, contrary to the City’
bye-laws; to a. large contracting firm that
was blaSting the rock for basements for a
-new, Wall Street skyscraper. - ‘
. The law states exposives. shall be carried
orly-at night and in-a special conveyance.
_ The greed for profit was so great in some
i that grabbed
‘hundreds of millions m reat War ' —
making powder and shellSsfor workingmen
to kill their brothers—that they: made a
delivery of a few hundred pounds of mixed
cxplosives'in an ordinary van—like a Publin
“baker's van. Some automobilist in.a hurry
‘collided with the powder ‘wagon; and-forty
persons, mostly clerks and nff_'zcc girls out
for-the lunch hour, were. blown to_ pieces.
P. Morgan's office was in the vicinity.

me glass ‘and

-Bankers .of .the world. —--Hom :
Morgan had used

_debris - fll near @ desk
a week before, T -
Burns, our. hero, saw
“bomb "' made by - the s k<
couldn’t have- been - Larkin t that .-
“ anarchist ** was, in Sing Sing. - Hc¢ then
Dlamed it on Lenin, Trotsky, z_u[rd'thn}"-]'l\ird
Internationa’.”
newspaper Zartieles
the "workers.! .
Burns and Dougherty, twe of a kind, have
persisteq in this lic of an anarchist * bomb,”
solely to save the Du’ Pont Company the
milliohs, of dollars. of ~compensation- that
would be sought
owners and relations. of the

fastening ‘the -crime on

poured out-ef their offices, -going to Tunch.

We may assume DuPon did like Doheny.
—sent- on-a five-figure ¢
to: friends. and. acquaint

WAR VETERANS.-

- Another’ ‘scandal, ovérs
“oil graft @nd; participatid ]
_has heen exposed by a Chi

rand Jury

SOr
A very lage suin of money i was voted-at

He is an open and avowed tool of the

s
th?_ ~and Custom House.

Hé is one of the richest and most powerful *

- willBe farrested.. .
LWt T
Peoplé. were inflamied. by ©.. by 10T S in

. children -playing ‘on; the.

_mototists don't ¢ven stop now to sce

iri- Court: by ~property- - -
working. girls »

‘and - clérks - hurled iato. etcrnity as they -

occasionally :

"x'duwvd by the

close of the war to establish hospitals and
convalescent homes and vocational training
centres for disabled veterans.

‘It now transpires that millions wire”
given to politicians to build the hospitals
and homes, and that graft and - corruption
and drunkenncss worked the whole adninis-*
tration of the fraud.  That supplics were
!)uugh[ and re-sold almest for a song.  For
instance, thre¢ million dollars of medical
supplies in Maryland were resold at twenty
cents to the dollar by a drumken _official,
who wasn’t even reprimanded.

And ex-soldiers ure begging and without
shelter. o P . ‘

POET OR POLITICIAN.

Padraic Colum: who started on the road to
fame as * Ircland’s Peasant Poet 7 addressed
1 meeting of the Brooklvn Jewish Forum
on ** The New Ireland.”

[reland, ‘he stated, was one of the richest
nations in Iurope, .as the recent internal
loan was over subscribed by four millions.
Cosgrave and his Cabinet were ™ intellectuals™
The constitution was the most democratic
50 far drawn up and Ircland did not have any
contributions to make to the Imperial

- exchoquer. He deploted the ruin' of the
handsome buildings like the Tour Courts
Michacl Collins was
one of the gregtest Irishmen that ‘ever lived
because he took Dublin Castle from  the
British. )

-~ Heckled as to whether he thought more
of a building than the lifc of a man like.
Cathal Brugha the speaker snapped ™ Cathal
Btugha dicd with a gun'in his hand.”

Asked if Sean MacDermott or Padraic
Pearse would have accepted the Treaty—
“1 ‘don’t know about Scan MacDermott,
but | know that Padrajc Pearse would-
acéept it ‘ -

Colum, -so far, is the only speaker with
.the  temerity to defend the existing Irish
Government. 3 E

ONLY -WORKERS' LIVES.
An_cexplosion occurred last week in a town
in’ Néew Jerscy and many were-blown to picces
including a family of five, ‘house and -all.
The firm purchased the unused shells sold

by the army.authorities and extracted the

contents to make fertiliser. : :
The inquiry revealed that another -firm
poured quantities” of liquid esplosive and

may re caused the blast. « " +,
Nothing ‘has, -and .we may coriclude,-will
be done for, the widows and-ogphans. No one

nement hots¢ in New
vorat famitics — during-- the week.
No Pproper. fire_escape. iy, i

. An average of -threc ‘or. four killed daily

by motor cars in this city —mostly workers”
lack of playgrounds.

ity a kil or dnly @ knockout..

R WILSON AE:LPB_AISEP.'

By Bisho'p Witliam. M. 'i-é,r‘o\\-'n; o
Whether  at. - Babylon . or  Washington,,

. Whether the-cup with sweet: of bitter rur,

The: Wine of Life keep falling ane by one.

h ¥ €S,

Wilson s dead, ¥ :
hings whi

Jie:left undoné those thi

to. have donie: aned “didd th

N e ‘ought not to frave. &
Sl Gt :

nitrig glycerene in the stream, and that this

strects because of -
And ‘the. well-Ted.
A if .
*1 600 pounds are lost 1) mining. «

TeIlaing

float_up . the
Rty T R o iy D LT
Immertal only for his ~Crimes ahd’ Lies. :
i : 2o e .. heat criergy into meehanical energy is. 6507
2 epounds, Teaving th
sreally to accomplish

QMAR. * ~

Liongren th a0y,

HAPPENINGS IN THE USA.

Wilson still lives, and h‘i:g, immortality is
secure, because.he did not.do what he ought
to have done: (1) Keep his promise to
save his country -from . the war—he did not
attempt to do it ; (2) Keep his promise, after’
taking ns intv it, to make it a war to end wars
by forcing @ peace upon 14 points which
would make future ones unnecessary and
indeed impossible—he did-1ot¢ven present
them to the - Versailld ‘onfervnice, and
(3) Keep-his promise to have the war make
the world safe for demecracy—he did not
add one item to our libertiés,; but took many
Away.” § - : s g '
Wilson still lives, and his immortality is
sccure, becausc he did what he ought not
to have done: (1) He created and operated
the largest and most efficient lying, coercing
and robbing machinery in the interest of the
owning ‘class that any nation has ever
possessed ; - (2) He crowned money as our
king and influenced his majesty to appoint
corruption as the prime minister, and (3)
he placed the name of our country above
that of cvery other as a symbol of gold,
graft and crime—the triune divinity ‘in
which his 100 per cent. Americanism lives,
moves and has its being, and to which divinity
e sacrificed thousands of yYoung men. and
biilions of wealth, helping mightily to flood
the world with blood and tears.

“THE LAND OF THE FREE AND THE
HOME OF THE BRAVE."

Al rishmen will ihmediately recognise
the * happy " land referred to in whe above
headiine, becanse the majopity of Irishmen

“and wommen always entertan a secret desire-

to go to that country, or betfer still, bring
about conditions in Ireland exactly sirnilar
to those existing in the political, social and -
cconomic fivkls of life in *the ™ lLand of -
the Iree.” :

The greater number of the men and
wonien in Ireland, who belicve. in severing
the Ioniglish connection, ~loudly proclaim

~their interition of setting up a Republic like

anto that of the Uhited States. We wish
them luck and may they enjoy’ the fruits
of thieir sowing. . The harvest. at present
being - garncred in the United. States is
as follows - A e :

. (1) Four attempts in onc week; by white

.mabs, to lynch six untried negro prisoners

confined in American jails. -

{2), Seven raids in one weck by the police
or Trades ‘Cnionists who” were selling news-
papcrs, “collecting subscriptions, and other-
wise carrying on Union business. 80 men
were arrested during these raids, and onc

- of theme-was a boy agtd’ 14 years.
"ork burned up- - i And 5uclh

is thie- liberty. we covet:
- EFFICIENCY !

The, dissipation of cvery: ton of  coal
-diyidell -inty componént , par{s has  bueen
figired by thi director, of the United States
. Geologist Survey as follows: At thoe outset
2 Once tiy
1,400 pounds comes to the surfac
5 pounids to get the coal from the
¢ boiler room. - There 446 -pounds
smioke’ stack i waste’ gases,
5 escape in-rr;uiiuliqn';ul_l'(‘. another
“The amount.lost converting,

it takes
miing e

A1 in the ayhpit.

remaining’ 76 poungs®
omething productive’ Ve

7 & T '
{he Russian: Envoys at ‘the. Naval Con-
forence in-Italy demanded the right to-have,
a fleet in-thic/Baltic Sea, in‘the Pacifiec’Oceart
and in the Bl v before ey wotd -
: Jli\:rrm:glmvh’t_ pesofution:

BN
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DISMISSED by OR
OF MR. WM. O'BRIEN

(Copy.)
Irish Transport & General Workers’ Union.
Head Office : 35 Parnelb Square,
5% e Dublin,
REGISTER.

Mr. James Larkin,
54 Upper Beechwood Avenue, -
Ranelagh. .

A Chara—I am directed to inform you that
the' E.C., at their next meeting, will have
under | consideration the question as to

* whether you have been guilty of conduct
_unbecoming a member, of the Union, and
inimical to the interests of other members.

. Before: coming to a decision the E.C.
-wish to give you an.opportunity of furnishing
to them such reasons as .you may have
~as to why you should not be suspended or

“expelled from membership - of the Union.
I£ you fail -to furnish such reasons within
one week from this date it will be assumed”
that you do noc¢ intend {o submit samc.

" Yours fraternally,

(Signed) War. O'BRIEN.

Becchwood . Avenug,
E ) 7th March, 1924,
. William O'Bricn, . % .
-Sir—I enclase a copy of létter I have
written to Mr. Foran,
-and " General ‘Workers®

51 Up.

~

nion,

General Secretary.,
J ACopy.) .o

Rt 5% Up. Beéchwood  Avenue,

vv 0 ~Ranelagh; Co.- Dublin,

GP.

' Irish Transport_and

{." Dear Sit—1 ‘have received ‘a Tetter
~“of . whieh I enclose..” = = ;
I'shall be glad if you: will inform: me of .

- the names*of the persons who will constitute

-."and Rule they propose to act. .

_to the E.C. and “the
" ‘meeting.

¥ rish i;fansport.

Mr. James Larkin,

‘General Workers" Union,
35 Parnell Square,: Dublin.

“the E.C and under what authority;
I.also rgqiest full: detailed particulars in
writing of the alleged charges to be submitted

-~ The. letter I received is signed ' Wm.
O'Brien " onily and pot as an Official ‘of the
Union.” " . "¢ . . :
J "~ Yours_truly, - - )

i James Larkiy;
* General. Sccrctary.

,(Cﬂ-‘f\’y‘-) Rl

. Hcad Office, - ‘ﬂ
v ; . 35 Parnell Square,
- . - Dublin. *: -

54 "Upr. Beechwood Ave,,
Ranclagh.-.  ~ - - Y .

‘A Chara—In reply to-your letter of the
7th inst., I have to &tate that the persons
who will constitute the Executive 'Com-

ORDER

2. Irish Transport

7th March, .1921.

a copy’

date of the proposed -

Bth March, 1924,

miiftec are those who averc elécted: in accord- |

- ance with the Rules of 1918 and are qualified
to act, and that they roposc"tg') act under
< Rule’ 12 of the Rules
on.the 2nd- Jung, 1923, -
.. The charges against "you which Wil
submitted to the E.C. are; that you ¢
.by force the General President, the Géneral

. Treasurer, and other members of. the E.C.

- and-of the Union,from the Head Office of the

. Uniion at No. 35 Parncll Square, and thereby

the: Union registered.

rendered necessary - prolonged anpexpensive

litigation; " that. . you
thie, making of fal
tions wnounting v crimi

al vifcnees against
S w L] S5

made false” charges of
and frandnlent declara-

)

* the “heafing” of the said. liligati

1aken'in respect to the pending controvers

the General President and other members
of the Union, [hat you refused to leave the
questions in issue beiween yourself and the
other (veneral Officers and members of the
I2.C. to the degision of a delegate Conference
to be called for the purpose,.that since your
recurn to this country you-have persistently
pursted a course-of conduct which has mate
it impossible for the other  Officers” and
members of the 1£.C. to work with you in the
management of the affairs of the Union.
This matter will be considered by the
.C. on Friday the 14th inst. at 11.30 a:m.

Yours fraternally, -
Wn. O’BRIEN.

) 13th March, 1924.

To the -President and other persons
purporting to act as the Executive Com-
mittee of the Irish Transport and~General
Workers' Union.

I, James Larkin, in reply to the charges
stated in the letter 8th March, 1924, signed
William O’Brien to be submitted to the
Executive’ Committee on Friday, the 14th
instant, at 11.30 a.m. say :—

(1) That the purported Rules of 1918 and
1923 arc illegal.
< (2) That Raule i2 of the purported Rules
alleged to be registered on thd 2nd June,
1923, is illegal and ultra vires.

(3) That the said Rule dogs not apply’ to
a member of the Union who has been a
member prior to the 2nd June; 1923,

() AMhat the persons or some one or more
ofthem who will constitute the purported
Execcutive  Committec beipg  the persons -
purported to be elected as-such Commitice
on the date of their clection or subsequently
were disqualified persons under the Rules

* of the Union.

(5)  That a validly clected or qualified
Exceutive was not clected under the said
Rules or sct of Rules. '

. (6) That the-persons so clected do not
constitute a valid and lawful Executive
Committee. ’ T

{(7) - That the said persons or one or more
of them are suspended from membership
by - the Branches of the Union of which,
they were members.

- (8) That the purported-Efecutive Com-

! mittee docs WO répresent the membership

of the 'Union as since 1918 the Dublin

““Branches -havé not been represented by
qualified representatives eclected by them
to the Executive Committee. -+ o

E deny that I jllegally evicted by,

force” or otherwise the General President,
the- General Treasurcr.and’ other members
of ,the Exccutive. Committee of the. Union ¢
from.the Head Office of thé Union at No. 35
Parnell Squiare ;. that 1 made false chargds . -

" of any kind against h¢ General® President

) . - and’ other members of the Union, or_that I
& General Workers® Union; . ' ssu

refused |, to "leave the * questions *at - jssue
between. myself “and the other General :

Officers and members of the Executive Com-
ittee to the decision of a Delegate Con- -
fererice to be, called for the purpose, or that’
I have at any ‘time. pursued -a course of
conduct. which -made it impossible. for the
other members of .the Executive Committee -

to work with- me in the management of the
affairs of the Union: . 5 e g
(10). That I intimated to the Court,.at -

; that T

would servé.a Notice-of Appeal against the .

"7 Orders. of #hie Master of the Rolls ‘when his_ .

ordér was jssued. : “That the making of the.
Order’ has been-délayed: and is ‘not issued
even at this ddte, apd this is so- to the.

- knowledge of both partics to the litigation ] .

That in-consequence of the notices seived]:

on.me [ have served a Notice of Appeal]
-| which I may require to-aménd as 't6 details.| -

Pending the decision of thic Court of Appeal
1 'submut” that no action éan or shouid:-be

- {Signed)’ -

To the above

" Green Peas
" Oatmeal (Fine Scofch) .
‘Tinned' !_Hil_k'{ché teied) .

. Tinned Peathes (1lb, tins) _
‘Linoleum, 2 yards

Irish Transport & General wbrkers’ Union,
Head Office,
35 Parnell Square, Dubliy
18th March, 1924
REGISTER. e
Mr. James Larkin, g
54 Upper Beechwood Avenue, .
Rantlagh.

A Chara—I am directed to ack‘nuwkv(!gc
receipt _of your letter of the I13th inst,
which I placed before the E.C. at theie.
meeting on, the 14th inst., and in re ly 1
have to inform you that.ihe E.C. hag expelled.”
you from membership of ‘the Uni n the
charges set forth.in my.letter to you dated
the 8th inst.

.. Yours fraternally, -

~

NORTH COURT, 11,30 A.M.

Police District of ﬁl{e Dublin Métropolis to wit.

Thomas Healy, 23, Lower Oriel Street in
the City of Dublin. Complainant,
Thomas Foran, William O’Brien, Thomas

" Kennedy, Michael McCarthy, William Hill,

John Clancy. Patrick Stafford, Michael Ryan,
Patrick Gaffney, Michacl Duffy, all of 35
Parnell Squarc; in the City of Dublin.
Defendants. ,
Whereas a complaint has been made to
me that you and cach of you did Wilfully
apply moneys of the Irish Transport and

General Workers' Union' to purposes other -

than thosc expressed, or directed in the Rules
of the said Union, to wit certain sums of

Wu. O'BRIEN, -

money were paid by you and. each of you

in the year' 1922 to certdain persons Messrs.
M. Donnelly and J:.. Byrne, by way .of

_Financial assistance to help-in defraying the '

necessary arganizing expenses for the-¢stab-

lishment of a Military Force * The Irish

Workers Army.”” Arm Luct Oibre.
This is to command you to appear as a -

Defendant on the hearing of the said com---

plaint at the Dublin Metropolitan Police

Court, Inns Quay, Northern Division, in |

said District .on 25th day of March, 1924,

“at 1130 o'clock in-the forefoon, to answer -
 said complaint.

Dated the 13th day of Maich, 1924.
--Epmonp LurtoN (Copy)™
named Defendants.

“ AN ARMY MARCHES ON ITS

" 7 'STOMACH.” )

We are helping to’ fill: the stomach of the.

Irish - working <lass, sc that they also may -

march forward. -

We offer all members of the Irish Worker
Lga'guc the following ba;gains':*_w : ’

_PRICE LIST. . s
.7 . 8d.pertin
... 8d. per lb.
... 8d. perib.
s 8d. per b,
..."2d; per Ib.

Sardines

Split Peas ... ..

Flour

-

Soap (3 Ib. bars) f”jér

. As. per bar
To be had any tirae, \any day, at—
. THE IRISH 'WORKER LEAGUE

.. "7 Gardiner’s Place, Dublin.

- JOIN THE IR(SH WORKER LEAGUE.
Subscriptions Voluntary -

Entrance Fes, 1 -,

;}Od. per tin.
~-8d, per tin -
. 5 [- per lineal yd.

: E C Pre: .‘,,72,1, UPP‘“ 5
., Dublia, for "the 'Propriefof
sfied 1oy him at 17" Gardiner’s |
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